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Aksigorta Beyond

What can people expect from an insurance
company that goes beyond?

In short, can it meet the needs of people with
completely different views of insurance?

To see their true needs, to provide a different set of
products and services?

In short, can it totally transform people’s perception
of insurance?

To look at life from a different perspective, not as
an insurer but through their own eyes.

People have a different set of priorities from their
insurance, not just on the bad days. But what can
you expect if an insurance company is there for the
good days too?

There is an insurance company that lives to answer
these questions.



Hayata Devam
Turkiye

Keep Living Turkiye

As a company that prioritizes social good,

we recognize the importance of reaching the
proper awareness level against earthquakes.
We launched our Keep Living TUrkiye Project in
accordance with this awareness. In addition

to raising insurance awareness against
disasters in our society, this project also
supports learning about potential risks and
their measures from the subject matter experts.
We also launched a donation campaign for
our February 6™ disaster victims in cooperation
with the Needs Map. Within the scope of

the campaign, we transferred the proceeds
from Aksigorta’s home insurance sales to the
disaster region and created an assistance fund.




Innovative Products,

Innovative Services

We listen to our customers’ expectations
and needs and render the most fitting

and highest quality service to them. As
Aksigorta, we focused on the electric vehicle
category, a brand new and rapidly growing
segment in our country, and unveiled an
electric vehicle insurance, the Aksigorta
e-kasko insurance, for our customers as a
first in our industry. This initiative enabled us
to stay abreast of the changing customer
trends and the technology of the future
while solidifying our sustainability steps.



Differentiating Services,

Unique Customer Experience

We stand by our customers not just

at the time of a loss occurrence, but

also at the precaution stage before

an occurrence. We are breaking new
ground in the industry in digitalizing the
claims processes. We build a customer
experience shaped by advanced
technological solutions and upgrade this
experience to its best version. We work
hard to reach our customers as quickly as
possible in accordance with their needs.
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Sustainability Steps,

Social Good

We see sustainability as a
fundamental approach that is part
of every aspect of our business.

We focus on low-carbon economic
growth in our products and services
to contribute to the development,
prosperity, and higher quality of

life of our society. We improve our
environmental performance in our
operational processes and embrace
the Net Zero and Zero Waste goal.
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Aksigorta A.S. 2023 Ordinary General Assembly Agenda

Opening, and appointment of the Chairmanship Committee of the Meeting,

Reading and discussion of the Board of Directors’ Activity Report for 2023,

Reading of the Auditor Reports’ summary for 2023,

Reading, discussion, and approval of the financial statements issued for 2023,

Release of the Board of Directors from its responsibilities arising out of business activities of 2023,

Determination of method of distribution and use of the profit of 2023 and the rates of dividends and profit shares to be distributed,
Election of the Board of Directors members and determination of their terms of office,

Determination of fees and such other rights as remuneration, bonus and premium of the Directors,

Election of auditor,

. Discussion and approval of the proposed amendment to Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,

Discussion and approval of the proposed amendment to the Company’s Profit Distribution Policy,

. Discussion and approval of authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends for the fiscal year 2024,

. Presentation of information to General Assembly on donations and grants made during 2023,

. Determination of limits of donations to be made by the Company within 2024,

. Authorization granted to Chairman and other members of the board for transactions stipulated in Article 395 and 396 of Turkish Commercial Code,

. Wishes and requests.



Aksigorta in Figures

Aksigorta had TL 21.1 billion total assets
as of end-2023.

@
21.1

TL Billion
Total Assets

Aksigorta,
which focuses
on innovation

with customer-
oriented
approaches, had
TL 21.1 billion total
assets as of
end-2023.

|
3.3

TL Billion
Shareholders’ Equity

As of the end of
2023, Aksigorta’s
shareholders’
equity has
reached
TL 3.3 billion.

=
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TL Billion

TL Billion
Paid-in Capital Premium Production
As of the end of Aksigorta’s
2023, Aksigorta premium
has TL 1,612 million production

increased by 101%
compared to the
previous year and
amounted to
TL 27,299 million.

paid-in capital.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023
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TL Billion Market Share
Net Profit

Aksigorta
recorded market
share of 6.7% at

end-2023.

Aksigorta
reached a net
profit of TL 1,185

million by the
end of 2023.
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About Aksigorta

Sustainability

Activities Corporate Governance

Aksigorta aims to offer a unique
insurance experience to its
customers as a lifetime risk

companion.

Aksigorta has acted with a customer-
oriented and innovative vision and
continues its journey with powerful
steps forward thanks to its experience
and knowledge since the day it was
founded. Offering an extensive service
network to individual and corporate
customers, Aksigorta cooperates with
10 regional offices, 743 employees,
over 3,600 independent agencies, 704
Akbank branches, 134 brokers, and nearly
6 thousand contracted institutions,
prioritizing customer satisfaction.

In line with its vision, mission and
corporate values, Aksigorta continues its
operations in compliance with national
and international legal regulations.

Following the partnership between
Sabanci Holding and Belgian Ageas,
the Company has increased its brand
awareness and focused its efforts on
simple, understandable, and accessible
products and services with the “Next-
Generation Insurance” approach.

Aksigorta aims to offer a unique
insurance experience to its customers,
not only at the time of damage, but
also as a lifetime risk companion. The
Company continues to be a pioneer
in the insurance industry by bringing a
new perspective to insurance with its
customer orientation and innovation
approach.

The major shareholders of Aksigorta,
whose shares are publicly traded

on the BIST National Market under
the AKGRT ticker, are H.O. Sabanci
Holding (36% stake) and Ageas
Insurance International N.V. (36%
stake). Maintaining to achieve strong
financial results in 2023, Aksigorta’s
total assets reached TL 21,132 million
as of year-end and shareholders’
equity has reached TL 3,276 million.
Aksigorta recorded a total premium
production of TL 27,299 million, 101%
more compared to the same period
last year. Aksigorta recorded market
share of 6.7% at end-2023.

Financial Information and Risk Management
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Aksigorta Partnership Structure

Aksigorta continues its activities
with a 36%-36% partnership
between Sabanci Holding and
Ageas Insurance International NV.

Registered Capital

Aksigorta A.S. changed to the
registered (authorized) capital system
pursuant to the provisions of TUrkiye's
Capital Market Law (Statute 2499)

as of 9 March 1995 and holds license
number 301 from the Capital Markets
Board. The Company’s authorized
capital ceiling is TL 3,000 million, and
its paid-in capital is TL 1,612 million

as stated in the permit letter of

The Ministry of Commerce General
Directorate of Domestic Trade

dated 29 July 2023 and numbered
E-50035491-431.02-00076805481

and as stated in the permit letter of
Capital Markets Board dated 1 July
2023 and numbered E-29833736-
110.03-03-23502.

Capital Structure

No material changes have taken place
in the capital structure of Aksigorta A,
as shown in the table below.

Both of the Company’s major
shareholders purchased the same
volume of Aksigorta shares traded on
the Borsa Istanbul; as a result, their
stake in the Company increased from
33.11% to 36% in 2012. None of the real
partners have qualified share in the
partnership structure.

Management Methodology

Aksigorta continues its activities as a
joint venture company with a 36%-36%
partnership between Sabanci Holding
and Ageas Insurance International NV.

Shareholders that Control more than
a 10% Stake in the Company’s Issued
Capital

The names and shareholding interests
of shareholders who hold more than

a 10% stake in the Company’s issued
capital are shown in the chart:

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

Haci Omer Sabanci
Holding A.S.

36%
Free Float
28%
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
shareholders share (%) Amount (TL) Share (%) Amount (TL)

Haci Omer Sabanci

Holding A.S. 36 580,320,000 36 580,320,000
Ageas Insurance

International N.V. 36 580,320,000 36 580,320,000
Free Float 28 451,360,000 28 451.360.000
Total 100 1,612,000,000 100 1,612,000,000
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Our Purpose

For a sustainable life, we protect what is valuable
together with next-generation solutions.

Our Strategic Choices

« Growth in core insurance
* Investing in new growth areas
« Creating customer and stakeholder experience
« Achieving excellence through technology pa
- Complying with the future of the peopleand &

the business éﬁ/ -
« Contributing to sustainability

Our Values
Result Orientation Cooperation Continuous Development
With good planning, we find We work as a team for a We are curious to find better,
solutions without giving up, even common purpose. We believe and we develop ourselves
under difficult conditions, and in the power of working to achieve better. We have il
reach our goals. We push the together to shorten distances. the courage to change i
limits of what we can do and do We establish good relations completely when necessary.
not hesitate to go beyond our for a perfect cooperation We demand feedback
area of responsibility. We inspire environment, ask questions to and believe in lifelong \
each other and the sector with understand each other, and learning by actively using all

our achievements. listen with open ears. development channels.



Management’'s Assessment

Part of the proceeds from each home
insurance policy are transferred to the
fund we created for 11 cities affected
by the February 6 earthquake, with the
support of the Needs Map NGO.

Esteemed Shareholders,

Although risk, danger and worst-case
scenarios are at the heart of the
insurance profession — and even
though the majority of insurers spend
most of their day dealing with these
elements —nothing can actually
prepare us for dealing with a disaster
in emotional terms.

On February 6, 2023, we experienced
a devastating earthquake, one of the
worst disasters in the history of our
Republic, affecting 11 provinces. We
experienced the indescribable pain of
losing thousands of our citizens and
having tens of thousands injured and
left homeless. We once again wish
mercy to those who lost their lives
and extend our condolences to their
families and loved ones.

As a country, from those first hours,

we dedicated ourselves to healing the
wounds of the region. Immediately
following the disaster, all Sabanci Group
companies actively participated in
search and rescue efforts. We also
provided all types of support to other
rescue teams in their respective areas
of operation.

From day one, Sabanci Volunteers
assumed duties and responsibilities
in the supply and distribution of food,
as well as domage assessments. Our
teams are still conducting various
support and donation activities,
considering the needs of our citizens
and administrations in the region.
Within the scope of the “Sabanci
Republic Mobilization,” we carried out
psychosocial support activities in the
region for children and young people
affected by the earthquake as part of
the “To the Future with Hope (Gelecege

@
101%

Increase in
Premium
Production

Our Total Premium

Production reached

TL 27,299 million by
the end of 2023.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 n

Umutla)” project, which we jointly conducted
as Aksigorta and Agesa. Our support to the
region will continue in the next and following
years.

It is frequently said that the insurance
industry is a foul-weather friend, existing for
rainy days. The Turkish insurance industry
once again demonstrated the truth of this
adage in the aftermath of the earthquake.
According to sector research, the total
number of policies for motor insurance, fire,
the Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool (TCIP),
and life-personal accident insurance in the
11 provinces affected by the earthquake was
just 5.8 million.

Although the economic value of the total loss
was calculated as TL 2 trillion, the portion that
our citizens received back from insurance
was only TL 97.3 billion. Our industry possessed
the strength and guarantee structure to cover
both this earthquake and future disasters.

If insurance and risk awareness were more
widespread throughout our society, all of this
could have been covered by insurance.

As citizens of a country located on active fault
lines, we believe that we must remember
that earthquakes are a reality and that we
cannot avoid taking precautions. Accordingly,
we launched a social responsibility project
focused on earthquake risk transfer. Through
“"Hayata Devam Turkiye (Keep Living Turkiye),”
we carried out social activities to raise
awareness regarding earthquake risks; in
addition, part of the proceeds from each
home insurance policy purchased from
Aksigorta are transferred to the fund we
created for 11 cities affected by the February

6 earthquake, with the support of the Needs
Map NGO.
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As expected, 2023 was a difficult year
Ma nage ment’'s Assessment worldwide, from both an economic

and a humanitarian perspective. Price
increases across every sector, due
to the inflationary pressure felt in the
economies of almost every country,
brought economic difficulties to
daily life. Our nation surely felt these
hardships more intensely, due to the
impending election, the devastating
earthquake and fluctuating exchange
rates. However, despite these
negativities, the Turkish economy
entered a recovery phase, especially
in the second half of the year, following

At Aksigortq, 2023 the elimination of the uncertainties
was a year in which brought by the election and the correct
h decisions taken by the new economic
we achieved our administration. With the decisive
targets through fight against inflation and the Central
NnuMerous new Bank’s prudent interest rate decisions,
products, innovation the economy’s recovery gained

momentum. The OECD set growth

and, our greqteSt expectations for 2023 at 4.3%, while

strength, the value the IMF revised its 2023 forecast for
and talent of our Turkiye's economy upwards, from the
employees. 19 to the 17*" largest economy.

This economic recovery also had

a positive impact on our industry.
As of end-2023, the total premium
production of insurance companies
that are members of the Insurance
Association of Turkiye (TSB) had a
110.6% year-on-year increase.




We developed e-kasko, Turkiye's

first and most comprehensive
electric vehicle insurance package.

At Aksigorta, 2023 was a year in which
we achieved our targets through
numerous new products, innovation
and, our greatest strength, the value
and talent of our employees. While
our market share was 6.7%, our
premium production increased by
101% compared to the previous year,
reaching TL 27.3 billion.

As we know, in order to achieve godls,
an individual or an organization
requires the ability to “adapt,” which

is the basis of life, in addition to
possessing talents and strengths in
the said field. The most important

way to adapt - especially considering
the uncertainties and rapid
transformations of the present juncture
- is to "read” and make effective sense
of your environment. As the Aksigorta
Family, with this capacity and foresight,
we developed e-kasko, Turkiye's first
and most comprehensive electric
vehicle insurance package. This
product, which we believe will support
the transformation of electric mobility

@
6.7%

in our country by encouraging the use Market Share

of electric vehicles, not only embraces
changing customer trends and future
technologies but also aligns with our
sustainability vision.

In 2023, we continued to digitalize our
processes in line with our approach of
providing easy, simple and accessible
insurance services to our customers.
While incorporating artificial intelligence
applications into business processes,
we accelerated training projects to
increase our personal and professional
digital skills.

We continue to
carry out pioneering
work in our industry

with 6.7% market
share.

Artificial intelligence will undoubtedly
change insurance, as it will every

other industry. Ignoring or resisting

this transformation indicates a failure
to read the present and the future. As
Aksigorta, however, we believe in the
potential of the augmented intelligence
that emerges from the interaction

of human intelligence and artificial
intelligence. Within this scope, we attach
as much importance to personal talent
development as we do to digitalization.
In 2023, we aimed to provide added

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 13

value to the development of the
industry with the Beyond Insurance
Academy, which we organized for its
third term in cooperation with Bilgi
University.

Dear Friends,

We are facing challenges around
the world. Economic difficulties

are increasing, as is political and
geopolitical uncertainty. Even as
innovative digital and technological
changes across almost every areq,
especially in artificial intelligence,
create excitement about the future,
this rapid advancement also makes
it difficult to put forth accurate
predictions. As we noted earlier,

in these times of historic change,
organizations that have the capacity to
adapt can survive.

At Aksigorta, we consistently
demonstrate this capacity, and we
believe and trust in our capabilities. As
always, we have received the greatest
support from our valued stakeholders.
We extend our sincerest thanks

to all our shareholders, especially
Sabanci Holding and Ageas, our main
shareholders.

Respectfully yours,

HALUK DINGER
Chairman of the Board of Directors

UGUR GULEN
Board Member and General Manager
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Financial Highlights

Activities Corporate Governance Financial Information and Risk Management

As of the end of 2023, Aksigorta has
reached TL 3.3 billion shareholders’ equity.

Financial Indicators (TL Million) 2022 2023 PREMIUM PRODUCTION (TL MILLION) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (TL MILLION)
Premium Production 13,663 27,299
Incurred Claims 5,261 6,622 os ¢
Technical Profit (Technical Part .IOII /0 Increqse
-72 1,691
Balance)
Profit Before Tax -121 1,333 2022 13,563 2022 1,949
Net Profit -121 1185
Shareholders’ Equity 1,949 3,276
Total Assets 12,831 21,132
TOTAL ASSETS (TL MILLION) NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Capital Solvency Ratios 2022 2023
Written Premiums/Shareholders’ o o o7 °
Equity sox. 833%  65% Increase
Shareholders’ Equity/Total Assets 15% 16%
2022 12,831 2022 680
Operational Ratios (Non-Life) 2022 2023
Loss Ratio (Net) 107% 86%
Combined Ratio (Net) 133% 16%
NET PROFIT (TL MILLION) LOSS RATIO (%)

Profitability Ratios 2022 2023
Technical Profit (Technical Part 1 6%
Balance)/Written Premiums ° ° . - o7
Profit Before Tax/Written . .

. -1% 5%
Net Profit/Written Premiums -1% 4%
Number of Employees 680 743




Our Customer-Oriented Vision

Principles of Experience

Aksigorta has an approach that aims
to provide customers with a reliable
and easy experience whenever they
contact the Company. To this end, it
has adopted three basic principles
of experience: Trust, Simplicity,
Companionship.

Aksigorta strives to accompany all its
customers on their journey with the
Company, to simplify their lives, and
also aims to instill a sense of trust

in them by being transparent in all
business processes. It designs all of
its processes, channels of customer
contact, and customer journeys

in accordance with principles of
experience.

Customer First Team

The Customer First Team is a unit
operating in line with Aksigorta’s
goal of providing customers with

a reliable and easy complaint
resolution experience. Acting in line
with the principles of experience, the
team guides customers through all
insurance processes, building trust
and providing a seamless experience
that simplifies their lives.

The team not only provides support
to customers during the complaint
and demand processes but also
analyzes the processes in detail

to identify insights and customer
issues. By compiling and publishing
customer stories, they use the
learnings from these stories to
engage with business units and
third-party service providers and
design new processes that align
with customer expectations and
experience principles. The team also
analyzes customer NPS data and

takes actions to increase satisfaction.

The Customer First Team plays

an important role in adopting a
customer-oriented perspective as
a culture within the Company. The
team acts as the advocate of a
customer-oriented culture, creating
a common language and being the
biggest supporter of customers.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023
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Sustainability

Activities Corporate Governance

An Adventure that Dates Back to 1960

Aksigorta launched e-kasko, the
first and most comprehensive
MOD insurance policy designed
exclusively for electric vehicles.

1960s

First policy
The first policy was issued by
Aksigorta in 1961.

First insurance agency
Lami Teymen opened the first
Aksigorta agency in Adana in 1960s.

1980s

Beginning of bancassurance
Aksigorta issued the first insurance
policy through an online connection
in 1983.

1990s

Public offering of Aksigorta
Aksigorta shares were offered to the
public in 1994, and the shareholder
base of the Company was
broadened.

Opening of the Fire and Earthquake
Training Center

In 1996, Aksigorta opened the Fire and
Earthquake Training Center, which
was built entirely with technological
infrastructure developed in Turkiye.

First website
In 1996, Aksigorta'’s first website was
launched.

First online policy

The first online policy in TUrkiye
was issued by Aksigorta and online
connections were set up with
approximately 150 agencies.

Aksigorta established the quality
assurance system modeled on ISO
90011994 standards and was also
awarded BS EN 90011994 Quality
Standard Certification.

Having
achieved
many firsts
since the day
it was founded,
Aksigorta is the
first company
to issue online
policies in
Turkiye.

Financial Information and Risk Management

2000s

The certificate of authorization in the
health branch

Aiming to increase diversity in its
service portfolio, Aksigorta obtained

a certificate of authorization for the
health branch and began to issue
health insurance policies in 2002,
extending its line of business.

Opening of the Aksigorta Service
Center

Aksigorta opened the Aksigorta
Service Center providing services on a
24/7 basis in 2002.

Transition to regional management
Renewing itself constantly in line with
market conditions and demand,
Aksigorta shifted its management
strategy from central management
to regional management in 2006
through revising its business and
decision-making processes.

Merger between Ak Emeklilik and
Aviva Hayat ve Emeklilik

Ak Emeklilik A.S., a subsidiary of
Aksigorta, merged with Aviva Hayat
ve Emeklilik AS. in 2007. The Company
carried out its operations under the
name AvivaSA Emeklilik ve Hayat AS.
following the merger.

Harmonization with new legislation
Aksigorta became the leading
company on KalDer's (Turkish Quality
Association) Turkish Customer
Satisfaction List. During the same year,
TUketici Dergisi (Consumer Magazine)
named Aksigorta the “Most Reliable
Insurance Company for Quality” for
the fourth consecutive year.



“Most Reliable Insurance Company”
Aksigorta was chosen by consumers
as the “Most Reliable Insurance
Company” in a research study
conducted by AC Nielsen in 2009.

In a bid to achieve capital
optimization and unlock the hidden
value of its core insurance business,
Aksigorta entered a spinoff process
and transferred its participation
portfolio to Sabanci Holding in 2010.

2010

Keep Living Turkiye

Hosted by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, GUler Sabanc,
and managers at Sabanci Holding,
Aksigorta celebrated its 50
anniversary with an event attended
by members of leading circles in
business and society. At this event,
artists who contributed to Aksigorta’s
“Risk and Trust"-themed art project
were presented their awards and the
“Keep Living, TUrkiye” project, initiated
in cooperation with AKUT to raise
awareness about natural disasters
such as earthquakes, floods, or fires
across Turkiye among 5 million people
in 5 years, was also introduced.

Joining forces with Ageas

Ageas, a Belgium based international
insurance company, became a
strategic shareholder of Aksigorta in
July 2011 as Sabanci Holding, which
held a 62% stake in Aksigorta at

the time, sold 31% of the shares to
Ageas for USD 220 million to forge a
strategic alliance for Aksigorta.

Aksigorta’s new office

As of October 20, 2014, Aksigorta
continues its operations at a new
office, Buyaka Ofis Kuleleri, located in
Umraniye Tepeustu.

2017

New regional structure
Geographical coverage and the
organizational structures of the new
regions were determined based

on criteria such as profitability,
production, location, and potential.
Accordingly, the Company closed 16
agencies and 3 regional bank offices
and instead established 10 regional
retail sales offices.

2018

Ongoing investments in technology
In line with its digitalization strategy,
Aksigorta launched ADA (Aksigorta
Digital Assistant) — a first-of-its-kind
artificial intelligence application in
the sector.

Aksigorta “Goes Beyond”

Aksigorta shifted its focus from the
product to the customer. Aksigorta
adopted the slogan “Beyond” to
communicate its primary aim of
closely supporting its customers and
responding to their changing needs
while expanding the boundaries of
the insurance industry.

Aksigorta adopted
the slogan “Beyond”
to communicate
its primary aim of
closely supporting
its customers and
responding to their
changing needs
while expanding the
boundaries of the
insurance industry.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 17

2019

WhatsApp Business

Aksigorta broke new ground in the
sector with its WhatsApp Official
Business Account in 2019.

2020

60" Founding Anniversary

Aksigorta celebrated its 60"
anniversary in the digital environment
due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Green Office Program

The Green Office Program, launched
by Aksigorta to ensure a greener
world, was completed during the
year. Thanks to its exceptional results
in reducing natural resource use by
conservation and best practices,
Aksigorta was granted Green Office
certification by WWF Turkiye.

Aksigorta Digital Security Platform
Aksigorta established the Digital
Security Platform to prepare the
society against the risks of the digital
world of the future. Free online digital
security trainings, informative videos
and news can be found in this
platform with the collaboration of
Bogazigi University.
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Sustainability

Activities

An Adventure that Dates Back to 1960

51% of Aksigorta

employees are women.

2021

United Nations Women'’s
Empowerment Principles
Aksigorta signed the United Nations
Women's Empowerment Principles
(WEPs) convention as part of its
ongoing efforts toward achieving
gender equality.

Beyond Insurance Academy
Aksigorta, in cooperation with Bilgi
University, conducted a 6-month
intensive learning program on
insurance related issues. The
program covered a wide range of
topics, including risk engineering,
tax law, digital marketing, sales
techniques in the new world, and
customer relations for distance
selling, in addition to various
products, such as health, fire,
transportation, receivables and
cyber insurance. At the Academy, 20
different trainings were administered
to nearly 9,000 participants during
the year.

Support for biodiversity from

Aksigorta

Aksigorta donated 1,500 saplings

to TEMA due to forest fires in the

summer of 2021. In order to regain the

forest quality of our damaged forests
and to protect our natural habitats,

forests and biodiversity, which are a

part of common life, Sabanci Group

commits to;

+ Rehabilitation and reforestation of
500 hectares of land,

« Bringing a total of 1 million saplings
to our country over the next 5 years,
together with the areas deemed
appropriate and prepared by the
Forestry Directorates,

« Adding 3 water supply vehicles to
the fleet so that it can be fought
more easily when forest fires,
which we wish not to repeat, are
encountered.

Aksigorta will also contribute to these
commitments for five years.

Corporate Governance

Financial Information and Risk Management

Aksigorta signed
the “United
Nations Women'’s
Empowerment
Principles”
convention as part
of its ongoing efforts
toward achieving
gender equality.

2022

BIST Sustainability Index

Raising its sustainability score,
Aksigorta was recently included in
the BIST Sustainability Index, which
evaluates companies according to
international sustainability criteria
on environmental, social, corporate
governance, human and employee
rights, and transparency.

Certificate of Equality for Women at
Work

Aksigorta, of which 51% of its
employees are women, was awarded
the Equality for Women at Work
Certificate following an independent
audit conducted in cooperation with
the Sustainability Academy and the
British audit company Intertek.



Aksigorta shared its first
Sustainability Report

Focusing on people and the future of
the planet with its next-generation
insurance approach, Aksigorta
shared its efforts in this direction via
the Company’s first Sustainability
Report. The Report, prepared in
accordance with the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) standards core option,
covers the related activities between
January 1- December 31, 2021. The
Report includes the management
approach and goals regarding the
social, economic, and environmental
impacts arising from the Company’s
activities, as well as the performance
results achieved and Aksigorta’s
contributions to the Sustainable
Development Goals accepted by the
United Nations.

2023

Aksigorta receives an Excellent
Customer Experience Award at the
A.C.E. Awards

Aksigorta received the Excellent
Customer Satisfaction award at the
eighth edition of the A.C.E. Awards.
The competition was organized by
Sikayetvar.com, Turkiye's first and
only platform measuring customer
satisfaction.

First Specialized MOD Insurance for
electric vehicles

Aksigorta launched e-kasko, the

first and most comprehensive MOD
insurance policy designed exclusively
for electric vehicles. The policy offers
numerous special guarantees for
electric vehicle owners.

Aksigorta received
the “Excellent

Customer
“Keep Living Tlirkiye” Project
Through its earthquake risk transfer
responsibility project, “Hayata
Devam Turkiye (Keep Living Turkiye),”
Aksigorta not only raises insurance
awareness but also explains how we
can learn from experts about the risks
we face; that the community can
be supported in taking precautions
against earthquakes; and why
potential risks should be transferred
to an insurance institution. Aksigorta
also established an aid fund for the
victims of the February 6 earthquake
in cooperation with Needs Map.

Satisfaction” award.
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Second Sustainability Report
Published

Aksigorta’s second Sustainability
Report was published. In addition to
covering management approaches
and goals for social, economic and
environmental impacts arising from
the Company’s activities between
January 1 and December 31, 2022,
the Report summarizes Aksigorta's
contribution to the Sustainable
Development Goals adopted by the
United Nations.

Opening of Aksigorta Memorial
Forests in Manisa and izmit

In May, Aksigorta donated 10,000
saplings to the Aegean Forest
Foundation on behalf of each
employee to establish the Aksigorta
Memorial Forest in the izmit Taskdpra
afforestation area. Most recently,
10,000 saplings were donated to
Manisa for the Aksigorta Memorial
Forest on Yunt Mountain in Manisa.
Aksigorta employees and the izmir
and Manisa agencies attended the
opening of Aksigorta’s Memorial
Forest in Manisa, as did Burak
YUzgul, Aksigorta’s Assistant Generall
Manager for Human Resources and
Sustainability, and Perihan Ozturk,
Board Member of the Aegean Forest
Foundation.
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Achievements Crowned with Awards

March

“Excellent Customer Experience’
Award

Empowered by digital
transformation, and offering

a customer-centric insurance
experience, Aksigorta has been
awarded the “Excellent Customer
Satisfaction’ award at the 8" A.C.E
Awards organized by TUrkiye's first
and only customer satisfaction
measuring platform, Sikayetvar.
com. At the A.C.E Awards, where 113
national and international brands
managing customer experience
best across 60 different sectors
were rewarded, Aksigorta has won
the Diamond award in the “Excellent
Customer Satisfaction-Elementary
Insurance Category A'.

Sustainability

Activities Corporate Governance

April

Kaan Konak among the "Top

50 Most Influential Technology

Leaders’
Aksigorta has continued to add
value with agile teams on its

digitalization journey also in 2023.

Redefining the insurance sector
with digitalization, Aksigorta, in

collaboration with Dataexpert, has
been featured in the "Top 50 Most

Influential Technology Leaders”
research conducted for the first
time this year by BMI Business

School, with its CIO, Kaan Konak.

Financial Information and Risk Management

May

Award to Aksigorta at IDC Tiirkiye
Cl10 summit

Continuing its work with a new
generation insurance approach,
Aksigorta has been continuously
rewarded for its digital initiatives.
At the CIO Awards held within

the IDC Turkiye CIO Summit,
organized under the theme
“Empowering Leaders of the Digital
Economy,” 323 projects from 86
institutions across 7 categories
were evaluated. Awards were
presented to institutions and
managers who ranked with their
projects throughout the year. At
the ceremony, Aksigorta's Deputy
General Manager, Kaan Konak,
received an award in the ‘Innovative
Leaders’ category.

October

“Sabanci of the New
Generation” Award
Aksigorta has been deemed
worthy of an award in the “New
Generation Sabancl” category
at the Sabanci Altinyaka
Awards with its agile working
world, Agiland, consisting of a
combination of agile values,
principles, and practices that
transform the way of working.
This award, given at the 10"
Altinyaka Awards, aims to
bring to the forefront the best
projects, applications, and
business models within the
Sabanci Community, to serve
as examples to each other,
and to appreciate and reward
them.
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October

Tolga Tezbagaran listed among the
50 Most Effective CMOs

Tolga Tezbagaran, Retail Product,
Technical and Customer
Management Assistant General
Manager at Aksigorta, was named
one of Turkiye's top 50 CMOs by the
Milliyet Executive Advisory Board,
formed on the basis that a successful
marketing leader can guide brands
in making a difference in the eyes of
consumers.

November

Numerous awards for Aksigorta’'s
digital projects

Aksigorta won awards for its digital
projects this year as well. At the IDC
Future Enterprise Awards, organized
as part of the 4" IDC Turkiye DX
Summit, the Company’s “Smart
Scoring with Al” project won first prize
in the “Best in Future of Operations”
category. At the Future of Cloud &
Al Awards, the IPA (Identical Photo
Agent) project was selected as the
Project of the Year in the “Artificial
Intelligence” category, and the
“Smart Scoring with Al” project in
the "Data & Advanced Analytics”
category.

November

Aksigorta is “Turkiye’s Best
Employer” for the fifth time
Aksigorta was selected as “Turkiye's
Best Employer” for the fifth time in a
row in the “Kincentric Best Employers”
program, which is based on research
conducted by Kincentric, one of the
world's leading human resources and
management consultancy platforms.
Kincentric has been measuring
workplace excellence for more than
50 years by conducting surveys

with employees. Committed to the
principle of continuous improvement
in all Human Resources applications,
from recruitment to career
development, from performance
management to training and
development opportunities, Aksigorta
has a 78% employee loyalty rate and
an 87% employee satisfaction rate.

December

Award to Aksigorta from Insider LIFT
Awards

Aksigorta received the "“Most Effective
Customer Experience Usage for
WhatsApp Business Notifications”
Award at the Tith LIFT Awards
organized by Insider. The sector-

first project enables customers to
instantly learn the status of their files
via WhatsApp notifications; Aksigorta
customers who file a claim report
receive automatic notifications
about the ongoing status of their
files via Aksigorta’s Official Business
WhatsApp account. In this manner,
Aksigorta customers can instantly
monitor their file status without
contacting the call center or inquiring
via the website.
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(sustainability)
(Sustainability)

Activities Corporate Governance

Sustainability Policy

The first step of Aksigorta's
sustainability approach is
compliance with the legal
obligations to which it is subject.

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to

define the strategic approach of
Aksigorta A$. towards sustainability
management, to guide the dimensions
of company activities, product and
service processes related to these
issues, and to inform our relevant
stakeholders in this direction. As a
well-established company operating
in the insurance field, our main task is
to create value for our stakeholders
with a sustainable business model
that respects nature and people. Our
sustainability policy sets out the basic
principles and principles aimed at
minimizing the negative environmentall
and social impacts and maximizing
the positive impacts regarding the
business and other activities of our
company and our entire value chain,
especially our customers.

Authority and Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible

for updating and executing the
sustainability policy. Policy; It is
reviewed at least once a year and
updated if necessary.

The first step of Aksigorta’s
sustainability approach is
compliance with the legall
obligations to which it is subject. In
cases where the legislation is not
regulated, internationally accepted
management and professional
ethical principles are followed. The
company credates management,
measurement, evaluation and
reporting systems for sustainability
studies in accordance with the
principles stipulated in international
standards.

Financial Information and Risk Management

Our main task
is to create
value for our
stakeholders with
a sustainable
business model
that respects
nature and
people.

Aksigorta Sustainability Committee is
responsible for the following activities
as the main management function
on sustainability:

+ Determination of priority
sustainability issues, business
objectives, management and
implementation norms,

+ Integration into corporate strategic
plans,

+ Implementation and performance
monitoring and reporting to
senior management and external
stakeholders.

The works are carried out by
subjecting internal systems and,
where necessary, independent audit
processes.

Aksigorta supports national and
international initiatives operating

in the field of sustainability and
sustainable development in general
or priority sustainability issues
determined by Aksigorta; It follows
the latest developments in Turkiye
and in the world by communicating
with various stakeholders, especially
non-governmental organizations,
universities and public institutions. We
integrate these developments into
our work.



General Principles

As a well-established company
operating in the insurance field,

our main task is to create value for
our stakeholders with a sustainable
business model that respects nature
and people and is highly profitable.

The main goal we have adopted in
terms of sustainability management
is to increase our performance in
matters that have the potential to
create opportunities by eliminating
the sustainability risks that may have
a negative impact on the Company’s
activities.

In addition, being the main business
partner of our customers in
managing their sustainability risks
with the products and services

we have developed is one of

the principles for sustainability

management.

« The company considers the
Sustainable Development Goals
accepted by the United Nations
as a part of its sustainability
management, and includes efforts
towards these goals in its activities.

+ In order to protect the ecosystem,
especially in the fight against the
global climate crisis, environmental
efficiency activities are focused
on, and it is aimed to reduce the
carbon footprint by measuring it.

« Itis aimed to increase the number
of products and services that
contribute to sustainability and
their share in total revenues.

« Sustainable and green investment
instruments are prioritized in
investment decisions taken within
the scope of fund management
activities.

« Taking part in initiatives in the
field of sustainability, national and
international developments are
closely followed.

« Long-term cooperation with our
colleagues is aimed within the
framework of respect for human
and employee rights and by
offering equal opportunities.

+ In order to support the local
and low-carbon economy in
purchasing, suppliers with local
and environmentally friendly
practices are preferred, provided

that they comply with our company

legislation.

« The works we carry out in this
context are managed with a
transparent and accountable
structure.

Scope

Considering sustainability as a basic
business philosophy, Aksigorta AS.
aims to make the evaluation of
operational processes and social,
economic and environmental
dimensions of products and

services a fundamental part of its
business strategy. In line with this
goal, Aksigorta AS. integrates its
sustainability approach into both
insurance and investment processes
with an environmental and social risk
management perspective.

Aksigorta aims to
make the evaluation
of operational
processes and
social, economic
and environmental
dimensions
of products
and services a
fundamental part of
its business strategy.
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+ Having undersigned an important
sustainability project in the field
of digital security, Aksigorta A.S.
prepares the society for the risks
of the digital world of the future,
thanks to its Digital Security
Platform. Considering digital data
as the most valuable asset of the
age, Aksigorta A.S. focuses on the
development of new generation
technologies such as big data,
advanced data analytics, cyber
security, industrial loT, robotic
workforce, artificial intelligence and
blockchain. Aksigorta defines its
future with a digital, personalized
service-oriented and paperless
insurance approach.
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Supporting gender equality, Aksigorta
takes measures to increase female
employment and support the female
workforce to stay in employment.

«+ Aksigorta A.S. employees take
care to protect the privacy and
private information of customers,
employees and other relevant
persons and organizations.
Confidential information regarding
the activities of Sabanci Group
Companies is protected and
this information is used only for
Sabanci Group’s purposes; this
information is shared with the
relevant persons only within the
determined authorities. In order to
ensure trust and stability, increase
service quality, prevent unfair
competition and transactions and
practices that may cause harm
in the economy, and increase
social benefit, it is included in the
Aksigorta A.S. Ethical Principles.

+ Supporting gender equality,
Aksigorta A.S. takes measures to
increase female employment and
support the female workforce to stay
in employment. Discrimination within
the Company or any behavior that
may be perceived as discrimination;
no form of verbal, physical, sexual,
racial, psychological abuse or
harassment will be tolerated.

« Aksigorta does not provide products
or services to sectors and activities
that have a negative impact on
the climate crisis, ecosystem and
community welfare and security,
and for which these effects
cannot be reduced, and does not
invest within the scope of fund
management activities. Sabanci
Group takes the Responsible
Investment Policy as a basis
when determining this sector and
activities and the implementation
methods related to them.

Financial Information and Risk Management

Activities
carried out in
coordination
with business
partners such

as agencies and
suppliers play
an important
role in ensuring
sustainable
business success
across the
value chain of
Aksigorta.

+ Activities carried out in coordination
with business partners such as
agencies and suppliers play
an important role in ensuring
sustainable business success
across the value chain of Aksigorta
A.S. We expect our business
partners to adopt a work culture
identical to itself, an understanding
of business ethics and a service
quality that makes a difference. We
pay attention to these principles in
our business partner preferences.

+ Aksigorta A$. organizes many
online trainings for its agents from
insurance to digital marketing, from
sales management to accounting
under the umbrella of “Beyond
Insurance Academy.”

In this context, Aksigorta A.S. aims to
raise awareness among the society
on insurance products and services
and their benefits by using traditional
and internet-based communication
channels or through social
responsibility activities.

* Economic, environmental, social and
governance performances for the period
January 1, 2023-December 31, 2023 will be
published in the Sustainability Report 2024.



Sustainability Performance

The activities involved in Aksigorta’s
operations that require direct and
indirect energy consumption are
monitored, and amounts of energy
consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions are calculated.

Aksigorta bolsters its sustainability
performance every year and
especially strives to minimize the
environmental impact of its activities.

Sustainability performance will be
detailed in our “Sustainability Report.”

The activities involved in Aksigorta’s
operations that require direct and
indirect energy consumption are
monitored, calculating and recording
amounts of energy consumption
and greenhouse gas emissions.

Aksigorta’s Scope 1, Scope 2 and
Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions
are calculated using the greenhouse
gas emission factors published by EIE
and IPCC, and the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard methodology. In
line with its net zero emission target,
Aksigorta develops plans and carries
out projects aimed at reducing

the energy intensity of its activities.
Aksigorta also wants to expand the
content of emission calculations as
part of the same target.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023
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Sustainable Products and Services*

e-kasko enables electric vehicles to travel
safely with numerous guarantees.

Specialized MOD Insurance for
Electric Vehicles

Aksigorta broke new ground in Turkiye
and developed a new product
exclusively for electric vehicle
customers. This new product, called
e-kasko, enables electric vehicles

to travel safely with numerous
guarantees ranging from recharging
to theft of charging equipment,

from battery guarantee to on-site
charging service and 10% discount
advantage in e-charging service.

Eco-Friendly Citroen Ami

By developing a new MOD insurance
product for the electric vehicle
Citroen Ami, a Third Party Financial
Liability guarantee is being offered
in addition to the product-specific
coverage.

* SDG: Sustainable Development Goals

Corporate Governance

Financial Information and Risk Management

Keep Living Turkiye

With the Keep Living Trkiye project,
an aid fund is being created in the
earthquake region for each new
home product purchased. The aid
fund, which was launched with 20
Container Houses with the support of
Needs Map, will continue to provide
regular aid to earthquake victims
with a contribution of TL 80 from
each new home policy. As part of this
campaign, donations were collected
from 37,895 Aksigorta customers for
earthquake victims.

Renewable Energy Package
Aksigorta launched the MO0
“Renewable Energy Package” product
for Electric Vehicle Charging stations,
which are being more and more
widespread, to cover the installation,
fire, and theft risks of companies that
install charging stations.

Aksigorta Supplementary Health
Insurance (SIH) Gift

Aksigorta offers a discount gift of

up to TL 1,500 in Aksigorta SIH for alll
customers aged 18-30 who become
Akbank customers for the first time
via Akbank Mobile, where they can
be examined in SSI-contracted
private hospitals without paying any
difference fee.

BYD MOD Insurance

As Auto Insurances, BYD MOD, the
first and only electric car insurance
product specific to BYD automobiles,
was launched.



Social Impact

Aksigorta prepared an
Anti-Discrimination Glossary

to contribute to creating a fair,
egalitarian, and inclusive world for all.

« Aksigorta prepared an
Anti-Discrimination Glossary
to contribute to creating a fair,
egalitarian, and inclusive world for
all.

« To support sustainable agriculture
and local economy, the Company
participated in the strawberry
harvest in cooperation with Doga
Benim (Nature Is Mine) Adventure
and Outdoor Sports Club.

« In cooperation with Devridaim
Sustainable Economy Institute,
waste was turned into benefit
through upcycling by making
bracelets from fabric waste and
gifting them to children in the
earthquake region.

« In line with efforts to ensure full
and equal participation of persons
with disabilities in social life, we
attended the Dialogue Museum'’s
Dialogue in Darkness and Silence
events to draw attention to their
problems and to better understand
them as part of the International
Day of Persons with Disabilities on
December 3.

+ In cooperation with Bogazigi
University Visually Impaired
Technology and Education
Laboratory (GETEM), books were
vocalized to contribute to the online
library for the visually impaired.

On October 4,
World Animal
Day, Aksigorta
supported the
dog habitat in
Catalca with

1 ton of dog
food through

the Happy Paws

Association.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 27

We participated in TEGV's “Atma
Bagisla! / Don't Waste, Donate!”
project, contributing to the
provision of quality education to
more children while reducing the
environmental damage caused

by e-waste and creating an
alternative resource method.

On October 10, World Homeless Day,
we worked with the Corbada Tuzun
Olsun (Contribute a Small Share)
Association to draw attention to the
housing problem increasing in the
world for various reasons and to
provide social benefit.

On October 4, World Animal Day, we
visited the dog habitat in Catalca
with volunteers through the Happy
Paws Association and supported it
with 1ton of dog food.

In the Earth Hour organized by

WWF to draw attention to the
climate crisis and loss of nature,

we participated in the call to
commemorate the earthquake
victims and to build a future in
harmony with nature, starting from
the earthquake-hit areas, and
supported the Green Recovery
movement.

On November 25, the International
Day for the Elimination of Violence
against Women, an announcement
was published to create awareness
about violence against women and
to provide information on what to
do in case of violence.
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Sustainability Trainings

Relevant units were
included in the Nature
Positive Masterclass
Certificate Program through
the training organized

by the Sustainable
Development Association.

As part of sustainability trainings, Aksigorta
organized Awareness Training for Sustainability,
Sustainable Living Model Webinar, Corporate
Sustainability Webinar, Sustainable Products
and Services Workshop, Sustainable Finance
Workshop, Environment and Climate Change
Workshop, Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Workshop, Strong Women Leaders Panels,
“Sorulari Tersinden Sormak / Asking Questions
in Reverse” Gender Equality Awareness Webinar
with Elif Dogan, Breast Cancer Awareness
Month Webinar, Healthy Living with Conscious
Awareness, Climate Change and Its Impact on
Our Business, and Offering Sustainable Solutions
to Our Customers events. Relevant units were
included in the Nature Positive Masterclass
Certificate Program through the ESG Risk
Management and Oversight Training organized
by the Sustainable Development Association.
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Environmental Sustainability

Aksigorta is contributing to nature and
sustainability with memorial forests.

In May, contributing to nature and
sustainability, Aksigorta donated 10
thousand saplings to the Aegean
Forest Foundation on behalf of
each of its employees to create
the Aksigorta Memorial Forest in
izmit Tasgkopru afforestation area. In
November, the Company donated
10 thousand saplings to create the
Aksigorta Memorial Forest in Manisa
Yunt Mountain for each agency.

To contribute to environmental
cleanup and waste recycling, 504
kg of garbage from Sariyer Kisirkaya
Beach and 2.5 bags of garbage and
1.5 bags of waste from BUyukada
were collected.
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Corporate Governance

Aksigorta continues to develop
sustainable products and services
linked to sustainable development.

In 2023, Aksigorta restructured its
Corporate Governance activities to
be composed of Executive Board
members. Four working groups were
established under the Sustainability
Committee: Environment and Climate
Change; Equality, Diversity, and
Inclusion; Sustainable Products and
Services; and Sustainable Finance.

The Executive Board discusses
sustainability issues at least four
times a year. Sustainability studies
are presented to the Executive
Board by the sustainability unit and
sustainability working group leaders
under the leadership of the Assistant
General Manager for Human
Resources and Sustainability.

Duties and Responsibilities of the

Sustainability Committee

« The sustainability committee
identifies material topics on
sustainability that need to be
focused on.

« It creates, implements, and
monitors the sustainability strategy,
its short-, medium-, and long-term
goals, roadmaps, and policies.

« It determines and monitors the
performance criteria for the
sustainability targets of business
units.

« It establishes working groups
and determines their members,
if necessary, to carry out the
necessary work to achieve
sustainability targets.

« It follows national and international
developments, public regulations,
and trends regarding sustainability
topics.

In 2023, Aksigorta
restructured
its Corporate
Governance

activities to be
composed of
Executive Board
members.

Financial Information and Risk Management

« It identifies, evaluates, and
manages sustainability-related
risks and opportunities.

+ It makes recommendations on
sustainability communication plans,
approves plans, and audits the
processes.

+ It ensures that employees and
stakeholders are informed in order
to disseminate the sustainability
business approach among
employees and all stakeholders,
and it coordinates the organization
of trainings and stakeholder
participation in matters deemed
necessary for this purpose.

« It participates in sustainability
report studies and approves the
report.

« It carries out studies to ensure
compliance with the principles
included in the Sustainability
Principles Compliance Framework
announced by the CMB. It prepares
the sustainability reports required
by the Capital Markets Legislation
and submits them to the approval
of Board of Directors for public
disclosure.

In line with the sustainability efforts

and goals of the shareholders

Sabanci Holding and Ageas, in 2023:

+ The Company continued to be
listed on the BIST Sustainability
Index, which evaluates the
international sustainability
performance of companies traded
in Borsa Istanbul on environmental,
social, corporate governance,
human and employee rights, and
transparency topics.
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+ In line with the goal of being a
net zero emission company by
2050 in order to limit the global
temperature increase to 15°C
on the way to combat climate
change in accordance with the
Paris Climate Agreement, efforts
to set targets for Scope 1, Scope 2
and Scope 3 emissions compatible
with the Science Based Targets
Initiative (SBTi) continued. For
the sum of Scope 1 and Scope
2 emissions, a 53% reduction is
targeted by 2030 compared to the
level in 2019. For Scope 3 emissions,
an implementation plan is being
worked on within the scope of the
Portfolio Coverage methodology,
one of the approaches
recommended by SBTi for the
financial services industry. After
the Scope 3 target setting study is
completed, it is planned to apply
for SBTi in 2024.

« With the renewable energy
certificate I-REC, it is documented
that all of the electricity consumed
at the headquarters and sales
offices has been met from
renewable sources since 2023.

« In line with the goal of developing
new sustainable products
and services every year, the
development of sustainable
products and services linked
to sustainable development
continued.
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Compliance with the Future of the Work

Aksigorta aims for continuous
development in a wide range of areas
from recruitment to career development,
performance management to training
and development opportunities.

Constantly innovating to protect the
value with next-generation solutions
for a sustainable life, Aksigorta sees
its employees as its most valuable
asset.

Forming agile, self-managing teams
in order to become a connected
and result-producing organization,
Aksigorta strives to become a most
preferred employer in the market.
Aksigorta also develops and retains
the best talent while providing its
employees with the competencies
required by the future of work.

Adopting the principle of continuous
development in its Human Resources
practices, Aksigorta aims for
continuous development in a wide
range of areas from recruitment to
career development, performance
management to training and
development opportunities.

Financial Information and Risk Management

O-I-
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Number of
Employees

Aksigorta
received the
“Kincentric
Best Employer”
award for the
fifth yearin a
row.

Aksigorta aims to create a
working environment where
employees feel more flexible and
free and where they can create
value in line with common goals.

Aksigorta received the “Kincentric
Best Employer” award for the

fifth year in a row in a survey
conducted by Kincentric, one

of the world's leading human
resources and management
consultancy platforms. This award
recognizes the Company’s efforts
to value its employees, promote
workplace excellence, and
improve work culture.

Aksigorta employees:

- are free, flexible, agile, and
productive. take initiative to
reach clear objectives, and
make their own decisions with
confidence to find solutions.
take responsibility of their
output.

+ build relationships based
on trust and maintain them
through dialogue and empathy.
collaborate, learn from each
other, and experience a culture
in which they share their
excitement with each other and
feel a strong sense of belonging.

+ have rapid access to all
necessary resources, expertise
and knowledge, focus on high
value-added activities by
utilizing technology, and as a
result achieve self-development
to help the Company grow.



Within Aksigorta’s new talent
management approach launched
in 2023, a talent club called Future
Club was established.

Talent Management

With 63 years of experience, Aksigorta
adopts an approach that focuses on
attracting and developing talents.
Aksigorta operates in line with the
goal of providing young talents

with the best employee experience
starting from the recruitment
process and offering development
opportunities that will lead them to
their best.

Aksigorta collaborates with
universities and organizes internship
programs that focus on professional
development. The company also
designs and implements long-term,
modular special talent programs,

as well as periodic young talent
programs such as IT Talent Camp,
UW School specific to technical fields.

Using technology, Aksigorta focuses
on attracting and recruiting talent
who are most suited to the future

of work, the Company’s corporate
culture and the requirements of the
new Agile world. The right candidates
are assigned to the right positions
through structured, competency-
based interviews (either online or
foce—to—foce), personality inventories,
aptitude tests and development
center practices.

Aksigorta’s onboarding process, which
is powered by digital tools, supports
new employees to quickly comply with
and adapt to the corporate culture.
One-on-one meetings organized

as part of the business partnership
structure focus on employee
development by addressing career
planning and performance issues.

In addition to this, meetings with the
management team are planned.
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It is ensured that the relevant
manager produces appropriate
solutions by focusing on the career
and performance planning of his/her
team.

The "I Recommend a Candidate”
project launched following the
merger of Aksigorta and Agesa
Human Resources teams as part

of synergy work is implemented in
both companies. This project aims
to increase talent acquisition for
growth targets and reach potentiall
candidates more effectively.
Employees taking part in the project
not only receive support in candidate
guidance but also have the
opportunity to receive rewards.

Aksigorta adopts
an approach
that focuses on
attracting and
developing talents.



34 Corporate Profile

(sustainability)
(Sustainability)

Activities

Compliance with the Future of the Work

Aksigorta offers an equal and
fair working environment for its
employees with the awareness

of gender equality.

Learning Development

Aksigorta offers various programs
through its Learning & Development
team to respond to the development
needs of next-generation talents
and leaders. Aksigorta designs
development programs in which
employees are able to access all
resources in the fastest way possible,
give and receive feedback, and learn
from each other. Aksigorta promotes
continuous learning with the support
of technology and supports its
employees to reach their best.

Learning solutions include live training
sessions, e-learning, online virtual
classrooms, online learning journeys,
seminars, and experience sharing
meetings from subject matter
experts.

Aksigorta offers its employees the
Future Self program for professional
and competency development, which
includes more than 20 courses that
they can choose and participate in the
areas they want to improve themselves.
Each year, Aksigorta announces that
year's programs and provides all
employees with an area to choose
from.

Within Aksigorta’s new Talent
Management approach launched in
2023, a talent club called Future Club
was established. The development
programs “Power Up+" for Future Club
members in managerial functions
and “Rise Up” for FC members who
do not have team management
responsibilities aim to improve self-
awareness, increase internal motivation,
and improve their ability to manage
their work/team for talents working in
both Headquarters and field teams.

Corporate Governance

Financial Information and Risk Management

Aksigorta offers
its employees the
Future Self program
for professional
and competency
development, which
includes more than
20 courses that
they can choose
and participate
in the areas they
want to improve
themselves.

These programs are designed for the
organization’s talent club members and
aim to prepare them for their future
careers.

Drawing on the synergy of its two strong
partners, Aksigorta helps its employees

to optimally plan their future and move
forward on a career path that also
encompasses Sabanci Holding and
Ageas. Featuring the motto “Your Career,
Your Aksigorta,” a transparent career path
map that supports rotation and talent
development for all employees is offered
to staff members at the Company.

LETS, a new leadership development
program for Aksigorta and Agesa mid-
level managers, which is prepared

within the framework of Sabanci Holding
leadership capabilities and aims to
increase synergy and information sharing
between the two companies, targets

to provide its participants with next-
generation leadership skills by offering
next-generation learning methods and
personalized learning experience. In the
program, which was carried out between
February-October 2023, participants
attended 4 modules in total and took
part in the program with a hybrid
learning setup where they could follow
the program through the online learning
platform as well as in-class sessions.

Along with its Belgian stakeholder Ageas,
Aksigorta prepares short and long-term
career experience opportunities. Aksigorta
provides career opportunities to its
employees in conjunction with succession
plans prepared across a wide area that
covers Sabanci Group companies.



Nabiz (Pulse): 360-Degree Feedback
Culture

At Aksigorta, which embraces an
approach in which employees are

able to take initiative to achieve clear
targets and make choices on solutions,
take decisions with a result-oriented
perspective, and undertake the
responsibility of the value they produce,
a 360-degree feedback culture
independent of title was created with
the Pulse mobile application introduced
in 2019. The Pulse app offers employees
the opportunity to provide and receive
feedback whenever and wherever they
want.

Social Clubs

Aksigorta organizes various events
and activities to bring employees
together and strengthen their social
bonds. Aksigorta employees, who
share common hobbies through
social clubs for different interests,
are supported to participate in arts
and sports organizations inside and
outside the Company.

At Aksigorta, social clubs are
organized under the umbrella

of B-Happy. Employees socialize
together and have a different
experience with B-Happy’s many
activities in different areas. Within this
scope, tasting events, trips, hobby
and kitchen workshops are organized
with Social B-Happy; concerts,
theaters, and museums are visited
with Art-lover B-Happy. In addition,
Sportive B-Happy, which is aimed

to bring movement to life, organizes
activities in many areas ranging from
hiking to skiing, football to tennis, and
provides tournament participation.

Holistic Health Activities

While B-Happy activities continue,
Aksigorta planned many physical
and online activities throughout the
year as part of wellbeing activities,
supporting the holistic wellbeing of its
employees both physically, mentally,
and spiritually.

Aksigorta
employees, who
share common
hobbies through
social clubs for

different interests,
are supported
to participate in
arts and sports
organizations inside
and outside the
Company.
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Aksigorta also attaches importance to
volunteering. Employees are encouraged
to participate in various projects carried
out by Group companies under the roof
of Sabanci Republic Mobilization. As part
of the Sabanci Republic Mobilization,
volunteers went to Hatay once a

week since September to participate

in workshops with children at the
psychosocial support center.

Aiming to improve the physical and
mental health of its employees, AVITA
Psychological Support Line provides 24/7
support for their business and private lives.
A newborn support program for women
only was also implemented as part of the
program.

Compensation and Benefits
Aksigorta adopts a competitive

and fair compensation policy in the
insurance industry for its employees.
This compensation policy addresses
employees’ social security and health
service needs with appropriate
compensation packages.

The Company follows a fair compensation
policy and offers various fringe benefits

to its employees. These benefits include
advantages such as private pension with
corporate contribution and life/personal
accident insurance.

Aksigorta employees, whose sociall
security and health transactions are
guaranteed by AK Sandik, which offers

a social security package that is much
more comprehensive than a private
health insurance, always feel the support
and contribution of its wide contracted
corporate network and employee-oriented
service approach. AK Sandik mobile
application provides easy use of services.
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Compliance with the Future of the Work

Aksigorta supports the society and
its employees with projects aimed at
raising risk awareness in particular.

Performance Management
Aksigorta adopts a business culture
that enables employees to take
initiative and generate solutions

to achieve clear goals. Employees
are empowered to make their own
choices, make decisions with a
result-oriented perspective, and
undertake the responsibility of the
outputs they produce. The Company
believes in the developmental power
of feedback and emphasizes the
importance of continuous feedback
for the development of employees.
The “Pulse” mobile app supports the
360-degree feedback culture and
gives employees the opportunity to
give and receive feedback whenever
and wherever they want.

Perfx is a system that adapts to
Aksigorta’s changing working
models and manages performance
evaluations. Based on the objective
key results (OKR) management
approach, Perfx is a transparent,
flexible, and feedback-oriented
performance management system.
Employees can set, update and
change their targets by using the
performance forms open in the
system throughout the year.

Aksigorta Games is a performance
and career management system
designed for sales teams. Based on
a club structure, the program aims
to announce the success of the sales
teams, support their skills, and give
an opportunity to manage their own
careers. The enrollment conditions
and benefits of the four different
clubs in the Aksigorta Games vary.

Corporate Governance

Financial Information and Risk Management

Aksigorta adopts
a business culture
that enables
employees to
take initiative and
generate solutions
to achieve clear
goals.

Based on their performance, sales
teams are admitted to related clubs
and receive a variety of benefits.

You Are Beyond Awards

It stands out as an extensive
recognition-appreciation and instant
rewarding program where rewarding
activities are gathered under a single
roof. Under the scope of this program,
rewards such as Classics, Success
Stories and Surprises that serve
different purposes are made. With
You are Beyond Awards, recognition-
appreciation activities are extensively
and successfully performed with
remote working.

Sustainable Business Model
Supporting social responsibility
projects with sensitivity to the

society and environment in which it
operates, Aksigorta offers an equal
and fair working environment for its
employees with the awareness of
gender equality, supporting women’s
participation in business life. Aksigorta
signed the Women’'s Empowerment
Principles developed by the United
Nations Entity for Gender Equality and
the Empowerment of Women and the
United Nations Global Compact.

Smart@Work - Aksigorta’s unique
way of working

Smart@Work represents an approach
that is compatible with the next-
generation and digital working
models that developed after the
pandemic in the business world.



This model changes the old
working order that requires physical
coexistence and focuses on space-
independent working. Smart@Work
aims to develop solutions suitable
for new world needs by focusing on
flexibility, freedom, and producing
results.

This new working model includes a
physical working environment and
tools that are adapted to the future of
work. Smart@Work offers employees
the opportunity to create value for a
sustainable future by maximizing the
ability to adapt quickly to change and
development. This model, along with
many innovations in business manners,
makes business processes more
efficient, flexible, and mobile.

With Smart@Work, Aksigorta

employees:

- are free to choose their place of
work, can work independently, with
flexibility and with agility, and they
can be focused, productive and
accessible,

« can take the initiative to reach clear
objectives, make their own choices to
find solutions,

« can make decisions with a result-
oriented perspective and take
responsibility for their output,

« may reach all resources, expertise,
and information in the fastest way
to advance themselves and their
business,

« focus on work with high added value
and valuable personal contributions
through the use of technology
and learning from each other by
receiving and providing feedback,

« sustain a trust-based team
relationship with mutual dialogue
and empathy,

+ stand out courageously, become
excited together, and feel a sense of
‘belonging;

as such, a work environment is

developed together which protects the

spiritual, mental, and physical health of
the employees and which focuses on
needs. As a result, the employee feels
stronger, competent, and capable.

A Sustainable Future

Setting out its sustainability priorities
for a better world and a sustainable
future in its corporate strategies,
Aksigorta supports the society

and its employees with projects
aimed at raising risk awareness in
particular. Aksigorta strives to match
its operations and policies with the
principles of sustainability to achieve
alignment with its all stakeholders in
its sustainability efforts. The company
aims to create stakeholder value
through an environmentally friendly
and sustainable business model.
Aksigorta’s sustainability policy
includes the fundamental principles
and procedures designed to minimize
the negative environmental and social
impact of both its operations and

its customers’ activities. At the same
time, Aksigorta aims to maximize

the benefits of such operations and
activities in a sustainable way.

The Agile
methodology
is rolled out
throughout the
Company, including
in HR processes,
contributing
to Aksigorta’s
sustainable
performance.
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Agiland - The Agile World of Aksigorta
The agile transformation process at
Aksigorta started in 2017 with cross-
work teams (Platform, CFTs) and IT-
based agile project teams.

This process has enabled Aksigorta
to take steps towards the adoption

of agile working methodology across
the Company, especially with the
participation of business units in
addition to IT development studies.
Independent evaluations in 2021
found that Aksigorta was ready for

an agile transformation throughout
its organization. Accordingly, an agile
transformation plan covering the
entire organization was rolled out and
Aksigorta’s agile world was named
Agiland.

Agiland represents a new working
order consisting of a set of agile
values, principles, and practices. In
order to facilitate this transformation,
the cross-working team Lodestar
was established. The Agile
methodology is rolled out throughout
the Company, including in HR
processes, contributing to Aksigorta’s
sustainable performance.
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Compliance with the Future of the Work

An agile transformation plan covering
the entire organization was rolled out and
Aksigorta’s agile world was named Agiland.

People Tribe was established by
transitioning to a new working
order in order to maximize value
creation in the Human Resources
and Sustainability function. With
an agile approach, People Tribe
not only improves the processes
of existing teams, but also focuses
on continuous value creation by
establishing strategy-oriented cross-
functional teams.

The newly established Corporate
Tribe is also intended to improve the
processes of existing teams and to
create continuous value with cross-
functional teams through an agile
approach.

In the new structure, QBR events,
synchronization initiatives and many
other tribe rituals will be carried out
with the OKR approach.




The Insurance Industry in 2023

The insurance industry will pay
TL 76 billion in earthquake damage
payments to affected homeowners

after February 6.

The insurance industry, which
provides significant added value to
the national economy, continued to
maintain its high growth potential
in 2023 in line with Tarkiye's evolving
dynamics. Given the climate crisis,
one of the world’s most crucial issues,
and the resulting natural disasters,
the importance of the industry for
both individuals and the national
economy is better understood.

The earthquake that struck TUrkiye on
February 6 — defined as the largest
natural disaster on land and affecting
11 provinces — has raised awareness
regarding the TCIP and home
insurance. After the earthquake,
there was a 3-4% increase in both
catastrophe, home, and motor
insurances across Turkiye. However,
this increase was not sufficient for

a country such as Turkiye, which is
located over fault lines. Nonetheless,

the insurance industry has paid TL
76 billion in earthquake damage
payments to affected homeowners
after February 6.

Cyber security, which emerged
during the pandemic as a pressing
issue, was also among the most
important items on the agenda of
companies serving in the insurance
industry this year. Within this scope,
there has been a significant demand
for cyber insurance at home and
abroad. As one of the most popular
insurance types in 2023, cyber
insurance contributes to the growth
of the industry as well.

Another essential factor affecting the
industry’s products and marketing
strategies is that customers now
attach great importance to a
personalized experience. Aside

from being available to a customer

O-I-
a

110.6%

Increase
in Premium

The insurance
industry posted a
110.6% year-on-year
increase in premium
production in 2023,
reaching TL 394.41
billion.
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solely in the event of damage,

the fact that an insurer now also
assesses the customer’s risks, and is
available to the customer before the
damage occurs, stands out as an
additional factor influencing today’s
insurance trends. Within this scope,
the insurance industry’s product
and marketing strategies in 2023
continued to evolve with a focus on
digital, comprehensible, predictive
and customizable services.

According to insurance industry data
from the Insurance Association of
Turkiye (TSB), the industry posted

a 110.6% year-on-year increase

in premium production in 2023,
reaching TL 397.41 billion. After
adjusting for inflation, the industry’s
real growth has been realized as
45.8%.

Insurance companies posted 94%
growth this year from a year ago, with
TL 92,593 million premium production
in motor insurance. Companies
registered TL 95,783 million in traffic
insurance premium production for
2023, corresponding to 104% growth in
traffic from last year.

In non-motor insurance, companies
recorded TL 150,044 million premium
production this year, representing
premium growth of 118% from a

year ago. As for health insurance,
companies recorded TL 55,991 million
in premium production this year,
representing premium growth of 135%
from a year ago.
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Assessment of Aksigorta’s Operations in 2023

Aksigorta’s mobile application aims
to make the insurance experience
more accessible and personalized

for customers.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
SOLUTIONS

Aksigorta continues to be a reliable
companion in the risk journey

of customers by adopting the
approach of providing easy, plain,
and accessible insurance services to
them.

Aksigorta Mobile Application
Aksigorta’s mobile application stands
out as part of the strategy aiming

to make the insurance experience
more accessible and personalized for
customers. The application provides
customers with a digital service point
by providing omnichannel access,
thereby giving customers freedom
and flexibility across different channels,
while also enabling Aksigorta to offer
more value to customers through
collaborations in different sectors.

With the application, the transition
from policy management to risk
management was initiated.

The Aksigorta mobile application has
assumed the role of a consultant on
how to manage the risks in their lives
and to protect their assets, with the
video risk consultant service it offers
to customers. Based on the fact that
customers do not work with a single
insurance company, Aksigorta makes
the application experience more
convenient for customers. Therefore,
the mobile application allows users
to add their insurance policies from
other companies and monitor their
coverage directly from the Aksigorta
app. With this innovative feature,
Aksigorta customers can monitor
their entire portfolio from a single
address.

Aksigorta designed
a platform structure
that makes the
advantages and
added value of
insurance clear
to customers at
all times, not just
at the moment of
damage.

Aksigorta developed the claims
consultant feature in the mobile
application to be able to accompany its
customers in any situation and enabled
customers to talk to their consultants
about claims processes via live chat

at any time. Aksigorta redesigns the
complex policy environment with a
customer-oriented perspective and
reflects it on screens. Aksigorta designed
a platform structure that makes the
advantages and added value of
insurance clear to customers at all times,
not just at the moment of damage. With
the collaborations it established in the
marketplace, it created an ecosystem
that takes the risk management of its
customers beyond insurance.

Aksigorta collaborates with reliable
brands so that customers can protect
their assets in life not only with insurance
products, but also through services that
support insurance, and the Company
enabled customers to access these
services at advantageous prices.




Instant solution with ClaimsChat
Aksigorta’s ClaimsChat application
responds to customers’ queries
about their claims via live chat.

In the application, a WhatsApp
group — consisting of an expert,
case manager, the service, and
customer representative — is
created by the Al. Transparent and
rapid communication is ensured
with the WhatsApp group created
shortly after the claims notice. When
the process is completed, the Al
executes a sentiment analysis of
the conversation and sends the
data to the CRM system. By digitizing
the claims quotation stage with its
chatbot app, Aksigorta makes all its
defined operational services faster
and more reliable for customers.

Results in 17 minutes with Claims
Inspection Assistant

Reshaping its insurance processes with
artificial intelligence and digitalization,
Aksigorta examined 145 thousand
claims files in 2021 through the
Claims Inspection Assistant project,
which demonstrates the potential of
augmented intelligence emerging
from the interaction of human and
artificial intelligence. With the project
that reduced the inspection time of

a damage file from 22 minutes to 17
minutes, approximately 33 thousand
extra file inspection capacity was
gained annually. The Aksigorta Digital
Assistant (ADA) has made life easier
for damage appraisers, by shortening
the inspection time for files and thus
accelerating file payment approval
and rejection decisions.

100% customer satisfaction with
Online Expertise

Aksigorta has been providing remote
expertise services to both motor and
non-motor customers for a long
time. Aksigorta, which stepped up this
service offering in response to the
pandemic, ensures that expert report
procedures are carried out via photos
uploaded to the system. At Aksigorta
which contacts its customers via
phone, video conferencing, and
WhatsApp, claims file closing
procedures, which can take up to
one week in the actual expert report
application, are completed in as little
as 20 minutes with remote expert
reports. Faster processing eliminates
potential customer dissatisfaction
compared to much slower in-person
appointments.

By digitizing the
claims quotation
stage with its
chatbot app,
Aksigorta makes
all its defined
operational
services faster and
more reliable for
customers.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023
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Aksigorta updates its existing product
portfolio, and designs new products
to make customers’ lives easier.

PRODUCTS

Aksigorta acts with an approach that
adopts customer satisfaction and
needs as its main focus, updates its
existing product portfolio in line with
customer feedback, and designs new
products to make customers' lives
easier.

First MOD Insurance Specially
Designed for Electric Vehicles
Creating sustainable solutions with its
next-generation insurance approach,
Aksigorta broke new ground in Tarkiye
and launched the first and most
comprehensive MOD insurance policy
designed exclusively for electric
vehicles. Offering a new product that
will make the rapidly growing number
of electric vehicle users feel safe and
secure, Aksigorta provides numerous
guarantees exclusive to electric
vehicle owners with e-kasko. e-kasko

holders have many coverage options
only available in e-kasko, such as
incorrect charging, unlimited distance
towing to the service where the vehicle
will be repaired, theft of charging
equipment, battery guarantee, and
support against battery depletion.
Aksigorta customers will also benefit
from a 10% discount on e-charging
service. One of the biggest nightmares
of electric vehicle users, the problem
of being stranded on the road due to
a battery discharge, is also covered
under this policy. Aksigorta eliminates
this anxiety of users with e-kasko and
provides on-site charging service in
Istanbul in case the vehicle’s battery
runs out while driving.

Gift Cards from CarrefourSA for First
Time Home Insurance Buyers
Aksigorta has launched a new
campaign for customers insuring their
homes and belongings for the first time.

Offering next
generation solutions
for a sustainable life,
Aksigorta continues
to develop products

and services that
support this vision.

The first 1,500 customers who take out
home and content insurance for the
first time or transfer their policies to
Aksigorta will have the opportunity

to win a TL 200 gift card valid at
CarrefourSA. Aksigorta’'s 'Home and
Content Insurance’ covers the homes
and contents of both homeowners and
tenants. Home and Content Insurance
provides comprehensive coverage
against earthquakes, storms, hails,
and similar natural events, as well as
theft, interior water damage caused
by adjacent apartments, and damage
caused by malfunctioning appliances
like televisions and air conditioners.
Within the scope of the insurance, boiler
or air conditioner maintenance can be
performed once a year, and scratches
on items such as sofas and carpets
can be repaired. In addition, Aksigorta
provides protection in many areas
such as locksmith, water, electrical
installation services, and emergency
ambulance that can be called 24/7 in
case of incidents subject to insurance.

Insurance for Sustainable
Transportation: Citroén Ami MOD
Insurance

Offering next generation solutions for
a sustainable life, Aksigorta continues
to develop products and services

that support this vision. Developing a
new MOD insurance product for the
electric vehicle Citroén Ami, Aksigorta
differentiates itself from other electric
vehicle insurances for Citroén Ami with
the addition of a TL 50,000 Third Party
Financial Liability assurance in addition
to the wide coverage offered for the
product.



Discount for the First Vehicle Rented
from Tiktak

Aksigorta added a new one to

its service network offered to its
customers through the marketplace.
Aksigorta collaborated with Tiktak, a
car rental application, to enable its
customers to earn TL 250 gift Tiktak
points for the first car they would
rent from Tiktak. Valid for all rentals
of 15 minutes or more, the campaign
requires a personalized code

to be entered in the campaign code
field on the provisioning screen when
starting the first rental. Being held as
a result of the collaboration between
Aksigorta and Tiktak, this campaign
continued until August 31, 2023.

In addition to Tiktak, Aksigorta’s
mobile application collaborates with
GastroClub, Brisa, Kidolog, Petopy,
Pronet, e-tasin, Easyvize, Easytravel,
and Servislet.

Assurance at Sea with Wide Yacht
Insurance Coverage

For the first time in the insurance
industry, Aksigorta offers a pleasant
experience and smooth travel with
boat maintenance services, marinas,
and boat supplies.

Allocating a dedicated call center
line to Yacht Insurance customers,
Aksigorta has launched many
innovations to the advantage of its
customers, with discounts of 15% on
marina fees, 10% on boat maintenance
expenses, 10% on marinas and bay
facilities, and 10% on boat materials,
valid at contracted institutions.

Yacht Insurance, which offers coverage
for private yachts and their machinery,
boats, devices and equipment, provides
24/7 yacht assistance service — from
treatment expenses to sending spare
keys, and from temporary captain
service to spare parts assistance - in
the event of an accident, injury or illness.
The insurance is also activated if the
yacht, service boats, machinery or
equipment are stolen. At the same time,
in accidents caused by the yacht, the
Yacht Insurance also covers damages
to surrounding vessels and the people
in them, as well as fixed and mobile
objects such as ports, piers, and quays.

Surgery Support Insurance for Health
Emergency Cash Needs

Continuing to develop its products
and services with a customer-oriented
approach, Aksigorta addresses the
cash needs of its customers in case

of emergency health problems

and surgical diagnoses with the
Surgery Support Insurance. The

policy, which pays cash, also includes
the advantages of Online Health

Consultancy and Free Check-up Service.

Surgery Support Insurance, where
there is no condition that the payment
to be made in the event of a surgery
following a surgical diagnosis is used
for treatment, can be used for sudden
surgical diagnoses such as cerebrall
hemorrhage surgeries, gastrointestinal
perforation, meniscus surgery, limb
rupture, traffic accidents, large bone
fracture surgeries, acute appendicitis,
Trigger Finger Surgery, Inguinal Hernia
Surgery, Carpal Tunnel Syndrome
Surgery.
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Aksigorta provides psychological
support against the stress
disorder that emerged after the
recent earthquake disasters.

Special Discounted Brand MOD
Insurance for Honda Vehicle Owners
Aksigorta strengthened its ongoing
collaboration with Honda with
advantageous prices offered to its
customers. With this practice, Honda
vehicle owners received a 15% discount
when they insured their ‘0" km vehicles
with Honda MOD insurance from
Aksigorta until August 31t Offering
numMerous coverage options such

as an extensive contracted service
network, 24/7 assistance center,
optional spare car service, zero vehicle
protection, mini repair service, and
unlimited liability coverage in its MOD
insurance policies, Aksigorta protects
the driver and the vehicle by taking
into account every situation that may
occur in traffic.

Free Psychological Consultancy
Service After Disasters

Continuing to develop its products
and services in line with the needs
and expectations of its customers,
Aksigorta provides psychological
support against the stress disorder
that emerged after the recent
earthquake disasters. This service
implemented in collaboration

with Moneta offers all Aksigorta
customers the opportunity to receive
psychological support free of charge,
regardless of which product they
own. Lasting until June 30 and based
on social benefit, this service has
been available to all customers
online or via phone call, with an
appointment to be created via
Aksigorta Mobile.

Aksigorta continues
to develop its
products and
services in line

with the needs and

expectations of its
customers.

Financial Information and Risk Management

Unlimited Assurance with BYD MOD
Insurance

Aksigorta assumed the brand MOD
insurance coverage of BYD branded
100% electric vehicles, which went

on sale in Turkiye in November. With
this collaboration, electric vehicles
that will be launched by BYD Turkiye
dealers will be insured exclusively by
Aksigorta.

BYD MOD policyholders will also

have many coverage options such

as incorrect charging, unlimited
towing service to the service station
where the vehicle will be repaired,
theft of charging equipment, 100%
battery assurance, support against
battery depletion, and 10% discount
advantage at Esarj service. In addition,
the Company supports efforts to
reduce its carbon footprint by planting
saplings through the Aegean Forest
Foundation on behalf of customers
who have a BYD MOD policy.

Collaboration between Aksigorta
and Arvento

Aksigorta established a collaboration
with Arvento, which develops and
produces vehicle tracking and fleet
management systems, object-
person tracking systems, boat
tracking systems, and M2M solutions.
Accordingly, owners of 1-10 vehicles
using Arvento tracking devices will
receive a 20% price advantage when
they get a new MOD insurance policy
or policy renewal from Aksigorta. Users
who have at least 6 months before
the expiration of their Arvento device
activation will be able to benefit from
the discount once per device.
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Aksigorta supports not only
Aksigorta agencies, but also all
stakeholders of the industry for
their development.

Continuing to
digitalize its
business processes,
Aksigorta has
developed a new
formula for its
largest distribution
channel, the
agency channel,
that increases the

The participants are provided with
trainings on many products such as
health, fire, transportation, receivables,
and cyber insurances, as well as in
many fields such as risk engineering,
tax law, digital marketing, sales
technigues in the new world, and
customer relations.

AGENCIES

Aksigorta implements important
projects so that its agencies
can increase their development,
motivation, and earnings.

“Beyond” Insurance Academy
Aksigorta organized the third training

period of the ‘Beyond Insurance Beyond Insurance Academy, which

Academy, which was launched in
2021 and provides added value to
the development of the industry.
Aiming to contribute to the future
and development of all industry
stakeholders in cooperation with
Bilgi University, Aksigorta supports
not only Aksigorta agencies, but
also all stakeholders of the industry
and university students for their
development.

has a two-month training calendar,
offers free training opportunities to
participants by academics who are
experts in their fields.

productivity of its
field team.
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Field Team Performance Increased
with Next-Generation Field Sales
Management

Continuing to digitalize its business
processes, Aksigorta has developed a
new formula for its largest distribution
channel, the agency channel, that
increases the productivity of its field
team.

The project, which is referred to

as ‘Next-Generation Field Sales
Management’ and was awarded the
third prize in the IT Cost Efficiency
(Digital Sales Efficiency) category

at the IDC TuUrkiye CIO Summit 2023
event, assigns tasks to field sales
managers based on agency or
potential agency predictions from
advanced forecasting models.

This project, realized through the
Aksiyon mobile application, increases
the performance of candidate

and existing agencies with high
production potential and directs the
field team to pinpoint agencies or
shares alarming agencies. In this way,
it contributes to the productivity of
the field team.

Agency Campaigns

Aksigorta, which has close
relationships with its agencies all
over TUrkiye, has granted additional
commissions for some of its products
and services this year, in addition

to providing many trainings to

its agencies. It organized travels
abroad to further motivate its high-
performing agencies.
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Green Steps on behalf of Agencies
Aksigorta continues to take
important steps towards becoming
a sustainable company. Aiming to
minimize its paper consumption,
Aksigorta no longer sends policy
files to its agencies. Aksigorta, which
has sent 3.7 million policy files to its
agencies over the last three years,
took another ‘green’ step by donating
a total of 20,000 saplings to the
Aegean Forest Foundation on behalf
of its agencies and established two
commemorative forests.

Labor Day Celebrated with a Gift
Card

Aksigorta continues to support its
agencies, who continue to work
from their homes, with its surprises.
Celebrating the Eid al-Fitr and May 1
Labor Day of its agencies, Aksigorta
presented shopping vouchers for use
in certain markets to approximately
15 thousand people, consisting of its
agencies and agency employees.

Regional Visits

Aksigorta made regional visits with
its senior management, including
General Manager Ugur Gulen

and Assistant General Manager
Osman Akkoca. With its agency

visits in 10 regions, Aksigorta stood

by its agencies in the challenging
economic conditions of the insurance
sector, as it has been for more than
60 years, and once again did not
abandon them. And together with
them, Aksigorta had the opportunity
to discuss the potential solutions to
be developed to the problems facing
the sector.
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Assessment of Aksigorta’s Operations in 2023

Aksigorta carries out projects
aimed at minimizing the direct and
indirect environmental impact of its

operations.

OTHER MAIN DEVELOPMENTS

In 2023, Aksigorta continued to
contribute to society and make
successful efforts through its
social responsibility projects and
certificates.

Aksigorta Memorial Forests Grow
Greener

Aksigorta continues its activities at full
speed while contributing to nature
and sustainability. Within this scope,
Aksigorta donated 10,000 saplings

to the Aegean Forest Foundation on
behalf of each employee. With these
donations, Aksigorta Memorial Forest
was established in izmit Tagkopra
afforestation area.

In November, Aksigorta Memorial Forest
was established in the Manisa Yunt
Mountain afforestation area on behalf
of the agencies, and 10,000 saplings
were donated for the forest.

Aksigorta was
one of the main
sponsors of this

year’s Istanbul
Open, one of the

largest international
tennis tournaments
in Tarkiye.

Carbon Net Zero Target 2050

Further strengthening its sustainability
performance each year, Aksigorta
carries out projects aimed at minimizing
the direct and indirect environmental
impact of its operations. Accelerating
its digitalization efforts in line with its
paperless insurance target, Aksigorta
initioted a process to reduce paper
consumption to the extent allowed by
law. Many documents and notifications
were digitalized, saving approximately
11 tons of paper in the last 2 years.
Aksigorta, which holds the Green Office
certificate from WWF Turkiye, procured
all of the energy it used in 2023 from
renewable energy sources.

Financial Information and Risk Management

At the same time, curtain automation
and a new lighting system with
automatic shut-off, which maximize
the use of daylight, saved 11% in
energy consumption.

Aksigorta at Tennis Istanbul Open
2023

Aksigorta was one of the main
sponsors of this year's Istanbul Open,
one of the largest international
tennis tournaments in Tarkiye.
Aksigorta employees competed

as a team in the inter-company
tournament held at the istinye Tennis
Club courts between June 09-17.1n
the tournament, where more than

50 matches were played in total,
each company competed against

5 different teams. In the highly
competitive Tennis Istanbul Open
2023, companies had the opportunity
to see their own performances and
also take their experience one step
further.

Coastal Cleanup by Aksigorta and
Agesa Employees

Rolling up their sleeves with their
employees for a sustainable future,
Aksigorta and Agesa cleaned up
plastic waste at Kisirkaya Beach

in Istanbul’s Sariyer district in
cooperation with Yesilist. In this
event, where nearly 45 employees
participated, a training on recycling
was also provided. The 504 kilograms
of waste plastic collected were sent
for recycling with the organization of
Sariyer Municipality.



Meaningful Support on October 4

In cooperation with the Happy Paws
Association, Aksigorta organized a
special event with its employees

on October 4, World Animal Day, to
protect animal rights and welfare.
Aksigorta volunteers delivered 1 ton
of food collected in the saving box

of Aksigorta’s application based

on the Happy Paws Association’s
‘Reklam izle-Sokak Hayvanlarina
Mama Kazandir’ (Provide Food to
Stray Animals by Watching Ads)
working model, to their pawed friends
by visiting the living area of the
Association for Protection of Disabled
Pets (Encander) in Silivri.

“To the Future with Hope (Gelecege
Umutla)” Project for Children
Affected by the Earthquake

Agesa and Aksigorta support children
affected by the earthquake with the
“To the Future with Hope” project,
implemented in cooperation with
the Nirengi Association as part of
the “Sabanci Republic Mobilization.”
Supporting the Children’s Activity
and Psychosocial Support Center in
Serinyol, Hatay, Agesa and Aksigorta
aim to touch the lives of nearly 400
children with psychoeducation,

play therapies, hobby, sports, music,
and creative drama workshops.

As part of the “To the Future with
Hope” project, which started in
September and continued until the
end of the year, the support center
supported the well-being of children
from different age groups through
psychoeducation and play therapies
6 days a week.

“To the Future with Hope (Gelecege Umutla)”
project, implemented in cooperation with
the Nirengi Association as part of the
“Sabanci Republic Mobilization,” supports
children affected by the earthquake.
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Education Scholarship in Memory of
ilham Saner

For the second time, Aksigorta is
providing an education scholarship in
memory of its founding first generall
manager, ilham Saner, who passed
away on April 27, 2021. In cooperation
with Aksigorta and the Turkish
Insurance Institute Foundation (TSEV),
6 new graduates were awarded
education scholarships for the 40t
term of TSEV's most prestigious
training program, the Basic
Insurance Training Program. With the
cooperation, six individuals who are
not yet working, graduated from the
insurance-related departments of
universities in 2022, and are pursuing
a career in the insurance industry
have been accepted to the 40" term
of TSEV's Basic Insurance Training
Program with 100% scholarship thanks
to the cooperation.

BIST Sustainability Index

Increasing its sustainability score,
Aksigorta was recently included in
the BIST Sustainability Index, where
companies are evaluated according
to international sustainability criteria
on environmental, social, corporate
governance, human and employee
rights, and transparency. In this
context, Aksigorta received the
appropriate score in the Refinitiv's
valuation methodology, which
consists of three main headings of
the BIST Sustainability Index, namely
environmental, social and corporate
governance, as well as 10 categories,
25 themes and more than 450 data
points related to these themes.
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Assessment of Aksigorta’s Operations in 2023

Aksigorta works on initiatives that
will add value to women'’s lives both
inside and outside the Company.

Women's Empowerment Principles
(WEPS)

Aksigorta is committed to providing
a democratic working environment
for its employees with the awareness
of gender equality. To this end,
Aksigorta became a signatory

to the Women's Empowerment
Principles (WEPs) established by the
United Nations Gender Equality and
Women’'s Empowerment Agency and
the United Nations Global Compact.
By signing this set of guidelines,
Aksigorta has strengthened many of
its current efforts on gender equality
in line with the seven basic principles
of WEPs. In 2013, Aksigorta signed the
Declaration of Equality at Work in
order to raise awareness of gender
equality across the organization.
Today, 54.4% of Aksigorta’'s employees
and 36.6% of its executive staff are
women.

By displaying a gender-neutrall
approach in all communication
channels, Aksigorta strives to bring
equality between men and women to
every platform where it participates.
Aksigorta further supports the issue
of gender equality with specialized
trainings and seminars.

Certificate of Equality for Women at
Work

Defending gender equality in the
business world as well as in all areas
of life, Aksigorta added yet another
certificate to those it received with
its efforts in this context. Aksigorta,
of which 54.4% of its employees are
women, was awarded the Equality
for Women at Work Certificate after
an independent audit conducted in
cooperation with the Sustainability
Academy and the British audit
company Intertek.

Aksigorta is
committed to
providing a
democratic working
environment for
its employees with
the awareness of
gender equality.

It works on initiatives that will add
value to women'’s lives both inside and
outside the Company.

Institutions that offer equal rights and
opportunities to women in business
life are awarded the Equality for
Women at Work Certificate when
they get sufficient points after an
independent audit conducted in
cooperation with the Sustainability
Academy and the British audit
company Intertek. Aksigorta, which
received 90 points in the audit where
the passing grade is 70 points to
obtain the certificate, was evaluated
on topics such as ensuring gender
equality and non-discrimination,
establishing an effective
management system against
discrimination, providing safe working
conditions, building mechanisms to
prevent violence and harassment,
informing the supply chain in line
with policies, creating social impact
for gender equality and women'’s
empowerment, and ensuring the
participation of all stakeholders in the
solution.



I-REC Renewable Energy Certificate
Aksigorta became the owner of

the renewable energy certificate
I-REC as part of its efforts to protect
the future of the world. With this
certificate it gained, Aksigorta proved
that it meets its electricity needs
from renewable resources, and took
a serious step towards becoming a
sustainable company. The company,
which will renew its I-REC certificate
every year, has thus made a
commitment to continue using clean
energy.

Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs),
created with the aim of spreading
renewable energy investments

and consumption, aim to create a
reliable market by tracking each

unit of electricity produced, starting
from its source, until it reaches the
consumers. In this context, RECS
International’s I-REC contributes

to consumers making conscious
choices to ensure that they consume
energy derived from renewable
energy sources.

UN Global Compact Membership
Leading the business world with

more than 15 thousand company
members and more than 5 thousand
non-company members in over

160 countries, Aksigorta became a
member of the United Nations (UN)
Global Compact, the world's largest
corporate sustainability initiative.
Aksigorta, which supports the UN
Global Compact’s struggle for human
rights, labor standards, environment
and corruption, will continue its efforts
to make these principles a part of

the Company’s strategies, corporate
culture, and daily activities.

Committed to participate in
collaborations that support the
development of the United Nations'’
comprehensive development
goals, especially the Sustainable
Development Goals, Aksigorta will
present its progress report to the UN
Global Compact each year.

Global Compact Turkiye, the local
network of UN Global Compact in
Turkiye, supports the development

of its members in the field of
sustainability with its activities and
the resources it provides, while
serving as a meeting point for sharing
good practices and establishing
collaborations both locally and
globally.

Aksigorta became
the owner of the
renewable energy
certificate I-REC as
part of its efforts to
protect the future of
the world.
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Aksigorta Removes Barriers on All
Its Digital Channels with BlindLook
Collaboration

Continuing its customer-oriented
work with a next-generation
insurance approach, Aksigorta
launched a new collaboration
within this context. As part of the
collaboration with BlindLook, which
designs emancipatory technology
experiences for the visually impaired
people, a voice guidance feature
has been activated for the visually
impaired at aksigorta.com.tr, online.
aksigorta.com.tr, and the Aksigorta
Mobile application. With this feature,
Aksigorta offers its customers an
inclusive and barrier-free digital
insurance experience. This year,
Aksigorta was also included in

the EyeBrand Map, which sets
accessibility standards in the digital
world to eliminate the difficulties
faced by the visually impaired and
ensures their implementation.

PSI Membership to Aksigorta
Aksigorta has become a member
of the Principles for Sustainable
Insurance (PSI) Initiative, which
provides global guidance on the
integration of PSI, environmental,
social and governance (ESG) risks
into insurance underwriting.
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Haluk Dinger
Chair of the Board of Directors
(since July 2011)

After starting his career at General Motors Technical Center
in 1985, Dinger joined Sabanci Group in August 1995, serving
initially as Executive Board Member, and then in December
1995, as Executive Vice Chairman of Temsa. In October 200],
he assumed responsibilities within the Holding company,
first as Food Group Vice President, and six months later,

as Holding Executive Board Member and Food Group
President. He took over as Food and Retail Group President
in September 2004, and after organizational restructuring in
March 2011, as Retail and Insurance Group President. In June
2016, after reorganization, Dinger was named Insurance
Group President and later in April 2020, Financial Services
Group President. With this role, he currently serves as
Chairman of the Board of Aksigorta, AvivaSA, Exsa, Tursa and
Ankara Enternasyonel Otelcilik, as well as Board Member of
Brisa. Haluk Dinger served as President of TUSIAD in 2014~

15, and is still @ member of the TUSIAD Presidents’ Council.
He also served as President of Turkish-American Business
Council (TAIK) within the Foreign Economic Relations Board
(DEIK) in 2008-14. He has been a Board Member of the
Global Relations Forum (GRF) since February 2018 and a
member of the Geneva Association since June 2019. Dinger
has a BSE degree in Mechanical Engineering and an MBA,
both from the University of Michigan.
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Antonio Cano

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
(since July 2021)

Antonio Cano started his career in the insurance industry in
1989, working for AMEV in the Netherlands. He joined Fortis
Insurance International in 1993, then took charge of ALM at
CaiFor, the Spanish bancassurance partnership formed
between Fortis and La Caixa in 1994, eventually rising to the
position of Assistant General Manager. After becoming the
Head of Risk and Planning at AG Insurance in 2001, Mr. Cano
was appointed the General Manager of Bank Channel and
Life Insurance Development in 2006. Antonio went on to
become CEO of AG Insurance and Member of the Ageas
Management Committee in September 2009. He continued
this tenure until October 1, 2015 and as of this date he is
COO of Ageas. On November 1, 2020, he was appointed

the European General Manager in order to focus on the
business development process in the European Region,
which also includes the Group’s reinsurance and property
cross-cooperation.

Financial Information and Risk Management
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Emmanuel Van Grimbergen
Board Member
(since January 2019)

Van Grimbergen serves as the Risk Director at Ageas SA/
NV. He is a member of the Boards of Cardiff Lux Vie, East
West Ageas Life (Philippines), Ageas and Intreas. Prior to
joining Ageas in 2011, Mr. Grimbergen worked for 18 years

in the ING Risk/Actuary departments, holding various
senior management positions at ING Insurance Belgium
and ING Europe, including actuary director at ING South
Western Europe in the early 2000s, and insurance risk
director at ING Insurance Retail Banking in 2004. In 2007, Mr.
Grimbergen moved to Amsterdam to serve as Risk Director
for ING Central Europe. Mr. Grimbergen holds an MBA in
mathematics and actuary sciences and is a member of the
Actuaries Institute in Belgium.



Hans Pletinckx
Board Member
(since March 2022)

Hans Pletinckx started his career at Inwards Reinsurance in
1991, continued at Fortis Insurance International as controller
in 2002, and joined the Ageas Group in 2010. Pletinckx
served as CFO between 2010-2015, and became Assistant
General Manager in 2020. Hans Pletinckx is a Board Member
at Ageas France, Portugal, England, and Sicavonline
companies.

Erkan Sahinler
Board Member
(since February 2022)

Erkan Sahinler, after having graduated from the Department
of Business Administration, Faculty of Economic and
Administrative Sciences at Bosphorus University, started

his professional career in the field of independent external
auditing in 1990. He held various management positions
covering the fields of Finance and Information Systems at
companies of Sabanci Holding as of 1993, at Marsa Kraft
Foods International between 1993-2005, at Gidasa between
2005-2008, and at Exsa UK in 2008. He joined Aksigorta in
2008 as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and undertook the
responsibility of Claims and Operations as well as Financial
Affairs in 2016. After having served as AvivaSA Assistant
General Manager responsible for Finance between 2017-
2021, he has been the Sabanci Holding Planning, Analysis,
and Finance Director since March 1, 2021. In addition to his
duty at Sabanci Holding, Erkan Sahinler is a Board member
at Teknosa and Temsa Is Makineleri companies. On June

1, 2021, he undertook the role of General Manager of Exsa,
Tursa, and AEO companies of the Sabanci Group, and

was also appointed to the Board of Directors of these
companies.
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Seval Kor
Board Member
(since March 2022)

Seval Kor graduated from Department of Economics,
Istanbul University in 2002. She started her career in 2002
as a specialist at the Behavioral Sciences Institute. Seval
Kor started to work as a consultant at $ensezgin-Kurmug
Danigsmanlik company in 2004, and joined the Sabanci
Group in 2006. After having served as an HR Specialist

at Sabanci Holding between 2006-2010, she moved

to Aksigorta and served as the HR Manager. Seval Kor
continued her career as Talent Management Manager
and HR Business Partner at Coca-Cola igecek company
between 2011-2015. She then transferred to Borusan Holding
as HR Director in 2015 and held this position until 2018. Seval
Kor, who rejoined Sabanci Group in 2018, still serves as the
HR Director of Sabanci Holding.
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Burcu Civelek Yiice
Board Member
(since January 2022)

Since joining Akbank in 2006, Burcu Civelek
Ylce served as Senior Vice President of
Strategic Management, EVP of Human
Resources and Strategy and EVP of
Strategy, Digital Banking and Payment
Systems. Since January 2022, she has been
acting as EVP of Consumer Banking and
Digital Solutions. Prior to joining Akbank,
she worked at international consulting

and technology companies. Burcu Civelek
Ylce has a B.Sc. degree in Industrial
Engineering and an MBA degree from
Bogazigi University, graduating both first in
rank. She participated in courses at Harvard
Business School and Kog University. Yuce

is the Chairperson of AkOde, and Board
Member of Akbank AG, Ak Investment, and
Sabanci DX.

Sustainability
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Huseyin Glirer
Independent Board Member
(since March 2021)

Huseyin Gurer was born in 1961 and obtained a
Bachelor's degree from lzmir Ege University and a
Master's degree from Ankara Middle East Technical
University, Department of Business Administration.
Mr. Gurer started his professional career at Deloitte
Turkiye in 1986 and worked as an auditor at the
Deloitte London office in 1989-1990. After serving

in various roles at the firm including Head of

the Audit Department, he was appointed CEO

of Deloitte Trkiye in 2007. Mr. Gurer led Deloitte
Turkiye as CEO for nine years until 2016. After
retiring from the company, he started to provide
consultancy services to Turkish companies.
Throughout his career at Deloitte TUrkiye, Mr. GUrer
has come to the fore in efforts to implement
International Financial Reporting Standards in
Turkiye, working with groups led by the Ministry of
Finance and various professional organizations. He
subsequently worked with government agencies
and relevant associations alike to support the
development and understanding of auditing

and corporate governance standards. Mr. Glrer
served as a member of the Audit Committee of
the International Investors Association (YASED)

for a term. Joining the Eczacibasi Group Board of
Directors in May 2018, Mr. GUrer currently serves as
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum
Independent Board Member
(since October 2018)

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum began her professional
career at Ernst & Young in 1986, working at
the company’s offices in Turkiye and the
US. Subsequently, she served as General
Manager at Strateji Menkul Degerler;
Assistant General Manager at Yapi Kredi
Yatirim Menkul Degerler and Kogbank;
Coordinator of the Finance Group at Kog
Holding, respectively. From 2012 onward, Ms.
Ugtum served as Independent Chairman
and Board Member, Chairman and Member
of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committees at various companies
including Burgelik, Aviva Sigorta, Marshall
Boya, and HSBC Bank between 2016 and
2018. Lutfiye Yesim Ugtum graduated from
Bogazigi University, Department of Business
Administration. Ms. Ugtum holds a CPA
license. In October 2018, she was appointed
Independent Board Member at Aksigorta,
per a resolution of the Board of Directors.
She also serves as Chairman of the
Corporate Governance and Early Detection
of Risk Committees, and Member of the
Audit Committee.
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Ugur Giilen
Board Member and General Manager
(since May 2009)

Ugur Gulen obtained undergraduate

and Master's degrees from Middle East
Technical University, Department of
Industrial Engineering. Ugur Gulen began
his professional career in 1991 and served

in various positions at Interbank, DenizBank,
Ak Internet and MNG Bank. During 2004~
2009, he worked at Akemeklilik A.S. and
AvivaSA Emeklilik ve Hayat A.S. as Assistant
General Manager. He has served as General
Manager and Board Member at Aksigorta
since May 2009. Mr. GUlen also serves as the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Insurance Association of Turkiye (TSB) as of
September 2023.



Statements of Independence

| acknowledge and declare that

| am a candidate to serve as

an “independent member” in
Aksigorta A.S. (Company) Board of
Directors within the framework of
the criteria specified in the relevant
legislation, the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Corporate
Governance Principles attached
to the Corporate Governance
Communiqué (1I-17.1) published

by the Capital Markets Board, and
within this scope;

a) Within the last five years, no
executive employment relation

that would give important duties
and responsibilities has been
established between myself, my
spouse, my second degree relatives
by blood or by marriage and; (i)

the Company; (ii) the partnerships
(subsidiaries) where the Company
has the control; (iii) the partnerships
where the Company has significant
influence; (iv) the shareholders who
control the management of the
Company or who have significant
influence at the Company and, (v)
juridical persons controlled by these
shareholders; and that | neither
possess more than 5% of any and alll
capital or voting rights or privileged
shares nor have significant
commercial relations,

b) Within the last five years, |

have not worked as an executive
manager who would have important
duties and responsibilities or have
not been a member of the Board
of Directors or been a shareholder
(more than 5%) particularly in the
companies that provide auditing,
rating and consulting services for
the Company (including tax audit,
legal audit, internal audit), and in
the companies that the Company
purchase products and services
from or sells products and services
to within the framework of the
agreements signed (during the
timeframe of selling/purchasing of
the products and services,

c) I do have the professional
training, knowledge, and experience
that will help me properly carry out
the tasks and duties | shall assume
as a result of my independent
membership on the Board,

d) In accordance with the relevant
legislation, | am not working/will

not be working fulltime in public
institutions and organizations
(except working as an academician
at the university) after being elected
as a member,

e) | am residing in Turkiye in
accordance with the Income Tax
Law dated 31121960 and numbered
193;

f) I do have the strong ethicall
standards, professional standing
and experience that will help me
positively contribute to the activities
of the Company and remain neutral
in conflicts of interests between the
company’s shareholders, and that
will help me take decisions freely by
taking the rights of the beneficiaries
into consideration,

g) I will spare sufficient time for the
business of the Company to an
extent that will help me pursue the
activities of the Company and fulfill
the requirements of my tasks and
duties,

h) I have not been a member of the
Board of Directors of the Company
for more than six years in total within
the last decade,
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i) I have not been registered and
announced on behalf of the legal
person elected as a member of the
Board of Directors,

j) I have not served/will not serve
as an independent member of the
board of directors in more than
three of the companies under

the management control of the
Company or the shareholders who
control the management of the
Company, and in more than five of
the companies listed on the stock
exchange.

In the light of the information | have,
| submit to the information of the
General Assembly, the Board of
Directors, the shareholders of the
Company and all other beneficiaries
that my statements above are
correct.

Huiiseyin Gurer
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Statements of Independence

| acknowledge and declare that

| am a candidate to serve as

an “independent member” in
Aksigorta A.S. (Company) Board of
Directors within the framework of
the criteria specified in the relevant
legislation, the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Corporate
Governance Principles attached
to the Corporate Governance
Communiqué (11-17.1) published

by the Capital Markets Board, and
within this scope;

a) Within the last five years, no
executive employment relation

that would give important duties
and responsibilities has been
established between myself, my
spouse, my second degree relatives
by blood or by marriage and; (i)

the Company; (i) the partnerships
(subsidiaries) where the Company
has the control; (iii) the partnerships
where the Company has significant
influence; (iv) the shareholders who
control the management of the
Company or who have significant
influence at the Company and, (v)
juridical persons controlled by these
shareholders; and that | neither
possess more than 5% of any and all
capital or voting rights or privileged
shares nor have significant
commercial relations,

b) Within the last five years, |

have not worked as an executive
manager who would have important
duties and responsibilities or have
not been a member of the Board
of Directors or been a shareholder
(more than 5%) particularly in the
companies that provide auditing,
rating and consulting services for
the Company (including tax audit,
legal audit, internal audit), and in
the companies that the Company
purchase products and services
from or sells products and services
to within the framework of the
agreements signed (during the
timeframe of selling/purchasing of
the products and services,

c) I do have the professional
training, knowledge, and experience
that will help me properly carry out
the tasks and duties | shall assume
as a result of my independent
membership on the Board,

d) In accordance with the relevant
legislation, | am not working/will

not be working fulltime in public
institutions and organizations
(except working as an academician
at the university) after being elected
as a member,

e) | am residing in Turkiye in
accordance with the Income Tax
Law dated 3112.1960 and numbered
193;

f) I do have the strong ethical
standards, professional standing
and experience that will help me
positively contribute to the activities
of the Company and remain neutral
in conflicts of interests between the
company's shareholders, and that
will help me take decisions freely by
taking the rights of the beneficiaries
into consideration,

g) | will spare sufficient time for the
business of the Company to an
extent that will help me pursue the
activities of the Company and fulfill
the requirements of my tasks and
duties,

h) | have not been a member of the
Board of Directors of the Company
for more than six years in total within
the last decade,

Financial Information and Risk Management

i) I have not been registered and
announced on behalf of the legal
person elected as a member of the
Board of Directors,

j) I have not served/will not serve
as an independent member of the
board of directors in more than
three of the companies under

the management control of the
Company or the shareholders who
control the management of the
Company, and in more than five of
the companies listed on the stock
exchange.

In the light of the information | have,
I submit to the information of the
General Assembly, the Board of
Directors, the shareholders of the
Company and all other beneficiaries
that my statements above are
correct.

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum



Board of Auditors

The Audit Committee, which

is responsible for assisting the

Board of Directors in its audit and
supervision activities, oversees
operation and adequacy of the
internal systems and the accounting
and reporting systems.

Huseyin Gurer
Chair of the Audit Committee
(Independent Board Member)

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum
Member
(Independent Board Member)
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee has been established with the aim of performance of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors in a sound manner. Corporate governance is d management process
at Aksigorta A.S. which is based on ethical values, is responsible toward internal and external parties, is aware
of risk, is transparent and responsible for its resolutions, protecting the interests of the stakeholders, targeting
sustainable success in a manner complying with the Corporate Governance Principles established by the
Capital Markets Board. The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for making recommmendations
to the Board of Directors at Aksigorta A.S. to ensure compliance of the corporate governance principles of the
Company with the Corporate Governance Principles established by the Capital Markets Board and any other
internationally recognized corporate governance principles. The Committee also makes recommendations
to introduce and implement such principles, monitors compliance of the Company with such principles, and
conducts improvement efforts in these areas. Duties of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are carried out by the Corporate Governance Committee as well.

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum Osman Akkoca
Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee Member
Emmanuel Van Grimbergen Burak Yuzguil
Member Member

Early Detection of Risk Committee

The Committee was formed by the Board of Directors to detect any kind of strategic, operational, financial
risks which may endanger the existence, development, and continuation of Aksigorta A.S, and to apply
necessary measurements, corrective actions, and risk management.

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum Emmanuel Van Grimbergen
Chair of the Early Detection of Risk Committee Member

Hiiseyin Glrer Ayse Sibel Oztep Oymaci
Member Member
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Ugur Giilen
Board Member and General Manager

(since May 2009)

Ugur Gulen began his professional career in 1991 and served
in various positions at Interbank, DenizBank, Ak Internet and
MNG Bank. During 2004-2009, he worked at Akemeklilik A.S.
and AvivaSA Emeklilik ve Hayat A.S. as Assistant General
Manager. He has served as General Manager and Board
Member at Aksigorta since May 2009. Ugur Gulen obtained
undergraduate and Master’s degrees from Middle East
Technical University, Department of Industrial Engineering.
Mr. Gulen also serves as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Insurance Association of Turkiye (TSB) as of
September 2023.

Activities
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Zeren Zeynep Eroktem Bal
Assistant General Manager - Finance

(since May 2023)

Zeynep Eréktem graduated from Istanbul University
Economics and completed Master’s degree in Economics
& Finance at Bogarzigi University. She began her career in
2005 in independent financial audit, worked in transaction
advisory services between 2007 and 2009. Starting from
2010 she joined H.O. Sabanci Holding as financial analyst
and continued as finance manager in Retail and Insurance
Group. She joined Aksigorta in January 2020 as financial
control group manager and starting from May 2023 has

been assigned as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Aksigorta.
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Osman Akkoca
Assistant General Manager - Agencies and Bank Insurance

(since May 2023)

-

Osman Akkoca graduated from Istanbul Technical
University, Department of Business Engineering. He began
his professional career as an assistant inspector at
Sumerbank in 1999. After holding various management
positions between 2003 and 2005, he worked as Inspector
at AvivaSA from 2005 to 2007. He worked as Assistant
Manager of Internal Control and Compliance during
2007-2010; as Risk Manager in 2010-2011, and as Financial
Control Manager from 2011 to 2017. After January 2017, Mr.
Akkoca served as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Aksigorta.
Since May 2023 he has been serving as Assistant General
Manager for Agencies and Bank Insurance.



Tolga Okan Tezbasaran
Assistant General Manager - Retail Product, UW and
Customer Management

(since May 2023)

Tolga Okan Tezbasaran worked as Regional Manager at
Halk Yagam Sigorta and Yapi Kredi Emeklilik at the start of
his professional career. Subsequently, he served as Regionall
Manager and Group President at Yapi Kredi Sigorta. In 2011,
Mr. Tezbasaran joined Zurich Sigorta, where he served as
Assistant General Manager responsible for the Individual
and Smalll Enterprises Segment as well as Board Member.
He graduated from Dokuz EylUl University, Department

of Industrial Engineering in 1993. He started his duty at
Aksigorta in November 2016 as Assistant General Manager
of Retail Bancassurance and Health. He has been serving
as Assistant General Manager of Retail Product, UW and
Customer Management since May 2023.

Soner Akkaya
Assistant General Manager - Claims and Law

(since January 2022)

Soner Akkaya graduated from Yildiz Technical University,
Department of Civil Engineering. He worked as an auditor

at Interbank between 1998 and 2002, and later as Assistant
Manager at Tekfenbank between 2003 and 2005. From 2005
to 2011, he worked as Audit Manager at Sabanci Holding.
Having worked as Head of Internal Audit at Aksigorta
between 2011 and 2017, Mr. Akkaya served as Assistant
General Manager for Claims and Operations as of January
2017. Since January 2022 he has been serving as Assistant
General Manager for Claims and Law.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 59

= Iy

Assistant General Manager - Human Resources and
Sustainability

(since April 2022)

Burak YUzgul earned his undergraduate degree in
Business Administration from Marmara University, Faculty
of Economics and Administrative Sciences. He began his
professional career at Eczacibasl Baxter Human Resources
Department in 2002. After joining the Agesa family in 2007,
he took on positions at different levels in the Company'’s
Human Resources Department. He was eventually
appointed as Assistant General Manager in charge of
Human Resources and Agesa Executive Board member
on April 1, 2015. In addition to his role in Agesa, Burak Yuzgul
has been acting as Assistant General Director for Human
Resources and Sustainability since April 2022. Burak
Yuzgul is a board member at various non-governmental
organizations. Mr. YUzgul has 20 years of work experience.
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Kaan Konak
Assistant General Manager - Technology
and Operational Excellence

(since January 2022)

Kaan Konak graduated from Industrial
Engineering Department, Marmara
University in 2005. He started his career in
2006 as Sales and System Development
Assistant Specialist at E.C.A. He worked as
Process and Project Management Assistant
Manager at Zurich Sigorta in 2007 and as
Project Manager between 2014-2015. Kaan
Konak, who started his career at Aksigorta
in April 2015 in the Technology, Digital and
Individual Technical function, has served as
the Governance and Service Management
Department Manager since then. He has
been managing the Next Generation
Technology Platform Leadership since 2017
and was included in the Ageas Leadership
Program in 2019 and 2020. As of 2021, in
addition to his current position, he has been
managing the sponsorship of Ageas IT
Digital Transformation.

Sustainability

Activities
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Deniz Ceylan
Assistant General Manager - Corporate UW
and Reinsurance

(since May 2023)

After graduating from Istanbul Technical
University, Department of Naval Mechanical
Engineering, Deniz Ceylan finished his

MBA in Finance and Human Resources at
Yeditepe University between 2002-2004.
Ceylan joined Sabanci Holding between
2008 and 2010, served as Risk Management
Manager, and then served as Reinsurance
Department Manager at Aksigorta between
2010 and 2016. After working as the VP of
Placement and Strategy at Marsh McLennan
Company since 2016, he was appointed as
Assistant General Manager responsible for
Reinsurance and Strategic Cooperations

at Aksigorta again as of November 7, 2022,
and since May 2023 he has been serving as
Assistant General Manager for Corporate UW
and Reinsurance.

Elif Horasan
Director - Strategy and Retail
Bancassurance Business Development

(since November 2022)

Elif Horasan has graduated from Istanbul
University Business Administration program
in 2005, and continued her education in
Germany, Goethe University at Goethe
Business School MBA program. Joining
Aksigorta as Financial Control Executive,
Horasan previously worked for Deloitte as
Transaction Services Manager, then for
Sabanci Holding as Strategy Executive.
Being assigned to the Strategy and

Digital Channels division as the division
manager on January 1 2020, Horasan is
assigned as the director of the Strategy
and Bancassurance Business Development
function effective from November 2022.

Financial Information and Risk Management
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After graduating from Istanbul University,
Faculty of Political Sciences, Department of
Business Administration, Mustafa Erdogan
started his professional career at Yapi Kredi
Insurance Technical Department in 2001.
After joining Aksigorta in 2006, Mr. Erdogan
worked in various positions in technical and
sales departments. He served as Assistant
Corporate Sales Manager between 2011-
2016, Corporate Sales Department Manager
between 2016-2023 and Corporate Sales
Director as of May 2023.

\

Mustafa Erdogan
Corporate Sales

(since May 2023)
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Corporate Governance and Sustainability Principles Compliance Report

SECTION | - CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

1. Corporate Governance Approach
Aksigorta complies with the 4 main
principles of corporate governance
based on Transparency, Fairness,
Responsibility and Accountability.
The Group understands that
corporate governance practices
area essential for sustainable
growth in today’'s economies.

Operating under the partnership of
Sabanci Holding and Ageas, and
listed in BIST Star index, Aksigorta
designs its governance approach
in line with these principles and
improves its corporate governance
practices in accordance with the
best practices in the world.

2. Compliance with Corporate
Governance Principles

Aksigorta is in full compliance with
the 26 principles mandatory to

be followed by public companies
whose shares are traded on the
stock exchange. These principles

are specified in the Corporate
Governance Principles attached

to the Corporate Governance
Communiqué (Communiqué)
numbered [I-17.1 of the Capital Markets
Board, which is the regulatory board
responsible for the regulation and
supervision of corporate governance
practices in Turkiye.

Aksigorta has fully complied with

31 of the 42 principles that are not
required to be complied with in
accordance with the Communiqué,
while it has been able to partially
comply with 2 of them and has not
been able to comply with 4 of them
at all. Since no activities that fall
within the scope of the remaining

5 principles were carried out in
2023, the remaining 5 principles
were considered irrelevant and

no compliance status could be
assessed.

In 2023, Aksigorta continued

efforts to improve its compliance
with the principles in question,
taking into account the benefit

of all stakeholders, especially
shareholders. However, some non-
mandatory principles could not be
fully complied due to the difficulties
in implementation practice of
these principles, ongoing debates
on some of these principles, some
mismatching between the market
conditions and these principles.
We are pursuing the developments
on these issues and following
compliance opportunities.

In 2023, we disclosed all useful
information to shareholders,
investors, and analysts for

their investment decisions with
transparent, consistent, and timely
manner via Investor Relations
announcements on corporate web
site, Public Disclosure Platform,
Investor meetings and conferences
to keep the continuous and effective
communication with the investors
and the analysts. Also, we were
complied with all regulation on this
subject.

Aksigorta will care to be in
compliance with the principles and
follow the recent developments

in the legislation and the market
practices.

2.1. The partially complied principles
are summarized below with the
reasons for not achieving full
compliance:

4.2.8. losses incurred in the
company by the members of the
board of directors as a result of their
faults during their term of office,

are insured with a policy that will
have a value exceeding 25% of the
company capital and this issue

is publicly disclosed on the Public
Disclosure Platform (KAP).

Aksigorta holds an executive liability
insurance policy covering the
members of the Board of Directors
and executives. Although the
insurance amount is below the 25%
of the Company’s capital, it covers
the reasonable risk level predicted.

4.6.5. Wages and other benefits
granted to board members and
executives with administrative
responsibilities are disclosed to

the public in the annual report.
Disclosure on the basis of each such
person is essential.

The remunerations provided to the
Board Members are determined

by the General Assembly and the
disclosures are made on individual
basis. Remunerations provided to
the senior executives are disclosed
to the public in the footnotes of our
financial statements. Remunerations
to executives are provided in
accordance with the remuneration
policies, taking into account the
performance criteria. These details
are not explained on individual
basis since they are considered as
personal information.

2.2. The principles that have not
been complied are summarized
below, with the reasons for not
achieving full compliance:
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1.5.2. Minority rights may be granted
to those who hold less than one
twentieth of the capital pursuant

to the Articles of Association. The
scope of minority rights may be
expanded subject to the Articles of
Association.

Minority rights are determined
within the scope of the provisions
of the relevant legislation and there
are no provisions in the Articles of
Association for the expansion of
minority rights.

3.2.2. Conduct surveys /
questionnaires to learn about
the opinions of beneficiaries in
important decisions.

Aksigorta does not conduct surveys
| questionnaires to learn about

the opinions of beneficiaries in
important decisions

4.4.7. There are limits to external
commitments of Board Members.
Shareholders are informed of board
members’ external commitments at
the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

There are no limitations on the
external duties held by the Members
of the Board of Directors. The CV
information, including the duties
that our Board of Directors members
have taken outside our company,

is on the corporate website of our
company.

4.5.5. Board Members serve in only
one of the Board’s committees.

Our Board members can be
members of more than one
committee in order to benefit

from their local and international
experience in related fields

and because they have the
qualifications expected of
committee members, our Board
members can be members of more
than one committee.

2.3. The principles considered
irrelevant since no activities that fall
within the scope of these principles
were performed in 2023 are as
follows:

1.3.7. Persons who have the right to
access shareholding information
with privilege shall inform the Board
of Directors for the inclusion of the
transactions they performed in
their own name coinciding with the
Company’s operating area into the
agenda of the General Assembly.

1.4.3. The Company has not
exercised the voting rights at the
General Assembly of a corporation
with which it has a subsidiary
relation that involves controlling
rights.

3.3.8. The Company ensures
freedom of association and
supports the right for collective
bargaining.

4.4.3. Opinions of those board
members who did not attend the
meeting but conveyed their opinion
to the Board in writing are presented
to other board members.

4.5.7. Committees get the opinion
of independent experts in matters
they deem necessary with regard
to their activities. The fees of the
consulting services required by the
Committees are covered by the
Company. However, information
on the persons/ entities providing
such services and/or whether such
persons/entities have a relation with
the company is explained in the
annual report.

Aksigorta’ s compliance status
with the Corporate Governance
Principles in 2023 is summarized in
the table below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
COMPLIANCE STATUS

Discretionary D Total

Full 3
Compliance 26

Partial
Compliance | -

Mandatory

Non-
Compliant | -

Irrelevant



In 2023, full compliance has

not been reached with such
voluntary principles due to the
difficulties in their implementation,
ongoing discussions in Tarkiye

and on international platforms
regarding their implementation,

the contradiction between the
Company'’s interests, and the
implementation of such principles
as per the practices of the
Company and the market. Thanks to
the value and importance Aksigorta
attributes to corporate governance,
developments on this matter are
monitored closely, and efforts
towards full compliance with these
principles are ongoing at full speed.

The Corporate Governance
Compliance Report (URF) and the
Corporate Governance Information
Form (KYBF) for 2023 issued in
accordance with the CMB's Decision
No. 2/49 dated 10.01.2019 and
approved by the Board of Directors
of our Company are made available
to public in this address: www.
aksigorta.com.tr.

3. Investor Relations Activities

In an attempt to assist investors
and analysts in their decision-
making processes as per applicable
laws, Aksigorta paid ultimate
attention in 2023 to inform them as
necessary, transparently, promptly,
accurately, thoroughly, legibly,
directly, sufficiently, regularly,

and concurrently with all market
participants, on the developments
that might affect their investment
decisions.

For this purpose, Sabanci Holding
updated the Public Disclosure
Platform (PDP) and the Investor
Relations page (www.aksigorta.
comur) regularly. Investor meetings
and conferences were organized to
keep the continuous and effective
communication with the investors
and the analysts. In 2023, 45
institutional investors/analysts were
interviewed.

No issues that may cause conflicts
of interests between Aksigorta and
institutions Sabanci Holding receives
services such as investment
consultancy and rating have been
encountered.

Their names, titles, tasks and
charters of the managers and
employees who are involved in
investor relations in Aksigorta task
are listed as below:

Osman Akkoca, Assistant General
Manager - CMB Charter Level 3,
Corporate Governance Rating
Charter

Zeynep Eroktem, Assistant General
Manager

4. Monitoring the Changes in
Legislation and Legal Procedures
No amendment that could impact
Aksigorta’ s operations substantially
was introduced to applicable laws
in 2023. However, potential effects
of the amendments to the Capital
Markets Law, Turkish Commercial
Code, and tax regulations on
Aksigorta as a whole were analyzed
in detail.

However, collaboration was made
with TUrkiye Insurance Association
and the relevant institutions and
organizations in order to increase
the benefits of the legislative
changes in question to the interests
of Aksigorta and to the development
of the Turkish economy and
markets. With the slogan "“Beyond”,
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the interests of our country and
Aksigorta were kept together and
significant contributions were
made to the changes in financial
legislation.

Aksigorta monitored legislative
developments that pertained to it
closely and took necessary action
promptly in 2023, just as it did in
previous years.

Last but not least, no lawsuit was
filed against the Company that
may impact the financial position
or operations of Aksigorta in 2023.
In addition, no administrative or
legal sanction on the grounds

of practices contradictory with
the provisions of applicable
regulations was imposed against
the legal entity of Aksigorta, its
Board Members, and the Senior
Management.

SECTION Il - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Structure and Composition of the
Board of Directors

The procedures and principles
concerning the company’s

Board of Directors’ structure,

duties, management rights, and
representation authorities, etc. are
decided upon in accordance with
the provisions stipulated in the
company’s Articles of Association.
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The Company is managed and
represented by a Board of Directors
consisting of minimum 7 and
maximum 15 members elected

by the General Assembly in
accordance with the provisions of
the Turkish Commercial Code and
Capital Market Legislation.

Minimum qualifications required in
Board members are not stated in
the Articles of Association. However,
the required qualifications of the
Members of the Company’s Board of
Directors are in line with the relevant
articles of Corporate Governance
Principles. Two members of the
Board of Directors are independent
members who are determined
according to the Capital Markets
Board’'s Corporate Governance
Principles and regulations

on Corporate Governance.
Independent board members’
independence statements

have been received prior to the
appointment and these statements
remain in full force and effect.
During the reporting period, there

is no condition which interrupts the
independency.

The Members of the Board of
Directors may be elected for a term
of office of one year, and re-election
of the members whose term of
office has expired is permissible.

If a membership is vacated for any
reason, at its first meeting, the Board
of Directors elects a new member
and submits him/her to Generall
Assembly’s approval. This member
completes the remaining term of
his/her predecessor.

On the basis of the General
Meeting's resolution, Board
members are authorized to perform
transactions within the scope of
Articles 395 and 396 of the Turkish
Commercial Code.

2. Operating Principles of the Board
of Directors

The Board of Directors meets as
often as they could perform their
duties effectively, they execute

their activities in transparent,
accountable, fair, and responsible
manner, while they also consider the
long-term targets and interests of
the Company.

Every year, the Members of the
Board of Directors elect a chairman
and a deputy chairman who will be
the acting chairman in the absence
of the chairman for the meetings.
The Chairman of the Board of
Directors determines the agenda

of the Board of Directors’ meetings
by taking the opinions of the other
members and the CEO.

The determined agenda and the
contents of the agenda items

are communicated in writing to
the Board Members one week

in advance in order to enable
them to carry out the necessary
assessments and works. Agenda
items of the Board meetings are
discussed clearly and with every
aspect. The Chairman of the Board
of Directors is obligated to show
the maximum effort for ensuring
effective participation of the non-
executive members in the meetings.

Timing and the agenda of the Board
meetings are organized by the
Chairman or the Deputy Chairman.

The Board of Directors convenes
upon the call of the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman whenever
necessary. The meeting date may
be determined with the decision of
the Board of Directors as well.

In case the chairman or the deputy
chairman does not call the Board
of Directors for the meeting upon
the request of one of the members,
then the members will be entitled
to make a call for the meeting ex-
officio.

The Board of Directors must
convene at least four (4) times a
year.

Board of Directors may also
approve on paper a member’s
recommendation about a certain
matter unless one of them requests
physical meeting.

Board of Directors’ meetings and
decision quorums are subject to the
provisions of Turkish Commercial
Code.

The Board of Directors held
meetings four (4) times between
01.01.2023 and 31.12.2023.

At the Board meetings, each
member had 1 vote, and unanimous
consent was sought while

resolving matters and the Board
always complied with Corporate
Governance Principles.

Attendance in person of the
members without an excuse at the
meetings was ensured. In 2023, no
dissenting opinion was expressed
on the decisions passed by the
Board Members and no explanation
thereof was affixed to the minutes of
the meeting. Since Board Members
did not have any questions and
requested no additional information,
these were not inserted in the
minutes of the meeting. In 2023
none of the Board members trade
with the Company and compete
with the Company in the same
business.



3. Number, Structure, and
Independence of the Committees
Established within the Structure of
the Board of Directors

According to the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Board of Directors
establishes a sufficient number

of Committees (“Committee”)

to fulfill the required tasks and
responsibilities properly.

The responsibilities of the
“Nomination Committee” and
“Remuneration Committee” as per
article 4.5.1 of the Communiqué
have been assumed by the
“Corporate Governance
Committee”. Although attention
was paid to the recommendation
on “not taking part in more than
one committee for a board
member” under Article 4.5.5 of the
Communiqué, a Board Member
may serve multiple committees
as a member due to the expertise
required for such committees.
Independent Board Member
Latfiye Yesim Ugtum serves in 3
committees, Independent Board
Member Huseyin Gurer serves

in 2 committees, Board Member
Emmanuel Van Grimbergen serves
in 2 committees.

Corporate Governance Committee
The Corporate Governance
Committee was established to fulfill
the duties and responsibilities of

the Board of Directors in a sound
manner. Corporate governance is d
management process at Aksigorta
which is based on ethical values,

is responsible toward internal and
external parties, is aware of risk, is
transparent and responsible for its
resolutions, protecting the interests
of the stakeholders, targeting
sustainable success in a manner
complying with the Corporate
Governance Principles established
by the Capital donated to Markets
Board. The objective of the Corporate
Governance Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board of
Directors of Aksigorta A.$. for the
purpose of ensuring compliance of
the corporate governance principles
of Aksigorta A.S. with the Corporate
Governance Principles established
by the Capital Markets Board and
with any other internationally
recognized corporate governance
principles the Committee also makes
recommendations for the purpose of
introduction and implementation of
such principles, monitors compliance
of the Company with such principles
and carries out improvement efforts
in these areas. The Committee had 2
meetings in 2023.

Members:

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum, Chairman,
Independent Board Member
Emmanuel Van Grimbergen, Member,
Osman Akkoca, Member, Assistant
General Manager of Agencies and
Bank Insurance

Burak Yuzgul, Member, Assistant
General Manager of Human
Resources and Sustainability

Early Detection of Risk Committee
It conducts works for the purposes
of early detection of risks which
may endanger existence, growth
and continuation of the Company,
implementation of the necessary
measures and remedies taken
against the detected risks and
management of the risk. The
Committee evaluates the situation,
points out to the dangers, if any,
and indicates the remedies in the
report to the Board of Directors. The
report is sent to the auditor as well.
Committee had 6 meetings in 2023.
It reviews the risk management
systems at least once a year.

Members:

Latfiye Yesim Ugtum, Chairman,
Independent Board Member
Huseyin Gurer, Member,
Independent Board Member
Emmanuel Van Grimbergen,
Memlber, Board Member

Ayse Sibel Oztep Oymaci, Member

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 65

Board of Auditors

The Audit Committee, which

is responsible for assisting the
Board of Directors in its audit and
supervision activities, is in charge
of the operations and capability

of the internal systems and the
accounting and reporting systems.
The committee had 4 meetings in
2023.

Members:

Huseyin Gurer, Chairman,
Independent Board Member
Latfiye Yesim Ugtum, Member,
Independent Board Member

4. Risk Management and Internal
Control Mechanism

Aksigorta embraces the notion
that each risk brings along an
opportunity and recognizes that
“sustainable growth” can be
achieved by effectively identifying,
mMeasuring, and managing risks.

At Aksigorta, the risk is seen as

a concept that incorporates
opportunities as well as threats
and corporate risk management
is handled as a continuous and
systematic process to manage
these risks most efficiently.
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Efforts are being made to cultivate
the risk culture throughout the
Company, and assurance is
provided to ensure that the right
activity is carried out taking the right
amount of risk. The risks faced by
the Aksigorta are monitored via Key
Risk Indicators (KRI) determined by
Group companies. These indicators
are continuously monitored and
periodically reported. Aksigorta
takes necessary action to manage
the risks indicated by the Key Risk
Indicators.

Ceaselessly continuing to create
shareholder value in 2023 owing to
the importance it attaches to risk
management, Aksigorta displayed a
sustainable growth performance.

Aksigorta will manage the
potential risks in all business lines
in 2023 thanks to its strong capital
and effective management
understanding.

Similarly, the Internal Control
Mechanism has been available
since the company was established.
With the establishment of the Audit
Committee, the Internal Control
Mechanism effectively carries out
the duties assigned by the Board

of Directors, in compliance with the
current Audit Committee Bylaws.

5. Company’s Strategic Goals
Having determined the vision and
the mission of the company, the
Board of Directors incorporated
them in writing in the Annual Report
and announced to the public on

the company’s website, www.
aksigorta.com and company’s long-
term strategies are built on these
principles.

The Board of Directors, together
with the CEO and Group Presidents,
sets three-year strategic goals
which are updated each year.
Whether the targets are achieved
or not are monitored by executive
reports prepared at the end of each
month. Year-end performance
assessments are based on whether
the Company achieves its targets
or not.

6. Financial Rights

The terms and conditions of any
right, fee, and benefit granted to
the company’s Board Members are
laid down in detail in the Articles
of Association. The attendance
fees paid to the Chairman and the
Board Members are determined
at the General Assembly Meeting.
The payments made to the senior
executives are disclosed to the
public in the footnotes of our
financial statements.

In 2023, the Company did not lend
any money or extend any credit to
the Board Members; did not extend
the maturity or improve the terms
and conditions of existing debts or
credits; did not extend any individual
loan through third persons or did not
offer guarantees.

SECTION Ill - SUSTAINABILITY

1. Sustainability Approach
Aksigorta, which aims to protect
what is valuable together with
the next generation solutions
for a sustainable life, has made
the evaluation of its operational
processes, products and
services, social, economic, and
environmental dimensions a
fundamental part of its business
strategy.

Aksigorta A.S. has adopted
sustainability as a fundamental
work philosophy. In line with this
goal, Aksigorta has integrated

its sustainability approach into
both insurance and investment
processes with an environmental
and social risk management
perspective.

In this regard, it is necessary to
refer to the projects carried out by
Aksigorta.

Launching a major sustainability
project in the field of digital security,
Aksigorta prepares society against
the risks of the digital world thanks
to the Digital Security Platform.
Considering digital data as

the most valuable asset of the
generation, Aksigorta focuses

on the development of next-
generation technologies such as
big data, advanced data analytics,
cybersecurity, industrial loT, robotic
workforce, artificial intelligence and
blockchain.

Aksigorta A.S., which supports the
achievement of gender equality,
takes measures to increase
women’s employment and to
support the female workforce in
employment. Aksigorta has signed
the Women's Empowerment
Principles implemented by the
United Nations as part of its efforts
to achieve gender equality.



The Green Office Program, launched
by Aksigorta to ensure a greener
world, was completed during the
year. Thanks to its exceptional
results in reducing natural resource
use by conservation and best
practices, Aksigorta was granted
Green Office certification by WWF
Turkiye.

Aksigorta, which contributes to

the development of the insurance
sector and its stakeholders and
supports their development,
organizes free online training for
all agencies of the sector, from
insurance to digital marketing,
sales management to accounting,
under the umbrella of the “Beyond
Insurance Academy.”

Aksigorta shares are listed

in Istanbul Stock Exchange
Sustainability Index starting from
October 2022.

2. Compliance with Sustainability
Principles

Aksigorta has set its eye on full
compliance with the Sustainability
Principles Compliance Framework
established in line with the Capital
Markets Board’'s amendment

to Corporate Governance

Communigqué dated October 2, 2020.

Activities performed by the
Company in this field helped it
reach compliance substantially. In
2023, Aksigorta plans to continue
efforts to improve its compliance
with the principles in question,
taking into account the benefit

of all stakeholders, especially
shareholders.

In 2023, Aksigorta has achieved

full compliance with 52 of the 57
nonmandatory principles under
the Communiqué, 5 principles were
considered irrelevant. Following the
promulgation of the Sustainability
Principles Compliance Framework
in 2022 for the first time by Capital
Markets Board, world-class
sustainability compliance standards
has been adopted in our country.

There are no principles in which

we are completely non-compliant.
This performance demonstrated
Aksigorta’ s sustainability-oriented
approach to environmental, social
and governance concepts. Efforts
towards 100% compliance with such
principles will continue in 2024.
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The compliance status of Aksigorta with the Sustainability Principles in 2023 is

summarized in the table below:

Type Full Partial Non-
Compliance Compliance Compliant
General 1 - -
Environment 22 - -
Social 17 - -
Corporate 2 - -
Governance
Total 52 - -

The Sustainability Principles
Compliance Report, which
demonstrates the Company’s
compliance with the Capital Markets
Board's Sustainability Principles
Compliance Framework, is available
online at www.aksigorta.com.

Aksigorta’ s Corporate Governance
Information Form can be accessed
at the following link:
https://www.kap.org.tr/en/

Bildirim/1250169

Aksigorta’ s Corporate Governance
Compliance Report can be
accessed at the following link:
https://www.kap.org.tr/en/

Bildirim/1250152

Aksigorta’ s Sustainability Principles
Compliance Report can be
accessed at the following link:
https://www.kap.org.tr/en/

Bildirim/1250168
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Information about Transactions the Company Enters into
with Members of Its Own Risk Group

Under article 199 of the Turkish
Commercial Code (Statute 6102),
which went into force on 1 July 2012,
the Board of Directors of Aksigorta
AS.is required, within three months
of the end of its fiscal year, to draw
up a report about any dealings the
Company had with its controlling
shareholder or with any dffiliates of

its controlling shareholder during the

fiscal year just ended and to include
the conclusions of that report in

its annual report. The required
statements about Aksigorta A$.'s
related-party transactions are
presented in footnote 45 to the
financial statements.

The conclusion reached in the
report dated 16.02.2024 prepared by
the Board of Directors of Aksigorta
AS.is, to the best of the Board's
knowledge of the circumstances
and conditions at the time that a
transaction took place or a measure
was taken or refrained from, in
each and every transaction which
Aksigorta AS. entered into with its
controlling shareholder or with any
of the dffiliates of its controlling
shareholder during 2023, that an
appropriate mutual performance
was achieved, that there were no
measures taken or refrained from
which might have caused the
company to suffer a loss, and that
there were no such transactions or
mMeasures whose consequences
need to be offset.



Aksigorta Annual Report 2023 69

Financial Information and Risk Management

Financial Position, Profitability and Solvency In 2023, the Company reached to TL 27,299 million premium production. A
With a solid financial structure that included TL 3,276 million in shareholders’ breakdown of premiums by business line during the most recent two years is
equity at end-2023, Aksigorta is one of the leading companies in the Turkish shown below.

insurance sector.
Breakdown of Premiums by Business Line

Continuing to grow upon sustainable profitability, Aksigorta completed the

year with TL 27,299 million of premium production. share in Total (%)
(TL Thousand) 2022 2023 Change 2022 2023
23/22%
PREMIUM PRODUCTION (TL MILLION TOTAL ASSETS (TL MILLION
( ) ( ) Fire 2,696,775 6.619.369 145% 20% 24%
Marine 299,623 415,301 39% 2% 2%
2022 13,563 2022 12,831 Motor Own 3,479,076 5,9]4,420 70% 26% 22%
Damage
Motor Third Party 3,133,723 5,690,989 82% 23% 21%
Other 1,865,817 3,717,830 99% 14% 13%
General Losses 981,102 2,381,553 143% 7% 9%
INCREASE OF PREMIUM PRODUCTION (%) WRITTEN PREMIUMS/SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (%) Health 1107.32] 2559286 131% 8% 9%
Total 13,563,437 27,298,748 101% 100% 100%
2022 94 2022 696
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (TL MILLION) RETENTION RATIO (NON-LIFE) (%)

2022 1,949 2022 51
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As of end-2023, 36% of generated premiums amounting to TL 9,902 million in
value were retained by the Company.

The charts below show the amounts and relative percentages of produced
premiums that were retained by the Company during the most recent two
years, broken down by business line.

Retention Premium Retention Ratio (%)
(TL Thousand) 2022 2023 2022 2023
Fire 410,648 1,037,279 15% 16%
Marine 59,786 93,577 20% 23%
Motor Own Damage 3,360,727 4,681,342 97% 79%
Motor Third Party 2427949 2,840,098 77% 50%
Other 243,239 529,814 13% 14%
General Losses 204,370 438,890 21% 18%
Health 150,670 281,123 14% 1%
Total 6,857,389 9,902,123 51% 36%

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

As of end-2023, Aksigorta retained TL 7,676,713 in premiums which it had
earned in the non-life branch. Meanwhile, the Company’s share of incurred
non-life claims amounted to TL 6,621,835. As of the same date, the ratio of
incurred non-life claims to earned premiums (net) was 86%. The charts
below show the amounts and relative percentages of the Company’s
incurred claims and earned premiums during the most recent two years,
broken down by business line:

Yl

Claims Incurred

Earned Premiums

Claims Incurred/
Earned Premiums

(Net) (Net) (Net) (%)
(TL
Thousand) 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
Fire 207,881 390,744 287,756 617,406 72% 63%
Marine 17,775 60,021 57,012 114,170 31% 53%
Motor Own
Damage 1,636,114 2,412,977 2,011,007 3,988,888 81% 60%
Motor Third
Party 3,221,421 3,563,604 2,093,164 2,114,068 154% 169%
Other 135,078 140,202 290,403 554,432 47% 25%
General
Losses 34,089 49,552 39,920 84,353 85% 59%
Health 9,152 4,735 132,600 203,396 7% 2%
Total 5,261,510 6,621,835 4,911,861 7,676,713 107% 86%




72 Corporate Profile Sustainability

Activities

- . . . "
Corporate Governance f\Flnanch Information and Risk Manogement/k

Financial Information and Risk Management

Technical Profit Balance

At end-2023, Aksigorta showed a total technical profit amounting to TL
1,690,544 thousand. The charts below show the amounts and relative
percentages of the Company’s technical profit during the most recent two

years, broken down by business line.

General Technical Profit Balance/Written Premiums (%) (Non-life)

General Technical Profit Balance/
Written Premiums (Non-life) (%)

2022 2023

General Technical Profit Balance Fire 7 1

Marine 20 26

(TL Thousand) 2022 2023 Motor Own Damage 9 20

Fire 178,320 757,513 Motor Third Party -38 -27

Marine 58,893 106,469 Other 16 15

Motor Own Damage 323,041 1,208,137 General Losses 8 8

Motor Third Party -1,201,06 -1,509,259 Health 17 15

Other 302,790 560,003 Total -1 6
General Losses 78,046 189,014
Health 188,097 378,667
Total =71,919 1,690,544




In 2023, Aksigorta earned TL 2,870,185 thousand in net investment income in
addition to the earnings generated by its insurance business activities. The
Company'’s investment income during the most recent two years is shown
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Based on all of these technical and financial results, Aksigorta booked profit
before tax of TL 1,185 million. The Company’'s shareholders’ equity amounted
to TL 3,276 million at end-2023. The breakdown of shareholders’ equity items

below. during the most recent two years is shown below:

Net Investment Income 2022 2023 Change  Shareholders’ Equity (TL Million) 2022 2023 Change 23/22 %
(TLThousand) 28/22%  byi-in Capital 1612 1612 0%
Foreign Exchar?ge G?'” 442,604 908,721 105% Profit and Capital Reserves 294 436 48%
Income from Financial 1,026,082 1,970,328 92% 3 .
Investment Previous Years Income/Loss 164 43 -74%
Real Estate Income 0 0 o  Net Profit/Loss for the Period -12] 1185

Income from Derivatives 64,995 -8,864 -114%  Total Shareholders’ Equity 1949 3276 68%
Total Net Investment Income 1,533,681 2,870,185 87%

At end-2023, Aksigorta’s principal investments amounted to TL 6,349 million in

value.

Developments in the Company’s investments during the most recent two

years are shown below:

Investments (TL Thousand) 2022 2023 Change23/22%
Financial Assets and 3,347,338 6,248,738 87%
Investments with Risks on

Policyholders

Subsidiaries 60,000 100,000 67%
Properties 5 5 0%
Total Investments 3,407,343 6,348,743 86%

Aksigorta does not have dffiliates as of the end of 2023.
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Quality Policy and Quality Management Systems

Quality Policy

As a strong, reputable and
trustworthy company together
with our agents, employees and
suppliers, we are committed

to provide quality service and
continuous improvement of our
services by prioritizing customer
satisfaction in line with our
vision, mission and values and in
conformance with national and
international laws, regulations and
standards regarding insurance
business.

Quality Management System
Aksigorta is committed to providing
quality service to all its customers,
business partners, stakeholders and
employees.

According to this principle, Aksigorta
established the quality assurance
system and obtained the BS EN

ISO 90011994 Quality Standard
Certificate from BVQl (Bureou
Veritas Quality Internotionol) in 1998.
Quality Assurance System standard
has been revised regarding the
customer needs and current
conditions, and ISO 9001: 2015 Quality
Management System has been
published in 2015. Aksigorta has
aligned its current systems with the
up-to-date version.

Aksigorta established ISO 10002: 2015
Customer Complaints Management
System and upgraded customer
relationship management to
international standards’ line which
based on customer-oriented service
approach.



Risks and Assessment by the Management Body

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s Risk Management
Framework includes the strategies,
policy models, processes, and
reporting procedures required to
identify, measure, manage, monitor
and report the risks to which the
Company is or may be exposed.

It is the responsibility of the Board

of Directors to identify the risk
management principles and
standards to be applied throughout
the Company, to update the risk
policies depending on the changes
in the operating conditions, and to
establish and operate an effective
risk management system and
relevant processes. The Board

is also ultimately responsible for
monitoring the risk level of the
Company, controlling the situation
against these limits by establishing
risk limits, and putting the necessary
measures into practice.

The tools required for determining,
mMeasuring, managing, monitoring,
and reporting of risks vary according
to the type of the risk. There are five
risk classes: such as Insurance risks,
Financial risks, Compliance risks,
Operational risks, and Strategic risks.

Aksigorta is exposed to business risk
in relation to its operations in the
non-life insurance sector. Likewise,
the Company also faces financial
risks related to its operations, such
as loan, market, and liquidity risks.
Operational risks are related to

the management of all risks, as
they occur as a result of errors in
humans, processes and technology
used. Strategic risks are associated
with changes in strategic planning,
sector, competitive environment
and technological changes.
Sustainability risks, on the other
hand, are assessed as strategic
risks.

Emerging risks are the result of new
trends that may pose a threat or
risk to the Company. These trends
are ambiguous by nature, making it
challenging to measure them and
perform an impact analysis. The
emerging risks inventory is regularly
reviewed in light of global and local

researches in the insurance industry.

Information on Risk Management
Policies by Risk Type

Risk Management Framework
Policy

Aksigorta’s risk management
strategy, implemented risk
management system, and risk
governance approach across the
Company, as well as the roles and
responsibilities for risk management
are established in the Risk
Management Framework Policy and
approved by the Board of Directors.

The basic objectives of this

policy are determining the basic
principles and standards of the

risk management systems and
processes, implementing such
systems and processes, and
complying with the determined

risk limits. The Company’s Risk
Management Framework Policy
defines the risk management roles
and responsibilities of the Board

of Directors, the Early Detection of
Risk Committee under the Board of
Directors, and the General Manager.
The said policy also explains the
role of each level in the triple line of
defense model and the functioning
of the delegation of authority in
Aksigorta.
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The activities covered by the Risk
Management Framework Policy are
carried out within the framework
defined by the insurance legislation
and the other relevant legislation to
which the Company is subject.

Insurance Risk

In any insurance contract, the risk is
that one party (the insurer) accepts
a significant insurance risk from

the other party (the insured) by
agreeing to indemnify the insured

if a specific uncertain future event
(the insured event) negatively
affects the insured.

The Company has adopted a
central risk assessment policy.

This policy is carried out within

the framework of predetermined
activities and limits. In general, the
probability of damage occurring is
determined during risk assessment
by methods of past damage
experiences, comparison of similar
risks, and process risks within the
production process. Location,
geographical region, field of activity,
and fire and theft measures are the
primary criteria considered in risk
assessment.
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Risks and Assessment by the Management Body

Insurance risks are managed

by the Company through a

policy production strategy,
reassurance agreements, and
effective liquidation and payment
transactions. The policy generation
strategy of the Company is
based on the most effective

risk assessment during policy
production, as well as the most
accurate distribution of assumed
risks based on their types, sizes,
industries, and geographical
regions.

The Company enters into
reassurance contracts for excess

of loss, quota share, surplus, and
catastrophic guarantees to manage
insurance risk. The company has
combined surplus and quota share
contracts in the fire, transportation,
engineering and general accident
branches. Annual quota share
contracts with a certain proportional
turnover rate are included in the
auto, professional liability, electronic
devices, machinery breakdown,
mandatory bus passenger, cyber
risks, credit, health, and individual
accident branches. Also, there are
Risk & CAT, Transportation and
Optional Financial Liability Non-
Proportional Reassurance contracts
that protect the net risks the
Company holds.

Market Risk

The Company is generally exposed
to interest rate risks as a result of
its financial investments, as well as
credit risks as a result of insurance
receivables.

Changes in market interest rates
cause fluctuations in the costs of
financial instruments, forcing the
Company to deal with interest rate
risk. The primary risk to which the
Company'’s portfolio’s available-for-
sale financial assets are exposed
is the damage that will result from
a decrease in the actual values of
financial assets due to changes in
market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to
currency risks, which arise from
foreign exchange rate changes
caused by the conversion of its
foreign exchange and foreign
exchange indexed assets and
liabilities into Turkish Lira.

Market risk components the
Company faces, like the interest risk
and currency risk, are periodically
measured and reported via stress
and scenario tests.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the likelihood of

the Company failing to meet its
net funding liabilities. Liquidity

risk is caused by events that
reduce funding resources, such as
market disruptions or credit score
reductions.

In the event that the Company’s
financial resources are insufficient,
there is a risk of ceasing current
operations or reducing the scope of
operations.

The Company'’s investment
strategy approved by the Board

of Directors has been established
considering the liquidity conditions
of the Company and the band
widths (lower and upper limits)
movable during the management
of assets for investment and asset
management and especially
taking into account the potential
liquidity profile of the liabilities. The
liquidity risk management contains
an approved limit structure and a
series of triggering arrangements
which provide that management is
informed about potential problems.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the
counterparty failing to meet its
obligations under the contracts to
which the Company is a party. Limits
and guarantees are determined
by evaluating criteria such as
financial strength and business
capabilities of related parties. The
Company'’s credit risk is arises from
insurance activities such as: the
investment activities in banks and
finance corporations, bond market
investments, and receivables from
agencies, insured customers, and
reinsurance companies. Credit

risk is managed with the credit risk
rating and limit framework defined
for the Company and organizations
involved in the transactions made
as counterparty.

Capital Management

The primary goal of Capital
Management is optimizing the
Company'’s capital structure,
composition, and distribution, as
well as protecting its financial
capacity and productivity. The
Capital Management Policy has
been established and approved
by the Board of Directors to define
the roles and responsibilities,
capital risk appetite, and reporting
requirements in order to achieve the
goals set.



Operational Risk

Operational risk is the loss that may
arise due to uncontrolled business
processes, human or system errors
or external factors. It is essential

to evaluate the probability of the
operational risks and the level of
impact they will create, and take the
necessary measures accordingly. In
the first line of defense, it is aimed to
manage operational risk by effective
follow-up and monitoring of the
processes. Efficiency and adequacy
of controls and implementation

of action plans are primarily the
responsibility of the first line of
defense and are monitored and
reported by the Internal Control,

Risk Management and Compliance
Directorate. Aksigorta's target is

to keep the operational risk at the
lowest level that is commercially
reasonable.

Information on Risk Management
and Internal Control System

As per the Law on Insurance No
5684, Article 4 and the Regulation on
Internal Systems in Insurance and
Private Pension Industries, insurance
companies must set up an effective
internal control system to ensure
that the Company'’s assets are
protected; that its activities are
conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Law and related

other legislation, with in~company
policies and with established
insurance industry practices; and in
such a way as to be both effective
and productive; and that the
accounting and financial reporting
system as well as all systems used
in the provision of the main services
are secure, coherent, and capable
of providing timely access to
information.

Risk management is the Company’s
main means of avoiding
undesirable outcomes in the
pursuit of its targets and ensuring
the continuity of its activities. The
Risk Management Department's
functions are to identify, measure
and monitor the risks to which the
Company is exposed, to ensure that
actions are taken to keep the risks
within the limits determined as per
the risk appetite and report such
actions. Within this scope, it ensures
that the business decisions are
taken in a risk-based approach and
the resources are used efficiently,
so that the expectations of the
entire Company and its business
partners, including customers and
shareholders, are met at the highest
level.

The general risk level to be
assumed for each type of risk, as
well as the maximum risk limits
allocated to management and their
implementation procedures are
specified in the policies which have
been approved by the Board of
Directors.

In order to monitor incurred

risks and to provide control,

the Company established and
operates a structure of internal
systems complying to the scope

of its activities as specified by the
legislation. In this approach, dubbed
“the triple defense line,” the division
of authority and responsibility is as
follows:

Line of Defense Officials,
Authorities and Duties

1. Line of Defense: Company
Management

Identifying, assessing, managing
and reporting risks in an effective
and risk-oriented manner,

and ensuring compliance with
company policies. Establishing and
maintaining an effective internal
control system.
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2. Line of Defense: Risk
Management, Internal Control and
Compliance Directorate
Supporting the Company
management in identifying,
assessing, managing and reporting
risks, overseeing compliance with
Company policies and correcting
any noncompliance; in short,
assisting in the functioning of
Aksigorta’s Risk Management
Framework. Providing an acceptable
assurance regarding the following
subjects: Company assets are
protected with internal control
structure; its activities are carried
out effectively, efficiently and in
compliance with laws and other
relevant legislation, in-house
policies and rules of the Company,
insurance business customs; the
accounting and financial reporting
systems are functioning reliably;
the integrity of all systems used in
the provision of services, and timely
irretrievability of the information.

3. Line of Defense: Internal Audit
Directorate

Assuring the Board of Directors
about the effectiveness of the
Company'’s risk management and
internal control mechanism from
an impartial and independent
viewpoint.



78 Corporate Profile

Sustainability

Activities

Corporate Governance

- ™
w:\FinanciaI Information and Risk Mcnqgement/iw

Risks and Assessment by the Management Body

Risk Management, Internal Control
and Compliance Directorate

It was structured in accordance with
the Regulation on Internal Systems of
Insurance and Private Pension Sectors
issued in the Official Gazette dated
November 25, 2021, and numbered
31670. Pursuant to Article 48/8 of the
Regulation on the Internal Systems

in Insurance and Private Pension
Sectors, internal system functions
can be structured jointly within the
insurance group. Within this scope,
the internal systems of Aksigorta A.g,
Agesa Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S, and
Sabanci Ageas Saglik Sigorta AS.

are structured jointly to the extent
permitted by the legislation.

It is aimed to provide assurance to
the Board of Directors through risk
management and internal control
activities on:

+ Ensuring compliance with legal
obligations and the Company'’s
risk management policies and risk
appetite limits,

+ Establisnment and effective
operation of a control framework
in order to identify all structural
risks exposed and to ensure that
risks are managed within specified
tolerance limits,

+ Designing and implementing
actions to take risks within
tolerance limits and reporting
these risks transparently.

The reports which include the

risk monitoring, assessment,
management activities, and internal
control activities are submitted to

the Board of Directors and the Early
Detection of Risk Committee regularly.

Internal Control Directorate
Internal control activities are primarily
the responsibility of the business
units that perform them. The Internall
Control Directorate is responsible
for supporting business units in the
design of the processes carried out
or controls made by these units,
evaluating the adequacy and
effectiveness of said processes

and controls, and monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal control
function.

The Internal Control Directorate
targets to make contributions under
the following categories through its
operations:

- Implementation of the Internall
Control Regulation determined by
the Board of Directors,

- Implementation of a robust and
reliable control framework by
creating strong and effective
internal control awareness,

- Implementation and supervision
of the control framework to ensure
that operational risks are managed
within the determined risk appetite,

The activities carried out by the
Internal Control Directorate during
the year are summarized below:

— The control activities performed
by the business units have been
supervised in line with the Annual
Internal Control Plan. The results
of the supervision were published
quarterly in the Aksigorta Internal
Control Report.

— Claims, Technical Evaluation,
Reinsurance, and Debts
Management control frameworks
were reviewed with the relevant
business units in order to activate
the Company’s existing control
environment.

— The results of the internal control
activities carried out by the
business units are monitored
through the IRM- GRC application,
and all determinations and
findings are tracked depending
on the relevant risks.

— In order to monitor Aksigorta’s
compliance with legislation and
regulations, work to update the
control points defined in the IRM
application continued during
the year with the relevant teams.
Newly designed compliance
controls were ensured to be
defined in the IRM system.

- Significant legislative changes
concerning the Company's field
of activity were monitored, and
compliance projects and actions
were closely followed.

Risk Management Directorate
The Directorate is responsible

for ensuring the adequacy

and effectiveness of the risk
management function across the
Company. The Company ensures
that the design and effectiveness
of the control framework is aligned
with its risk appetite and that risks
to business plans, projects, and
other critical business decisions are
assessed.

Risk management policies and
implementation procedures need to
adapt to changing conditions. Within
this scope, the Risk Management
Directorate regularly evaluates the
adequacy of the relevant policies by
utilizing the outputs of the internal
control system and the internal audit
system and submits the necessary
revisions to the Board of Directors for
approval.

Risk Management Framework
documents are reviewed annually
and approved by the Board of
Directors. Operational Risks are
managed under the supervision of
the Early Detection of Risk Committee
of the Board of Directors.

As risk management has become

a part of the Company’s business
culture, the risk dimension is
considered in all important business
decisions made.



The findings obtained as a result

of the second line of defense
supervision activities are regularly
presented to the Early Risk Detection
Committee of the Board of Directors
through management reports (CRO
Report, Internal Control Report, etc.).

The activities carried out by the Risk
Management Directorate during the
year are summarized below:

« Phase 2 of the “IRM (GRC)
Application Development” project,
including the Operational Risk
Management methodology, was
completed by August 2023. The
results of risk management and
internal control activities carried
out by business units are monitored
through the application, and alll
determinations, findings, and risk
events are tracked depending on
the relevant risk and/or legislation.

« Trainings were organized to
increase the level of knowledge
and awareness of employees
regarding the reporting of risk/loss
events to the Risk Management
Department by business units with
the standard flow determined
through the IRM-GRC application.

« A workshop was organized in July
2023 with the participation of alll
managers to evaluate emerging
risks, and the risk inventory was
updated with the feedback of the
management.

« Insurance Risk Policy was
established, and Risk Management
Framework Policy was updated.

« The following activities related
to the execution of the Risk
Management function in 2023
were reported to the Insurance
and Private Pension Regulation
and Supervision Agency in
accordance with the Regulation:
a. Information on risk

management policies and
changes made in these
policies during the year, as well
as information on risk limits
and changes made in these
limits during the year,

b. Capital adequacy impact
analysis report, which
measures the long-term
impacts of the risks assumed
and exposed on capital
adequacy and Company
continuity,

c. Results of monitoring and
tracking activities carried
out during the year as part
of the execution of the risk
management function.

Actuarial Supervision Unit

The Actuarial Supervision Unit

is responsible for monitoring

the Company’s general pricing
policy, portfolio profitability, the
actuarial adequacy of reinsurance
agreements, the adequacy and
reliability of technical provisions,
and the development and change
of the risk level of the Company’s
portfolio, as well as reporting the
measures deemed necessary to
senior management and the Early
Detection of Risk Committee.

The Actuarial Supervision Unit also
submits the following periodic reports
to the Insurance Regulation and
Supervision Agency:

a. Actuarial Report, the scope of
which is determined by the
institution,

b. Tariff profitability determination
report and summary report on
the proposals made during the
year to ensure tariff profitability,

c. Report on the actuarial methods
applied and the models and
assumptions used by the
Company and the changes
made in these models and
assumptions during the year
and their justifications,

d. Periodic reports on the
operations carried out during
the year as part of the execution
of the actuarial function.
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Information Technologies and
Information Security Risks
Management

Information Technology (IT) risk is
the potential for losing automation
systems, networks, or other critical IT
resources, which can adversely affect
business processes. With technology
becoming a part of business
processes, effective management
of information technologies and
information security risks are among
the Company’s primary goals.

Information Technologies and
Information Security risks are handled
within business risks management
and managed with reference to the
internationally accepted Information
Security Standards (Cobit, ISO27001).

The main risk areas that are addressed
within the Information Technologies
risks and for which the levels of control
targets adapted to the Company are
tracked are being summarized below:

« IT Management and Strategy Risk

« IT Architecture Risk

+ Business Continuity Risk

+ Supplier Management Risk

« Service Management and
Resilience Risks

+ Change Management Risk

« Development and Adaptation Risk

+ Malicious Service Interruptions

« Hackers and Cyber Criminals

+ Malicious Internal Resources
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Risks and Assessment by the Management Body

Information Systems Risks and
checkpoints, which are also part
of the regulatory requirements,
continue to be studied. As part

of the COBIT 2019 compliance
program, control targets are
reviewed and necessary updates
are performed at these controls.
During these works, priority is given
to the areas of the COBIT 2019
framework that are deemed risky for
the Company.

Work was initiated to track
information technologies and
information security risks on the IRM
platform and to record findings,
determinations, and vulnerabilities
on a common platform. The
platform went live in 2023. Thus, it is
aimed to track information security
risks over the platform.

In order to ensure sound
governance of risks arising from
Information Technologies, modern
methods are being applied

in Information Technologies
management. Agile, Al integrations,
and Devsecops adaptations applied
in the Company’s system and
solution development processes are
examples of these efforts.

The Emergency Center located
outside Istanbul is tested annually
to ensure IT continuity and for
geographical redundancy.

For Information Security risks and
emerging threats, as well as ensuring
compliance with legislation, current
technological solutions related to
Information Security are designed
and adapted to the Company,

and the Company’s resistance to
Information Security risks is being
increased. Technological updates
and adaptations are continued in
the data leakage systems (DLP),
endpoint data security solutions
(XDR), and asset and data
management areas, which are
mandated by the legislation within
this framework.

Business Continuity and Crisis
Governance Risks

Aims to provide the continuity of
Aksigorta operations, to effectively
and seamlessly maintain value-
creating critical products, services,
and service activities, to reduce
negative impacts, to predetermine
risks for the continuity of processes
providing value to customers and
stakeholders, and to be prepared

in times of crisis by developing
measures. Human life and health are
the top priority in business continuity
efforts.

A Business Continuity Plan is
created in order to protect business
processes and valuable assets

and to maintain the ability to do
business after crises and events,
and the effectiveness of the process
is ensured through tests and
exercises.

The structure of business continuity
is developed based on the results
of business impact analysis and
risk assessment studies, and
targets and performance criteria
are identified based on data
included in analysis activities, so
that the organizational structure,
business unit requirements, location,
and system infrastructure are in
harmony, and the development
areas are determined.

Audit and control activities,
management reviews and
corrective actions required for the
continuous improvement of the
business continuity management
structure, and the necessary
actions to identify risks and
opportunities are provided by the
management and the teams that
the management assigns the
responsibility for business continuity.

Within the framework of these
principles, the following crisis
governance activities were
completed during the year:

- Disaster scenarios for long-
term business interruptions
and, in the event of a crisis,
Aksigorta’s existing business
continuity management
and development areas are
evaluated in collaboration with
key stakeholders and the Senior
Management team.

+ Atime-based crisis simulation
was carried out with the
interactive participation of the
Company'’s crisis management
team members to assess the
Company'’s readiness for crisis
management.

+ The Business Continuity team
developed the crisis exercise
scenario prior to the simulation,
and at the end of the simulation, it
was discovered that the Company
Crisis Management team was
aware of and prepared for crisis
response. Also, additional areas
for development were determined
regarding the crisis management
fundamentals.



« Sabanci Holding and Group
companies determined the points
where companies may act jointly
in the event of a possible disaster,
and studies were carried out to
determine emergency action
plans regarding the actions that
can be taken before and during
the disaster.

« Assessments were made by the
Business Continuity teams and
Risk teams on the preparations
for a possible disaster, and a road
map study was made to cover
the preparations for the disaster
and the scaling of maturity, the
development of sub-scenarios,
the determination of action
and implementation processes,
and the preparations of the
responsible teams.

« An analysis of geographical
backup requirements for the
continuity of business processes
in the event of a possible disaster
was initiated.

Legal Department, Compliance and

Physical Damage

— All processes regarding legal
questions and issues that have
arisen or may arise as a result
of the Company’s services
and practices during its daily
operations were examined as per
legal regulations, and opinions
were given.

Correspondence addressed to the
Company from official institutions
was reviewed and shared with

the relevant departments of the

Company. When necessary, meetings

were held with the departments
regarding the possible repercussions

and risks of the relevant official letters

to the Company, and preventive and
regulatory activities were carried out.

Responses to the relevant letters were

prepared in accordance with the
Company's official correspondence
rules, and meetings were held with
official institutions on behalf of the
Company when necessary.

All changes in legislation that

are significant and related to the
Company’s activity area have been
closely monitored and reviewed,
and all actions have been taken to
comply with legislation.

All contracts that need to be
concluded regarding the processes
to which the Company is a party
were prepared and reviewed. In

addition, the renewal processes of the

contracts that were due for renewall
were legally reviewed and evaluated
in the most appropriate manner

for the Company’s current situation
and conditions, and the renewall
processes were completed. Support
was provided to the consultancy
requests submitted by different
departments of the Company
regarding ongoing contracts.

Pursuant to the Law No. 6698

on the Protection of Personal
Data, activities were carried

out to increase the awareness
of all departments of the
Company by following the
current developments regarding
the issues that the Company is
obliged to and the applications
made by the relevant persons
were responded as per the
legislation. Similarly, support
was provided to all teams in
awareness-raising activities and
consultancy processes regarding
the obligations to which the
Company is subject due to the
Competition Law.

Application, objection, and
trademark processes on the
intellectual and industrial rights
owned by the Company were
followed up, and mechanisms

in accordance with legal
processes were executed to
prevent possible damages to the
Company in this regard.

Legal support was provided

for the projects initiated by
different departments within the
Company to ensure that new
products, new services, business
partnerships, and arrangements
were created in accordance with
the legislation.
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— Within the scope of MASAK
compliance, the project
designed has been completed,
and related processes have
been transferred to a digital
environment with effective
software applications in order
to effectively monitor sanction
decisions, institutions, and
persons subject to sanctions. In
addition, a project was initiated
to profile the policyholders in the
active portfolio according to risk
criteria.

In 2023, the Company’s Claims

and Law Department pursued

a high number of lawsuits in
different departments for material,
physical, liability, subrogation, and
receivables lawsuits and concluded
settlements in many files by
conducting settlement studies.
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Notable Changes in Regulations — 2023

Within the scope of the decisions
taken by the Constitutional Court,
paragraphs g, b, and ¢ of Article 90 of
the Road Traffic Law, which regulate
the calculation of compensation

for loss of value, deprivation of
support, and permanent disability,
and the paragraph regulating the
determination of the procedures
and principles by the SEDDK, were
annulled. In summary, it is justified
that the calculation of compensation
should be made in accordance
with the Turkish Code of Obligations
and that a different calculation
method would not be appropriate.
Regarding Article 92, the request

for annulment of “I) (Addition:
9/6/2021-7327/19 art.) Claims for loss
of value compensation for vehicles
that were withdrawn from traffic or
scrapped due to damage” in the
article regulating the issues outside
the scope of the KTK was made, but
the request was rejected and the
regulation was not annulled.

The Insurance and Private Pension
Regulatory and Supervisory Agency
published the “Tariff and Instruction
on Optional Earthquake and Volcanic
Eruption Coverage” on 31.07.2023 and
amended the tariff and instruction on
optional earthquake, fire, and related
coverage to be effective as of August
1.

With this amendment, important
regulations have entered into force
to protect the rights and interests

of the policyholders. With this
amendment, in order to prevent the
risk of underinsurance of dwellings,
the minimum square meter value for
optional coverage has been set as TL
12 thousand for reinforced concrete
dwellings and TL 8 thousand for
other dwellings. Within this scope, the
relevant coverage for policies with a
maturity date on or after August 1, 2023
were restructured.

The Circular on the Amendment of
the Circular (2019/10) on Package
Policy and Additional Coverage in the
Compulsory Motor Third Party Liability
Insurance (2023/6), the Circular on
the Annulment of Circular No. 2017/1
on Compulsory Motor Third Party
Liability Insurance Premiums (2023/7),
the Circular on the Amendment

of the Circular (2019/9) on the
Implementation of Compulsory Motor
Third Party Liability Insurance (2023/8)
were published. With the relevant
regulations, a transition to a 9-tier
system was made, the monthly rate
of increase in maximum premiums
was reduced, the possibility of 6
installments in compulsory traffic
insurance payments was introduced,
and the additional coverage offered
by the companies to the policyholder
as 10% was revised as 20% in case of
payment in installments.

The Communiqué on the
Amendment of the Compulsory
Earthquake Insurance Tariff

and Instruction Communiqué
("Communiqué”) was published

in the Official Gazette dated
28.12.2023, and the minimum
premium amounts of the TCIP policy,
premium tariff according to the type
of building, maximum coverage
amount, and square meter values
based on the calculation of
insurance amount were updated.

A Guide on Recommendations for
the Protection of Privacy in Mobile
Applications:

On December 25, 2023, the
Personal Data Protection Authority
("Authority”) published A Guide

on Recommendations for the
Protection of Privacy in Mobile
Applications (“Guide”). The Guide
includes recommendations for
personal data processed in mobile
applications, persons whose
personal data is processed in
mobile applications, and persons
who process personal data
through mobile applications. Mobile
applications contain personal data
within the scope of the purpose of
the usage activity.

The guide contains
recommendations for compliance
with the general principles and
processing conditions of personal
data within the Law No. 6698 on

the Protection of Personal Data.

The Guide addresses existing

and potential risks and provides
guidance on the possible measures
to be taken for persons who process
personal data through mobile
applications.

Our Company continues to work

on compliance with the TFRS 17
standard, which is mandatory

for insurance contracts. This
standard sets out the principles

for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of
insurance contracts within its
scope in financial statements. The
standard introduces significant
changes to financial reporting,
including changes to systems,
processes, and data requirements.
The Company follows the guidelines
and timetable communicated

by SEDDK for the first time
implementation of the standard
and ensures compliance with these
guidelines.



Internal Audit Activities

The internal audit system of
Aksigorta was structured in
accordance with the Communiqué
on the Internal Systems of Insurance
and Private Pension Sectors

issued in the Official Gazette

dated November 25, 2021, and
numbered 31670. As per Article 6

of the Communiqué no. 16/2022
Concerning Enforcement of Some
Articles of the Regulation on the
Internal Systems of Insurance and
Private Pension Sectors, it is possible
to jointly use an audit committee,
internal control, risk management,
actuarial and internal audit unit of
any of the insurance, reassurance
and pension companies under the
Insurance group, without the need
to form another such separate unit
in other companies, too. Therefore,
the Agesa Emeklilik ve Hayat AS.
Internal Audit team has been
restructured accordingly so that

it can serve both Aksigorta A.S.

and Agesa Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S.
companies Pursuant to the Board of
Directors resolution dated October
31,2007, and numbered 2007/3], and
in accordance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and practices,

an Audit Committee was set up

to help protect the interests of the
Company'’s stakeholders.

As stipulated by the Board of
Directors resolution dated October
17,2014, and numbered 2014/62, the
aforementioned Committee was
restructured and replaced by the
current Audit Committee to ensure
compliance with Capital Markets
Board Corporate Governance
Principles. The Audit Committee
consists of two members, namely
Huseyin Gurer and Yesim Ugtum,
both Independent Members of the
Board of Directors. According to the
organizational chart, the Internal
Audit department reports directly to
the Board of Directors and operates
independently. The Company aims
to manage the internal control
system within the maximum risk
limits which determine risk factors
which may prevent reaching
strategic and operational goals.
The Risk Management and Internal
Audit Departments are responsible
for ensuring operational productivity
and efficiency, issuing financial

and managerial results in a timely,
accurate and reliable manner,
overseeing compliance with
applicable laws and regulations,
protecting shareholder investments
and Company assets, and
managing risks effectively and
efficiently.

The scope of internal audit activities
includes analysis and assessment
of the efficiency and capability of
internal control, risk management
and administrative processes in
order to yield reliable, independent
and impartial opinions on these
processes, and to present proposals
for improvement and development.

As part of the annual audit plan for
2023, a total of 16 audits, 13 in the
field of business processes and 3 in
the field of information technologies,
were completed, and the associated
reports were submitted to the Audit
Committee. The actions taken by the
Company executives in connection
with the internal control deficiencies
observed within the framework of
Audit Reports were subsequently
followed up and the adequacy of
the actions were questioned by
monitoring their effect on the risk
level and the results were reported
to the Audit Committee.
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The Internal Audit team consists of

1 Chairman, 2 Managers, 9 Auditors
and 1 Audit Data Analyst, who
possess the qualifications specified
in the Regulation on Internal
Systems of Insurance, Reinsurance
and Pension Companies. The
internal audit personnel were
provided with the necessary training
courses to support their professional
development and improve their
knowledge. The Internal Audit
Department staff members have

no responsibility, authority or
influence on the audited operations
of the Company, and their full
independence is ensured.
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Dividend Distribution Proposal

AGENDA:
Determination of allocation of annual profit of 2023, dividend pay-out rate and terms of dividend payment

RESOLUTION:

In accordance with the accounting principles and standards in force as per insurance legislation and audited by PwC Bagimsiz Denetim
ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali MUsavirlik AS. (PwC), our financial statements for the period from 01.01.2023-3112.2023 reveal a “Net Profit for the
Period” of 1150.606.227-TL

In accordance with the 7" paragraph of Article 9 of the Regulation on the Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Insurance,
Reinsurance, and Pension Companies, the company is prohibited from distributing profits if such distribution would result in the equity falling
below the required level of equity. As of December 31, 2023, the company’s capital adequacy ratio fell below the threshold of 115%. Therefore,
it has been decided to inform the shareholders that no profit distribution will be made for the fiscal year 2023. This matter will be presented
to the approval of the General Assembly at the Ordinary General Assembly meeting for the year 2023, which will be held on March 19, 2024.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Annual Report
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

To the General Assembly of Aksigorta A.S.
1. Opinion

‘We have audited the annual report of Aksigorta A.S. (the “Company”) for the 1 January - 31 December
2023 period.

In our opinion, the financial information and the analysis made by the Board of Directors by using the
information included in the audited financial statements regarding the Company’s position in the Board of
Directors’ Annual Report are consistent and presented fairly, in all material respects, with the audited full
set consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and with the information obtained in the course
of independent audit.

2. Basis for Opinion

Our independent audit was conducted in accordance with the Independent Standards on Auditing that are
part of the Turkish Standards on Auditing (the “TSA”) issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and
Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities in the Audit of the Board of Directors’ Annual Report section of our report.
We hereby declare that we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for
Independent Auditors (including International Independence Standards) (the “Ethical Rules”) and the
ethical requirements regarding independent audit in regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during the
independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

3. Our Audit Opinion on the Full Set Financial Statements

‘We expressed an unqualified opinion in the auditor’s report dated 8 February 2024 on the full set
consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements for the 1 January - 31 December 2023 period.

4. Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Annual Report
Company management’s responsibilities related to the annual report according to Articles 514 and 516 of
Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and Capital Markets Board’s (“CMB”) Communiqué Serial II,

No:14.1, “Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (the “Communiqué”) are as follows:

a)  to prepare the annual report within the first three months following the balance sheet date and
present it to the general assembly;

b)  to prepare the annual report to reflect the Company’s operations in that year and the consolidated
and unconsolidated financial position in a true, complete, straightforward, fair and proper manner
in all respects. In this report financial position is assessed in accordance with the financial
statements. Also in the report, developments and possible risks which the Company may encounter
are clearly indicated. The assessments of the Board of Directors in regard to these matters are also
included in the report.

c) to include the matters below in the annual report:
- events of particular importance that occurred in the Company after the operating year,
- the Company’s research and development activities,
- financial benefits such as salaries, bonuses, premiums and allowances, travel,
accommodation and representation expenses, benefits in cash and in kind, insurance and

similar guarantees paid to members of the Board of Directors and senior management.

When preparing the annual report, the Board of Directors considers secondary legislation arrangements
enacted by the Ministry of Trade and other relevant institutions.

5. Independ Auditor’s Resp ibility in the Audit of the Annual Report

Our aim is to express an opinion and issue a report comprising our opinion within the framework of TCC
and Communiqué provisions regarding whether or not the financial information and the analysis made by
the Board of Directors by using the information included in the audited consolidated and unconsolidated
financial statements in the annual report are consistent and presented fairly with the audited financial
statements of the Company and with the information we obtained in the course of independent audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the TSAs. These standards require that ethical requirements
are complied with and that the independent audit is planned and performed in a way to obtain reasonable
assurance of whether or not the consolidated and unconsolidated financial information and the analysis
made by the Board of Directors by using the information included in the audited financial statements in
the annual report are consistent and presented fairly with the audited financial statements and with the
information obtained in the course of audit.

PwC Bagimsiz Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.S.

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

Talar Giil, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, 15 February 2024
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Convenience Translation of Notes to the
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2.

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Insurance and Investment Contracts with Discretionary Participation Features
None (December 31, 2022: None).

Investment Contracts without Discretionary Participation Features

None (December 31, 2021: None).

Borrowings

None. (As of December 31, 2022, the Company has a loan of 495,500,000 TL principal and
48,973,125 TL interest and is classified in the debt account of credit institutions. In addition, the
Company has a repo transaction of 78,282,082 TL as of December 31, 2022 and is classified in
the other financial liabilities account.)

Employee Benefits

The Company accounts for its liability related to employment termination and vacation benefits
according to ‘Turkish Accounting Standards Regarding Employee Benefits’ (‘TAS 19”) and
classifies in balance sheet under the account ‘Provision of Employment Termination Benefits’.

According to the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to
each employee whose jobs are terminated except for the reasons such as resignation, retirement
and attitudes determined in Labour Law. The provision for employment termination benefits is
calculated over present value of the possible liability in scope with the Labour Law by considering
determined actuarial estimates (Note 22).

Provisions (Non-technical)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured over expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation by considering the risks and uncertainties related to the obligation at the balance sheet
date. When the provision is measured by using the estimated cash outflows that are required to settle the
obligation, the carrying value of the provision is equal to present value of the related cash outflows.

‘Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognized as an asset if and only it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the reimbursement can be reliably estimated.

Liabilities that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity are
classified as contingent liabilities and not included in the non-consolidated financial statements (Note 23).

2.21

2.22
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SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition
Written Premium Commission

Written premiums represent premiums on policies written during the year, net of cancellations.
Premium income is recognized in the financial statements on accrual basis by allocating the
unearned premium provision over written premiums.

Commission income received in relation to ceded premiums to reinsurance companies is accrued
in the related period and classified in technical part under operating expenses in the income
statement.

The part of paid amounts to the assistance services which hit the following periods are deferred
in accordance with the Technical Provisions Regulation numbered 27655 and dated July 28,2010.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are accounted on an accrual basis in the related period’s profit/loss.
Interest income includes income gains from the coupons of the fixed return investment
instruments and valuation of discounted government bonds based on internal rate of return
method.

The Company accrues the interest costs incurred for the loans in the income statement on a
periodic basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income from the equity share investments are recognized when the shareholder has the
right to receive dividends.

Profit Share Distribution

Listed companies distribute dividend in accordance with the Communiqué No. 1I-19.1 issued by
the CMB which is effective from February 1, 2014.

Companies distribute dividends in accordance with their dividend payment policies settled and
dividend payment decision taken in general assembly and in conformity with relevant legislations.
The communiqué does not constitute a minimum dividend rate. Companies distribute dividend in
accordance with the method defined in their dividend policy or articles of incorporation. In
addition, dividend can be distributed by fixed or variable instalments and advance dividend can
be paid in accordance with profit on financial statements of the Company.

In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC), unless the required reserves and the
dividend for shareholders as determined in the article of association or in the dividend distribution
policy of the Company are set aside, no decision may be made to set aside other reserves, to
transfer profits to the subsequent year or to distribute dividends to the holders of usufruct right
certificates, to the members of the board of directors or to the employees; and no dividend can be
distributed to these persons unless the determined dividend for shareholders is paid in cash.

The excess portion of the inflation adjustment of the general reserves including prior year losses
and profits, share premiums and shareholders’ equity excluding capital is considered in the
calculation of the net distributable profit.

n3
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AKSIGORTA AS.

Convenience Translation of Notes to the
Unconsolidated Financial Statements

for the Period January 1 - December 31, 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)
2. SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Related parties

Parties are considered related to the Company if,

a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

i)  Has control or joint control over the reporting entity,
ii) Has significant influence over the reporting entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting,

If the reporting Company or a parent company of the reporting Company is a member of the key
management personnel.

2.24 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions are recorded in TRY, which represents the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
converted into TRY at the exchange rates ruling at the reporting date with the resulting exchange
differences recognized in the statement of profit or loss as foreign exchange gains or losses.

As of the balance sheet date, foreign currency receivables are valued at the Central Bank of the
Republic of Turkey (“CBRT”) foreign exchange buying rates, and foreign currency debts are
valued at the CBRT's foreign exchange selling rates. (31 December 2020: Foreign currency assets
and liabilities are converted by using period end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic
of Turkey’s bid rates. For the conversion of liabilities the exchange rate stated at the contract is
used.)

The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey exchange rates used in the conversion is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
USD / TRY EUR / TRY USD / TRY EUR / TRY
Buying rate 29,4382 32,5739 18,6983 19,9349
Selling rate 29,4913 32,6326 18,7320 19,9708
Effective Selling Rate 29,5355 32,6815 18,7601 20,0007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND REQUIREMENTS

Preparation of financial statements requires the use of assumptions and estimates that might affect
the amounts of assets and liabilities reported as of balance sheet date, explanation of the
conditional assets and liabilities and amounts of the income and expenses reported throughout the
accounting period. Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions are evaluated taking into
consideration past experience, other factors, current conditions, and reasonable expectations for
future events. Such evaluations and estimates might differ from actual consequences, even though
they are based on the best knowledge of the management about current events and transactions.

One of the most important accounting estimates for the Company is to estimate the final net
liabilities relating to the expenses to arise from the effective policies. As per its nature, estimating
liabilities regarding the insurance business includes the evaluation of many uncertainties.

Corporate Governance
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Insurance Risk

Objective of managing risks arising from insurance contracts and policies used to minimize
such risks

Insurance risk is the probability of risk exposure that is covered under any insurance contracts
and the uncertainty of the magnitude of the claims in relation to the risk exposed. Due to the
nature of insurance transactions, risks are incidental and hard to anticipate. Maximum risk that
the Company bears is limited to the coverage amount specified in the insurance contract.

The Company has adopted central risk assessment policy and this policy is applied in relation to
the Company’s specified operations and limitations. Principally, in risk assessment, potential
claims are measured based on the past experience, similar risk comparisons and risks in relation
to production process. Location, geographical area, field of activity and fire and theft measures
are also key issues used in the assessment of the insured risk.

Information on insurance risk (before and after risk reduction through reinsurance),

The Company is managing its insurance risk by policy production strategies, reinsurance
contracts and effective settlement and payment operations.

The Company’s policy production strategy follows an effective risk management in the policy
production process considering the nature, extent, geographical area and accurate distribution of
the risk incurred.

Reinsurance contracts include excess of loss (quota-share and excess loss) and catastrophic
coverage. The Company can also enter into reinsurance contracts with facultative participation
under its reinsurance program.

Information on insurance risk (before and after risk reduction through reinsurance),

The Company is managing its insurance risk by policy production strategies, reinsurance
contracts and effective settlement and payment operations.
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4.
4.1
4.1.1

INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Objective of managing risks arising from insurance contracts and policies used to minimize
such risks (Continued)

2022

4.1.1 Objective of managing ri

Company

Standard & Poor’s Rating

R ance Comp Notifi
2023
Company Standard & Poor’s Rating
African Re A-
Labuan Re NR
Malaysian Re NR
General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC) ~ NR
China Property & Casualty Reinsurance A
Aspen A-
Taiping Re A-
MS Amlin AG A
Dongbu Re (DB Insurance) A
Korean Re A
Central Re A
reas A
Sava Re A+t
Odyssey Re A
Hannover Rueck SE A
lunich Re AA-
ew Re AA-
LF Re A+
Cathay Century AA-
‘American Family A-
Blenhei yndicate A+
HCC A+
QBE At
Covea Cooperations A
Toa Re A
Lib Synd Paris A+
Moot Re !
A+
A+
A+t
NR
A+
VI A+
Samsung Fire&Marine Re AA-
Scor A+
R+V Versicl ng AG (R+V Re) A+
American Agricultural NR
Shelter Re NR
EMC NR
ol Re NR
Turk Re NR
Milli Re rBBB-

Affican Re

2 Re
BMI (Trust Re)
BMI (Oman Re)
CCR Algeria
Central R

e
China Property & Casualty Reinsurance A
)

Dongbu Re (DB Insurance)

air Pool
GIC

Hannover Re
HCC tional

* Internat
HDI Global
IGI
Klapton Re
Liberty Mutual

Munich Re
Odyssey Re
Polish Re

BE Re
Samsung Fire&Marine Re
Saudi Re

Shelter Re

Singapore Re

Coface

Lloyd's of London
Liberty Mutual
Mapfre Re
Affican Re

Age
Allianz Re
American Agricultural

The Company’s policy production strategy follows an effective risk management in the policy
production process considering the nature, extent, geographical area and accurate distribution of
the risk incurred. Reinsurance contracts include excess of loss (quota-share and excess loss) and
catastrophic coverage. The Company can also enter into reinsurance contracts with facultative
participation under its reinsurance program

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

4.1.1 Insurance Risk (Continued)

such risks (Continued)

4.INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEN

December 31, 2023

s arising from insurance contracts and poli

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

es used to minimize

December 31, 2022

Reinsurance

Effecton  Gross Total  Share of Total Net Total Reinsurance Share Net Total
Current s Claims Claims Gross Total Claims. of Total Claims Claims

Period (Net) Liability Liability Liability Liability

Unpaid Claims. 1283,709.949  15,940,438,864 (12,805,868,193)  3,134,570,671 7,302,339,708 (5,451,478,986) 1,850,860,722

Discount Effect of
Reported Claim
Discount to Be
Applied to Claim
Files in a Lawsuit

(1.801,918369) (9.563,866,520)  5,827.523.912

(209.936,500)  (923,601,373) 496,031,384

(3,736,342,608)

(427,569,989)

(4,115,227,365) 2,180,803,126  (1,934,424,239)

(440,302,011) 222,668,522 (217,633.489)

Claim Provisions (*) 1559423875 7.496,580,549 (2,847,652,193)  4,648,928.356 3,752,361.695 (662.857.214)  3,089,504.481
Non-life Total 831,278,055 12,949,551,520 (9,329,965.090)  3,619,586,430 6.499,172.027 (3.710.864552) 2788307475
Life (1.473) 1402 - 140216 141,689 - 141,689
Grand Total 831277482 12.949.691,736 (9.329.965.090) _ 3.619.726.646 6,499.313,716 (3.710,864,552] 2,788,449,164

(*) Claim provisions include all additional provisions within unpaid claims in the total outstanding compensation provision in

the balance sheet date.

Outstanding Claim Reserve:

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Gross Total

Reinsurance
Share of Total
Claims Liabil

Net Total
Claims
Liability

Gross Total Reinsurance Net Total
Claims Share of Total Claims
Liability  Claims Liabi Liability

Beginning of the period - January I 6,499.313,716  (3,710,864,552) 2,788449,164  4,514,870,786  (3.159.406.284)  1,355,464,502
Opened in the period 24,532,336,723  (18,395,889,033 6,136,447,600  9.450,238.730  (4,513,830.434)  4,936,408.296
Total Paid (-) (15.091211.575) 9300885392 (5.790.326,183) (6.662.769.808)  2.221.757.732 _(4.441.012.076)
Period end reported claims 15,940.438,864_ (12.805,868,193) 3,134,570.671 _ 7,302,339.708 _ (5.451,478,986) _ 1,850,860,722
Life 140,216 - 140,216 141,689 - 141,689
Reported claims discount effect (9.563.866,520)  5.827.523912  (3,736,342.608) (4,115227.365)  2.180,803,126 (1.934,424.239)
Discount to Be Applied to Claim

Files in Lawsuit (923,601,373) 496,031,384 (427.569.989)  (440,302,011) 222,668,522 (217,633,489)
Claims incurred but not reported 7.496.580.549  (2.847.652.193) 4.648.928.356 _ 3.752.361.695 (662.857.214) _ 3.089.504.481

12,949,691,736  (9,329,965,090) 3,619,726,646

Total

6,499,313,716 (3,710,864,552) 2,788,449,164

Total Claims Liability (*)

Reinsurance Share

s
Liability

Net Total Claims ~ Gross Total Cl
Liability Liability

Reinsurance Share
i Net Total C]
Lial

Motor Crafts Liability 3873021526 (1212449.643) 2660571883 2,233.965.058 (66,124.041)  2,167,841,017
Disaster 3145108435 (3,051.209.869) 938981566 1.509.904.012  (1,396,915,788) 112,988,224
General Liability 992,619,472 8731345566 119273906 1098829285 (958.751.144) 140,078,141
General Losses 1,144,958.716  (1,096,464,369) 484941347 534545759 (506.746.960) 27,798,799
Motor Crafts 744922559 (141.841037) 603,081,522 292,061,798 (6.929,560) 285,132,238
Air Crafts General
Liability 335692825 (335.667.586) 25,239 (282.908.188) 19,068
Transportation 539061860  (494.651:693) 44410167 221773623 (200,613.854) 21,122,480
Financial Losses 1,440,096.066  (1,433,923,088) 6,172,978 125912119 (113.602.919) 12309,200
Watercrafis 110,634.858 (92,943,747 17,691,111 71,062,866 (63.272,769) 7,790,097
Suretyship 462,297,801 (448959.106) 13:338,695 62106.676 (61,005.709) 1,100,967
alth 102.748'501 (951124.203) 7,624,298 47.267.166 (38:882.215) 8,384,951
Air Crafts 48972289 (48.972,288) 1 9514817 (9,514,938) (i21)
Accident 9118414 (4,395,921 4,722,493 7.883.701 (4:446.469) 3437.232
Credit 17866 (16,974) 892 12105522 (1,149,998) 60,524
Legal Protection 280,332 - 280,332 244,658 - 244,658
Life 140216 - 140216 141.689 - 141,689
Total 12.949.691,736 _ (9.329.965.090) _ 3.619.726.646 __ 6.499.313.716 _ (3,710,864,552)  2,788.449,164

*) Total claim liability includes all outstanding claims reserves and IBNR as of the balance sheet date.

Claims development tables prepared in accordance with the Technical Provision Regulations
which are used in the ACLM calculation are explained below.

Gross claim development table prepared on the principles of incurred claims by

December 31, 2023:
1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January -
Vdanuary- 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 1 January -
31 December 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 202231 December 2023 __Gross Claim

Claim realized in th

accident period r 1,366,238,878  1,564,047,984  2,299,878,599

2,069.675,811  3,6:

50,161,929 6,551,391,294 18,413,551,086 35,914,945,581

1 year later 793,577,616 606,370,322 939,075,198 1,228,917.800  2,411,265971  4,443,314,335 122,521,242
2 year later 633,208,482 352,446,585 717,625,507 942,527,562  1,478,022,495 - 4,123,830,631
3 year later 602,343,699 671,792,643 569,945078 899,767,858 - - 2,743,849,278
4 year later 438,319,530 1,082,822,405 604,082,644 - - 2,125,224,588
5 year later 580,045,121 1,577,476,919 - - - 2,157,522,040
6 year later 784,878,729 - - - - - 784.878,729
Total 5,198,612,064  5,854,956,858  5,130,607,026 _ 5,140,889,031 _ 7,539,450,395 10,994,705,629 18,413,551,086 55,272,772,089

15
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4. INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.
4.1 Insurance Risk( Continued) 42
Gross claim development table prepared on the principles of incurred claims by 42.2
December 31, 2023:
dinuary 2017 1January 2018 LJanuary 2019 1January 2020 1 January 2021
IJamuary2016 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 1 January 2022
31 December 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 202131 December 2022 Gross Claim
Claim ealized i the
accident period 930,621,837 1,366,238,878  1,564,047,984  2,299.878,599  2,069,675.811  3,650,161,929  6,551,391,294 18,432,016,332
1 year later 420,934,178 793,577,616 606,370,322 939,075,198 1,228,917,800  2,411,265,971 - 6,400,141,085
2 year later 345,579,004 633,208,482 352,446,585 717,625,507 942,527,562 - 2,991,387,140
3 year later 344,631,786 602,343,699 671,792,643 569,945,078 - 201
4 year later 398,378,186 438,319,539 1,082,822,405 - 0,13
5 year later 342,136,413 580,045,121 - - 922,]
6 year later 461,857,680 - 461,857,680
TOTAL 3,244,139.084  4,413,733,335  4,277.479,939  4.526,524,382  4,241,121,173  6,061,427,900 _ 6,551,391,294 33,315,817,107

4.2 Financial Risk

4.2.1 Capital risk management and capital requirement

The Company’s main purpose in capital management is to maintain its status as a revenue
generating company of the group and to protect shareholder and corporate partners’ benefits while
sustaining the most effective capital structure in order to reduce capital costs.

Capital requirement calculations are made by the Company in accordance with the "Regulation
on the Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension
Companies" published in the Official Gazette dated 19 January 2008 and numbered 26761 by the
Ministry of Treasury and Finance twice a year in June and December as stated in the relevant act.
Company management, as of December 31, 2023, in the calculations made by the Company, the
Company's equity capital amount was above the required equity capital amount. The company
takes actions in accordance with the Insurance legislation and the Capital Markets legislation in
order to further improve its capital adequacy ratio according to the existing equity
capital/adequacy ratio ranges determined within the framework of the relevant regulation.

4.2.2 Financial Risk Factors

The Company is exposed to market risk (exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and price risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk due to its assets and liabilities and reinsurance assets and liabilities.
The Company’s risk management generally focuses on minimizing the probable adverse effects
of uncertainties in financial markets over the Company’s performance. The Company’s exposure
to interest rate risk and credit risk in general is due to its financial investments and insurance
receivables, respectively.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk due to fluctuations in the exchange rates, interest rates
and equity share prices.

Exchange rate risk

The Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities expose the Company to
exchange rate risks. These risks are monitored by analysing exchange rate position. The details
of the Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2023
and, 2022 are presented in detail in Note 12.4.

- ™
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INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk (Continued)

Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

Sensitivity to exchange rate risk

The Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase/decrease in USD and Euro currencies are presented
below. Sensitivity analysis only includes foreign currency denominated monetary assets outstanding

at the end of period and indicates the effects of 10% changes in exchange rates. Positive value indicates
an increase in profit/loss and other equity items.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
USD Effect EUR Effect USD Effect EUR Effect
Profit/Loss Increase 211,377,180 50,670,584 98,560,111 15,588,552
Profit/Loss
(Decrease) (211,377,180) (50,670,584) (98,560,111) (15,588,552)

Interest rate risk

The Company is required to manage its interest rate risks due to price fluctuations in its financial
instruments arising from changes in interest rates. The main risk that the available-for-sale
financial assets in the Company's portfolio are exposed to is the losses that will occur as a result
of changes in market interest rates and the decrease in the fair values of financial assets.

Interest rate sensitivity is the effect of changes in interest rates at the rates assumed below on the
fair values of fixed income or discounted available-for-sale financial assets in the portfolio as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022. During this analysis, other variables are assumed to be constant.
The tax effects of these changes in the calculations are not taken into account.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Total Effect on profit and profit reserves

Market interest rate increase/(decrease

+1% (30,675,022) (18,449,753)
-1% 37,085,192 21,339,528
Financial assets available for sale Effect on profit and profit reserves

Market interest rate TRY
+1% (30,675,022) (18,449,753)
-1% 37,085,192 21,339,528

Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk due to its available for sale financial assets. As of the
reporting date, if data used in the valuation method is increased/decreased by 10% and all
variables remain fixed, the Company’s sensitivity is as follows. The sensitivity of the Company
for the price risk is arising from the available for sale financial assets as of

December 31, 2023 and 2022.

D ber 31,2023 December 31, 2022
Total Financial assets
Price increase/(decrease) TRY
+10% 168,674,027 195,081,896
-10% (168,674,027) (195,081,896)
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4.
4.2

4.2.2

INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk (Continued)

Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the debtor defaults on its obligations under the terms of the transaction.
Credit risk is managed by setting out limits and providing guarantees for receivables from a
specific party. Limits and guarantees are determined based on the assessment of the respective
party’s financial ability and trading capacity. The Company is exposed to credit risk in Turkey
because it mainly performs its operations in Turkey.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has presented its receivables from insurance operations
and guarantees received and provision for doubtful receivables in Note 12.1.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility of non-performance of the Company’s due liabilities. Events that
give rise to funding shortages, such as market deteriorations and decrease in credit ratings, are the
main reasons of liquidity risk. The Company manages its liquidity risk through having adequate
cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil its current and possible liabilities by allocating its

funds.
Liquidity risk table

December 31, 2023

Uptol 3 months- 5 years

month __1-3 month Iyear _ 1-5years _ andover _Nomaturity Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2210,084,391 1,046292,557 1,147,938.620 616,328,393 194,356,928 5.215,000,889
Financial Assets Available for
Sale 243,930,016 94452253  987,558432 381,306,505 1,707.247,206
Financial Assets Held for
Trading - 3,719.402,547  3,719.402,547
Financial Assets Held for
Trading 27871222 149252819 186,209,070 456,549,808 - 819,882,919
Financial Investments with
Risks on Policy Holders 2,205,350 2,205,350
Receivables from Main
Operations 947,346,928 1,842,197.057 3798316528 24,453,196 194,947,506 6,807.261.215
Due from Related Parties 17.384 - 125510,565 - - 125527949
Other Receivables - - 87211432 - 87211432
Prepaid Expenses and Income
Accruals - 66320536 - 66,320,536
Total Assets 3,185.319.925 3.281,672,449 5505,959.004 2,087,095,179 381,306,505 _4,108.706.981 18,550,060,043
Financial Liabilities - o 28600258 28,576,031 - B 57,176,289
Payables from Main Operations ~ 2,243,964,199  377.932473 1,352,015,345 - 1,181,943,239  5,155,855,256
Due to Related Parties 621,896 - - - 621,896
Other Payables - 562287327 - - - 43974023 611261351
Insurance Technical Reserves 522337969 1,044,675,938 743441205 770,648,371 538,623,163 - 3619726646
Taxes Payable and Similar
Liabilities 456,367,979 - 456367.979

Prepaid Expenses and Income
Accruals

2,766.924,064

2,441.263.717 _2,124,056.808

799.224,402 538,623,163

1,230.917.262

9.901,009.416

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk (Continued)

Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

December 31, 2022
Up to 3 months-1 5 years

1 month 1-3 month year 1-5 years and over No maturity Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,563,212,834 212,379,305 304,886,796 - - 68,868,845  5,149,347,780
Financial Assets Available for Sale 9,590,265 155,044,251 493,226,213 876,499,247 392,729,688 24,055,744  1,951,145,408
Financial Assets Held for Trading - - - - - 209,376,382 209,376,382
Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets - 390,634,501 314,187,673 438,202,160 41,779,922 - 1,184,804.256
Financial Investments with Risks
on Policy Holders - - - 2,011,395 - - 2,011,395
Receivables from Main Operations 535,963,340  1,108,988,225  1,109,166,803 25,550,496 - 86,901,931  2,866,570,795
Due from Related Parties 11,111,150 - - - - - 11,111,150
Other Receivables - - 47,994,285 - - - 47,994,285
Prepaid Expenses and
Income Accruals - - 15,376,257 - - - 15,376,257
Total Assets 5,119,877,589  1,867,046,282  2,284,838,027  1,342,263,298 434,509,610 389,202,902 11,437,737,708
Financial Liabilities 162,908,124 176,393,750 300,678,902 22,338,737 - - 662,319,513
Payables from Main Operations 357,170,347 712,805,314 517,311,005 175,450,027 - 289,806,940  2,052,543,633
Due to Related Parties 189,642 - 1,143 - - - 190,785
Other Payables - 330,386,025 - - - 28,257,559 358,643,584
Insurance Technical Reserves (*) 484,916,307 969,832,614 527,728,220 524,943,171 281,028,852 - 2,788,449.164
Taxes Payable and Similar
Liabilities - 151,567,560 - - - - 151,567,560
Prepaid Expenses and Income
Accruals - - - - - - -
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,005,184,420  2,340,985,263  1,345,719,270 722,731,935 281,028,852 318,064,499  6,013,714,239
* Outstanding claims provisions have been subject to maturity distribution, taking into account the estimated payment dates,

g P ) 2 paym
and all outstanding claims provisions are shown under short-term liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current Financial Assets Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Financial Assets Available for Sale 1,707,247,206 1,707,247,206 1,951,145,408 1,951,145,408
Financial Assets Held to Maturity 819,882,919 786,276,955 1,184,804,256 1,214,041,134
Financial Assets Held for Trading 3,719,402,547 3,719,402,547 209,376,382 209,376,382
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy
Holders 2,205,350 2,205,350 2,011,395 2,011,395
Non-current Fi ial Assets Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Subsidiary- Sabanci Ageas Saglik Sigorta
AS. 100,000,000 100,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Total Financial Assets 6,348,738,022 6,315,132,058 3,407,337,441 3,436,574,319

nz
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4.
4.2
4.2.2

INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk (Continued)
Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets

Fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than for a forced sale or liquidation, and is best
determined by their quoted price in an organized market, if any.

The fair value classifications of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Level 1),

. Based on observable data directly (through prices in active markets) or indirectly (derived
from prices in active markets) (Level 2),

. Inputs (unobservable inputs) for assets and liabilities that cannot be determined based on

observable market data (Level 3).

Available-for-sale financial assets in the balance sheet are those that are valued at their fair values.
Classification requires the use of observable market data if available.

In this framework, the fair value classification of financial assets and liabilities measured at their

fair values is as follows:

December 31,
2023 Category 1 Category 2 Category 3
Financial Assets Available for Sale
Corporate Bond 14,195,113 - 14,195,113 -
Eurobond 1,634218,648  1,634.218,648 - -
Stocks 5,417,412 3,684,686 - 1,732,726
Government Bonds 53,416,033 53,416,033 - -
Financial Assets Held for Trading
Investment Funds 3,719,402,547  3,719,402,547 - -
Derivates and Option Guarantees - - - -
Held to Maturity Financial Assets
Eurobond 481,866,122 481,866,122 - -
Corporate Bond 615,954 615,954 - -
Government Bonds 337400843 136,466,228 200,934,615 -
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders
Government Bonds 2,205,350 2,205,350 - -
Total 6,248,738,022  6,031,875,568 215,129,728 1,732,726
December 31,
2022 Categoryil Category 2 Category 3
Financial Assets Available for Sale
Eurobond 1,204,984,035 1,204,984,035 -
Corporate Bond 377,696,817 - 377,696,817 -
Government Bonds 344,408,811 249,977,293 94,431,518 -
Stocks 24,055,745 22834250 - 1,221,495
Financial Assets Held for Trading
Investment Funds 152,529,812 152,529,812 - -
Corporate Bond 5,247,300 - 5,247,300 -
Eurobond 41,690,600 41,690,600 -
Government Bonds 9,908,670 9,908,670 -
Held to Maturity Financial Assets
Eurobond 758,034,603 - 758,034,603 -
Government Bonds 369,110,975 236,797,447 132,313,528 -
Corporate Bond 57,658,678 - 57,658,678 -
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders
Government Bonds 2,011,395 2,011,395 - -
Total 3,347,337,441 664,150,197 2,681,965,749 1,221,495

Corporate Governance

4.2

4.2.2

5.1

- ™
w:\FinancicI Information and Risk Mcnc:gement/iw

INSURANCE and FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial Risk (Continued)
Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

The Company determines the estimated fair value of its financial instruments by using the current
market information and appropriate valuation methods. Additionally, ability to estimate the market
values through assessing the market information requires interpretation and judgment. As a result, the
estimations presented herein cannot be an indicator of the amounts obtained by the Company in a
current market transaction.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments
for which fair value estimates are practicable.

Financial assets
It is anticipated that fair value of the financial assets including cash and cash equivalents and other
financial assets carried at cost will approximate to their book value based on their short-term

nature and having insignificant potential losses.

Market value is taken as a basis in the measurement of fair value of government bonds and equity
shares.

Financial liabilities

It is anticipated that fair value of monetary liabilities will converge to their carrying value based
on their short-term natiire

SEGMENT INFIRMATION
Operating segments

Information related to the operational reporting made by the Company to the chief operating
decision-maker in the accordance with the “TFRS 8 - Operating Segments’ is disclosed in this
part.

Numerical limits in “TFRS 8 - Operating Segments’ is also considered as well as management
reporting in the determination of operating segments. Premium production and net technical
income of different operating segments are grouped separately.

The Company operates in Turkey. Since the results of operating activities abroad have very low
effect on financial statements, the information about geographical segmentation has not been
given..
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5.  SEGMENT INFIRMATION (Continued)

5.1 Operating segments (Continued)

Segment results for the period ended at December 31, 2023:

Motor Crafts
Liability
Motor Own (Compulsory
Fire Transportation D. ) Traffic) Other Accident Engineering Agriculture Health Life Undistributed Total
TECHNICAL INCOME 1,439,751,338 186,922,390 4,804,902,695 2,631,604,885 723,827,670 240,303,016 173,040,237 511,816,337 153,360 - 10,712,321,928
1- Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 617,406,117 114,169,861 3,988,887,586 2,114,068,147 382,986,718 84,353,233 171,445,206 203,395,649 - - 7,676,712,517
1.1- Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 1,052,727,782 132,996,969 4,681,342,295 2,840,097,716 589,663,381 150,110,915 174,060,161 281,123,283 - - 9,902,122,502
1.2- Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve (Net of Reinsurers
Shares and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) (435,321,665) (20,037,526) (692,454,709) (357,230,218)  (206,677,474)  (65,757,682) (2,614,955)  (77,727,634) - - (1,857,821,863)
1.3- Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve (Net of Reinsurer
Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) - 1,210,418 - (368,799,351) 811 - - - - - (367,588,122)
2- Investment Income transferred from Non-Technical Part 820,883,410 71,867,795 747,813,150 518,537,061 340,432,601 155,727,777 1,595,031 249,388,578 153,360 - 2,906,398,763
3- Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurance Share) - - 31,486,368 - - - - 59,032,110 - - 90,518,478
4- Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 1,461,811 884,734 36,715,591 (1,000,323) 408,351 222,006 - - - - 38,692,170
TECHNICAL OUTCOME (682,238,175) (80,453,006) (3,596,765,725)  (4,140,864,363)  (329,690,829)  (51,288,691) (7,098,263) (133,149,172) (229,659) - (9,021,777,883)
1- Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share) (390,743,977) (60,021,042) (2,412,977,331)  (3,563,603,757)  (136,178,172)  (49,551,964) (3,794,159) (4,734,735)  (229,479) - (6,621,834,616)
1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share) (415,956,997) (26,832,340) (2,095,028,047)  (3,070,872,892)  (133,234,132)  (39,515,089) (3,391,298) (5,495,388) (230,953) - (5,790,557,136)
1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Reserve Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward (+/-) 25,213,020 (33,188,702) (317,949,284) (492,730,865) (2,944,040)  (10,036,875) (402,861) 760,653 1,474 - (831,277,480)
2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer) (+/-) - (2,348) - - (721) - - - - - (3,069)
3- Changes in Other Technical Reserves (Net of Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) and Other Technical
Expenses 54,824,849 10,903,076 7,056,637 - (165,571) (3,017,529) - - - - 69,601,462
4- Operating Expenses (225,459,115) (24,415,979) (982,584,781) (455,813,879)  (153,483,472) 15,626,255 (3,085,421) (103,563,610) (180) - (1,932,780,182)
4.1- Production Commissions (-) (567,181,703) (86,285,040) (832,805,889) (376,683,032)  (260,873,654) (100,193,719) (2,034,825) (330,721,756) - - (2,556,779,618)
4.2- Reinsurance Commissions (+) 562,454,486 80,999,187 105,980,516 196,840,647 192,742,030 153,985,987 64,549 273,302,911 - - 1,566,370,313
4.3- General Administrative Expenses (220,731,898) (19,130,126) (255,759,408) (275,971,494) (85,351,848)  (38,166,013) (1,115,145)  (46,144,765) (180) - (942,370,877)
4.4- Other Operating Expenses - - - - - - - - - - -
5- Changes in Mathematical Reserves (+/-)
(Net of Reinsurer) - - - (698,081) - - - - - (698,081)
6- Other Technical Expenses (Net of Reinsurer Share) (120,859,932) (6,916,713) (208,260,250) (121,446,727) (39,164,812)  (14,345,453) (218,683)  (24,850,827) - - (536,063,397)
TECHNICAL PROFIT/(LOSS) 757,513,163 106,469,384 1,208,136,970  (1,509,259,478) 394,136,841 189,014,325 165,941,974 378,667,165  (76,299) - 1,690,544,045
Financial income - - - - - - - - - 5,414,557,421 5,414,557,421
Depreciation expense - - - - - - - - - (93,720,568) (93,720,568)
Provisions account, net - - - - - - - - - (58,241,663) (58,241,663)
Tax expenses - - - - - - - - - (73,515,494) (73,515,494)
Financial expenses - - - - - - - - - (5,450,617,447) (5,450,617,447)
Other - - - - - - - - - (243,835,112) (243,835,112)

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 757,513,163 106,469,384  1,208,136,970  (1,509,259,478) 394,136,841 189,014,325 165,941,974 378,667,165  (76,299) (505,372,863) 1,185,171,182
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5.1 Operating Segments (Continued)

Corporate Governance

Segment results for the period ended at December 31, 2022:
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Motor Crafts
Liability
Motor Own (Compulsory
Fire Transportation Damage) Traffic) Other Accident  Engineering Agriculture Health Life Undistributed Total
TECHNICAL INCOME 572,565,359 91,342,932 2,571,895,924 2,414,438,955 441,379,427 103,688,105 94,728,335 275,692,968 119,761 - 6,565,851,766
1- Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 287,755,808 57,012,341 2,011,006,830 2,093,163,540 224,852,550 39,920,060 65,550,218 132,599,560 - - 4,911,860,907
1.1- Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 410,648,436 59,786,304 3,360,726,583 2,427,949,018 296,430,562 61,786,885 89,391,876 150,669,599 - - 6,857,389,263
1.2- Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve (Net of Reinsurers
Shares and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) (122,892,628) (2,773,963) (1,349,719,753) (274,180,084) (72,290,410) (21,866,825) (23,841,658)  (18,070,039) - - (1,885,635,360)
1.3- Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve (Net of Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) - - - (60,605,394) 712,398 - - - - - (59,892,996)
2- Investment Income transferred from Non-Technical Part 283,184,546 33,588,494 511,884,331 308,362,734 216,197,542 63,692,917 27,933,084 120,519,131 119,761 - 1,565,482,540
3- Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurance Share) 5,903 - 14,083,932 - - - 1,245,033 22,574,277 - - 37,909,145
4- Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 1,619,102 742,097 34,920,831 12,912,681 329,335 75,128 - - - - 50,599,174
TECHNICAL OUTCOME (394,245,228) (32,450,049) (2,248,855,228) (3,615,545,241)  (172,251,253) (25,642,384) (61,045,291)  (87,595,782) (139,830) - (6,637,770,286)
1- Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share) (207,880,602) (17,775,222) (1,636,113,821) (3,221,420,585) (97,378,070)  (34,089,301) (37,545,675) (9,151,693) (157,462) - (5,261,512,431)
1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share) (170,937,181) (11,112,890) (1,531,810,156) (2,600,767,386) (56,289,685) (26,884,137) (34,785,198) (8,265,377) (160,066) - (4,441,012,076)
1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Reserve Reinsurer Share and
Reserves Carried Forward (+/-) (36,943,421) (6,662,332) (104,303,665) (620,653,199) (41,088,385)  (7,205,164) (2,760,477) (886,316) 2,604 - (820,500,355)
2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer) (+/-) - (2,643) - - (2,862) 849 - - - - (4,656)
3- Changes in Other Technical Reserves (Net of Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) and Other Technical
Expenses (29,146,763) - (5,118,789) - (1,031,019)  (1,893,587) - - - - (37,190,158)
4- Operating Expenses (113,207,028) (12,635,012) (470,061,778) (334,681,406) (49,777,312) 14,645,001  (22,074,882)  (68,120,153) - (1,055,912,570)
4.1- Production Commissions (-) (255,070,764) (39,201,909) (357,640,326) (257,361,165)  (147,528,346) (48,119,144) (15,376,463) (154,862,309) - - (1,275,160,426)
4.2- Reinsurance Commissions (+) 228,239,609 33,354,460 1,021,896 58,099,908 134,190,982 77,249,797 (4,463,489) 105,449,341 - - 633,142,504
4.3- General Administrative Expenses (86,375,873) (6,787,563) (113,443,348) (135,420,149) (36,439,948)  (14,485,652) (2,234,930)  (18,707,185) - - (413,894,648)
4.4- Other Operating Expenses - - - - - - - - - - -
5- Changes in Mathematical Reserves (+/-)
(Net of Reinsurer) - - - - - - - - 17,632 - 17,632
6- Other Technical Expenses (Net of Reinsurer Share) (44,010,835) (2,037,172) (137,560,840) (59,443,250) (24,064,594)  (4,305,346) (1,424,734)  (10,323,936) - - (283,170,707)
TECHNICAL PROFIT/(LOSS) 178,320,131 58,892,883 323,040,696  (1,201,106,286) 269,128,174 78,045,721 33,683,044 188,097,186 (20,069) - (71,918,520)
Financial income - - - - - - - - - 2,440,259,423 2,440,259,423
Depreciation expense - - - - - - - - - (60,879,526) (60,879,526)
Provisions account, net - - - - - - - - - (17,641,324) (17,641,324)
Tax expenses - - - - - - - - - 183,792,145 183,792,145
Financial expenses - - - - - - - - - (2,471,941,268) (2,471,941,268)
Other - - - - - - - - - (122,819,546) (122,819,546)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 178,320,131 58,892,883 323,040,696 (1,201,106,286) 269,128,174 78,045,721 33,683,044 188,097,186 (20,069) (49,230,096) (121,148,616)
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6. TANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, 2023

Other
Tangible
Furnitures and Assets Advances
Owner Fixtures and (Including for
Occupied Leased Tangible Leasehold  Right of Use  Intangible
Cost Value Properties Vehicles Assets _Improvements Assets Assets Total
January 1 5329 1,878,421 42,385,919 24,233,834 68,313,445 - 136,816,948
Additions - - 26,735,012 31,691,147 29,249,607 - 87,675,766
Disposals - - (3.572.534)  (1.039.925) - - (4.612.459)
31 5329 1,878,421 65,548,397 54,885,056 97,563,052 - 219,880,255
Accumulated
Depre: n
January 1 (4,196)  (737,949)  (27.011,407)  (16,839,095) (38,092,581) - (82,685,228)
Additions (108)  (730,961) (9,118,800)  (5,144,912) (12,419,590) (27,414371)
Disposals - - 3,221,135 1,010,162 - - 4231297
December 31 (4,304) (1,468,910) (32,909,072)  (20,973,845) (50,512,171) - (105,868,302)
Net Book Value as
of December 31 1,025 409,511 32,639,325 33,911,211 47,050,881 - 114,011,953

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has no investment property. (December 31, 2022: None).

December 31, 2022
Other Tangible
Furnitures and ssets
Owner Fixtures and (Including Advances for
Occupied Leased Tangible Leasehold Right of Use Intangible
Cost Value Properties Vehicles Assets _Improvements) Assets Assets Total
January 1 1,598,569 1,878,421 31,263.486 23,807.488 43,374,169 - 101,922,133
Additions - - 12,456,647 615,542 25,304,020 - 38,376,209
Disposals (1,593.240) - (1,334214) (189,196) (364.744) - (3.481,394)
31 5,329 1,878,421 42,385,919 24,233,834 68,313,445 - 136,816,948
Accumulated
Depreciation
January 1 (665,162)  (4,022)  (22,362,090)  (12,935,198)  (26,030,344) - (61,996,816)
Additions (107)  (733,927) (5.717.487) (4,074,675)  (12,154,057) - (22,680,253)
Disposals 661,073 - 1,068,170 170,778 91,820 - 1,991,841
December 31 (4,196) (737.949)  (27.011,407)  (16,839,095)  (38,092,581) - (82,685,228)
Net Book Value as
of December 31 1,133 1,140,472 15,374,512 7,394,739 30,220,864 - 54,131,720

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has no investment property. (December 31, 2022: None).

In the period of January 1 - December 31, 2023, the Company has no obtained rental income from

investment properties (January 1 - December 31, 2022: None).

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, 2023

Advances for

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

Intangible Assets (*) Rights Total
Cost Value
January 1 38,653,013 303,780,421 342,433,434
Additions 118,004,090 72,002,403 190,006,493
Disposals - - -
Transfer (29,049,310) 29,049,310 -
December 31 127,607,793 404,832,134 532,439,927
Accumulated Amortization
January 1 - (179,726,504) (179,726,504)
Charge for the Period - (55,392,561) (55,392,561)
Disposals - - -
December 31 - (235,119,065) (235,119,065)
Net book Value as of
December 31 127,607,793 169,713,069 297,320,862

*) Intangible assets advances include the administrative advances for the projects implemented. Since the related
assets do not create economic benefits no amortization is calculated over intangible assets.

December 31, 2022

Advances for

Intangible Assets (*) Rights Total
Cost Value
January 1 30,311,685 223,788,042 254,099,727
Additions 48,641,537 39,692,170 88,333,707
Disposals - - -
Transfer (40,300,209) 40,300,209 -
December 31 38,653,013 303,780,421 342,433,434
Accumulated Amortization
January - (141,527,231) (141,527,231)
Charge for the Period - (38,199,273) (38,199,273)
Disposals - - -
December 31 - (179,726,504) (179,726,504)
Net book Value as of
December 31 38,653,013 124,053,917 162,706,930

*) Intangible assets advances include the administrative advances for the projects implemented. Since the related
assets do not create economic benefits no amortization is calculated over intangible assets.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has not recognized any impairment loss for its intangible
fixed assets in the current period (December 31, 2022: None).

There is no goodwill amount in the financial statements of the Company.

9. INVESTMENT in AFFILIATES

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has no investments in subsidiaries (December 31, 2022:

None).
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10. REINSURANCE ASSETS

Reinsurance assets are disclosed in Note 17.16.
11. FINANCIAL ASSETS

11.1 Subcategories of Financial Assets

Financial Assets and Financial Investments with Risks
on Policy Holders
D ber 31,2023 D ber 31, 2022

Financial Assets Available for Sale 1,707,247,206 1,951,145,408
Financial Assets to be Held Until Maturity 819,882,919 1,184,804,256
Financial Assets Held for Trading 3,719,402,547 209,376,382
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders 2,205,350 2,011,395
Total 6,248,738,022 3,347,337,441

Financial Assets Available for Sale

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Cost Value Fair Value Book Value Cost Value Fair Value __ Book Value
Eurobond 1,475,950,701 1,634,218,648  1,634,218,648  1,127,703,380  1,204,984,035  1,204,984,035
Private Sector bonds 13,379,379 14,195,113 14,195,113 376,171,799 377,696,817 377,696,817
Government Bonds 81,145.316 53,416,033 53,416,033 342,101,141 344,408,811 344,408,811
Equity Shares

(Listed on the stock

exchange) 5,659,676 3,684,686 3,684,686 18,843,313 22,834,250 22,834,250
Equity Shares (Not
listed on the stock
exchange) Net 1,732,726 - 1,732,726 1,221,495 - 1,221,495
Eurobond 1,577.867,798 _ 1,705,514,480 _ 1,707,247.206__ 1.866,041,128  1,949.923,913  1,951,145,408

Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets
December 31 2023

December 31 2022

Cost Value __ Fair Value _ Book Value __ CostValue __Fair Value __ Book Value
Eurobond 477,512,845 483846200 481,866,122 724234844 730943551 758,034,603
Government Bonds 281,766,687 302,430,755  337.400.843 291846206 426917320 369,110,975
Private Sector Bonds 615,954 - 615954 56375954 56.180.263  57.658.678
Total 759,805,486 786,276,955 __ 819.882.919 _1,072,457,004 _1,214,041,134__1,184,804,256

Financial Assets Held for Trading

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cost Value Fair Value Book Value Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
Investment Funds 3,007.489,655  3,719,402,547  3,719.402,547 143,966,664 152,529,812 152,529,812
Eurobond - - - 34,267,876 41,690,600 41,690,600
Investment Funds - - - 5,000,000 5.247.300 5.247.300
Government Bonds - - - 10,078,349 9,908,670 9,908,670
Derivatives and
Optional Guarantee - - - - - -
Total 3,007,489,655  3,719,402,547 _ 3,719,402,547 193,312,889 209,376,382 209,376,382

Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders
31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Cost Value Fair Value Book Value

Cost Value Fair Value  Book Value

Government
Bonds 1,997,788 2,205,350 2,205,350

1,943,330 2,011,395 2,011,395

Corporate Governance
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FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The breakdown of the shares classified as available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

December 31 2023

Participation
Equity Shares Rate% _Cost Value TRY _ Fair Value TRY Book Value TRY
Listed on Borsa Istanbul - 5,659,676 3,684,686 3,684,686
Foreign Stock Exchange Listed 3,7037 1,732,726 - 1,732,726
Tarsim Agricultural Insurance
Inc.. 1,732,726 - 1,732,726
Unlisted 7,392,402 3,684,686 5,417,412
December 31 2022

Participation
Equity Shares Rate% Cost Value TRY _ Fair Value TRY Book Value TRY
Listed on Borsa Istanbul 11,128,881 19,378,623 19,378,623
Foreign Stock Exchange Listed 7,714,432 3,455,627 3,455,627
Tarsim Agricultural Insurance
Inc.. . 4.17 1,221,495 - 1,221,495
None of BIST 1,221,495 - 1,221,495
Total 20,064,808 22,834,250 24,055,745

As of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2023, the blockage on financial assets in favor of
Insurance and Private Pensions Regulation and Supervision Agency (“SEDDK”) has been
disclosed in Note 17.1.

Securities other than equity shares issued in the current period:

None (December 31, 2022: None).

Securities issued representing the amortized borrowing in the current period:
None (December 31, 2022: None).

Fair value of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at cost in the balance
sheet and cost of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at fair value in
the balance sheet

None (December 31, 2022: None).

Marketable securities issued by the shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries of the Company
classified under marketable securities and associates and their issuers:

None (December 31, 2022 None).

Increase (Decrease) in value of financial assets in the last three years

Value increases and decreases (net-off deferred tax) reflect the difference between the book value
and cost value of the financial assets at period end.

Type of Financial Asset

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31,
2021

Financial Assets Available for Sale (74,056,429) (2,508,795) (39,142,240)
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11. FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

11.7 Financial Instruments

i) Information that enables the financial statement users to evaluate the financial position and
performance of the Company is disclosed in Note 4.1.

ii)  Information on the book value of the financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iif)  Comparison of the fair value and book value of financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iii)  Financial assets overdue or impaired are presented in Note 11.1.

11.8 Financial Instruments
Information related to hedge accounting has been disclosed in Note 34.5
11.9 Effects of Exchange Rate Differences

Exchange rate differences arising from the payments of monetary items or different conversion
rates used in the current period or at initial recognition are recognized in profit or loss.

12. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
12.1 Details of the Company’s receivables

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Receivables from insurance operations

Receivables from agencies 4,773,031,239 2,277,600,251
Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables More than
Three Months 1,478,733,244 328,061,372
Receivables from reinsurance companies 170,652,465 131,960,295
Receivables for salvage and claim recovery -

net (Note 2.1.1) 401,807,474 141,890,343
Other receivables 396.804 276,737
Receivables from insurance operations 6,824,621,226 2,879,788,998
Cash deposited for insurance and reinsurance
companies - 30,954
Receivables from insurance and reinsurance
companies - 30,954
Claim recovery receivables under legal follow-up 518,334,778 337,289,309
Doubtful receivables from main operations 87,639,321 57,427,499
Total provision t for doubtful receivables 605,974,099 394,716,808
Receivables from main operations 7,430,595,325 3,274,536,760
Provision for due from insurance operations (-) (*) (44,623,073) (45,967,323)
Provision for doubtful receivables from main
operations (-) (¥*) (60,376,259) (24,709,333)
Provision for net claim recovery receivables under legal
follow-up (-) (**) (518,334,778) (337,289,309)
Total provision for doubtful receivables (623,334,110) (407,965,965)
Receivables from main operations — net 0,807,261,215 2,866,570,795

*) In balance sheet disclosed under provision for ivables from i i
(**)  In balance sheet disclosed under provision for i s from main op
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12. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)
The movement table of provision for doubtful receivables under legal follow-up is presented
below:
December 31,2023 December 31, 2022
0-90 days 2,806,903,995 68,643,658
90+ 3,822,769,725 18,565,965
Not due receivables 194,947,506 2,792,610,329
Total 6,824,621,226 2,879,819,952
The details of guarantees for the Company’s receivables are presented below:
D ber 31, 2022 December 31, 2022
Doubtful Doubtful
Type of Guarantees Receivables Receivables Receivables Receivables
Real Estate Pledges 61,758,193 462,100 10,336,755 416,100
Letters of Guarantee 118,978,002 - 176,831,449 -
Cash Guarantees 48,974,023 - 28,257,559 -
Government Bonds and
Equity 43,832,150 22,500 6.107.261 7.500
Total 273,542,368 484,600 221,533,024 423,600
The Company books provision for 100% of doubtful receivables disclosing guarantees. The
movement table of provision for doubtful receivables under legal follow-up is presented below:
Doubtful trade receivable transactions
2023 2022
Opening Balance, 1 January (361,998,642) (229,472,152)
Charge for the period (216,712,395) (184,718,974)
Collections - 52,192,484
Closing Balance, 31 December (578,711,037) (361,998,642)
12.2 Receivable - payable relationship with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries of the
Company
As of December 31, 2023, the Company has liabilities amounting to TRY 1,143 to shareholders
(December 31, 202: TRY 1,143). As of 31 December 2023, the Company has a receivable of
TRY125,510,565 from its subsidiary.
12.3 Total pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amount

Total amount of pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amounts to
TRY273,542,368 as of December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022:TRY221,533,024)
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12. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

12.4 Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate

guarantees are presented below:

December 31 2023

Amount in
Foreign
Banks (Foreign Currency) Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY
USD 535,456 29,4382 15,762,861
EUR 22,920,612 32,5739 746,613,723
GBP 326 37,4417 2,670,567
CHF 6,651 34,9666 232,563
Other 13,285
Total 765,292,999
Stocks and Bonds
UsSD 62,616,261 29,4382 1,843,310,007
EUR - 32,5739 -
Total 1,843,310,007
Amount in
Foreign
Receivables from Insurance Operations Currency _ Exchange Rate Amount TRY
UsSD 117,474,160 29,4382 3,458,227,817
EUR 73,006,223 32,5739 2,378,097,407
Other 20,928,749
Total 5,857,253,973
Amount in
Foreign
Outstanding Claims Reserve Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY

usb (10,213,303) 29,4913 (301,203,583)
EUR (3,882,622) 32,6326 (126,700,051)
Other (4,040,350
Total (431,943,984)
Amount in
Foreign
Payables from Insurance Operations Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY
usb (96,857,461) 29,4913 (2,856,452,440)
EUR (76,275,199) 32,6326 (2,489,058,059)
Other (8,013,506)
Total (5,353,524,005)
Amount in
Foreign
Payables to liers Currency  Exch Rate Amount TRY
USD (1,751,409) 29,4913 (51,651,319)
EUR (213,436) 32,6326 (6,964,972)
Other
Total (58,616,291)

Net Foreign Currency Position

2,621,772,699

Corporate Governance
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RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate

guarantees are presented below:

December 31 2022

Amount in
Foreign
Banks (Foreign Currency) Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY
USD 10,617,609 18,6983 198,531,238
EUR 1,691,676 19,9349 33,723,392
GBP 48,710 22,4892 1,095,449
CHF 39,683 20,2019 801,672
Other 9,050
Total 234,160,801
Stocks and Bonds
UsSD 65,304,412 18,6983  1,221,081,487
EUR 173,346 19,9349 3,455,635
Total 1,224,537,122
Amount in
Foreign

Receivables from Insurance Operations

Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY

USD 71,934,591 18,6983  1,345,054,563
EUR 30,378,506 19,9349 605,592,479
Other 1,657,236
Total 1,952,304,278
Amount in
Foreign
Outstanding Claims Reserve Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY
USD (7,760,330) 18,7320  (145,366,502)
EUR (4,302,194) 19,9708 (85,918,256)
Other 35,639)
Total (231,420,397)
Amount in
Foreign
Payables from Insurance Operations Currency _ Exchange Rate Amount TRY
UsD (86,101,316) 18,7320 (1,612,849,851)
EUR (19,613,910) 19,9708  (391,705,474)
Other (2,275,035)
Total (2,006,830,360)
Amount in
Foreign

Payables to Suppliers

Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY

uUsD (1,284,232) 18,7320 (24,056,234)
EUR (507,694) 19,9708 (10,139,055)
Other (20.493)
Total (34,215,782)
Net Foreign Currency Position 1,138,535,662
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13. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the period between January 1 - December 31, 2023, total income resulting from short-
term swap contracts’ market valuation has been accounted under ‘Income from derivatives’ in the
income statement in amounting to TRYS8,864,491 (January 1 - December 31, 2022:
TRY64,994,927).

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

Banks 2,892,019,906 4,933,931,789

Time Deposit 2,697,662,978 4,865,062,944

Demand Deposit 194,356,928 68,868,845
Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables with

Maturities less than three months 2,322,980,983 215,415,991

Total 5,215,000,889 5,149,347,780

Interest Accrual on Cash and Cash Equivalents(-) (382,121,797) (29,221,893)

Cash Flow Based Grand Total 4,832,879,092 5,120,125,887

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the interest rates of the Company's time
deposits are as follows:

December 31,2023 December 31, 2022

Annual Interest Annual Interest

Rate (%) Rate (%)

TRY 32.00-52.23 10.40 - 45.75
USD 0.05-0.05 0.05-0,1
EUR 0.01-3.93 0.01

As of December 31, 2023, the maturities of TL deposits vary between January 2, 2024 and April
11, 2025; Maturities of foreign currency deposits are 2 January 2024 and
it is January 4, 2024. (31 December 2022: 2 January — 9 May 2023)

As of December 31, 2023, there are no repo transactions accounted for in the Company's Other
Financial Liabilities account. (31 December 2022: TRY78,282,082)

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has accounted TRY282,082 in the valuation of
repurchase agreements. (December 31, 2022: TRY 723,666 Repurchase Expenses) (Note 26).

15.
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SHAE CAPITAL

Transactions between the Company and its shareholders, showing each distribution made
to the shareholders separately

The Company’s shareholders and its shareholders’ equity structure as of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022 are presented in Note 2.14.

The details of the transactions between the Company and its shareholders and the related balances
as of the end of the period are presented in ‘Related Parties’ note.

According to the provisions of the tax legislation, 50% of the profits arising from the sales of real
estates in the assets of the companies are exempted from the corporation tax, provided that they
are kept in a special fund account for at least five full years. The exempted proficient be
transferred to another account nor be withdrawn unless it is in any other account, except for the
addition to the capital within five years. The Sales Profit to Be Added to The Capital account
includes the amounts transferred from the real estate sales to the equity.

Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the
beginning and end of the period showing each change separately

Legal Reserve

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves; consists of first and second legal
reserves. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of the statutory profits at the rate of 5% per
annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company's share capital. The second legal
reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% of all distributions in excess of 5% of the Company's
share capital. The first and second legal reserves cannot be distributed unless they exceed 50% of
the total capital; however, they can be used to compensate for losses in case of depletion of reserve
reserves. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has legal reserves amounting to
TRY111,936,210 (December 31, 2022: TRY111,936,210).

Special Funds (reserves) December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Actuarial gain/(loss) 10,248,582 23,070,953
Total 10,248,582 23,070,953

Equity Share Premiums

As a result of the increase in its current capital from TRY 612,000,000 to a nominal value of
TRY1,000,000,000 with the Board of Directors Decision no. 3 dated 24 June 2022, the Company
has obtained a Share Premium of TRY3,463,617. (December 31, 2022: 3,463,617.)

Gains from sale of fixed asset

None. (31 December 2022: None).
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

15.3 Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the 15.4 Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the

beginning and end of the period showing each change separately (Continued)
Extraordinary Reserves

The Company’s issued capital share is composed 0f 200,091,508 shares having a nominal amount
of TRY 0.01 each. These shares are presented by Class 10 shares (December 31, 2022:
200,091,508 shares with a nominal amount of TRY 0.01 each).

With the temporary article 32 added to the Tax Procedure Law with the Law No. 7338 and the
paragraph (C) added to the 298th article of the Law, the revaluation opportunity for the
immovables and depreciable economic assets (ATIK) in the assets of has been made permanent
for the companies.

The company is subject to revaluation in accordance with the Temporary Article 32 added to the
Tax Procedure Law with the Law No. 7338 pursuant to the General Communiqué on the Tax
Procedure Law with line number 547 published and the paragraph (C) added to the 298th article
of the Law on 14 January 2023. The company follows the fund related to the revaluation of the
immovables in its assets in the Extraordinary Reserves account.

15.3 For each class of capital divided into shares

15.3.1 Statement regarding the number of shares constituting the registered capital
The issued capital of the Company is divided into 161,200,000,000 shares, each with a value of
1 Kr, and these shares are represented by 10th issue shares (31 December 2022: 161,200,000,000

shares with a value of 1 Kr).

15.3.2 The explanation about the number of issued and fully paid shares and issued but not fully
paid shares

None (31 December 2022: None).
15.3.3 Nominal value of an equity share or equity shares without having nominal value

Nominal value of equity shares is TRY0.01 per share (December 31, 2022: TRY0.01 per share).

beginning and end of the period showing each change separately (Continued)

15.3.4 Reconciliation of the number of the equity shares at the beginning and ending of the period

Number of Shares

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Beginning of the Period, 1 January 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Issued in the Current Period (*) - 130,600,000,000
End of the Period, 31 December 161,200,000,000 161,200,000,000
*) According the decision of the Capital Markets Board dated March 17, 2022 and numbered 13/426, of the issued capital of

the Company with a nominal value of TRY 306,000,000 within the registered capital ceiling of TRY 750,000,000, TRY
90,989,327 will be from the Sales Profits to be Added to the Capital account and TRY 215,010,673 will be from the
Extraordinary Reserves account. The company has increased its current capital amounting to TRY 612,000,000, with a total
nominal value of TRY 306,000,000, fully covered by internal resources, and increased by 100% bonus to
TRY 612,000,000, dated 5 July 2022, and no. decided to increase the amount to TRY 1,612,000,000. On 27 October 2022,
the Capital Markets Board approved the Company's capital increase application and the capital increase transactions were
registered by the Istanbul Trade Registry on 23 December 2022.

15.3.5 Rights, privileges and limitations on dividend payments and repayment of share

In accordance with Article 61 of the Company’s Articles of Association, corporate tax is deducted
from the net profit which is determined and calculated based on the issued balance sheet. 5% of
statutory reserve is allocated over the remaining amount and subsequent to this allocation, at
minimum, 1. dividend amount that is determined by the CMB is also allocated over the final
remaining amount.

The Company’s capital does not include any preferred shares.

Based on the guidelines and principals issued by the Capital Markets Board (the Board) dated
January 27, 2010 for the distribution of dividends from the profit generated from operating
activities in 2010, concerning public entities, the shares of which are quoted in public equity
markets, it has been agreed upon not to set a mandatory minimum dividend payment quota.
Furthermore, it has been agreed upon to let public entities perform dividend distributions as stated
within the ‘Communique Concerning Principal Matters on Dividend Advances

Distributed by Public Entities Under the Regulation of the Capital Markets Law’
(Serial: IV, No: 27), as stated within the principal agreement of the companies and as stated within
the policies on dividend distribution that have been shared with the public.

15.3.6 Equity shares held by the Company, its affiliates, or its subsidiaries

None (December 31, 2022: None).
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15. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
15.3 Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the
beginning and end of the period showing each change separately (Continued)
15.3.7 Equity shares held for future sale for forward transactions and contracts
None (December 31, 2022: None).

15.4  Share based payments

None (December 31, 2022: None).
15.5 Subsequent events
Disclosed in Note 46.

16. OTHER PROVISIONS and CAPITAL COMPONENT OF DISCRETIONARY
PARTICIPATION

16.1 Each income and expense item and their total amounts accrued under shareholders ‘equity
in the current period in accordance with other standards and interpretations

December 31,
2023 December 31, 2022

Auvailable for sale financial assets valuation

difference 74,056,429 2,508,795
Deferred tax effect (22,216,929) (627,199)
Deferred tax effect of VUK inflation differences 79,237,910 -
Total 131,077,410 1,881,596

The actuarial loss amounting to TRY8,401,928 (Deferred tax effect: TRY4,392,250), which is
calculated in the provision for severance pay in line with the amendments made to the "IAS 19-
Benefits Provided to Employees" standard effective as of January 1, 2013, is accounted under
special funds under equity (December 31, 2022 TRY30,761,271, Deferred tax effect:
TRY7,690,318).

16.2 Net exchange differences classified separately as an equity item and reconciliation of
exchange differences at the beginning and end of the period

None (December 31, 2022: None).
16.3 Hedging for forecasted transactions and net investment hedging
None (December 31, 2022: None).
16.4 Hedging against financial risks

Disclosed in note 34.5.

16.

16.4

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

OTHER PROVISIONS and CAPITAL COMPONENT OF DISCRETIONARY
PARTICIPATION (Continued)

Gains and losses from available for sale financial assets recognized directly in equity for in
the current period and amounts recognized in the current profit or loss taken from
shareholders’ equity

2023 Increase/(Decrease 2022 Increase/(Decrease

Beginning of the Period, 1 January 1,881,596 (30,139,525)
Increase/decrease in value recognized
under the shareholders’ equity in the
current period 129,195,814 32,021,121

End of the Period, 31 December 131,077,410 1,881,596

Income and loss related to affiliates recognized directly in equity in the current period
None (December 31, 2022: None).

Revaluation increases in tangible fixed assets

None (December 31, 2022: None).

Current and deferred tax in relation to debit and credit items directly charged in equity
None (December 31, 2022: None).

Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assests

Guarantees to be provided for life and non-life insurance branches and guarantees provided
for life and non-life insurances based on

The Company’s guarantees to be provided for life and non-life insurance branches and guarantees
provided for life and non-life insurances based on assets are below:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Amount to be Current Blockage Amount to be Current Blockage
Branch Provided -TRY -TRY Provided -TRY -TRY
Life 2,165,648 2,205,350 1,470,766 2,211,500
Government Bonds 2,205,350 2,211,500
Non-Life (*) 1,065,256,537 1,822,621,919 671,930,181 832,025,834
Government Bonds 340,467,696
Eurobond 1,484,259,573 832,025,834
Total 1,067,422,185 1,824,727,269 673,400,948 834,237,334

*) The collateral amounts required to be established as of December 31, 2023 were calculated using the Capital Adequacy Table

as of December 31, 2023.
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17 INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSESTS (Continued)

17.2 Number of life insurance policies, additions, disposals in the current period, and current life
insurances and their mathematical reserves

2023 2022

Mathematical Mathematical

Reserves Reserves

Unit TRY Unit TRY

Beginning of the Period, 1 January 155 1,325,877 157 1,343,509
Participations in the Current Period - -

Leavings in the Current Period - 698,081 ?2) (17,632)

End of Period, 31 December 155 2,023,958 155 1,325,877

Mathematical reserves amounting to TRY?2,023,958 (December 31, 2022; TRY 1,325,877) and
Reserves for the policies, investment risk of which belongs to life insurance policy holders
amounting TRY202,396(December 31, 2022: TRY132,588) and cancelled policy numbers
together with their mathematical reserves are included in the table above.

Financial assets classified as Financial Assets Available For Sale under Financial Investments
at Policyholder’s Risk are valued with current value as explained in note 11; as of
December 31, 2023, there is no difference in the value accounted in Life Mathematical Reserve
account discounted with current value (December 31, 2022: None).

17.3 Insurance guarantees given ton on life insurances based on insurance branches

17.4

Branch December 31, 2023

Motor Crafts Liability

Health

Fire and Natural Disaster

General Losses
Transportation
General Liability
Financial Losses
Motor Crafts
Air-Crafts Liability
Accident

Legal Protection

83,452,316,316,024
2,168,580,790,781
5,746,715,688,745
1,197,490,771,834
1,632,088,040,277
485,697,448,513
676,738,718.010
912,103,841,675
483,716,520,050
74,236,508,834
10,174,524,143

December 31, 2022

66,361,480,983,801
2,094,305,236,668
3,562,430,488,643
772,976,232,121
956,532,696,798
266,278,685,542
388,037,488,779
511,336,853.734
316,646,805,750
54,323,879,115
9,581,314,764

Air Crafts 39,570,614,758 15,344,270, 144
Suretyship 9,902,544,987 3,508,319,185
Credit 1,981,124,051 2,566,411,902

Water Crafts

98,405,718,756

Total

96,989,719,171,438

75,315,349,666,946

Pension investment funds established by the Company and their unit prices

None (December 31, 2022: None).

- . . . "
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17. INSURANCE LiABIiLiTIES AND REINSURANCE ASSESTS (Continued)
17.5 Number and amount of participation certification in portfolio and circulation
None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.6 Number of portfolio amounts of additions, disposals, reversals, and current individual and
group pension participants

None (December 31, 2022: None).
17.7 Valuation methods used in profit share calculation for life insurances with profit shares
None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.8 Number of the additions and their group or individual gross and net share participations in
the current period

None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.9 Number of additions from the other companies and their group or individual gross and net
share participations in the current period

None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.10 Number of transfers from the Company’s life portfolio to individual pension portfolio and
their group or individual gross and net share participations

None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.11 Number of transfers from the Company’s individual pension portfolio to other company or
not and together their personal and corporate allocation and gross and net share
participations

None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.12 Number of additions of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net
mathematical reserves

None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.13 Number of disposals of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net
mathematical reserves

All of disposals of life insurances in current period are individual and units and amounts are
represented in Note 17.2.
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17. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSESTS (Continued)

17.14 Profit share distribution rate of life insurances in the current period

In the current period, profit share distribution rate of life insurances are calculated as below:

31 December 2023
Profit Share Distribution (%)

31 December 2022
Profit Share Distribution (%)

TRY (Life Insurance) 9.00 9.00

17.15 Explanation of information that describes amounts arose from insurance agreements
None (December 31, 2022: None).

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense, and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized when
the insurer is a ceding company:

Reinsurance Assets
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Claims Reserve (Note 4.1.2.2) 9,329,965,090 3,710,864,552
Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve (Note 20) 9,487,695,045 3,808,591,870
Equalization Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 880,501,141 485,464,437
Cash Deposited for Insurance & Reinsurance Companies (Note 12.1) 401,807,474 141,890,343
Ongoing Risks Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 503,140,110 201,429,210
Bonus and rebates provision Reinsurance Share (Not 20) 245,747 233,659
Deposits of Reinsurance Company (Note 12.1) - 30,954
Total 20,603,354,607 8,348,505,025

Reinsurance Debts
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Payables to Insurance and Reinsurance Companies (Note 19.1) 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
Deferred Commissions Income (Note 19.1) 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
Total 6,461,998,950 2,583,781,752

Income/Expense on Reinsurance Agr

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Claims Reserve 5,619,100,538 1,061,366,107
Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve (Note 20) 5,679,103,174 1,882,605,963
Reinsurance Share of Claims Paid 9,300,885,392 2,221,757,732
Commissions Received (Note 32) 1,566,370,313 633,142,504
Bonus and rebates provision Reinsurance Share (Not 20) 12,088 (534,748)
Ongoing Risks Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 301,710,899 (55,413,857)

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers (-) (17,396,625,668) (6,706,047,686)

Total 5,070,556,736 (963,123,985)
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INSURANCE LIABILITiES AND REINSURANCE ASSESTS (Continued)

the insurer is a ceding company (Continued);

31 December 2023

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense, and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized when

31 December 2022

Reinsurance Share Reinsurance Reinsurance Share Reinsurance
of Technical Share of of Technical Share of
Branch Premiums Ceded (*) Reserves (**) Claims Paid__Premiums Ceded Reserves Claims Paid
Fire and Natural Disaster (5.582,089.836) 3480380.607  5,653,144,919 (2.286,126,904) 1242,667.865 796.047.750
Health 2.883) 614,677,351 1,121,069,316 (956,651,196 315,283,086 565,004,904
General Losses (2.211,462,703) 1313.428.988 601,274,963 (920353,816) 356,345,791 279,108,185
Motor Crafts Liability (2.850,890.884) 2,733,281.904 804,863,944 (705,774.337) 167,918,398 342,443,142
General Liability (927,042,913) 143,304,005 129,541,361 (620,044.256) 359518462 64,338,732
Financial Losses (1,125,830,418) 1.637.521.316 330,010,780 164,160,097 79,189,544
Transportation 301 50 118,494,796
Accident 17,624,034 4,805,421
Suretyship . 455,197,380 789, (108,068,135)
Air Crafts Liability (288,836,525) 32,061,227 X (187,844.210) 95,059,556
Air Crafts (156,488,756) 89,656,354 68,754,226 (72.985.458) 16,729,989 13,083,575
Water Crafts (256,068,687) 100,988,938 48,497,282 (110,527,224) 72,286,772 10,947,561
Credit (11259.231) 1,741,767 8,938,503 (7.537.764) 1,636,215 66,086
Motor Crafts (1,233,077,653) 678,392,409 452,374,762 (118,349,579 81,185,152 3,093,634
Legal Protection (2.419) 1769 9,280 - - -
Total (17,396,625,668) 11,599,926,699 9.300,885,392 (6.706,047.686)  2,888,023,465 _ 2,221,757,732

*) As explained in Note 2.15, Transferred Premiums amounted to TRY434,053,951 (December 31, 2022: TRY235,919,245)
transferred to the Social Security Institution as of December 31, 2023

(**)  Technical reserves reinsurer share includes unearned premium reserve, unexpired risk reserve, outstanding claim reserve,

bonus, and discount reserve.

The company defers commission income that arises from reinsurance agreements which has been

bought ascendant enterprise.

Disclosed in Note 4.1.1.3.

17.17. Comparison of incurred claims with past estimations

17.18. Effects of changes in the assumptions used in the measurement of insurance assets and

liabilities, showing the effects of each change that has significant effect on the financial

statements separately

Disclosed in Note 4.1.1.4

costs, if any

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Net change of the year

2023

17.19 Reconciliation of insurance payables, reinsurance assets and changes in deferred acquisition

Insurance Payables

Reinsurance Assets

2,583,781,752
3,878.217,198

8,348,505,025
12,254,849,582

End of the period - December 31

6,461,998,950

20,603,354,607

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Net change of the year

2022

Insurance Payables

Reinsurance Assets

1,480,465,096
1,102,548,966

5,171,408,394
3,136,323,052

End of the period - December 31

2,583,014,062

8,307,731,446
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17. INSURANCE LiABILIiTIiES AND REINSURANCE ASSESTS (Continued)

17.20 Deferred production commissions and deferred commission income
The part of the commissions paid to the intermediaries for the premiums written and the
commissions received from the reinsurers due to the premiums transferred to the reinsurers are
accounted for in the balance sheet under ‘Deferred manufacturing expenses’ and ‘deferred
commission income’ accounts, respectively, and in the Income Statement under the operating
expenses account. Deferred commission expenses and deferred commission income as of
December 31, 2023, amounted to TRY1,708,733,645 (December 31, 2022: TRY885,958,057)
and TRY1,306,143,694 (December 31, 2022: TRYS531,238,119), respectively, deferred
production expenses and deferred tax commission income is included in account items

18. INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Disclosed in Note 17.3

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, DEFERRED INCOME

19.1 Sub-classifications of presented items in the Company’s operations line with

31 December2023 31 December2022

Payables from Insurance and Reassurance Operations (Note 17.16) 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
Payables from Insurance Operations 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
Payables to sellers 204,274,065 120,759,085
Current account of natural catastrophe insurance 103,431,814 78,158,956
Negotiated service and debts to institutions 73,293,131 58,594,811
DASK debts to agencies 2,656,924 2,113,421
Other - 1,117,874
Other Payables 383,655,934 260,744,147
Payables to SSI regarding medical expenses 178,631,352 69,641,878
Deferred commission income (Not 17.16) 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
Provision for Cost Expenses (Not 23.4) 267,331,731 96,230,891
Deferred Income and Expense Accruals 1,573,475,425 627,469,010
Total Short-Term Liabilities 7,291,617,967 3,010,398,668
Total Trade and Other Payables, Deferred Income 7,291,617,967 3,010,398,668

19.2 Related Party Disclosures

Details related with related party balances and transactions for the current financial period are
disclosed in Note 45.

Corporate Governance
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PAYABLES
Insurance Technical Reserves

Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net (*)

Outstanding Claims Reserve Net (Not 4.1.2.2)

Equalization Provision — Net
Mathematical Reserves - Net
Ongoing Risks Provision- Net
Bonus and Discount Provisions - Net

31 December 2023

5,755,788,715
3,619,726,646

31 December 2022

3,897,966,852
2,788,449,164

Total

85,298,741 154,900,203
2,023,958 1,325,877
520,806,201 153,218,079
13,293 10,224
9,983,657,554 6,995,870,399

(*)  While calculating the income statement effect of the provisions for unearned premiums,
TRY21,635,410 the deferral effect of the premiums transferred to assistance companies, which is
included in operating expenses, has been netted off (December 31, 2022: TRY10,125,503).

As disclosed in Note 2.15, the reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums includes SSI share as of
December 31, 2023 which is TRY102,242,133 (December 31, 2022: TRY16,042,069 the
reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums)

The movement of technical reserves are as follows:

Unearned Premium Reserve:

31 2023 31 2022
Reinsuranc
Gross e Net Gross Net
Beginning of the Period,

January 1 7706558722 (3.808,591.870)  3.897.966.852 3938317399 (1.925985.907) 2012331492
Net change 36,925,037 (5.679.103,174) 1 1 3.768.241.323 a 05,96 1.885.635.360
End of the

Period,December 31 15,243,483,759  (9,487.695,044)  5,755,788,715 _ 7,706,558,722 (3,808,591,870) 3.897,966,852
*) The reinsurance share for unearned premiums also includes the share of SST amounting to TRY 102,242,133 (December 31,2022:

TRY 16,042,069 the reinsurers” share of unearned premiums).
Unexpired Risk Reserve:
31 2023 31 2022
Gross i Net Gross i Net

Beginning of the Period,

January 1 354.647.290 (201.429211) 153218079 350,168,151 (256,843,068 93.325.083

Net change 669.299.021 (301.710.899) 367588122 4479.139 55413857 59.892.996

End of the

Period,December 31 1,023.946,311 (503,140.110) 520,806,201 354,647,290 (201,429.211) 153,218,079,
Equalization Reserve:

31 D ber 2023 31 December 2022
Gross i Net Gross i Net

Beginning of the Period,

January 1 640,364,640 (485464.437) 154900203 415818190 (298.,108,145) 117,710,045

Net change (*) 325,435,242 (395,036,704) (69.601,462) 224,546,450 (187,356,292) 37,190,158

End of the

Period,December 31 965,799,882 (880,501,141) 85,298,741 640,364,640 (485,464,437 154,900,203

(*)  The company has offset the net 61,057 TL paid for Diizce Earthquake damages occurring in 2022 and the net 154,503,882
TL paid for Kahramanmaras Earthquake damages occurring in 2023 from the balancing provision it has allocated in previous
years. (31 December 2022: TRY3,090,074)
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20. PAYABLES (Continued)

Provision for bonus and discount

31 December 2023 31 2022
Gross i Net Gross _Rei Net
Beginning of the
Period, January 243.883 (233.659) 10.224 773.975 (768.407) 5.568
Net change 15,157 (12,088) 3069 (530,092) 534,748 4,656
End of the Period
December 31 259,040 (245.747) 13,293 243883 (233,659 10,224

Outstanding claims reserve:
The movement of Outstanding Claims Reserve of 2023 and 2022 are presented in note 4.1.1.3.
Lease Liabilities:

The movement table of the total lease obligation and lease obligations that the Company is as

follows:
31D b 31D b
2023 2022
Short-term rent liabilities 37,250,927 24,535,309
Long-term rent liabilities 38,721,193 24,596,866
Alternative borrowing rate and discount amount (18,795,831) (9,567,869)
Total rent liabilities 57,176,289 39,564,306
31D b 31D b
2023 2022
Beginning of the Period, January 1 Lease Liabilities 39,564,306 27,564,034
Rent payments (Real Estates and Motor Vehicles) (36,878,233) (20,166,791)
Interest Payments 15,500,978 7,227,787
New lease agreements 29,249,607 25,304,020
Change in lease agreements 9,739,631 (364,744)
Total lease liability as of the balance sheet date 57,176,289 39,564,306

Payables to Credit Institutions
None. (December 31, 2022: TRY544,473,125).

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising
between its financial statements as reported for Turkey Accounting Standards (TAS) purposes and its
statutory tax financial statements. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and
expenses in different reporting periods for TAS. The Company's deferred income tax amounts are
disclosed in Note 35.

22.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

RETIREMENT AND WELFARE LIABILITIES

The funds established for the personnel of banks, insurance and reinsurance companies within the
scope of the SGK Law were decided to be transferred to SG K within three years following the
publication of the Law with the Provisional Article 23 of the Banking Law No. 5411, Council of
Ministers dated 30 November 2006 and numbered 2006/11345. With its decision, the procedures
and principles regarding the transfer have been determined. On the other hand, the relevant law
article regarding the transfer was decided by the Constitutional Court, based on the application
made by the President on 2 November 2005, and published in the Official Gazette dated 30 June
2007 and numbered 26479, dated 22 March 2007 and numbered E,2005/39, N,2007/33. It was
annulled by the decision of the court and its validity was suspended as of the publication date of
the decision.

In the otherhand The Act No: 5754 ‘Amendments in Social Securities and General Health
Insurance Acts Specific Laws and Related Requirements’ published in the Official Gazette No:
26870 on May 8, 2008, requires the transfer of participants or beneficiaries of pension funds to
SSI as of the effective date of the Act within 3 years and prescribes the extension period of the
transfer as maximum of two years upon the order of Council of Ministers.

The Act prescribes that, as of the transfer date, present value of fund liabilities should be measured
by considering the fund income and expense based on the insurance branches presented in the
related act using 9,8% of technical interest rate in the actuarial calculation. The Act also specifies
that the uncovered other rights and compensations of participants or beneficiaries of pension funds
should be covered by institutions that made the fund transfers.

Aksigorta A.S. is a member of Akbank T.A.$ Pension Fund (Akbank T.A.$ Tekaiit Sandigr). At
each period-end, the Company pays its liability calculated for its share to the pension fund.

Retirement Pay Provisions:

Under the terms of Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination
benefits to each employee who has qualified for such payment.

Employee termination benefits provisions are legally not a subject of funding. The provision has
been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 (‘Employee Benefits’) requires actuarial
valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit
plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total
liability:
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22.  RETIREMENT AND WELFARE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase
parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after
adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying
financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022; the provision has been
calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of the employees. As of December 31, 2023; the provisions at the
respective balance sheet dates have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 2.72%
(December 31, 2022: 4%) The anticipated rate of forfeitures is considered and estimated rate of
the Company’s retirements pay is also taken into account.

However, during this estimation, other conditions other than the ages specified in subparagraph 5
of the first paragraph of Article 14 of the Labor Law No. 1475, and subparagraphs (a) and (b) of
paragraph A of the first paragraph of Article 60 of the Law No. 506, or According to the
provisional article 81 of the same law, severance pay payments to be made due to the employees
leaving the job voluntarily after completing the insurance period (15 years) and the number of
premium payment days (3600 days) foreseen for the old-age pension are excluded from the
estimates regarding the amounts that will remain with the company.

Actuarial loss amounting to TRY8,401,928 (December 31, 2022: 30,761,271) (Deferred tax
effect: TRY1,291,809 (December 31, 2022: TRY23,070,953)) in the calculation of severance pay
provision is accounted in the account of private funds under the equity (Note 15.2).

As the maximum liability is updated semi-annually, as of December 31, 2023, the maximum
amount of TRY35,058 effective from January 1, 2024 has been taken into consideration in
calculation of provision from employment termination benefits (December 31, 2022:
TRY19,983).

Movement of employee termination benefits provisions are presented in the statement below:

2023 2022
Beginning of the period, January 1 33,744,176 14,112,606
Charge for the period (Note 47) 9,525,177 3,381,887
Actuarial (Loss 8,401,928 20,113,078
Retirement Payments (-) (34,428,570) (3,863,395)
End of the period, December 31 17,242,711 33,744,176

23. OTHER LIABILITIES AND EXPENSE ACCRUALS

23.1 Provisions related to employee benefits and others
2023 2022

Unused Social Security Unused  Social Security
Vacations Premiums Vacations Premiums
Provisions Payable Provisions Payable
Beginning of the period, January 1 7,694,606 525,318 3,690,561 235,747
Movements in the Current Period 17,051,634 199,745,774 4,736,668 83,552,547
Payments in the Current Period (3.956.510) (199.361,404) (732,623) (83,262,976)

End of the period, December 31 20,789,730 909,688 7,694,606 525,318

- . . . "
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23. OTHER LIABILITIES AND EXPENSE ACCRUALS (Continued)
23.2 Total Amount of Non-Liability Commitments

Company’ s statement of pledges and commitments as of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022 are presented below:

31 December 2023 31 2022
Amount in Amount in
Collaterals, Pledges and Mortgages Given by Original Original
the Company (CPM) Currency Amount TRY _ Currency Amount TRY
A. Total amount of CPM’s given on behalf of
the Company legal entity - - - -
B. Total amount of CPM’s given in favour of
joint ventures included in full consolidation -
C. Total amount of CPM’s given as the guarantee of
the third parties for the maintenance purpose of the ordinary
activities - 18933842 - 8,168,243
Turkish Lira 18,933,842 18,933,842 8,168,243 8,168,243
USD B - - -
D. Total amount of the other CPM’s given - - - -
i. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor of
the parent company - - - -
ii. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor of other group
companies not included in clauses B and C - - - -
iii. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor m third parties not
included - - - -
Turkish Lira - - - -
Total 18,933,842 18,933,842 8,168,243 8,168,243
Other CPM’s given by the Company is zero in proportion to the Company’s equity (December 31, 2022:
None).
23.3 Provisions, Contingents Assets and Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Outstanding Claims under Litigation (*) 3,695,399,914 1,850,339,823
Unused Vacation allowance 20,789,730 7,694,606
Business Cases Provision 2,001,288 1,526,062
Total 3,718,190,932 1,859.560.491
Contingent Assets 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Subrogation Receivable Litigations, Gross 966,382,419 476,415,678
Trade Receivable Litigations and E: 9,754,253 9.512,014
Total 976,136,672 485,927,692
(*)  Outstanding claims provision consists of net receivables, interest, and expenses & agency fees in the amount of

TRY2,064,213,460 (31 December 2022: TRY 999,588,403), TRY1 014 553,180 (31 December 2022: TRY499,432,950) and
TRY616 633,274 (31 December 2022:TRY351, 318, ,468) respecmely

As of June 24, 2014, Tax Inspection Board of T.C. Ministry of Finance has launched a limited tax
investigation related to the Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax for the years 2009, 2010, 2011 and
2012 and as a consequence of the tax inspection, tax of TRY 1.8 million and tax penalty of TRY 2.8 million
for the year 2009, tax of TRY 2 million and tax penalty of

TRY3 million for the year 2010, tax of TRY 3 million and tax penalty of TRY 4.6 million for the year 2011
and tax of TRY 4.3 million and tax penalty of TRY6.4 million for the year 2012 and in total tax and tax
penalty of TRY 27.9 million related to Banking Insurance Transaction Tax were imposed to the Company.
The Company has not booked any provision in the financial statements since it believes that its practice is
in compliance with the regulations. On January 16, 2015, the Company filed a reconciliation request for
the year 2009 and on February 20, 2015 filed a reconciliation request for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 to
the Large Taxpayers Office Commission of Reconciliation. Large taxpayers were interviewed by the Tax
Office on February 15, 2018, and on February 27, 2018 a lawsuit was filed against the Grand Taxpayers
Office as no compromise could be reached. In the cases of 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, in tax litigation
related to BITT, Tax Court has decided in favour of the Company in the cases of 2009 and 2010. The cases
0f 2011 and 2012 continue before the Tax Court. In 2022, the Seventh Court of the Council of State decided
that the appeal request of all the cases belonging to the relevant years should be rejected and that the
decision in accordance with the procedure and the law should be upheld, and the rejection of the lawsuits
was finalized by the Council of State.
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23.  OTHER LIABILITIES AND EXPENSE ACCRUALS (Continued) 25. FEE INCOME

23.3 Provision for Expense Accruals None (January 1 - December 31, 2022: None.).

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Commission provision (¥) 111,760,501 35,174,020 26. INVESTMENT INCOME/(EXPENSE) ) .
Performance premium provision 45,367,360 16,808,930 31 December 2033 31 December 2082
Guarantee fund provision 40,999,395 26,643,891
S isi Realized Investment Income/Expenses
Exp.ense provision P 7’665’855 4’ ! 02’832 Term Deposit 465,614,069 144,563,831
Business cases provision 2,001,288 1,526,062 Government Bond 148,925,777 76,291,650
epo - (1,102,527)
/élslf/lwval;:ce d Provisi gg’zgg’zgg ;’gg;"ggi Eurobond 295,171,496 334,083,624
und Frovisions 5 , 5 5 Corporate Bonds 30,011,430 87,328,175
Other 3,186,924 883,244 iﬁ\mk Fund Igzég(; %;? |3§?%§28
Total 267,331,731 96,230,891 i estment Fun T 110,860
tive 8.864.491) 63,846,886
(*)  Commission provision to be distributed to the agency, bank, and institutional channels for the current 1,108,602,815 973,180,345
period. Unrealized Investment Income/(Expenses)
Government Bond (53,871,299) 65,384,690
Eurobond (31,687,439) 73,771,895
Investment Fund 668,048,871 8,022,165
24. NET INSURANCE PREMIUM REVENUE Stock (1,974,869) -
2 v - Corporate Bonds 3,677,815 (16,463,111)
1 January 31'December 2023 Repo 282085 723,666
Gross Reinsurance share Net Tréasury Bond (153.360) (115.761)
Motor Crafts 5.914,419,949 (1.233,077,654) 4.681,342,295 Derivative Instruments - 1,148,041
Motor Crafts Liability (*) 5,690,988,600 (2,850,890,884) 2,840,097,716 Term Deposit 315,052,550 42,547.301
Fire and Natural Disaster 6,619,368,716 (5.582,089,837) 1,037.278,879 Total 899,374,351 175,014,886
Health 2,559,286,166 (2.278,162,883) 281,123,283 - 5
General Losses 2,381,552,903 (1,942,663,027) 438,889,876 Net Accrual Income on Financial Assets 2,007,977,166 1,148,195,231
General Liability 1,301,548,487 (1,195,800,039) 105,748,448
Financial Losses 1,232,682,097 (1,125,830,418) 106,851,679 27. NET ACCRUAL INCOME ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Transportation 415,300,903 (321,723,816) 93,577,087 - -
Air Crafts Liability 288,837,616 (288,836,525) Loo1 Financial Assets Available for Sale 31 Dec;n‘::::;:)“;? 31 Deceln.zlzle‘:;a)él
Accident 321,080,453 (52.394.903) 268,685,550 h :
Water Crafts 295,488,568 (256,068,687) 39,419,881 N .
Air Crafts 156,489,043 (156.488.756) 287 Valuation differences recognized
Suretyship 104,250,161 (101.336.589) 2913.572 under sharcholders' equity 51,839,500 1,881,596
Credit 11,446,411 (11,259.231) 187,180
Legal Protection 6.008,097 2.419) 6,005,678 Total 51,839,500 1,881,596
Written premium - Life branch 27,298,748,170 (17,396,625,668) 9,902,122,502
Written premium - Life branch - - - 28.  ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Total 27,298,748,170 (17,396,625,668) 9,902,122,502
. 31 December 2022 The net gain which is booked in income statement from the fair value difference reflected to gain
Crom e chare Net or loss of the financial assets, is amounting to TRY33,605,964 as of December 31, 2023
Motor Crafts Liability (*) 3,133,723,355 (705,774,338) 2,427.949.017 (January 1 - December 31, 2022 TRY29,236,878)
Motor Crafts 3,479,076,162 (118,349,579) 3,360,726,583
Fire and Natural Disaster 2.696.775.340 (2.286,126,904) 410,648,436 29. INSURANCE RIGHTS AND DEMANDS
General Losses 981,102,356 (776,732,294) 204,370,062
Health 1,107.320,795 (956,651,196) 150,669,599 o - January -
Financial Losses 486,883,426 (424.488,627) 62,394,799 Outstanding Clmp’s Reserve Expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Transportation 299,623,003 (239,836,699) 59,786,304 Nowor Crafts Liability (175928 (04503609
Accident 141,277,206 (28,764,950) 112,512,256 Gonoral Losses e raerses
General Liability 808,500,012 (763,638,927) 44,861,085 ‘Accident 23287687) (6662332)
Water Crafts 128,005,473 (110,527,224) 17,478,249 Financial Losses 6,136,222 (9,600,406)
Legal Protection 4,150,592 3) 4,150,589 Redemption (12,237,729) 2,255,507
Suretyship 28,320,949 (26,789,513) 1,531,436 Water Crafts (9.901,015) (4.477.704)
Credit 7,844,868 (7.537.764) 307,104 Accident (1,285,260) (429,390)
Air Crafts Liability 187,846,933 (187,844,210) 2,723 Legal Protection (35.674) 232,083
Air Crafts 72,986,479 (72,985.458) 1,021 f\m@‘ s Liabil ?ﬁf (6212’?3)
Total - Non-life branches 13,563.436,.949 (6,706,047,686) 6.857,389,263 A ey Lability i O
‘Weritten premium - Life branch - - - Air Crafts 20,804,235 (27,002,652)
Health 760,653 (886,316)
Total 13,563,436,949 (6,706,047,686) 6,857.389,263 Fire and Natural Disaster 19,089,659 (36.943.421)
. ) . ) Total Non-life 831,278.954) (820,500,355
(*) Reinsurance share of land vehicles liability branch amounting to TRY434,053,951 (January 1- December 31, 2022: SRR =
TRY235,919,245) includes premiums to be ceded to SSI. Life 1474 2,604
Total (*) (831,277,480) 820,497,751
(*)  For current previous period comparison please refer to Note 4.1.1.3
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30. INVESTMENT AGREEMENT TYPES

None. (December 31, 2022: None).
31. MANDATORY OTHER EXPENSES

Types of expenses are disclosed in Note 32.

32. EXPENSE TYPE

1 January - 1 January -

31 2023 31 December 2022
Production Commissions (-) 2.556,779,618 1,275,160,426
Employee Wages and Expenses (-) (*) (Note 33) 611,986,397 257,683,578
Information Technology Expenses (<) 104,121,166 62,484,025
Meeting and Training Expenses (-) 64,397,909 19,212,651
Transportation Expenses (-) 17,066,833 8,490,299
Social Relief Expenses (-) (Note 33) 43,981,501 13,859,834
Advertisement Expenses (-) 479 14,064,390
Reinsurance Commissions (+) (1,566,370,313) (633,142,504)
Other (-) 81,738,412 38,099,871
Total 1,932,780,002)  1,055,912,570

(*)  The Company pays monthly individual pension contributions, at a minimum of TRY98 and a
maximum gross minimum wage, for personnel who fulfill the conditions, and this amount is shown
in personnel wages and expenses.

33. EMPLOYEE WAGES AND EXPENSES

1 January - 1 January -

31 2023 31 December 2022
Salary and Bonus Payments 479,258,667 200,966,353
Insurance Payments 118,333,717 49,665,497
Other Payments 58375514 18.697.311
Total (Note 32) 655,967,898 269,329,161

34. FINANCING COST
34.1 Financial Expenses:

The Company has an interest expense of TRY 15,500,978 for the lease contracts accounted for
under IFRS 16 in the period of 1 January - December 31, 2023 (1 January - December 31, 2022:
TRY7,227,787). There is a total interest expense of TRY46,512,359, TRY 16,196,109 based on
financial leasing agreements and TRY30,316,250 based on the financing received from credit
institutions (1 January — 31 December 2022: 57,118,259 interest expense)

34.2 Current period’s financial expenses related to shareholders, affiliates, and subsidiaries
None. (December 31, 2022: None).

34.3 Sales transactions with shareholders, affiliates, and subsidiaries:
Disclosed in Note 45.

34.4 Interest, rent and similar balances with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries:

35. Disclosed in Note 45.

34.

34.5

34.6

- ™
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FINANCING COST (Continued)

Hedge accounting principle

Cash Flow hedging principle

None. (December 31, 2022: None).

Type risk and principle of the cash flow hedge
None. (December 31, 2022: None).

Exchange differences, other than those arising from financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss.

None. (December 31, 2022: None).
CORPORATE TAX

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Current Tax Liability:

Corporate Tax Liablll[); Provision on Period Profit 148,228,750 -
Prepaid Taxes and Other Liabilities on Period Profit (-) (31,748,380) -
Withholdings paid in advance through deduction (3,871,204) (3,664,432)
Total 112,609,166 (3,664,432)

Tax (Expense)/Income is Formed by the Items Below:

1 January - 1 January -
31 2023 31 2022

Current Tax Income/(Expense) (148,228,750) -
Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) due to Temporary Differences 74,713,256 183,792,145
Total Tax Income/!Eernse) (73,515,494) 183,792,145

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences
arising between its financial statements as reported for TFRS purposes and its statutory tax
financial statements. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses
in different reporting periods for TFRS and tax purposes and they are given below.

In the financial statements as of December 31, 2023, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
calculated by considering the time intervals in which the deferred tax assets consisting of
deductible temporary differences will be realized by generating taxable profit in the future, it is
calculated with 30%. (December 31, 2021: 25%, December 31, 2022: 23% and for the following
years 20%).
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36.

CORPORATE TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax asset/liability movement is as follows:

Deferred Tax 2023 2022

Recognized in the Shareholders' Equity:

Valuation of Financial Assets Available for Sale (22,216,929) (627,199)

Actuarial Gain/Loss Effect 4,392,250 7,690,318

Deferred tax effect of VUK inflation differences 79,237,910 -
61,413,231 7,063,119

Deferred tax items are as follows:

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax
Assets/

Temporary Temporary Assets/ s
Differences differences (Liabilities) (Liabilities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 2022 2023 2022
Ongoing Risks 520,806,201 153 218,079 156,241,860 38304,520
Expense reserves (Not 23.3) 154,918,982 59,422,047 46,475,695 14,855,512
Tangible and intangible assets 375,492,020 196,938,531 112,647,606 49,234,633
Provision for doubtful receivables 45108415 46,452,664 13,532,525 11,613,166
Performance premium provision (Not 23.3) 45,367,360 16,808,930 13,610,208 4,202,232
Balancing Equivalent 26,870,236 14,972,733 8,061,071 3,743,183
Provision for employment termination
benefits (Not 22) 17,242,711 33,744,176 5,172,814 8,436,044
Unused vacation allowance (Not 23.3) 20,789,731 7,694,606 6236919 1,923,652
Vaksa Donation - - - -
Currency valuation differences 7,736,633 (5,740,238) 2,320,990 (1,435,061)
Tangible assets leasing 10,125,409 5,287,130 3,037,623 1,321,783
Bonuses and Discounts 13,293 10,224 3,988 2,556
Investment fund valuation effect - (1,148,041) - (287,010)
Period Financial Loss - 373,259,896 - 93,314,974
Other 45,616,133 - 13,684,840 -
Valuation Effect 181:222:676 7.445.920 (24871,107) 1,861,480
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 1,451.309.800 908.366.657 356,155,032 227,091,664
The realized corporate tax reconciliation is as follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Profit before tax 1,258,686,675 (304,940,761)
Calculated tax revenue: 30% (2022: 25%) (377.606,003) 76,235,190
Effect of additions (183,540,805) (64,389,559)
Effect of discounts, net 487,631,314 265,261,488
Tax impact of tax loss - (93.314.974)
Total Tax Expense (73.515.494) 183,792,145
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Profit before tax 1,258,686,675 (304,940,761)
Calculated corporate tax provision (377,606,003) 76,235,190
Legally unacceptable and other expenses (21,456,724) (9.480,597)
Income subject to tax i 325547233 117,037,552
Total tax expense/income in the income statement (73.515,494) 183,792,145
(*)  The company's tax exemption items consist of items such as economic assets subject to depreciation, VUK 12-month
valuation increase iation, and i fund i
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/LOSS
1 January-
1 January- 31 December
31 2033 2022

Recognized in Profit/Loss:
Forcign Exchange Income
Forcign Exchange Expense

3,254,937,083
(2.346,216,513)

1,207,382,169
(764.778.207)

Total

908,720,570

442,603,962

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

4.

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
Number of Equity Shares Outstanding 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Beginning Period, 1 January 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Bonus issued stock - 30,600,000,000

Stocks issued with cash

100,000,000,000

Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
End of Period, 31 December

161,200,000,000
161,200,000,000

161,200,000,000
161,200,000,000

Weighted Average Number of Outstanding Shares (Unit

of 1; TRY 0.01)

161,200,000,000

161,200,000,000

Net Profit for the Period/(Loss) (TRY)
Earnings/(Loss) per Share (TRY)

1,185,171,182
7.352

(121,148,616)
(0,075)

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Based on the decision taken at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on March 21, 2023,
the Company did not distribute profits to the shareholders, as there was no profit in the financial
statements containing the operating results for 2022. (31 December 2022: None).

CASH GENERATED FROM THE OPERATIONS

Cash Generated from Operations is presented in the Cash Flow Statement.

EQUITY SHARE CONVERTIBLE BONDS

None (December 31, 2022: None).

CASH CONVERTIBLE PRIVILEGED EQUITY SHARES

None (December 31, 2022: None).

RISKS

The Company’s contingent asset and liabilities are presented in Note 23.3.

COMMITMENTS

Total amount of off-balance sheet commitments are presented in Note 23.2.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

None (December 31, 2022: None).
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Convenience Translation of Notes to the
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

45. RELATED PARTIES
Related Party Receivables/(Payables)

The details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below.

Bank Deposit 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 14,197,774 745,745,408
Total 14,197,774 745,745,408
Private Sector Bonds 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies - 78,353,737
Total - 78,353,737
Investment Funds 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 3,719,402,606 -
Total 3,719,402,606 -
Related Party Receivables/(Payables) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group companies 486,080,604 56,249,202
Receivables from related parties 125,510,565 11,093,766
Receivables from shareholders 159,023 315,066
Payables to shareholders - (1,157,309)
Total 611,750,192 66,500,725
1 January- 1 January-
Premium production 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 1,416,693,662 424,479,919
Shareholders 24,150,885 10,829,352
Total 1,440,844,547 435,309,271
1 January- 1 January -
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Claims Paid
Group Companies 1,015,327,846 23,689,175
Shareholders 98,724 6,243
Total 1,015,426,570 23,095,418
1 January- 1 January-
Interest Income Received from Related Part 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 41,140,252 29,506,396
Total 41,140,252 29,506,396
1 January-

1 January-31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Commission Expenses

Group Companies 413,257,199 221,474,450
Total 413,257,199 221,474,450

Corporate Governance

46.

47.

- ™
w:\FinanciaI Information and Risk Mcnqgement/iw

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.

OTHER

Details of ‘Other’ items in the balance sheet which exceed 20% of its respective account group

or 5% of total assets:

Other Receivables

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
Receivables from Tarim Sigortalar A.S. 58,508,939 29,869,201
Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool Payables to agencies 10,096,361 9,671,229
Other Receivables 17,236,020 7,234,743
Total 85,841,320 46,775,173

31 December

31 December

Other Short-Term Payables 2023 2022
Payables to Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool 103,431,814 78,158,956
Payables to suppliers 204,274,065 120,759,085
Payables to contracted enterprises 73,293,131 58,594,811
Other - 1,117,874
Receivables from Agencies due to DASK Premiums 2,656,924 2,113,421
Total 383,655,934 260,744,147

31 December

31 December

Other Prepaid Expenses (Long Term) 2023 2022
Prepaid Expenses 66,320,536 14,228,216
Total 66,320,536 14,228,216

31 December 31 December
Other Prepaid Expenses (Long Term) 2023 2022
Prepaid Expenses 732,079 110,304
Total 732,079 110,304

Assistance services under other technical expenses in the income statement, amounting to
TRY536,063,397 (January 1 - December 31, 2022: TRY283,170,707), consist of deferral of these

amounts and technical expenses of these services.
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Convenience Translation of Notes to the
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47. OTHER (Continued)

1 January- 1 January-

Income and Profit/Expenses and Losses from 31 December 31 December
Other and Extraordinary Activities 2023 2022
Provisions accounts (+/-) (58,241,663) (17,641,324)
Provisions for doubtful receivable (Not 12.1) (4,322,894) (5,952,779)
Donation provision - -
Portfolio Management (2,457,727) (2,114,710)
Retirement pay provision (Not 22) (34,047,545) (3,381,887)
Unused vacation provision (Not 23.1) (17,051,634) (4,736,668)
Provision for other expenses (361,863) (1,455,280)
Specialized Insurance Account (+/-) 12,996,481 6,798,025
Deferred tax asset account (+/-) (Not 35) 74,713,256 183,792,145
Other income and profits 17,780,403 10,219,048
Other expenses and losses (-) (274,611,996) (139,836,619)
Bank expenses (230,562,255) (114,105,950)
Disallowable expenses (11,254,888) (6,734,451)
Donation expenses (9,144,036) -
Other (23,650,817) (18,996,218)
Total (227,363,519) 43,331,275

Fess for services acquired from independent auditor/independent audit firm:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

Independent audit fee for the reporting period (*) 5,537,050 547,175
Fees for other assurance services (*) - 133,282
Total 5,537,050 680,457

(*)  Fees are excluding VAT.

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

137



138 Corporate Profile Sustainability Activities Corporate Governance f\Flnanch Information and Risk Mcnqgement/k

Information on Consolidated Subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Communiqué on the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and
Pension Companies” (“Consolidation Communiqué”) published by the Ministry of Treasury and Finance in the Official Gazette dated December 31, 2008,
and 27097, insurance, reinsurance, and pension companies; In addition to the unconsolidated financial statements, an obligation has been issued to
publish the consolidated financial statements.

In this context, September 30, 2022, our Company prepares consolidated financial statements by taking into consideration financial tables of 100%
subsidiary Sabanci Ageas Health Insurance Joint Stock Company and by using the full consolidation method.

Sabanci Ageas Health Insurance Joint Stock Company established as a subsidiary of Aksigorta A.S. in August 2022 and the main field of activity is to
carry out all kinds of co-insurance, reinsurance, and retrocession works within the scope of health insurance health insurances.

Sabanci Ageas Health Insurance Joint Stock Company has no share in our Company.
Unconsolidated / Consolidated Summary Financial Data (thousands TL):

Financial statement items, which have changed as a result of consolidation, are shown below in terms of their unconsolidated and consolidated
amounts.

Unconsolidated Consolidated
Subsidiaries 100,000 0
Total Assets 21,131,922 21125,792
Total Equity 3,276,263 3,235,516

Net Profit/(Loss) 1185,171 1150,606
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF 3. Key Audit Matters
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters were addressed in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT the context of our independent audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

To the General Assembly of Aksigorta A.S.
A.  Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Aksigorta A.S. (the “Group”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2023 and the statement of consolidated income,
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and
statement of profit distribution for the year then ended and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements and a summary of significant accounting policies and consolidated financial statement notes.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting and
financial reporting regulations enforced by insurance legislation and Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS”) for the matters not regulated by insurance legislation “Regulation on Insurance
Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles”.

2, Basis for Opinion

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the regulations on the principles on auditing as set out in the
insurance legislation and the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “SIA”) that are part of Turkish
Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (the
“POA”). Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We hereby declare that we are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for Independent Auditors (including
Independence Standards) (the “Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit
in regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements. We
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules and regulations.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion.

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the matter

Estimation of claims incurred but not
reported

As explained in Notes 2 and 4 in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group has accounted for
the net incurred but not reported claims provision
amounting to TRY 4,649 million as of

December 31, 2023.

Above mentioned provision is calculated
according to the best estimation methods
determined within the opinion of the Group's
actuary in accordance with “Circular on
Outstanding Claim Provisions” dated December 5,
2014 and numbered 2014/16 published by the
Under secretariat of the Treasury. The reason we
focus on this area during our audit is the
significance of the incurred but not reported
claims provision for the consolidated financial
statements and the significant actuarial judgments
and estimates required by the nature of provision
in the financial statements.

We tested the design and operational effectiveness
of the key controls implemented by the Group's
management in relation to the ultimate claims
used in the calculation of incurred but not
reported claims provision.

We performed reconciliation of the data used in
the calculation of incurred but not reported claims
for selected branches with the consolidated
financial statements. Our actuaries have assessed
the estimated loss ratios and expected damage
developments trends together with the selected
actuarial techniques considering past damage
experiences and sector developments. In addition,
for selected branches, we made an estimation of
the reasonable ranges for the incurred but not
reported claims provision and compared them
with the Group’s records.

We checked the adequacy and accuracy of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements related to such provisions with the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation.

PwC Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Malf Miisavirlik A.S. )
Kiligali Pasa Mah. Meclis-i Mebusan Cad. No:8 I¢ Kapt No:301 Beyoglu/Istanbul
T: +90 212 326 6060, F: +90 212 326 6050, www.pwc.com.tr Mersis Numaramiz: 0-1460-0224-0500015
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4. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Regulation on Insurance Accounting and Financial Reporting
Principles and TAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rTor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
5. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit
conducted in accordance with the regulations on the principles on auditing as set out in the insurance
legislation and SIA is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that a material misstatement will
always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with the regulations on the principles on
auditing as set out in the insurance legislation SIA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence is obtained on the consolidated financial information
relating to businesses or operating segments within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the lead, supervision and conduct of the
group audit. We are also solely responsible for the audit opinion.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. We also communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



B. Other Responsibilities Arising From Regulatory Requirements

1. No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of
Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes us to believe that the Group’s
bookkeeping activities concerning the period from January 1 to December 31, 2023 period are not in
compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Group’s articles of association related to financial
reporting.

2, In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the
necessary explanations to us and provided the documents required within the context of our audit.

3. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the TCC, the auditor’s report on the early risk
identification system and committee was submitted to the Group’s Board of Directors on
February 8, 2024.

Additional Paragraph for Convenience Translation into English

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying financial statements, the effects of differences between the
accounting principles as set out by the related insurance laws and accounting principles generally accepted
in countries in which the accompanying financial statements are to be distributed and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantified in the accompanying financial
statements. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position and results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

PwC Bagimsiz Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.S.

Talar Giil, SMMM
Independent Auditor

Istanbul, February 8, 2024

AKSigorta
Bambaska.

THE MANAGEMENT’S REPRESENTATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PREPARED AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and the related disclosures and notes as of 31
December 2023 (the ‘financial report’) are prepared in accordance with the requirements set out by
Republic of Turkey Ministry of Treasury and Finance accordance with the accounting principles and
standarts in force in and are in compliance with our Company’s accounting records.

istanbul, 8 February 2024

Haluk DINGER Hiiseyin GURER Liitfiye Yesim UCTUM
Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Audit Committee = Member of the Audit Committee
Ugur GULEN Zeren Zeynep EROKTEM BAL

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Halil KOLBASI Sultan Esra ALKAN
Actuary Accounting and Statutory Reporting
Licence No: 72 Group Manager

Aksigorta Anonim Sirketi
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AKSIGORTA AS.

Activities Corporate Governance Financial Information and Risk Management

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

ASSETS ASSETS
Audited Audited i
e e l e | Current Period | Previous Period
i AL T 31 Decemberz 31 December,
I- CURRENT ASSETS Note 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022 2023 2022
1- Cash N N 1- Recei from Insurance Operations - -
2- Cheques Received N N - Provision for from Insurance Operations (-) - -
- fr O - -
3 Banks 1 3,004,000,502 2.994.282.190 e ion for R T Neraemmancs OReEEoE ] - -
4- Cheques Given and Payment Orders (-) - - - Cash Deposited for Insurance & Rei Companies - -
5-Receivables from Credit Cards with Bank Guarantee Due ~Loans to . N
Less Than Three Months 14 2.322,980.983 215,415,991 - Provision for Loans o Q - -
6-Other Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - Lo Do ion Oneraions - -
from Main Operations
0- meswn for Donblful Receivables from Main Operations
1- Financial Assets Available for Sale 1,707,247,206 1,951,145,408 —
- Financial Assets Held to Maturity 819,882,919 1.184.804,256 Jue from Sharcholders
- Financial Assets Held for Trading 3,719,402,547 209,376,382 - Due from Affiliates -
- Loans - - - Duc from — —
w— - Duc from Joint Ventures - -
- Provision for Loans (-) - - ~ Due from Personnel - -
6- with Risks on Policy Holders 111 2205350 2011395 -~ Due from Other Related Partics N N
7- Equity Shares - - - lscmlnl on Du: from Related Parties (-) - -
8- Impairment in Value of Financial Assets (- - - ubiful uc from Related Partics
rovisions for Doub(ﬁll Rcccwablcs Due from Related Parties (-
I- Recei from Insurance Operations 12.1 6.824.621.226 2,879.788,998 Leasin
2- Provision for Rece from Insurance Operations (-) 12.1 (44.623.073) (45.967.323) ~Unearned Leasing Inferest Tacome ()
3- Receivables from Operation: - - - Deposits and Guarantees Given - -
4- Provision for Receivables from Rei Operations (-) N . - B her Reseivables 5 . -
- - ~Discount on Other
5- Cash Deposited for Insurance & Companics 2.1 - 30,954 S e e e
6- Loans to - - “Provisions for Other Doubtful Receivabies (]
7- Provision for Loans to Poli &) - -
8- i fmm Pension Operation N N - Investments in Associates
9~ Doubtful from Main Operation: 2.1 605.974.099 394,716,808 5 ému I¢ to Affiliates () - -
10- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables from Main Operations (- 12.1 578,711,037 361.998.642 =Canila Cu lo Affilistes (- - -
~ Capital Ce o [B) = =
1- Due from Shareholders - - ~Joint Ventures N N
2- Due from Affiliates. N N apital C to Joint Ventures (-) - -
3- Du from YRy - - - Financial Assets and with Risks on Policy Holders
2D Joint Ve - Other Financial Assets
- Due from Joint Ventures - - 0- Diminution in Value of Financial Assets (-)
5- Due from Personnel - -
6- Duc from Other Related Partics 17.384 17.384  Investment Propertics
7- on Due from Related Parties (-) - - - Diminution in Value for Investment Properties (-)
8- Doubtful Recei Duc from Related Partics - Owner Occupied Properties o s Es)

9- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables Du from Related Parties ii Furmituresand Fisiues 0369050 ST
- Vehicles 886,833 758,863

Machinery and Equipment’s

1- Leasing Receivables - Other Tangible Assets (Including Leaschold 54,885,056 24,233,834
2~ Uncarned Leasing Interest Income () B B ~ Leased Tangible Fixed Amh 98.156.287 68.313.445
n h Depreciation (. Gve T 08 516775 E2905.000)
N Guaran
. g;e:;sus and tees Given = 8;';:?'3] ;(2] 4;3;311% 0 Advances Paid for Ta"imlc Fixed Assets ilncludmi Consiruction in Prcircsscsi
~Discount on Other Receivables (-) - - ~Rights 305,174,563 304.122.850
- Other Doubtful Recei ~Goodwill

I- Deferred Commission Expenscs

17.20

7- Provisions for Other Doubtful Receivables (-) - Etblthent Costs . N .
—_ "4~ Rescarch an Xpenses . -
~Other Intangible Assels - -

1,708,733,645

2- Accrued Interest and Rent Income

885,958,057 - ) 8 (235.290.514) (179.726,972)
- ~ Advances Regarding Intangible Assets 8 202,539,053 43,653,013

3- Income Accruals

1,148,041

nventories

1- Deferred Commission Expenses - -

z- repaid Taxes and Funds

35

4- Other Prepaid Expenses 69,334,340 14,407,778
__ T T — | ' o i
3- Other Prepaid Expenses 47 830,165 110,304

4,531,989

3,664,432 [_1- Effective Foreign Currency Accounts - -

3- Deferred Tax Assets

~Foreign Currency Accounts N -

4- Business Advances

21,82; - Inventories = =

5- Advances Given to Personnel

1,036,731

- Prepaid Taxes and Funds - N
~Deferred Tax Assets 35 375.007.006 IWSTLI

6- Stock Count Differences

- Other Non-current Assets

7- Other Current Assets

- - Other Non-current Assets

8- Provision for Other Current Assets (-)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

B rovision for Other Non-current Asset: i i

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



AKSIGORTA AS.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

LIABILITIES
Audited Audited
Current Period Previous Period
31 December 31 December
1II- SHORT TERM LIABILITIES Note 2023 2022
A- Borrowings 31,017,047 641,683,756
1- Loans to Financial - 544,473,125
2- Finance Lease Payables 20 40,840,102 27,858,335
3- Deferred Finance Lease Borrowing Costs (-) 20 (9,823,055) (8,929,786)
4- Current Portion of Long-Term Borrowings - -
5- Principal, and Interests on Issued Bills (Bonds) - -
6- Other Financial Assets Issued - -
7- Value Differences on Issued Financial Assets (-) - -
8- Other Financial Borrowings (Liabilities) N 78,282,082
B- Payables from Main Operations 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
1- Payables Due to Insurance Operations 19.1 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
2- Payables Due to Rei Operations - -
3- Cash Deposited by Insurance & Rei Companies - -
4- Payables Due to Pension Operations - B
5- Payables from Other Operations - -
6- Rediscount on Other Payables from Main Operations (-) - -
C- Due to Related Parties 641,673 190,785
1- Due to 122 2,967 1,143
2- Due to Affiliates - -
3- Due to Subsidiarie: - -
4- Due to Joint Ventures - -
5- Due to Personnel 638,706 189,642
6- Due to Other Related Parties - -
D- Other Payables 629,391,103 364,004,169
1- Deposits and G Received 12.1 48,974,023 28,257,559
2- Due to SSI regarding Treatment Expenses 19.1 178,631,352 69,641,878
3- Other Payables 19.1 401,785,728 266,104,732
4- Discount on Other Payables (-) - -
E- Insurance Technical Reserves 9,896,334,855 6,839,644,319
1- Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net 20 5,755,788,715 3,897,966,852
2- Unexpired Risk Reserves - Net 20 520,806,201 153,218,079
3-» ical Reserves - Net - -
4-0 Claims Reserve - Net 4.1 and 20 3.619,726,646 2,788,449,164
5- Provision for Bonus and Discounts - Net 20 13,293 10,224
6- Other Technical Reserves - Net - -
F- Taxes and Other Liabilities and Relevant Provisions 460,316,997 152,017,037
1- Taxes and Dues Payable 341,680,521 151,321,626
2- Social Security Premiums Payable 23.1 2,150,594 689,939
3- Overdue, Deferred or By Taxes and Other Liabilities - -
4- Other Taxes and Liabilities 5,512 5.472
5- Corporate Tax Liability Provision on Period Profit 35 148,228,750 -
6- Prepaid Taxes and Other Liabilities on Period Profit (-) 35 (31,748,380) -
7- Provisions for Other Taxes and Liabilities - -
G- Provisions for Other Risks 274,370,607 96,230,891
1- Provision for Employment Termination Benefits - -
2- Pension Fund Deficit Provision - -
3- Provisions for Costs 19.1 and 23.4 274,370,607 96,230,891
H- Deferred Income and Expense Accruals 19.1 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
1- Deferred C Income 17.16 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
2- Expense Accruals - -
3- Other Deferred Income - -
1- Other Short-Term Liabilities = 235
1- Deferred Tax Liabilit - -
2- Inventory Count Differences - -
3- Other Short-Term Liabilities - 235
1II - Total Short-Term Liabilities 17,754,071,232 10,677,552,944

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

LIABILITIES

1V- LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Note

Audited

Audited

Current Period
31 December 2023

Previous Period
31 December 2022

A- Borrowings

31,445,329

27,034,361

1- Loans to Financial

2- Finance Lease Payables

20

41,998,044

30,762,568

3- Deferred Finance Lease Borrowing Costs (-)

20

(10,552,715)

(3,728,207)

4- Bonds Issued

5- Other Issued Financial Assets

6- Value Differences on Issued Financial Assets (-)

7- Other Financial Borrowings (Liabilities)

B- Payables from Main Operations

1- Payables Due to Insurance Operations

2- Payables Due to Reinsurance Operations

3- Cash Deposited by Insurance & Reinsurance Companies

4- Payables Due to Pension Operations

S- Payables from Other Operations

6- Discount on Other Payables from Main Operations (-)

C- Due to Related Parties

1- Due to Sharcholders

2- Due to Affiliates

3- Due to Subsidiaries

4- Due to Joint Ventures

5- Due to Personnel

6- Due to Other Related Parties

D- Other Payables

1- Deposits and G

2- Due to SSI regarding Treatment Expenses

3- Other Payables

4- Discount on Other Payables (-)

E- Insurance Technical Reserves

1- Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net

87,322,699

156,226,080

2- Unexpired Risk Reserves - Net

3- Matk ical Reserves - Net

17.2 and 20

4- On ding Claims Reserve - Net

2,023,958

1,325,877

5- Provision for Bonus and Discounts - Net

6- Other Technical Reserves - Net

20

F- Other Liabilities and Provisions

85,298,741

154,900,203

1- Other Liabilities

2- Overdue, Deferred or By Instalment Other Liabilities

3- Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals

G- Proyvisions for Other Risks

17,437,203

33,744,176

1- Provision for Employment Termination Benefits

22

17,437,203

33,744,176

2- Provisions for Employee Pension Fund Deficits

H- Deferred Income and Expense Accruals

1- Deferred Commission Income

2- Expense Accruals

3- Other Deferred Income

I- Other Long-Term Liabilities

1- Deferred Tax Liabilit;

2- Other Long-Term Liabilities

IV- Total Long-Term Liabilities

136,205,231

217,004,617

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance
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Consolidated Statement of Income for the
Periods 1 January - 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ('TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

Audited Audited
Current Period Previous Period
1 January - 1 January
I-TECHNICAL PART Noten 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
A- Non-Life Technical Income 10,712,168,568 6,565,732,005
1- Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 7,676,712,517 4,911,860,907
1.1- Written Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 24 9,902,122,502 6,857,389,263
1.1.1- Gross Written Premiums (+) 24 27.298.748,170 13,563,436.949
1.1.2- Ceded Premiums to Reinsurers (-) 17.16 and 24 (16,962,571,717) (6,470,128,441)
1.1.3- Ceded Premiums to SSI (-) 17.16 and 24 (434,053,951) (235,919,245)
1.2- Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve
(Net of Reinsurers Shares and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) 20 (1,857,821,863) (1,885,635,360)
1.2.1- Unearned Premiums Reserve (-) 20 (7,536,925,037) (3,768,241,323)
1.2.2- Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve (+) 17.16 and 20 5,576,861,041 1,866,563,894
1.2.3- SSI of Unearned Premiums Reserve (+) 17.16 and 20 102,242,133 16,042,069

1.3- Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Audited Audited

Current Period Previous Period

V- SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Note 31 D 2023 31 2022
A- Paid in Capital 1,612,000,000 1,612,000,000
1- (Nominal) Capital 2.14 1,612,000,000 1,612,000,000
2- Unpaid Capital (-) - -
3- Positive Inflation Adjustment on Capital - -
4- Negative Inflation Adjustment on Capital (-) - -
5- Unregistered Capital - -
B- Capital Reserves 3,463,617 3,463,617
1- Equity Share Premiums 15 3,463,617 3,463,617
2- C Ilation Profits of Equity Shares - -
3- Profit on Sale to be Transferred to Capital 15 - -
4- Translation Reserves - -
5- Other Capital Reserves - -
C- Profit Reserves 432,870,962 290,838,423
1- Legal Reserves 15 111,936,210 111,936,210
2- Statutory Reserves 62 62
3- Extraordinary Reserves 15 200,091,508 200,091,508
4- Special Funds (Reserves) 15 (10,234,228) (23,070,953)
5- Revaluation of Financial Assets 16 131,077,410 1,881,596
6- Other Profit Reserves - -
D- Previous Years’ Profits 163,920,341 163,920,341
1- Previous Years’ Profits 163,920,341 163,920,341
E- Previous Years’ Losses (-) (127,345,302) -
1- Previous Years’ Losses (127,345,302) -
F- Net Profit of the Period 37 1,150,606,227 (127,345,302)
1- Net Profit of the Period 1,150,606,227 -
2- Net Loss of the Period (-) - (127,345,302)
3- Net Income not Subject to Distribution - -
V- Total Shareholders’ Equity 3,235,515,845 1,942,877,079
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity (III+IV+V) 21,125,792,308 12,837,434,640

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) 20 (367,588,122) (59.892,996)
1.3.1- Unexpired Risks Reserve (-) 20 (669.299.021) (4,479.139)
1.3.2- Rei Share of Unexpired Risks Reserve (+) 17.16 and 20 301,710,899 (55,413,857)
2-Investment Income Transferred from Non-Technical Part 2,906,245,403 1,565,362,779
3-Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurer Share) 90,518,478 37,909,145
3.1- Gross Other Technical Income (+) 90,518,478 37,909,145
3.2- Rei Share of Other Technical Income (-) - -
4- Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 38,692,170 50,599,174
B- Non-Life Technical Expense (-) (9,088,134,743) (6,645,004,456)
1-Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share) (6,621,605,137) (5,261,352,365)
1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share) (5,790,326,183) (4,440,852,010)
1.1.1- Gross Claims Paid (-) (15,091,211.575) (6.662,609,742)
1.1.2- Reinsurance Share of Claims Paid (+) 17.16 9,300,885,392 2,221,757,732
1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) 29 (831,278,954) (820,500,355)
1.2.1-O ding Claims Reserve (-) (6.450,379.492) (1.881,866,462)
1.2.2- Rei Share of O ding Claims Reserve (+) 17.16 5,619.100,538 1,061,366.107
2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) 20 (3,069) (4,656)
2.1- Bonus and Discount Reserve (-) 20 (15,157) 530,092
2.2- Rei Share of Bonus and Discount Reserve (+) 17.16 and 20 12,088 (534,748)
3- Changes in Other Technical Reserves
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) 20 69,601,462 (37,190,158)
4- Operating Expenses (-) 32 (2,000,064,602) (1,063,286,570)
5- Changes in Mathematical Reserves
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) - -
5.1- Matt ical Reserves (-) - -
5.2- Reinsurance Share of Mathematical Reserves (+) - -
6.- Other Technical Expenses (-) 47 (536,063,397) (283,170,707)
6.1.- Gross Other Technical Expenses (-) 47 (536,063,397) (283,170,707)
6.2.- Reinsurance Share of Other Technical Expenses (+) - -
C- Non-Life Technical Net Profit (A-B) 1,624,033,825 (79,272,451)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AKSIGORTA AS.

Consolidated Statement of Income for the

Periods 1 January - 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

I-TECHNICAL PART

Audited

Audited

Current Period

1 January
31 December 2023

Previous Period
1 January -
31 December 2022

D- Life Technical Income

153,360

1. Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share)

119,761

1.1 - Written Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share)

1.1.1 - Gross Written Premiums (+)

1.1.2 - Ceded Premiums to Reinsurers (-)

1.2 - Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve
(Net of Reinsurers Shares and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

1.2.1- Unearned Premium Reserves (-)

1.2.2- Unearned Premium Reserves Reinsurer Share (+)

1.3- Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

1.3.1- Unexpired Risks Reserves (-)

1.3.2- Unexpired Risks Reserves Reinsurer Share (+)

2. Life Branch Investment Income

3. Unrealized Income from Investments

153,360

119,761

4-Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurer Share) (+/-)

4.1- Gross Other Technical Income (+/-)

4.2- Share of Other Technical Income (+/-)

5- Accrued and Salvage Income (+)

E- Life Technical Expense

740

(139,@

1- Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share)

(229.479)

(157.462)

1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share)

(230.953)

(160.066)

1.1.1- Gross Claims Paid (-)

1.1.2- Claims Paid Reinsurer Share (+)

(230,953)

(160,066)

1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Provisions
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

1474

2,604

1.2.1-0 ing Claims Reserve (-)

1474

122- Share of Outstanding Claims Reserve (+)

2,604

2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

2.1 - Bonus and Discount Reserve (-)

2.2 Rei Share of Bonus and Discount Reserve (+)

3-Changes in Mathematical Reserves
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

(698,081)

17,632

300 Reserves (-)

(698.081)

17,632

3.1.1- Actuarial ical Reserve (-)

(628.273)

15.869

3.1.2- Profit Share Reserve
(Reserves for Life Insurance Policies Including Investment Risk) (-)

3.2- Reinsurer Share of ical Reserves (+)

(69.808)

1763

3.2.1- Share of Actuarial Reserve (1)

3.2.2- Reinsurance Share of Profit Share Rescrve
(Reserves for Life Insurance Policies Including Investment Risk) ()

4- Changes in Other Technical Reserves
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-)

5- Operating Expenses (-)

050)

6- Investment Expenses (-)

7- Unrealized Losses from Investments (-)

8- Investment Income Transferred to Non- Technical Part (-)

F- Life Technical Profit (D-E)

G- Technical Income

[GZE)

[EXID)

1- Fund Fee
2 Fee Deduction

3- Initial Ce Fee

4- Management Fee in Case of Temporary

S- Withholding tax

6- Increase in Market Value of Capital C Advances

7-Other Technical Income

H- i Technical Expense

1 Fund Expenses (-)

2- Decrease in Market Value of Capital C¢ i Advances (-)

3-Operating Expenses (-)

4- Other Technical Expense (-)

1I- Technical Profit (G-H))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income for the
Periods 1 January — 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

Audited Audited
Current Period Previous Period
1 January- 1 January-
[I-NON-TECHNICAL PART Note 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
IC- Non-Life Technical Profit (A-B) 1,624,033,825| (79,272,451)
[F- Life Technical Profit (D-E) (774,380 (20,069))
I - Individual Retirement Technical Profit (G-H) | |
W- Total Technical Profit (C+F+I) 1,623,259,445| (79,292,520)|
[K- Investment Income 5,448,349,043| 2,440,490,473|
1- Income from Financial Investment 26 942,571,799 475,570,846,
2- Income from Sales of Financial Investments 26 248,392,449 501,861,764
3- Revaluation of Financial Investments 26 991,644,784| 190,680,767
@- Foreign Exchange Gains 36 3,265,713,482] 1,207,382,169|
[5- Income from Affiliates g E
- Income from Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures k| b
[7- Income Received from Land and Building 5 E
8- Income from Derivatives 13 and 26 26,529 64,994,927,
- Other Investments g E
10- Investment Income transferred from Life Technical Part B -
IL- Investment Expenses (-) 561,747,322) 2,533,045,034)
1- Investment Management Expenses (including interest) (-) 20 (60,030,785)| (57,118,259)
- Valuation Allowance of Investments (-) 26 (87,686,967)| (16,582,872)|
13- Losses on Sales of Investments (-) 26 (55,065,185)| (68,099,151)|
#- Investment Income Transferred to Life Technical Part (-) (2,906,245,403)| (1,565,362,779)|
I5- Losses from Derivatives (-) (8,891,020)] |
|- Foreign Exchange Losses (-) 36 (2,347,511,714)| (764,778,207))
[7- Depreciation Expenses (-) 6,7 and 8 (96,316,248)| (61,103,766)|
8- Other Investment Expenses (-) g g
M- Other Income and Expenses (+/-) 47 (211,026,189)| 44,501,779
1- Provisions Account (+/-) 47 (58,241,663)| (17.641,324)
[2- Discount account (+/-) g B
- Mandatory Earthquake Insurance Account (+/-) 47 12,996,481 6,798,025
#- Inflation Adjustment Account (+/-) R B
[5- Deferred Tax Asset Accounts (+/-) 35 and 47 92,079,765 185,277,610
- Deferred Tax Expense Accounts (-) g |
7- Other Income and Revenues 47 17,780,403] 9,956,934
8- Other Expense and Losses (-) 47 (275,641,175)| (139,889,466)|
9- Prior Period Income 5 E
10- Prior Period Losses (-) g |
IN- Net Profit/(Loss) 37 1,150,606,227| (127,345,302)|
1- Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 1,298,834,977| (127,345,302)
2- Corporate Tax Liability Provision (-) 35 (148,228,750)| -
13- Net Profit/(Loss) 1,150,606.227] (127,345,302)
H- Inflation Adjustment Account — e

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



148 Corporate Profile Sustainability

AKSIGORTA AS.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the

Activities

Corporate Governance

Periods 1 January — 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

- ™
w:\FincncicI Information and Risk Mcnc:gement/iw

Audited Audited

Current Period Previous Period

Note December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

A. CASH FLOWS FROM THE OPERATING ACTIVITIES 45,771,104,203 18,114,811,255

1. Cash inflows from the insurance operations - -

2. Cash inflows from the reinsurance operations - -

3. Cash inflows from the pension operations - -

4. Cash outflows due to the insurance operations (-) (42,311,539,829) (16,415,525,948)

5. Cash outflows due to the reinsurance operations (-) - -

6. Cash outflows due to the pension operations (-) - -

7. Cash generated from the operating activities (A1+A2+A3-A4-A5-A6) 3,459,564,374 1,699,285,307

8. Interest payments (-) - -

9. Income tax payments (-) 35 (3,871,204) (25,729,105)

10. Other cash inflows (51,669,793) 39,667,842

11. Other cash outflows (-) 86,274,668 (456,583,339)

12. Net cash generated from the operating activities 3,490,298,045 1,256,640,705
B. CASH FLOWS FROM THE INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Sale of tangible assets 6 3,572,534 3,116,650

2. Purchase of tangible assets (-) 6,7 and 8 (277,682,259) (116,720,454)

3. Acquisition of financial assets (-) (6,355,319,473) (10,333,245,772)

4. Sale of financial assets 1,596,782,301 10,045,157,777

5. Interest received 927,732,845 1,103,779,948

6. Dividends received - -

7. Other cash inflows - -

8. Other cash outflows (-) - (39,551,508)

9. Net cash generated from the investing activities (4,104,914,052) 662,536,641
C. CASH FLOWS FROM THE FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Issue of equity shares - 3,463,617

2. Cash inflows from the loans to policyholders 20 - 544,473,124

3. Payments of financial leases (-) 20 (36,878,233) (20,648,629)

4. Dividend paid (-) 38 - -

5. Other cash inflows 20 - 1,000,000,000

6. Other cash outflows (-) (459,509,597) (49,500,450)

7. Cash generated from the financing activities (496,387,830) 1,477,787,662

D. EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 908,720,570 6,238,393

E. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A12+B9+C7+D) (202,283,267) 3,403,203,401

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 14 5,180,476,288 1,777,272,887

G. Cash and cash equivalents at the ending of the period (E+F) 14 4,978,193,021 5,180,476,288

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AKSIGORTA AS.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the Periods 1 January — 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

The C: lidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity — 1 January — 31 December 2023 Audited (*)

Equity Other

Shares Revaluation Inflation Reserves and Net Previous
Owned by the of Financial Adjustment Translation Legal Statutory Retained Profit/(Loss) Years’
CURRENT PERIOD Capital Company (-) Assets on Capital Reserves Reserves Reserves Earnings | for the Period Profit/(Loss) Total
I - Closing Balance of Prior Period
(31 December 2022) 1,612,000,000 - 1,881,596 - 111,936,210 62 180,484,172 | (127,345,302) 163,920,341 | 1,942,877,079
1I - Changes in Accounting Policy (Note 2.1.1) - - - - - - - - - - -
III - New Balance (I + II) (31 December
2022) 1,612,000,000 - 1,881,596 - - 111,936,210 62 180,484,172 | (127,345,302) 163,920,341 | 1,942,877,079
A- Capital increase (A1+A2) - - - - - - - - -
1- Cash - - - - - - - - - - -
2- Internal sources - - - - - - - - - - -
B- Equity shares purchased by the company - - - - - - - - - - -
C- Income/(expense) recognized directly in the
equity - - - - - - - - - -
D- Revaluation of financial assets (Note 16.5) - - 129,195,814 - - - - - - - 129,195,814
E- Translation reserves - - - - - - - - - - -
F- Other income/(expenses) - - - - - - - 12,836,725 - - 12,836,725
G- Inflation adjustment differences - - - - - - - - - -
H- Period net profit (Note 37) - - - - - - - 1,150,606,227 -1 1,150,606,227
I- Dividend distributed - - - - - - - - - - -
J- Transfer - - - - - - - - 127,345,302 | (127,345,302) -
IV- Closing Balance (31 December 2023)
(III+A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H+I+J) 1,612,000,000 131,077,410 111,936,210 62 193,320,897 | 1,150,606,227 36,575,039 | 3,235,515,845

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the Periods 1 January — 31 December 2023 and 2022

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

The C: lidated S t of Ch in Shareholders’ Equity — 1 January — 31 December 2022 Audited (*)
Other
Equity Shares Revaluation Inflation Reserves and Net Previous
Owned by the of Financial Adjustment Translation Legal Statutory Retained Profit/(Loss) Years’

PREVIOUS PERIOD Capital Company (-) Assets on Capital Reserves Reserves Reserves Earnings | for the Period Profit/(Loss) Total
I - Closing Balance of Prior Period
(31 December 2022) 306,000,000 - (30,139,525) - - 111,936,210 62 308,176,188 189,396,766 163,920,341 | 1,049,290,042
11 - Changes in Accounting Policy (Note 2.1.1) - - - - - - - - - - -
III - New Balance (I + II) (31 December
2022) 306,000,000 - (30,139,525) - - 111,936,210 62 308,176,188 189,396,766 163,920,341 | 1,049,290,042
A- Capital increase (A1+A2) 1,306,000,000 - - - - - -] (306,000,000) - -1 1,000,000,000
1- Cash 1,000,000,000 - - - - - - - - -1 1,000,000,000
2- Internal sources 306,000,000 - - - - - -1 (306,000,000) - - -
B- Equity shares purchased by the compan: - - - - - - - - - - -
C- Income/(expense) recognized directly in the
equity - - - - - - - - - - -
D- Revaluation of financial assets (Note 16.5) - - 32,021,121 - - - - - - - 32,021,121
E- Translation reserves - - - - - - - - - - -
F- Other income/(expenses) - - - - - - - (11,088,782) - - (11,088,782)
G- Inflation adjustment differences - - - - - - - - - - -
H- Period net profit (Note 37) - - - - - - - -|(127,345,302) -1 (127,345,302)
I- Dividend distributed - - - - - - - - - - -
J- Transfer - - - - - - - 189,396,766 |  (189,396,766) - -
IV- Closing Balance (31 December 2023)

(III+A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H+I+J) 1,612,000,000 - 1,881,596 - - 111,936,210 62 180,484,172 | (127,345,302) 163,920,341 | 1,942,877,079

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AKSIGORTA AS.

Profit Distribution as of

1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Period
31 December 2023 (*)

Previous Period
31 December 2022

L. DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

1.1. Profit for The Period

1.150,606,227

(121,148.616)

1.2 Taxes Payable and Legal Liabilities

1.2.1, Corporation Tax (Income Tax)

1.2.2, Income Tax Deduction

1,23, Other Taxes and Legal Liabilities

A NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (1.1 -1.2)

1,150,606,227

(121,148.616)

1.3. Previous Years' Losses (-)

1.4 First Legal Reserve

1.5. Legal Reserves Kept in The Company (-)
MANDATORY STATUTORY FUNDS (-)

B NET DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT

FOR THE PERIOD [ (A - (1.3 + 1.4+ 1.5)]

1.6. First Dividend to Shareholders (-)

.1. To Common Shareholders

2. To Preferred Shareholders

1.6.3. To Owners of Participating Redeemed Shares

1.6.4. To Owners of Profit-Sharing Securities

1.6.5. To Owners of Profit and Loss Sharing Securities

1.7. Dividends to Personnel (-)

1.8. Dividends to Founders (-)

1.9. Dividends to Board of Directors (-)

1.10.Second Dividends to Sharcholders (-)

1.10.1. To Common Shareholders

1.10.2. To Preferred Sharcholders

1.10.3. To Owners of Participating Redeemed Shares

1.10.4. To Owners of Profit-Sharing Securities

1.10.5. To Owners of Profit and Loss Sharing Securities

1.11.Second Legal Reserve (1)

1.12.Statutory Reserves (-)

1.13. Extraordinary Reserves

1.14. Other Reserves

1.15. Special Funds

ILDISTRIBUTION FROM RESERVES

2.1. Distributed Reserves

2.2.Second Legal Reserve (-)

2.3.Dividends to Shareholders (-)

2.3.1. To Common Shareholders

To Preferred Sharcholders

2.3.3. To Owners of Participating Redeemed Shares

4. To Owners of Profit-Sharing Securities

.3.5. To Owners of Profit and Loss Sharing Securities

2.4.Dividends to Employees (-)

2.5 Dividends to Board of Directors (-)

111 PROFIT PER SHARE

3.1.To Common Shareholders

3.2.To Common Shareholders (%)

3.3. To Preferred Shareholders

3.4. To Preferred Shareholders (%)

1V. DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

4.1. To Common Shareholders

4.2. To Common Shareholders (%)

4.3. To Preferred Shareholders

(*)  The authorized body of the Company regarding the distribution of period profit is the General Assembly. The General Assembly
mecting for the accounting period of 1 January - 31 December 2023 has not been held as of the preparation date of the financial

statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

1.1
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1.3
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1.5
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Name of the Parent Partnership and the ultimate owner

Aksigorta Anonim Sirketi (‘the Company or the Parent Partnership’) is a subsidiary of Hact Omer
Sabanci Holding A.S$. and Ageas Insurance International N.V. as of 31 December 2023. 38.02%
(31 December 2022: 38.02%) of the Parent Partnership is issued in Borsa Istanbul (‘BIST”) (Note
2.14).

The Company’s address and legal structure and address of its registered country and
registered office (or, if the Company’s address is different from its registered office, the
original location where the Company’s actual operations are performed)

The Group is a corporation, which was established in accordance with the requirements of Turkish
Commercial Code and registered in Turkey as at 25 April 1960. The headquarter of the Company
is located at, “Fatih Sultan Mehmet Mahallesi, Poligon Caddesi, Buyaka 2 Sitesi, | Blok No:8A
T¢ Kap1 No:2 Umraniye/istanbul”*.

The Parent Company, as a 100% subsidiary, with a paid-in capital of TRY 100,000 , with the title
of Sabanci Ageas Saglik Sigorta Anonim Sirketi (Subsidiary — “Sabanci1 Ageas”) to carry out all
kinds of currency, reinsurance and retrocession works within the scope of health insurance, with
the Board of Directors Decision dated July 21 2022. established a joint stock company and the
establishment of the insurance company was registered in the Trade Registry on 3 August 2022

Main operations of the Company

Aksigorta A.S.’s (Parent Partnership) main operations include insurance activities based on non-
life insurance branches, including primarily motor vehicle, motor third party liability, fire, marine,
accident, personal accident, engineering, agriculture and health. The headquarters of the
Company is in Istanbul. The Company has 10 district offices of which three of them are in Istanbul
(istanbul Anatolian Region, Istanbul European Region and Istanbul Thracian Region), and one in
each White Sea and South Aegean Region, Ankara Region, Cukurova and Central Anatolia
Region, Eastern Anatolia and Eastern Black Sea Region, Southeast Region, izmir and North
Aegean Region, Marmara and West Black sea Region. As of 31 December 2023, the Company
has 3,725 authorized agencies (31 December 2022: 3,541).

The main field of activity of Sabanci Ageas Saglik Sigorta Anonim Sirketi is to carry out health
insurance, all kinds of coinsurance, reinsurance and retrocession works within the scope of health
insurances.

Details of the Company’s operations and nature of field of activities
Explained in Note 1.2 and Note 1.3.

Average number of the Company’s personnel based on their categories

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Top executive 12 10
Manager assistant manager 154 109
Specialist/Executives 605 571

Total 771 690
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

£

R ation and fringe b provided to top management

For the year ended December 2022, wages and similar benefits provided to the senior
management including chairman, members of the board of the directors, general manager, general
coordinator, and deputy general managers amounted to TRY40,210,616 (31 December 2022:
TRY14,795,348)

Distribution keys used in the distribution of investment income and operating expenses in
the financial statements (personnel expenses, administration expenses, research and
development expenses, marketing and selling expenses and other operating expenses)

Within the framework of the Republic of Turkey of the Treasury and Finance Ministry
(‘Treasury and Finance Ministry’) ‘Circular relating to Procedures and Principles for Keys used
in Financial Statements prepared in the scope of Uniform Chart of Accounts for Insurance No.
2008/1 is dated 4 January 2008’ is changed to ‘Circular relating to Procedures and Principles for
Keys used in Financial Statements prepared in the scope of Uniform Chart of Accounts for
Insurance in relation amending No. 2010/9 is dated August 9, 2010

Other investment revenues were classified under the non-technical division. While distributing to
sub-branches the operating expenses transferred to technical division, the last three-year weighted
average of number of policies generated in the current period, the premium amount written as
gross and number of claims were taken into account.

Stand.

1 or lid 1 fi ol stat, <

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared by consolidating the financial statements
of the Parent Company (Aksigorta A.S.) and its subsidiary Sabanci1 Ageas Saglik Sigorta Anonim
Sirketi using the full consolidation method. As of 31 December 2023, the unconsolidated financial
statements of the Parent Company have been prepared and published separately in accordance
with the current legislation. Special funds established by the Group are not included in the
consolidation within the framework of the “Sector related to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements™ announcement published by SEDDK on 23 December 2022.

b t ch

y and q

Name and other information of the reporting
balance sheet date

to the prior

P

There has been no change in The Company’s name and other company information presented in
Note 1.1, Note 1.2 and Note 1.3 as of the prior balance sheet date.

Subsequent Events

The consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2023 have been approved by the
Group's Board of Directors on 8 February 2024. The consolidated financial statements,
according to Decree on ‘Financial Reporting of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and
Pensions Funds’, were signed by the Chief Executive Officer Haluk Dinger, Chief Financial
Officer Osman Akkoca, Accounting Manager Sultan Esra Alkan and Actuary Halil Kolbasi on
behalf of the Board of Directors. Detailed information about this subsequent events is disclosed
in Note 46.

2.1

2.1.

—

- ™
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SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

Basis of Preparation of C

lidated Fi ial S ts and Specific Accounting Policies Used
a. Accounting Standards

Capital Market Law VII. Pursuant to paragraph (a) of section 50 article, insurance companies are
subject to the provisions of their special legislation on establishment, audit, surveillance,
accounting, financial statement, and reporting standards. In this context, the Group prepares its
financial statements in accordance with the Insurance Law No,5684 published in the Official
Gazette dated June 14, 2007 and numbered 26522 and the regulations published by the Insurance
and Private Pension Regulation and Supervision Agency (‘SEDDK’) established by the
Presidential Decree dated October 18, 2019. The insurance legislation before the establishment
of SEDDK and the initiation of regulatory activities regarding the insurance sector was published
by the Ministry of Treasury and Finance (‘Ministry of Treasury and Finance”).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Insurance Chart of
Accounts included in the communiqué issued by the Treasury regarding the Insurance Chart of
Accounts and Prospects, published in the Official Gazette (N0:25686) dated 30 December 2004
(Insurance Accounting System Communiqué No:1) and announcement of new account codes in
the Insurance Account Plan dated 27 December 2011 and numbered 2011/14. Content and the
format of the financial statements prepared and explanations and notes thereof are determined in
accordance with the Communiqué on Presentation of Financial Statements published in the
Official Gazette numbered 26851 dated 18 June 2008 and the Communique on the New
Accounting Codes and Presentation of Financial Statements published in the Official Gazette
dated 31 May 2012 and numbered 2012/7.

As of 1 January 2008, the Group accounts for its operations in accordance with the ‘Regulation
on Financial Reporting of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension Companies” issued
on 14 July 2007 and effective from 1 January 2008 within the framework of this regulation a,
Turkish Accounting Standards (‘TAS’) and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (‘TFRS’)
issued by Turkish Accounting Standards Board (‘TASB’) and other regulations, communiqués
and explanations issued by Treasury on accounting and financial reporting.

With reference to the notice of Treasury No. 9 dated February 18, 2008, ‘TAS 1- Financial
Statements and Presentation’, ‘TAS 27- Consolidated and Non-consolidated Financial
Statements’, ‘TFRS 1 - Transition to TFRS’ and ‘TFRS 4- Insurance Contracts’ were not
included in the scope of this application for the year 2008.

The Group accounts and recognizes its insurance technical provisions in its consolidated financial
statements as of 31 December 2023 in accordance with the ‘Regulation Regarding the Technical
Reserves of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension Companies and the Assets to which These
Reserves Are Invested,” (‘Regulation on Technical Reserves’) dated 28 July 2010 and published
in official gazette numbered 27655 and published in Official Gazette dated 17 July 2012
numbered 28356 effective and the regulations issued for insurance and reinsurance companies by
the Treasury and Finance Ministry
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SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C: lidated Fi ial St
(Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

fo1 Qfaf

b. Preparation of Fi in Hyperinflati 'y Periods

With its announcement dated 23 November 2023, KGK stated that the financial statements of
businesses applying Turkish Financial Reporting Standards for the annual reporting period ending
on or after 31 December 2023 should be prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard in High Inflation Economies (“TMS 29”). He explained that institutions or organizations
authorized to regulate and supervise their own fields may determine different transition dates for
the implementation of TMS 29 provisions. Based on this announcement of the KGK, SEDDK,
with its circular numbered 2023/30 dated December 6, 2023, decided that the financial statements
of insurance, reinsurance and pension companies dated December 31, 2023 will not be subject to
the inflation adjustment required within the scope of TMS 29. Based on this, the Company did
not apply the inflation accounting required within the scope of TAS 29 in its financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2023.

[ Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements

The balance sheet of the Group as of 31 December 2023 and the balance sheet as of
31 December 2022; Income statement, equity change statement and cash flow statement for the
accounting period 1 January - 31 December 2023, income statement for the 1 January - 31
December 2022 period are presented in comparison with the statement of changes in shareholders'
equity and cash flow statement.

d.  Technical Reserves
Unearned Premium Reserve

An unearned premium reserve is calculated on a daily basis for all policies in force as of the
balance sheet date for unearned portions of premiums written. For marine policies with an
uncertain end date, unearned premium reserve is calculated as 50% of the premiums written in
the last three months. During the calculation of unearned portion of premiums written on a daily
basis, it is supposed that the policies start at 12:00 noon and finish at 12:00 noon again.
Commissions paid for written premium and commissions received from ceded premium that hit
future months and future income statements are accounted in prepaid expenses and prepaid
expenses for future years respectively in balance sheet, net in operating expenses. According to
the Technical Reserves Regulation, foreign exchange selling rates declared in the Official Gazette
of the CBRT on the date of accrual of the relevant premium are taken into account in the account
of the unearned premiums related to the insurance contracts, which are indexed to beverages, if
no foreign exchange rate is specified in the insurance contract (Note 20).

Deferred Commission Expense and Income

Within the framework of the Circular numbered 2007/25 and dated 28 December 2007 published
by Treasury, the unearned portion of commissions paid to agencies for the written premiums and
commissions received from reinsurers for the ceded premium, are recorded as in deferred
expenses and deferred income, respectively on the balance sheet, and as operating expenses on a
net basis in the income statement.

2.1

2.1.

—
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Summary of the Accounting Policies(Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Unexpired Risks Reserve

Within the framework of Regulation on Technical Reserves, from 1 January 2008, insurance
companies are required to account for an unexpired risk reserve against the probability that, future
losses incurred from in force policies may exceed the unearned premium reserve accounted for
the related policies considering expected loss ratios. 2019/5 sayili In the Circular on Provision for
Unexpired Risk Reserve 2019/5, it is stated that the amount of Unexpired Risks Reserve can be
calculated on the basis of the accounting year or the year of accident as explained in the first
paragraph. In accordance with the circular in question, if a separate calculation is made for works
where 100% of the direct production is transferred to pools established in Turkey, the gross
damage premium rate exceeds 100%, and for other works, if the gross damage premium rate
exceeds 85%, the excess amount is calculated as gross unearned premiums. It is possible to
calculate the net Unexpired Risks Provision amount by multiplying by the gross Unexpired Risks
Provision and the net unearned premiums provision. As of December 31, 2023, the company
changed its method and makes calculations on the basis of accident year in all branches.

The loss ratio (after discounting) calculated by branches and the net provision amounts are
presented below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Claim/Premium Net URR _ Claim/Premium Net URR

Motor Liability 114% 520,805,987 121% 152,006,637
Indemnity - - - -
Water Crafts - - 108% 1,210,418
Aircraft Liability 151% 213 223% 1,024
520,806,200 153,218,079

Bonuses and rebates reserve

The bonus and rebates provisions are the amount that has to be made provision if the Group
commits to pay bonus to insured’s’ policies in force regardless of renewal of the related policies.
According to Insurance Law Article No.16, if the Company decides to bonus or discount
operations, the amount must be allocated for insured person or beneficiaries regarding to technical
results of the current year.

The Group has calculated and accounted for gross bonuses and rebates reserve amounting to
TRY259,040 and TRY 13,293 net at 31 December 2023 (as of 31 December 2022 company has
calculated and accounted gross bonus and rebates reserve amounting to TRY243,883 and
TRY 10,224 net) (Note 20).
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S y of the A ing Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

lidated Fi f

Basis of Preparation of C
(Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

Claims provision

The Group accounts for outstanding claims and indemnities for the claims and indemnity costs
which have accrued and determined on account, but not actually paid in the previous fiscal
periods or in the current fiscal period or if this amount could not be calculated, for the claims and
indemnity costs which have emerged in expected amounts, but not reported.

In accordance with Technical Reserve Regulation and ‘Circular on Regarding to Statements
Related to Accounting of Claim Files in a Lawsuit, Actuarial Chain Ladder Method and Recovery
and Salvage Income’ dated 14 January 2011 numbered 2011/1, outstanding claim reserves are
made according to calculated average amounts in accordance with the methods determined by
Treasury as of 1 July 2012 for cases with uncertain amounts. Furthermore, outstanding claim
reserves are updated according to experts' reports received from courts and stated amounts
according to lawsuit judgements.

Claims that occurred before the accounting periods but were notified after these dates are
considered as incurred but not reported claims.

In accordance with the ‘Regulation Regarding the Amendment of the Regulation Regarding
Technical Reserves of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension Companies and the Assets to which
These Reserves Are Invested” published in the Official Gazette dated 28 July 2010 and numbered
27655 and the Circular on Claims Provision dated 5 December 2014 and numbered 2014/16, the
Company’s Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims provisions were calculated using the
actuarial chain ladder methods (‘ACLM”).

The Regulation on the amendment of the related Regulation, published in the Official Gazette
dated 5 July 2012 and numbered 28356 has enforced the provision ‘Incurred but not reported
claims are calculated using the actuarial chain ladder method, the content and implementation
basis are determined by the Treasury and Finance Ministry or other calculation methods to be
determined by the Treasury and Finance Ministry

2.
2.1
2.1.1
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)
lidated Fi

ol Qeaf "

Basis of Preparation of C:
(Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

In accordance with the circular issued by Turkish Treasury dated 5 December 2014 and numbered
2014/16, as of 1 January 2015 selection of data to be used in the calculation in branch-basis,
adjusting process, selection of most appropriate method to interfere with the development factors
are performed by the Group’s actuary. IBNR calculation in non-life insurance in accordance with
the same circular, chain ladder methods are Standard Chain, Claim/Premium, Cape Cod,
Frequency/Severity, Munich Chain or Bornhuett-Ferguson. The method’s using by the actuary
are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Toss
Additional

Applied Net Additional Gross Additional  Net Additional
Branch Method Reserve Reserve Applied Method Reserve Reserve
Motor Liability Standart/Frequency ~ 6,361,432,752  4.490,219,150  Standart/Frequency 3,026,407,005 3,026,407,005
General Liability Standart/Frequency 988,104,451 143,157,164 Standart/Frequency 665. 5 109,039,032
Fire and Natural Standard Chain 59,165,311 10,4531 Standard Chain 3,612,326

Standard Chain
Standard Chain
Standard Chain

Standard Chain
762,027 Standard Chain
Standard Chain

General Losses
Financial losses

1,423,288
(361,141)
Watererafts 1166916

16

Indemnity Standard Chain 814,284 Standard Chain

Accident Standard Chain 5 1,329,997 Standard Chain 1,029,054
Air Crafs Liability Standard Chain 9 1 Standard Chain 104,744
Legal Protection Standard Chain 494 281,494 Standard Chain (137)
Credit Standard Chain ,540 1,476 Standard Chain (2,750,719) (1,161,145)
Air Crafts Standard Chain 10,951,853 2 Standard Chain 12,454 620
Logistic Standard Chain 4,823,886 (74,868) Standard Chain (3,269.672) (73,251)
Health Standard Chain 3,175,66 8,447 Standard Chain 3,701,144 394,488
Motor own damage Standard Chain (3.152.418) (138,045) Standard Chain (52,077.334) (52,077,334)
Total 7.496,580,549  4,648,928,356 3,752,361,695  3.089,504.481

With the resolution of Ministry of Treasury and Finance dated 5 July 2017 and numbered 18145,
‘Risky Insurance Pool’ is founded as of 12 April 2017. Accordingly, the premium and loss
amounts that the Company will transfer to the pool in the Compulsory Traffic branch are excluded
from the data used when calculating the IBNR. For the claims that the Company will inherit from
the mentioned pool; Claim Premium rates on the basis of the accident period published by the
Turkish Motor Vehicles Bureau have been taken into account. Accordingly, the premium and loss
amounts that the Company will transfer to the pool in the Compulsory Traffic branch are excluded
from the data used when calculating the IBNR. For the damages that the Company will inherit
from the mentioned pool; Damage premium rates published by the Turkish Motor Vehicles
Bureau were used. A total of 1,159,059,997 TL of provision calculated using the 188% loss
premium ratio in the report was reflected in the financial statements.

“Circular on the Discounting of Net Cash Flows Arising from Unpaid Compensation Provisions”,
dated 10 June 2016 and numbered 2016/22, published by the Ministry of Treasury and Finance
and dated 30 December 2021 and numbered 2021/30, published by the Insurance and Private
Pension Regulation and Supervision Agency. In accordance with the Circular No. 2016/22
Amending the Circular No. 2016/22 on Discounting of Net Cash Flows Arising from
Compensation Provisions, 14% is allowed to be taken into account in the calculation of discount.
It has been stated that the differences between the periods due to the mentioned rate change should
be accepted as a change in the estimation method and the effect of this change on the financial
statements should be explained comparatively in the notes. As explained in Note 2.1.1, unlike
previous periods, the company started on 31 December 2022 to calculate discounts for all
branches and as of 31 December 2023, net outstanding claims discount of TRY3,736,342,608 (31
December 2022: TRY 1,934,424,239) was calculated. In accordance with the “Circular No.
2016/22 Amending the Circular No. 2016/22 on Discounting of Net Cash Flows Arising from
Outstanding Claims Provisions™ (“2022/22 numbered”) dated April 27, 2022 and numbered
2022/13, the discount calculation as of 31 December 2023 has been made by considering the
annual rate of 35%. (31 December 2022: 14% per annum) . The increase in the discount rate from
22% to 35% with the Circular No. 2022-22 had a net increase of TRY 482,561,564 on the discount
amount.
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Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial
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The discount calculation has been made by taking into account the development of paid claims.
In the calculation, the distribution of material and bodily damage payments over the years for the
Motor Liability branch has been evaluated separately. As of 31 December 2022 the Company's
net outstanding claims provisions on a branch basis, before and after discounting, are given below:

31 December 2023

Net Discounted

Net Outstanding Claim Outstanding Claim
Branch Provision Before Discount Discount Amount Provision
Motor Liability 5,845,001,203 3,184,429,320 2,660,571,883
Motor own damage 665,340,894 62,259,373 603,081,521
General Liability 450,282,710 331,008,806 119,273,904
Fire and Natural 205,448,701 111,550,136 93,898,565
General Losses 62,335,153 13,840,805 48,494,348
Logistic 47,651,282 3,241,114 44,410,168
Financial losses 26,564,783 20,391,806 6,172,977
Watercrafts 21,260,338 3,569,225 17,691,113
Indemnity 14,602,126 1,263,431 13,338,695
Health 8,127,051 502,752 7,624,299
Accident 8,692,028 3,969,537 4,722,491
Legal Protection 590,517 310,184 280,333
Credit 1,810 918 892
Air Crafts Liability 30,439 5,200 25,239
Air Crafts 2 1 1
Total 7,355,929,037 3,736,342,608 3,619,586,429
31 December 2022
Net Discounted
Net Outstanding Claim Outstanding Claim

Branch

Provision Before Discount

Discount Amount

Provision

Motor Liability

3,792,443,155

1,624,602,137

2,167,841,018

General Liability 341,072,506 200,994,365 140,078,141
Motor own damage 336,293,905 51,161,668 285,132,237
Fire and Natural 154,813,809 41,825,583 112,988,226
General Losses 32,099,073 4,300,275 27,798,798
Logistic 22,543,469 1,420,989 21,122,480
Watercrafts 14,219,011 1,909,811 12,309,200
Health 9,126,946 741,994 8,384,952
Indemnity 8,539,374 749,277 7,790,097
Accident 5,561,196 2,123,965 3,437,231
Financial losses 5,515,949 4,414,983 1,100,966
Legal Protection 396,656 151,998 244,658
Air Crafts Liability 87,102 26,578 60,524
Credit 19,700 632 19,068
Air Crafts (137) (16) 121)
Total 4,722,731,714 1,934,424,239 2,788,307.475
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial
(Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

While determining the amount of IBNR, the group actuary has determined the threshold values
for major damages with plot analysis starting from 2015, whereas it was calculated by Box-Plot
method, which is permitted only by the Treasury and Finance Ministry in the Compulsory Traffic
branch before 2014/16 Circle, in order to work with a more homogenous dataset. Files exceeding
the threshold value determined by this method are considered as major damage. Since the damage
progress of these files is separate from the other files, IBNR amounts have been determined and
added to the provisions by a separate calculation for these files. Threshold values determined by
31 December 2022 and 2023 are total number of files subject to calculation, number of files
determined as major damage and their shares in total files are as follows.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Total Total
# of Major | Number of #of Major | Number of # of Major
BRANCH Threshold | Claim Files | Claim Files | _Threshold | Claim Files | Claim Files | _Threshold | Claim Files
General Liability 3.350.000 284 356497 0.5% | 1,630,000 19 48,032 0.90%
Employer's
Financial Liability 1,100,000 107 21,071 0.5% 650,000 145 17,339 0.80%
Financial Liability 1
Third Parties 1,500,000 112 23,939 0.5% 600,000 181 21171 0.90%
Other 750,000 65 11,487 0.6% 400,000 93 9,522 1.00%
General Losses 999,999 370 227.403 0.2% 999,999 215 214434 0.10%
T 499,999 389 70411 0.6% 499.999 245 68.080 0.40%
Fire and Natural
Disaster 999.999 1043 359911 03% 999.999 437 334.459 0.10%
Accident 400,000 8 9.235 0.5% 299.999 51 8.654 0.60%
Suretyship 500,000 103 14,579 0.7% 199.999 235 12,835 1.80%
Financial Losses 100,000 134 41,105 0.3% 50,000 93 39916 0.20%
(*)  Group, 31 December 2023 the Group has determined the General Liability major claim limits on the basis of the main branch.

In the branches where major damages are determined, gross and net additional provision amounts
that are separately made for these files and added to Outstanding Claim Provisions are shown in
the following table.

Gross Additional
Branch Amount NET IBNR
Facultative Public Liability 14,873,807 14,873,807
General Liability 203,416,783 5,041,443
General Losses 43,385,451 1,640,947
Financial Losses 27,957,554 1,559,147
Fire and Natural Disaster 45,127,590 4,632,634
Accident 1,687,716 267,111
Transportation 3,386,808 356,731
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.1

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fil ial Stat ts and Specific Accounting Policies Used 2.1.
(Continued)

In accordance with the circular, IBNR was calculated by the company actuary on the basis of
Accident Periods using the methods mentioned above. For the aforementioned gross IBNR
amounts, reinsurer shares have been calculated by taking into account the types of reinsurance
agreements and reinsurance rates applicable to the relevant branches in the relevant accident
periods.

In accordance with the Circular of the TR Ministry of Treasury and Finance, dated
26 November 2011 and numbered 2011/23, “Circular on Disclosures Related to Incurred But Not
Reported Provision (IBNR) Calculation”, companies are classified by sub-branches, taking into
account the date of lawsuit conclusion and according to the realizations of the last five years. By
calculating a winning rate over the amounts of the lawsuits filed against the company, they can
make a discount in proportion to the said rate, provided that it does not exceed 25% from the
outstanding files accrued for their files in the litigation process (15% in branches that have
recently started activities and do not have data for five years). Within the scope of the relevant
regulation, net TRY427,569,989 has been deducted from the outstanding claims provisions,
taking into account the winning rates calculated using the Company's last five-year lawsuit file
data set. (31 December 2022: TRY217,633,489)

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Branch Win Rate Used Win Rate Used
Indemnity 10.00% 0.00%
Financial losses 25.00% 25.00%
General Liability 25.00% 25.00%
General Losses 25.00% 25.00%
Air Crafts 25.00% 25.00%
Aircraft Liability 25.00% 25.00%
Legal Protection 25.00% 25.00%
Facultative Public Liability 24.00% 25.00%
Motor own damage 25.00% 25.00%
Motor Liability 25.00% 25.00%
Accident 25.00% 25.00%
Credit 5.00% 25.00%
Transportation 25.00% 25.00%
Watercrafts 25.00% 25.00%
Fire and Natural 25.00% 25.00%

Equalization Reserve

In accordance with the Regulation on Technical Reserves, insurance companies are required to
record an equalization reserve for the insurance contracts including earthquake and credit
coverage, in order to cover the catastrophic risks and in order to equalize the fluctuations within
the claim ratios that may occur during the following accounting periods. Such reserve is
calculated over 12% of net earthquake and credit premiums corresponding to each year. In the
calculation of the net premium, the amounts paid for the non-proportional reinsurance
agreements are regarded as ceded premiums.

—
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial S and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

In condition of not being of balancing provision of current year, paid claims for earthquake and
provision of outstanding claim which is supported by documents such as appraisal report or taken
from official organizations in term of disaster can be discounted from balancing reserve.

The Group has deducted a net loss of TRY61,057 , which it paid for the Diizce Earthquake claims
that occurred in 2022 and net damage of 154,503,882 TL paid for Kahramanmaras Earthquake
damages that occurred in 2023 from the equalization reserve. (December 2022: TRY3,090,074)

The Group has calculated TRY 85,298,741 (31 December 2022: TRY 154,900,203) of equalization
reserve as of 31 December 2023 and presented in the long-term liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements under ‘Other Technical Reserves’ (Note 20).

Life mathematical reserves

Life mathematical reserves comprise actuarial mathematical reserves and life profit share
reserves and represent the Group’s total liability to the policyholders in the life branch.

Mathematical Reserves has been calculated with the tariffs approved by the Treasury in the
current period of the policies and applicable methods and assumptions specified in the profit share
technical principles (Note 20).

e. Subrogation and salvage income

Within the framework of the Treasury and Finance Ministry’s Office of Republic of Turkey.
Circular relating to Subrogation and salvage income No. 2015/6, dated February 10, 2015; as of
31 December 2023, the Group recognizes receivables from salvage and subrogation on an accrual
basis up to coverage limit of debtor insurance company, on conditions that following the payment
of claim, the Group receives the acquaintance or document agreed on payment from individuals
and notification is made to individuals or insurance company. However, a doubtful receivables
provision for these receivables is accounted under ‘Provisions for Doubtful Receivables from
Main Operations’ in case where related amounts are not collected from insurance companies after
six months and from individuals after four months following the payment of claim

Accordingly, accrued receivables from salvage and subrogation and doubtful receivables
provision for salvage and subrogation as of 31 December 2023 are TRY 170,652,465
(31 December 2022: TRY131,960,295) and TRY27,651,242 (31 December 2022:
TRY32,815,708) respectively (Note 12.1).



AKSIGORTA AS.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

2.

2.1

2.1.1

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial S ts and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

The amounts of the net salvage and subrogation income which are collected and the accrued
income amounts from salvage and subrogation receivables for the claims paid by the Group are
as follows:

31 December 2023

Collection Accrual

Gross _Reinsurance Share Net Gross _Reinsurance Share Net
Motor Own Damage 826,317,597 (61,598,728) 764,718,869 162,561,147 (28,311,958) 134,249,189
Motor Crafts Liability 102,199,677 (8,989,839) 93,209,838 31,201,259 (7,098,490) 24,102,769
Transportation 16,867,415 (11,397,645) 5,469,770 3,859,757 (2,101,196) 1,758,561
Fire and Natural Disaster 15,671,432 (6,850,289) 8,821,143 27,363.220 (17.964,279) 9.398.941
General Losses 1,578,495 (1,931,674) (353,179) 4,998,972 (4,624,971) 374,001
Watercraft 183,716 (117,499) 66,217 196,970 (169.,467) 27,503
General Liability 205,807 (355,153) (149.,346) 126,163 (81,386) 44,777
Suretyship 147,354 (74,076) 73,278 1,393,447 (696,723) 696,724
Legal Protection 6,900 - 6,900 - - -
Accident 20,903 - 20,903 - - -
Total 963,199,296 (91,314,903) 871,884,393 231,700,935 (61,048,470) 170,652,465

31December 2022
Collection Accrual

Gross _Reinsurance Share Net Gross _Reinsurance Share Net
Motor Own Damage 532,499,244 5 532,498,394 97,544,944 (11,864) 97,533,080
Motor Crafts Liability 58,090,954 (2,555,128) 55,535,826 26,090,495 (987,403) 25,103,092
Transportation 13,172,849 (7,716,903) 5,455,946 2,519,340 (1,637,311) 882,029
Fire and Natural Disaster 7,357,026 (2,988,057) 4,368,969 63,852,542 (55,915,412) 7,937,130
General Losses 1,905,062 (1,426,608) 478454 1,448,691 (1,246,392) 202,299
Watercraft 700,637 (473,782) 226,855 67,659 (47.841) 19,818
General Liability 114,673 (93,231) 21,442 60,213 (8,577) 51,636
Legal Protection 71,787 (14,923) 56,864 1,599,424 (1,368,213) 231,211
Suretyship 43,000 - 43,000 - - -
Accident 11,938 - 11,938 - - -
Total 613,967,170 (15,269,482) 598,697,688 193,183,308 (61,223,013) 131,960,295
f. Premium Income and Claims

Premium income represents premiums on policies written during the year. Unearned premium
reserves are determined from premiums written during the year on a daily basis.

Claims are recognized as expense as they are paid. Outstanding claims provision is provided for
both reported unpaid claims at period-end and incurred but not reported claims. Reinsurer’s shares
of claims paid and outstanding loss provisions are off-set against these reserves.

2.1

2.1.
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial S
(Continued)

g. Receivables from Insurance Operations

In the consolidated financial statements prepared as of 31 December 2023 pursuant to the
"Circular on Recourse and Salvage Incomes" dated 10 February 2015 and numbered 2015/6
published by the Ministry of Treasury and Finance, the Company has made the claim payment,
and the insured has received a certificate of release or the payment has been made, and the
counter-insurance Provided that the company or third parties are notified, the recourse receivable
up to the guarantee limit of the debtor insurance company is accrued. In case the said amount
cannot be collected from the insurance company within six months following the compensation
payment or from third parties within four months, a provision for these receivables is set aside
and shown in the Provision for Receivables from Insurance Activities account in the balance sheet

Group provided provision for doubtful receivables by taking the nature and the value of the receivable
into account. As of 31 December 2023, the Group has provided provision for the doubtful receivables
under legal and management follow up in the account of ‘Provision for doubtful receivables from
insurance operations’ amounting to TRY60,376,259 (31 December 2022: TRY24,709,333)
provision for the overdue receivables which are not under legal follow up in the account of
‘Provision for doubtful receivables from main operations’ amounting to TRY44,623,073
(31 December 2022: TRY 19,642,726). Furthermore, provision is accounted for the retention of claim
recovery transactions under legal follow up amounting to TRY518,334,778 (31 December 2022:
TRY337,289,309) and it has been accounted in ‘Provision for doubtful receivables from main
operations’ account (Note 12).

h. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share presented in the statement of income is calculated by dividing the net profit
into the weighted average number of the outstanding shares throughout the financial year.

Companies in Turkey can increase their capital by distributing ‘bonus shares’ to shareholders
from the prior periods’ profit. Such ‘bonus share’ distributions are considered as issued shares in
the earnings per share calculations. Accordingly, weighted average number of equity shares used
in the calculations is calculated by considering the retrospective effects of share distributions.

1L Subsequent Events
Subsequent events cover the events between the balance sheet date and the issuance of the
financial statements, even if they are occurred subsequent to the disclosures made on profit or

other selected financial information.

The Group adjusts its consolidated financial statements in the occurrence of any subsequent
events (Note 46).
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.1
2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial and Specific Accounting Policies Used 2.1
(Continued)
i. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

If there is an existing obligation arising from past events, it is probable that the obligation will
be fulfilled and the amount in question is reliably predictable, a provision is made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. If provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount will be equal to the present value of such cash flows.

‘When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Note 23.2).

j- Accounting Policies, Changes and Misstatements on Accounting Estimates

Significant changes in accounting policies and significant accounting errors are applied
retrospectively and prior period consolidated financial statements are restated. If the changes in
accounting estimates are related to only one period, they are applied in the current period in which
the change is made, and if they are related to the future periods, they are applied prospectively
both in the period of change and in the future period.

k. Corporate Taxation and Deferred Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax expense.
Corporate Tax

Corporation tax is payable at a rate of 30% on the total income of the Company and its
Subsidiaries registered in Turkey in 2023 (2022: 25%) after adjusting for certain disallowable
expenses, exempt income and investment and other allowances. No further tax is payable unless
the profit is distributed.

The amendment in the Corporate Tax Law includes insurance companies, not all companies
within the scope of the Insurance Law. Sabanci Ageas Saglik Sigorta A.S., which is included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. As of 31 December 2023, the tax rate is
applied as 30%, since it has not yet received a license for insurance activities.. Dividends paid to
non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident corporations are
not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding tax at the rate
of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered as a profit distribution
thus does not incur withholding tax and no stoppage is applied

-
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C. lidated Fi ial Stat ts and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Corporations are required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 22% on their
corporate income. Advance Tax is declared by 14th of the second month following and payable
by the 17th of the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance Tax paid by
corporations is credited against the annual Corporation Tax liability.

The balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities to
the government.

The affiliate shares stocked for minimum 2 years and the 50% of the profit obtained from the
property sales are considered as tax exemptions in such condition that the amount is added onto
capital as restated in Corporate Tax Law or the amount is kept in equity for 5 years.

According to Turkish tax legislation, financial losses on the returns can be offset against period
income for up to 5 years. However, financial losses cannot be offset against previous years’
profits. There is no such application for the reconciliation of payable taxes with the tax authority.
Corporate tax returns are submitted to the related tax office by the 25th day of the 4th month
following the month when the accounting period ends. In tax reviews authorized bodies can
review the accounting records for the past five years and if errors are detected, tax amounts may
change due to tax assessment.

The law on amending the Tax Procedure Law and the Corporate Tax Law was resolved on
20 January 2022, Law No. It has been resolved with the number 7352 and it has been decided that
the financial statements will not be subject to inflation adjustment in the 2021 and 2022
accounting periods, including the temporary accounting periods, and in the provisional tax periods
of the 2023 accounting period, regardless of whether the conditions for the inflation adjustment
within the scope of the Repeated Article 298 are met. In line with the Law No. 7352, inflation
adjustment will be applied to the financial statements dated 31 December 2023, and the profit/loss
difference arising from the inflation adjustment will be shown in the previous years' profit/loss
account and will not be taxed. Additionally; With the law number 7491 published in the Official
Gazette numbered 32413 dated December 28, 2023, the inflation adjustments to be made by
banks, payment and electronic money institutions, asset management companies, capital market
institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies in the 2024 and 2025
accounting periods will be made. It is

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2.1.2

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of C lidated Fi ial Stat ts and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint ventures, unless the Company is
able to control the elimination of temporary differences and it is unlikely that this difference will
disappear in the near future. Deferred tax assets arising from taxable temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are calculated on the condition that it is highly
probable that the said differences will be benefited from by earning sufficient taxable profit in the
near future and it is probable that the related differences will disappear in the future.

According with the law numbered 7456 published in the Official Gazette dated 15 July 2022,
banks, consumer finance companies, factoring and financial leasing companies, electronic
payment and money institutions, authorized foreign exchange institutions, asset management
companies, capital market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension
companies, the corporate tax rate has been permanently increased to 30%. In this context, the
corporate tax rate has been determined as 30% as of 31 December 2023. Within the scope of the
said law, deferred tax assets and liabilities in the financial statements dated 31 December 2023
are calculated with the rate of 30% for the deferred tax assets consisting of deductible temporary
differences, which will occur in 2023, taking into account the time intervals in which the said
differences will be realized by generating taxable profit in the future. As of 31 December 2023,
the deferred tax rate for Sabanc1 Ageas Saglik Sigorta A.$ is 30%. (31 December 2022: Regarding
the tax regulations of the Law No. 7316 and with the regulation numbered 31462, that published
in the Official Gazette dated 22 April 2021 the corporate tax rate has been determined to be
applied as 23% for 2022 corporate earnings and 23% for 2022 corporate earnings. Within the
scope of the mentioned law, deferred tax assets and liabilities in the financial statements dated
31 December 2022 are calculated with the rate of 23% for what realizable in 2022, 20% for the
following years for the deferred tax assets consisting of deductible temporary differences, taking
into account the time intervals in which the mentioned differences will be realized by generating
taxable profit in the future).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has booked the deferred tax assets in amounting to
TRY375,007,006 (31 December 2022: TRY228,577,129).

Income tax withholding

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and
funds surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are
resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. The rate of income
withholding tax is 10% until it is altered by the Council of Ministers. Undistributed dividends
incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding taxes.

Other related ing policies for the under ling of fi ial stat "

All accounting policies are explained in Note 2.1.1 ‘Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used’.

2.1

2.1.3

2.14
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Functional currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are expressed in TRY, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group.

Rounding degree used in the lidated fi ial stat ts

All the balances presented in the consolidated financial statements are expressed in full in Turkish
Lira (TRY) and rounded to the closest whole number.

New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards
New and revised standards and comments

Turkey Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) consolidated financial statements are register
changes in the standards and comments should be as follow in the notes:

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at
31 December 2023:

The group has evaluated the effects of the standards and amendments mentioned below on the
consolidated financial statements and has concluded that the amendments do not have a
significant impact on the financial statements for the accounting period of 1 January - 31
December 2023, other than the effects of the TFRS 17 standard. The company has established the
necessary accounting policies within the scope of TFRS 17. Analysis and evaluations of the
impacts of the TFRS 17 standard continue.

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. This standard replaces IFRS 4, which permitted a wide variety of practices in accounting
for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all entities that
issue insurance contracts.

However, by SEDDK dated 29 December 2023 and 32414 legislative changes that came into
force by being published in the Official Gazette No. As a result; TFRS 17 in legal financial
statements of insurance companies the implementation date of the standard has been determined
as | January 2025.

Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8; effective from annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The amendments aim to improve accounting policy
disclosures and to help users of the financial statements to distinguish between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.

Amendment to IAS 12 — Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction; from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments
require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition give rise
to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.2
2.1.5 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

b. Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at
31 December 2023:

Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants; effective from annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These amendments clarify how conditions with which an
entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a
liability. The amendments also aim to improve information an entity provides related to liabilities
subject to these conditions.

. Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback; effective from annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These amendments include requirements for sale and
leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 to explain how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after
the date of the transaction. Sale and leaseback transactions where some or all the lease payments

are variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are most likely to be impacted.
23

. Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 on Supplier finance arr effective from annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These amendments require disclosures to enhance
the transparency of supplier finance arrangements and their effects on a company’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. The disclosure requirements are the IASB’s response
to investors” concerns that some companies’ supplier finance arrangements are not sufficiently
visible, hindering investors’ analysis.

. Amendments to IAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability; effective from annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2025. An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a transaction 24

or an operation in a foreign currency that is not exchangeable into another currency at a

measurement date for a specified purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is an ability

to obtain the other currency (with a normal administrative delay), and the transaction would take

place through a market or exchange mechanism that creates enforceable rights and obligations.

25

. IFRS S1, ‘General requirements for disclosure of sustainability-related financial

information; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. This standard

includes the core framework for the disclosure of material information about sustainability-related

risks and opportunities across an entity’s value chain.

. IFRS S2, ‘Climate-related disclosures’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. This is the first thematic standard issued that sets out requirements for entities to
disclose information about climate-related risks and opportunities. However, in the Board Decision
of the KGK published in the Official Gazette dated 29 December 2023, it was announced that certain
businesses will be subject to mandatory sustainability reporting as of 1 January 2024. Businesses that
fall within the scope of sustainability practice are counted for the purpose of determining the
businesses that will be subject to Sustainability Reporting within the scope of the "Board Decision on
the Scope of Application of Turkish Sustainability Reporting Standards (TSRS)" dated January 5,
2024.

- ™
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Consolidation

In addition, the "Communiqué on the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Insurance
and Reinsurance Companies and Pension Companies" published in the Official Gazette dated
31 December 2008 and numbered 27097 by the Companies Ministry of Treasury and Finance, dated
29 December 2022 and numbered 2022/15. Communiqué”), insurance, reinsurance and pension
companies; It is required to publish consolidated financial statements as of 31 March 2009. In this
context, consolidated financial statements are prepared and published separately from unconsolidated
financial statements in line with the relevant regulations of the Ministry of Treasury and Finance. In
the “Sector Announcement of the Ministry of Treasury and Finance on the Reflection of Investments
of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension Companies in Subsidiaries, Joint Controlled Partnerships and
Affiliates in their Individual Financial Statements™ dated 12 August 2008 and numbered 2008/37, the
subsidiary, together It is stated that it is possible to account for investments in controlled partnerships
and associates in accordance with the cost method specified in TAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements or IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Parallel to
these announcements, the Company has accounted for its subsidiary in its unconsolidated financial
statements according to the cost method, by allocating provisions for impairment, if any, as of the
reporting period.. (31 December 2022: None).

Segment Reporting

Reporting segments are determined to conform to the reporting made to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for making decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Details related to the
segment reporting are disclosed in the Note 5. The competent authority for decision-making is
responsible for making decisions on the resources to be allocated to the department and for
evaluating the performance of the department. Details of segment reporting are explained in
Note 5.

Discontinued Operations

The Group does not have any discontinued or disposed operations as of 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2022.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Group’s functional currency is Turkish Lira (“TRY”). In preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, transactions in currencies other than TRY (foreign currencies) are
recognized at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Turkish Lira at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated to Turkish Lira at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognized in equity.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are considered as part of the fair value changes and those differences are accounted for
in the accounts in which the fair value changes.

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are carried at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Assets held for use in the construction, or for leasing, administrative or any other purposes are
carried at cost, less any impairment. Legal charges are also added to costs. For assets that need
substantial time to be ready for use or sale, borrowing costs are capitalized based on the
Company’s accounting policy.

Such assets are depreciated, on the same basis used for other fixed assets, when they are ready to use.

Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated as the same basis as tangible assets or, were
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of tangible assets are determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
to profit or loss.

Depreciation periods for tangible assets are presented in the table below:

Useful Life
Properties 50 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Other intangible assets 5 years

Right of Use Asset

Right-of-use asset is accounted for initially using the cost method and is measured at its cost
adjusted for the re-measurement of the lease liability and less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The Group applies the depreciation provisions in the TAS 16
Tangible Fixed Assets standard while depreciating the right of use asset.

Lease Liability

Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of
31 December 2023. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 31 December 2023 was 26% for local currency liabilities (31 December 2022: 20%)).
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S y of the A ing Policies (Continued)
Investment Properties

Investment property is held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

None. (31 December 2022: None).
Intangible Assets Acquired
Intangible assets acquired

Intangible assets acquired are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred from the date of
acquisition to the date to bring the specific software in use. These costs are capitalized under
intangible advances account and amortized over their estimated useful lives (1 to 10 years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and
unique software products that are controlled by the Company and will probably provide more
economic benefits than costs in one year are recognized as intangible assets. Costs include
software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Computer software development costs recognized as assets from the date that the assets become
to provide economic benefit are amortized over their estimated 5 years useful lives.

Financial Assets

Investments, other than those that are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date, where the purchase or sale of an
investment under a contract, whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as
‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets, ‘financial assets at fair value through profit and loss’
and ‘loans and receivables’.

Effective interest method

Effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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2.

2.9

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Assets (Continued)
Held for trading financial assets

Financial assets that are measured at fair value by the Group and associated with the income
statement are classified under financial assets held for trading in the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial assets measured at fair value and associated with the income statement are obtained for
the purpose of gaining profit from the fluctuations in price and similar factors that occur in the
market in the short term, or regardless of the reason for obtaining them, financial assets in a short
term profit portfolio and measured at fair value by the Group are classified in this category during
the purchase.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Gains and losses arising from the valuation are
included in the income statement (Note 11).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value except
available-for-sale investments that do not have quoted prices in an active market and their fair
values cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost and restated to the equivalent purchasing
power. Gains and losses arising from available-for-sale financial assets are included in profit or
loss for the period. Changes in the fair value of such these assets are recognized in the equity.
‘When the related asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the profit or loss for the period.
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for equity investments classified as available-for-
sale are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are intended to be held until their maturities and including ability
to funding, provided the circumstances to be held to maturity, with fixed or determinable
payments and with fixed maturity, and apart from loans and receivables, when recognized, not
recognized as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and not available for sale financial
assets. These financial assets initially recognized at the acquisition cost and is considered fair
value. The fair value of held-to-maturity financial assets is determined on transaction cost of these
financial assets or market price of similar financial instruments. Held-to-maturity financial assets
are carried at amortized cost. Contribution income related to held-to-maturity financial assets is
reflected in the income statement.

The Group does not allocate any impairment on short-term market fluctuations, provided that
there is no risk of collection of the securities representing the borrowings classified as held-to-
maturity financial assets. If there is a risk of collection, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the book value of the financial asset and the value of the cash flows expected
from the financial asset, if any, amortized based on the original effective rate of return.
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Assets (Continued)
Financial Assets at Insured’s Risk

Such assets are classified as available for sale and held to maturity financial assets. Available for
sale financial assets are carried at fair value and revaluation difference arising from amortized
cost is recognized under the statement of income. Also, 5% of the difference in between the fair
value and amortized cost is recognized under equity and 95% of insurance technical reserves that
are attributable to insures are recognized in the Insurance Technical Reserves - Life Mathematical
Reserves account. Assets that are not carried at fair value are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Investment Properties
Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate, that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that are impaired, are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses its financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets classified
as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or loans and receivables is impaired.

A financial asset or portfolio of financial assets is impaired and an impairment loss incurred if
there is objective evidence that an event or events since initial recognition of the asset have
adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the asset.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.10 Investment Properties (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets except for trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in
profit or loss.

Except for AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

For AFS equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognized directly in equity.

2.11 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses foreign currency swap and option contracts, the Group uses end of period market
exchange rates and interest rates to calculate market value of foreign exchange swap contracts.
As of 31 December 2023, there is a registered financial asset amounting to none
(31 December 2022: cost total, TRY 14,000,000, TRY 15,148,041 registered swaps)

As of 31 December 2023, the Company has accounted for ‘Expense Accruals’ amounting
none arising from the valuation of derivative instruments held by the Company in ‘Expense
Accruals’ account. (31 December 2022: TRY 1,148,041 ‘Expense Accruals’).

2.12 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or when the acquisition
of the asset and the settlement the liability take place simultaneously.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term
highly liquid investments, which have maturities with three months or less from date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. (Note 14.)

2.14
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share Capital

As of 31 December 2023, the Company’s nominal capital is TRY1,612,000,000
(31 December 2022: TRY 306,000,000). Share capital is represented by 161,200,000,000 of
equity shares having a nominal amount of TRY 0.01 each. The share capital structure of the
Company is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Rate Amount Rate Amount
% TRY % TRY
Haci Omer Sabanci Holding A.S. 36.00 580,320,000 36.00 580,320,000
Ageas Insurance International NV 36.00 580,320,000 36.00 580,320,000
Other 28.00 451,360,000 28.00 451,360,000
1,612,000,000 1,612,000,000

Agreement about the sale of 50% of 18,965,880,200 units of Aksigorta A.§. shares with
TRY 189,658,802 nominal value that belong to H.0. Sabanci Holding (‘Holding”) portfolio was
signed with Ageas Insurance International N.V. at February 18, 2011. At the date of
July 29, 2011, 9,482,940,100 units of Aksigorta A.$. shares that correspond to 50% of the
Holding’s portfolio have been transferred to Ageas Insurance International N.V. with the sale
price (excluding the corrections) of USD 220,029,000.

The Parent Partnership has accepted the registered capital system set out in accordance with the
provisions of Law No: 2499 and applied the system as of 15 June 2000 upon the permission no:
67/1039 granted by the Capital Markets Board.

With the decision of the Capital Markets Board dated March 17, 2022 and numbered 13/426, of
the issued capital of the Company with a nominal value of TRY 306,000,000 within the registered
capital ceiling of TRY 750,000,000,TRY 90,989,327 will be from the Sales Profits to be Added
to the Capital account and TRY 215,010,673 will be from the Extraordinary Reserves account. It
has been increased to TRY 612,000,000 with a total nominal value of TRY 306,000,000, 100%
covered by internal resources.

The Company decided to increase its current capital from TRY 612,000,000 to
TRY 1,612,000,000 with a nominal value of TRY 1,000,000,000, and to increase the current
registered capital ceiling amount from TRY 750,000,000 to TRY 3,000,000,000 by the Board of
Directors Decision no. and the related capital increase was approved at the Extraordinary General
Assembly dated 4 August 2022. An application was made to the Capital Markets Board on
5 August 2022 regarding the capital increase

On October 27, 2022, the Capital Markets Board approved the capital increase application and it
was decided to extend the validity period of our Company's registered capital and to increase the
registered capital ceiling. Capital increase transactions were registered by Istanbul Trade Registry
Office on 23 December 2022.

Other information about the company's capital and the registered capital increase after the balance
sheet period are disclosed in footnotes 15 and 46.

163



164

Corporate Profile Sustainability Activities

AKSIGORTA AS.

Corporate Governance

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

2.

2.15

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Insurance and Investment Contracts - Classification
Insurance Contracts

Insurance contracts are contracts in which one part accepts a significant insurance risk and pays
compensation (insurer) to the other part (insure) when any uncertain case affects the insure. The
Company makes reinsurance agreements in which the Company (ceding company) is
compensated by the insurer (reinsurer company) for one or more claims. Insurance contracts
entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer (reinsurance) are
included with insurance contracts.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts of the Company are included in classification of Insurance
contracts.

Insurance contracts are accounted when the insurance risk is transferred and classified as an
insurance contract as of the maturity date and/or amortization of all contractual rights and
liabilities.

Investment Contracts:

The accumulation component present in some life insurance contracts is measured by the Group
on a separate basis; On the other hand, as the accounting policies require the recognition of rights
and obligations related with the accumulation component, regardless of the measurement
principles, the insurance and investment components are not decomposed.

Reinsurance Agreements:

Reinsurance agreements are the agreements agreed by the Group and reinsurance company for
the loss which may occur in one or more insurance agreements signed by the Group, and those
meet all conditions to be classified as insurance contract and those whose costs are paid.

The Group has excess of loss, surplus and quota share treaty agreements in related branches. In
the context of excess of loss agreements, the ceded premiums are accounted for on accrual basis
over the related period. The ceded premiums and claims of other agreements are accounted on the
basis of the income and loss from related insurance contracts.

The Group has surplus reinsurance agreement in fire, marine, engineering and other accident
branches. Besides, The Company has excess of loss agreements in fire, marine and engineering
branches. The Company continues to be exposed to the insurance risk under the insurance
contracts whereas the liability of the reinsurer ceases by the end of the agreement period. Group
has annual proportional quota-share reinsurance agreement for third person liability, electronic
equipment, personal accident, health, traffic, insurance, professional liability, machinery
breakdown and bus compulsory chair branches. Mentioned reinsurance agreements, the
reinsurer's liability continues even after expiration of the agreement in the run-off agreements.
Catastrophic excess of loss re-insurance agreement, natural disasters such as flood and earthquake
is also protected in these branches. In addition, the Group has facultative reinsurance agreements
signed separately for certain risks based on certain policies.
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Insurance and Investment Contracts - Classification (Continued)
Premiums Transferred to Social Security Institution

The collection and settlement of expenses with respect to the medical care related services
provided to the injured people due to the traffic accidents have been regulated by Article 98 of
Road Traffic Act numbered 2918 altered by Article 59 of ‘The Law on Restructuring of Some
Receivables and Changes in Social Security and General Insurance Law and Other Laws and Law
Decrees’ (the ‘Law’) numbered 6111 and dated 25 February 2011. In this context, all the traffic
accident related medical care services provided by any public or private health institution will be
covered by Social Security Institution (‘SSI’) regardless of social security status of the injured.
Besides, in accordance with the temporary Article 1 of the Law, all of the expenses with respect
to the traffic accident related medical care services provided before enforcement of the Law, will
also be covered by SSI.

The liability of the insurance companies with respect to the service costs to be incurred in the
context of abovementioned articles has been determined in accordance with the provisions of ‘The
Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the Costs of the Health Services Provided due to the
Traffic Accidents’ dated 27 August 2011 (‘The Regulation’), ‘The Communiqué on the Principles
of the Implementation of the Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the Costs of the Health
Services Provided due to the Traffic Accidents’ dated 15 September 2011 and numbered 2011/17
(the ‘Communiqué numbered 2011/17”) and ‘The Communiqué on the Accounting of Payments
to Social Security Institution (‘SSI”) with respect to Treatment Expenses and Introduction of New
Account Codes to Insurance Account Chart’ dated. 17 October 2011 (the ‘Communiqué
numbered 2011/18”), the regulation (the ‘Communique numbered 2012/3’) making changes in
“The Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the Costs of the Health Services Provided due
to the Traffic Accidents’ dated 16 March 2012 and numbered 2012/3 and the communique about
changes related ‘the Principles of Collection of the Costs of the Health Services Provided due to
the  Traffic  Accidents’ dated 30  April 2012 and numbered 2012/6
(Note 2.24) (the ‘Communique numbered 2012/6”). Within this framework, the Group is required
to cede a certain amount of premiums to be determined in accordance with the Regulation and the
Communiqué numbered 2011/17 to SSI in relation to policies issued as of 25 February 2011 the
notice numbered 2012/3 and the communiqué numbered 2012/6 in ‘Compulsory Transportation’,
‘Compulsory Traffic’ and ‘Compulsory Motor Personal Accident’ branches regarding the
expenses with respect to the traffic accident related medical care services provided after
enforcement of the Law.

Based on the aforementioned regulations, the Group has calculated the amount of the premiums
to be ceded to SSI in 1 January — 31 December 2023 accounting period as TRY434,053,951
(1 January — 31 December 2022: TRY 235,919,245) and unearned premium reserve amounting to
TRY102,242,133, (1 January — 31 December 2022: TRY 16,042,069) for the period ended as of
1 January—-31 December 2023; classified under the accounts of ‘Premiums ceded to SSI” and
‘Change in SSI share of Unearned Premiums Reserve’, respectively (Note 20).

In the Board of Directors meeting of The Association of the Insurance and Reinsurance
Companies of Turkey dated 21 September 2011 and numbered 18, it was decided to appeal
Council of State for the ‘suspense of execution’ and ‘cancellation’ of the Regulation and the
Communiqué numbered 2011/17; and the cancellation of related provisions of the Law as being
contradictory to the Constitution. The legal procedures are in progress as of the date of the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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2.15

2.17

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Insurance and Investment Contracts - Classification (Continued)

The transfer amounts calculated by the insurance companies on the financial statements that have
been independently audited and finalized for the previous year, until the end of May, are declared
via the Center with e-signature or mobile signature, and the audited and finalized financial
statements are taken as the basis for the calculation of the declared amounts. tables and footnotes
are made available to the Social Security Institution simultaneously. The calculated transfer
amount is included in the footnotes of the independently audited and finalized financial
statements. In case there is a difference in favor of the Social Security Institution between the
transfer amounts determined within the scope of the first paragraph and the transfer amounts
declared within the scope of this paragraph, the said amount will be associated with the first
transfer period of the year it belongs to, and starting from the day following the last payment date
of the first transfer period, in accordance with 89 of the Law No. 5510.

Premium ceded to Turkish Motor Insurers’ Bureau

The Pool of Higher Risk Policies (‘The Pool”) was established by Treasury and Finance Ministry
in accordance with ‘the Regulation Regarding Change in the Regulation on Tariff Application
Principals of Motor Liability Insurance’ issued on the Official Gazette dated July 11, 2017 and
numbered 30121 for the vehicle groups and/or steps what have high damage frequency valid for
written motor liability policies after 12 April 2017. In accordance with the Higher Risk Policies
Operating Principals that is effectuated with aforementioned regulation, Turkey Motor Insurance
Bureau (‘TMIB’) makes two-step calculations premiums and claims of motor liability policies
which are subject to the Pool. Hereunder, 50% of premiums and claims is apportioned between
insurance companies equally and the other 50%is apportioned according to insurance companies'
share of motor liability premiums in last 3 years.

In accordance with the Higher Risk Policies Operating Principals issued by TMIB on
August 15, 2017; 76% of total premiums net of deductions to be received from the insured, on
policies issued after July 11, 2017 which are subject to the Pool, will be ceded to the Pool.

With the amendment made in the Regulation on the Principles of Tariff Application in
Compulsory Liability of Highways Motor Vehicles Insurances published in the Official Gazette
dated 6 June 2021, the premium to be transferred to the pool for the policies to be transferred to
the pool will be transferred to the pool at the rate of 74% after deducting the deductions made
from the insured from the premiums determined in the Regulation.

The Group has recorded the amounts of premiums, claims and commissions paid to the Pool under
the regulation and taken over from the Pool within the scope of the Group's share, taking into
account the monthly receipts finalized by the TMTB as of 31 December 2023. As at
31 December 2023, the Group accounted TRY1,962,857,493 premium ceded to the Pool and
TRY734,912,847 paid claim; and TRY 7,978,538 subrogation income TRY 682,072,428 premium
which is reported as Group share from the pool, TRY 544,943,513 claims paid, TRY 6,943,074
recourse and TRY 3,802,651 salvage are accounted in accordance with the related legislation.

Insurance and Investment Contracts with Discretionary Participation Features
None (December 31, 2022: None).

Investment Contracts without Discretionary Participation Features
None (December 31, 2022: None).
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowings

None. (As of December 31, 2022, the Company has a loan of 495,500,000 TL principal and
48,973,125 TL interest and is classified in the debt account of credit institutions. In addition, the
Company has a repo transaction of 78,282,082 TL as of December 31, 2022 and is classified in
the other financial liabilities account.)

Employee Benefits

The Company accounts for its liability related to employment termination and vacation benefits
according to ‘Turkish Accounting Standards Regarding Employee Benefits’ (‘TAS 19°) and
classifies in balance sheet under the account ‘Provision of Employment Termination Benefits’.

According to the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to
each employee whose jobs are terminated except for the reasons such as resignation, retirement
and attitudes determined in Labour Law. The provision for employment termination benefits is
calculated over present value of the possible liability in scope with the Labour Law by considering
determined actuarial estimates (Note 22).

Provisions (Non-technical)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured over expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation by considering the risks and uncertainties related
to the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the provision is measured by using the estimated
cash outflows that are required to settle the obligation, the carrying value of the provision is equal
to present value of the related cash outflows.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized as an asset if and only it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the reimbursement can be reliably estimated.

Liabilities that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity are classified as contingent liabilities and not included in the non-consolidated
financial statements (Note 23).

Revenue Recognition

Written Premium Commission

Written premiums represent premiums on policies written during the year, net of cancellations.
Premium income is recognized in the financial statements on accrual basis by allocating the
unearned premium provision over written premiums.

Commission income received in relation to ceded premiums to reinsurance companies is accrued in
the related period and classified in technical part under operating expenses in the income statement.

The part of paid amounts to the assistance services which hit the following periods are deferred
in accordance with the Technical Provisions Regulation numbered 27655 and dated 28 July 2010.
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221

222

2.23

Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are accounted on an accrual basis in the related period’s profit/loss.
Interest income includes income gains from the coupons of the fixed return investment instruments
and valuation of discounted government bonds based on internal rate of return method.

The Company accrues the interest costs incurred for the loans in the income statement on a
periodic basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income from the equity share investments are recognized when the shareholder has the
right to receive dividends

Profit Share Distribution

Listed companies distribute dividend in accordance with the Communiqué No. II-19.1 issued by
the CMB which is effective from 1 February 2014.

Companies distribute dividends in accordance with their dividend payment policies settled and
dividend payment decision taken in general assembly and in conformity with relevant
legislations. The communiqué does not constitute a minimum dividend rate. Companies distribute
dividend in accordance with the method defined in their dividend policy or articles of
incorporation. In addition, dividend can be distributed by fixed or variable instalments and
advance dividend can be paid in accordance with profit on financial statements of the Company.

In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC), unless the required reserves and the
dividend for shareholders as determined in the article of association or in the dividend distribution
policy of the Company are set aside, no decision may be made to set aside other reserves, to
transfer profits to the subsequent year or to distribute dividends to the holders of usufruct right
certificates, to the members of the board of directors or to the employees; and no dividend can be
distributed to these persons unless the determined dividend for shareholders is paid in cash.

The excess portion of the inflation adjustment of the general reserves including prior year losses
and profits, share premiums and shareholders’ equity excluding capital is considered in the
calculation of the net distributable profit.

Related parties
Parties are considered related to the Company if;

a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

The person in question:

i) Has significant influence over the reporting entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting.
ii)  Has control or joint control over the reporting entity,

If the reporting Company or a parent company of the reporting Company is a member of the key
management personnel.
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Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions are recorded in TRY, which represents the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
converted into TRY at the exchange rates ruling at the reporting date with the resulting exchange
differences recognized in the statement of profit or loss as foreign exchange gains or losses.

As of the balance sheet date, foreign currency receivables are valued at the Central Bank of the
Republic of Turkey (“CBRT”) foreign exchange buying rates, and foreign currency debts are valued
at the CBRT's foreign exchange selling rates.

The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey exchange rates used in the conversion is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
USD/ USD/

EUR/
Buying rate 29,4382 32,5739 18,6983 19,9349
Selling rate 29,4913 32,6326 18,7320 19,9708
Effective Selling Rate 29,5355 32,6815 18,7601 20,0007

Significant Accounting Estimates and Requirements

Preparation of financial statements requires the use of assumptions and estimates that might affect
the amounts of assets and liabilities reported as of balance sheet date, explanation of the conditional
assets and liabilities and amounts of the income and expenses reported throughout the accounting
period. Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions are evaluated taking into consideration
past experience, other factors, current conditions, and reasonable expectations for future events.
Such evaluations and estimates might differ from actual consequences, even though they are based
on the best knowledge of the management about current events and transactions.

One of the most important accounting estimates for the Company is to estimate the final net
liabilities relating to the expenses to arise from the effective policies. As per its nature, estimating
liabilities regarding the insurance business includes the evaluation of many uncertainties.

Insurance and Financial Risk Management
Insurance Risk

Objective of managing risks arising from insurance contracts and policies used to minimize
such risks

Insurance risk is the probability of risk exposure that is covered under any insurance contracts
and the uncertainty of the magnitude of the claims in relation to the risk exposed. Due to the
nature of insurance transactions, risks are incidental and hard to anticipate. Maximum risk that
the Company bears is limited to the coverage amount specified in the insurance contract.

The Company has adopted central risk assessment policy and this policy is applied in relation to
the Company’s specified operations and limitations. Principally, in risk assessment, potential
claims are measured based on the past experience, similar risk comparisons and risks in relation
to production process. Location, geographical area, field of activity and fire and theft measures
are also key issues used in the assessment of the insured risk.



AKSIGORTA AS.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

4.

4.1

Insurance and Fi ial Risk M t (Continued)

Insurance Risk (Continued)
Information on insurance risk (before and after risk reduction through reinsurance),

The Company is managing its insurance risk by policy production strategies, reinsurance
contracts and effective settlement and payment operations.

The Company’s policy production strategy follows an effective risk management in the policy
production process considering the nature, extent, geographical area and accurate distribution of
the risk incurred.

Reinsurance contracts include excess of loss (quota-share and excess loss) and catastrophic
coverage. The Company can also enter into reinsurance contracts with facultative participation
under its reinsurance program.

R ance Comp Notific
2023 2022
Company Standard & Poors Rating i Company Standard & Poors Rating
African Re A- African Re A-
Labuan Re NR Ageas A+
Malaysian Re NR Allianz Re AA-
General Insurance Corporation of
India (GIC) NR American Agricultural NR
China Property & Casualty
Reinsurance A Aspen Re A-
Aspen A AXIS Re At
Taiping Re A- AzRe NR
MS Amlin A BMI (Trust Re) NR
Dongbu Re (DB Insurance) A BMI (Oman Re) NR
Korean Re A CCR Algeria NR
Central Re A Central Re A
China Property & Casualty
Ageas A Reinsurance A
Sava Re At Dongbu Re (DB Insurance) A
Odyssey Re A Fair Pool NR
Hannover Rueck SE A GIC Re NR
Munich Re AA- Hannover Re AA-
New Re AA- HCC International A
LF Re A+ HDI Global A+
Cathay Century AA- 1GI A-
American Family A- Klapton Re NR
Blenheim Syndicate A+ Liberty Mutual A
HCC A+ Mapfre Re A+
QBE A+ Misr Insurance NR
Covea Cooperations A Milli Re BBB-
Toa Re A Munich Re AA-
Lib Synd Paris A+ Odyssey Re A
Mapfre Re A+ Polish Re NR
Cathedral A+ QBE Re A+
Partner Re A+ Samsung Fire&Marine Re AA-
Everest Re A+ Saudi Re A-
VHV Re NR Shelter Re A-
DEVK At Singapore Re NR
VIG A+ Swiss Re AA-
Samsung Fire&Marine Re AA- Taiping A
cor Ar Triglay Re A
R+V Versicherung AG (R+V Re) A+ Tunis Re NR
American Agricultural NR Turk Re NR
Shelter Re NR VHV Re NR
EMC NR VIG Re A+
Unipol Re NR Coface At
Turk Re NR Lloyd's of London A+
Milli Re trBBB- Liberty Mutual A
Mapfie Re At
African Re A-
Ageas At
Allian; AA-

American Agricultural NR

4.1
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Insurance and Fi ial Risk M: (Continued)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Generally, the Company’s insurance contracts include fire and natural disasters, marine, accident,
motor vehicles, air crafts, water crafts, general losses, motor vehicles liability, air crafts liability,
general liability, financial losses, legal protection, illness/health and life branches. The
Company’s gross and net insurance risk concentrations (after reinsurance) in terms of insurance
branches are summarized as below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Reinsurance Reinsurance Share

Total Claims Gross Total Share of Total GrossTotal  of Total Claims

Liability (*) Claims Liability __Claims Liability _Net Total Claims Liability __Claims Liability Liability _Net Total Claims Liability

Motor Crafs Liability 2,660,571,883 2.233,965,058 (66,124,041) 2,167,841,017
93,898,566 1309904012 (1,396.915.788) 112,988,224

General Liability
¥ Natural Disaster
neral Losses

Transporation 335,692,825 9
539061860 44410167 (200613.854)
Suretyship 1.440.096.066 6172978 (113.602919)
Watererafts 17691111 (63:272.769)
Accident 13,338,695 (61:005.709)
Financial Losses (95.124203) 7624298 (38882215
Lol Protection (48.972288) (9514938
Air Crafts Liability (4:395.921) 4722493 (4:346.469)
redit 16974) 892 (1149,998)
Air Crafts - 280332 -
Life 140216 -
Total 12,949.691,736 (9.329.965.091) 3.619.726,646 6499313716 2.788.449.164
*) Total claim liability includes all outstanding claims reserves and IBNR as of the balance sheet date.
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Reinsurance Reinsurance
Share of Total tal
Effect on Current Gross Total Claims  Net Total Claims Net Total Claims
Period (Net) _ Claims Liability Liability Liability Liability iability
Unpaid Claims 1283709949 15940438864 (12.805.868,193) 3134570671 7302339708 (5.451.478.986) 1,850.860,722
Discount Effect
of Reported
Claims (1801918,369)  (9.563.866,520) 5827523912 (736342608 (4,115,227,365) 2180803126 (1934424239)
Discount to Be
Applied to Claim
Files in a Lawsuit (209.936,500) (923,601,373) 496,031,384 (427.569.989) (440302,011) 222,668,522 (217,633.489)
Claim Provisions (*  1.559.423,675 7496560549 (2847,652,193) 4,648.928.356 3.752,361,695 (662,857.214) 3.089,504 481
Non-ife Total §31278955 12049551520 (9,329.965.090) 3.619,586,430 6499172027 (3710.864,552) 2788307475
Life (1.473) 140216 - 140216 141,689 - 141689

12949691736 (9, 190) 3,619.726,646 6.499.313,716

(*)  Claim provisions include all additional provisions within unpaid claims in the total outstanding compensation provision in
the balance sheet date.

Outstanding Claim Reserve:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Reinsurance Reinsurance
Share of Total Gross Total  Share of Total
s Claims Claims
Liability Liability Liability Liability

Beginning of the period 1
January 6499313716 (3,710.864,552)  2,788.449,164  4,514.870,786 (3,159.406,284) 1355464502
(18,395,889,03

3)

Opened in the period 24,532,336,723 6136447690 9450238730 (4,513,830434)  4.936,408,296
(15,091,211,57
Paid from current period () 5) 9300885392 (5.790.326,183) (6.662769.808) 2221757732 (4.441012.076)
(12,805,868,19

Paid from previous periods (-) 15.940,438.864 3) 3134570671 7.302339.708 (5.451.478986) _ 1.850,860.722
Life 140,216 - 140,216 141,689 - 141,689
Reported claims discount effect (9.563.866.520)  5,827.523.912  (3,736.342,608) (4.115.227.365)  2.180.803.126 (1.934.424.239)
Discount to Be Applied to Claim

in Lawsuit (923.601373) 496,031,384 (427,569989)  (440302011) 222,668,522  (217,633,489)
Claims incurred but not reported 7496580549 (2.847,652.193) 4641 6 3753361695  (662.857.014)  3.089.504.481
Total 12.949.691,736 _(9.329.965.090)  3.619,726.646 649,313,716 _(3,710.864, 2,788.449.164

167
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)
4.1 Insurance Risk (Continued)

Claims development tables prepared in accordance with the Technical Provision Regulations
which are used in the ACLM calculation are explained below:

Gross claim development table prepared on the principles of incurred claims by
31 December 2023

1 January 2017 1 January 2018 1 January 2019 1 January 2020 1 January 2021 1 January 2022 1 January 2023
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 02

3
Claim realized in the TRAT3551.08
accident period 1366238878 1,564,047,984 2299878599  2,069,675.811  3,650,161,929  6,551,391294 6

1 year later

793,577,616 6

1228917800 2411265971 44433

2 year later 08482 35 942,527,562
3 vear later 602343.69 6 B

4 year later 438319539 1,0

5 year later 580,045,121

6 vear later

TOTAL 4413733335 4277.479.930 4526524382 4241121173 6,061,427,900 _10,994,705,628 184 58,272.772,088

Gross claim development table prepared on the principles of incurred claims by
31 December 2022:

1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January
2 2 2018 2019 2020 2 2022
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 | December 2022 Gross Claim

Claim realized in the
accident period
car later

878 1564047984 2200.878599 2069675811 3,650,161,929  6,551391294
616 606370322 939.075198 1228917800 2411265971 -
08,482 352,446, 717,625,507 942, -
569,945,078

671,792,643
4 vear later 438319539 1,082,822.405
5 vear later 42136413 580,045,121 - - - - 922,181,534
6 vear later 461.857.680 - - - - - - 461857680

TOTAL 3244.139.084 4413733335 4277479939 4526524382 4241120173 6.061.427.900 _ 6.551.391294 33315817.107

4.2 Financial Risk

4.2.

—

Capital risk management and capital requirement

The Company’s main purpose in capital management is to maintain its status as a revenue
generating company of the group and to protect shareholder and corporate partners’ benefits while
sustaining the most effective capital structure in order to reduce capital costs.

Capital requirement calculations are made by the Company in accordance with the "Regulation
on the Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension
Companies" published in the Official Gazette dated 19 January 2008 and numbered 26761 by the
Ministry of Treasury and Finance twice a year in June and December as stated in the relevant act.
As of 31 December 2023, the Group management has determined that the Group's equity capital
amount is above the required equity capital amount in the calculations made by the Group. The
Group takes actions in accordance with the Insurance legislation and the Capital Markets
legislation in order to improve the capital adequacy ratio according to the current equity/required
equity ratio ranges determined within the framework of the relevant regulation.

Corporate Governance

4.2

4.2.2

4.2.2

- ™
(\Finqncial Information and Risk Mcnqgement)

Insurance and Fi ial Risk Manag t (Conti d)

Financial Risk (Continued)
Financial risk factors

The Company is exposed to market risk (exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and price risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk due to its assets and liabilities and reinsurance assets and liabilities.
The Company’s risk management generally focuses on minimizing the probable adverse effects
of uncertainties in financial markets over the Company’s performance. The Company’s exposure
to interest rate risk and credit risk in general is due to its financial investments and insurance
receivables, respectively.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk due to fluctuations in the exchange rates, interest rates
and equity share prices.

Exchange rate risk

The Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities expose the Company to
exchange rate risks. These risks are monitored by analysing exchange rate position. The details
of the Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 are presented in detail in Note 12.4.

Financial risk factors

Sensitivity to exchange rate risk

The Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase/decrease in USD and Euro currencies are presented
below. Sensitivity analysis only includes foreign currency denominated monetary assets

outstanding at the end of period and indicates the effects of 10% changes in exchange rates.
Positive value indicates an increase in profit/loss and other equity items.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
USD Effect EUR Effect USD Effect EUR Effect
Profit/Loss
Increase 211,377,180 50,670,584 98,560,111 15,588,552
Profit/Loss
(Decrease) (211,377,180) (50,670,584) (98,560,111) (15,588,552)

Interest rate risk

The Company is required to manage its interest rate risks due to price fluctuations in its financial
instruments arising from changes in interest rates. The main risk that the available-for-sale
financial assets in the Company's portfolio are exposed to is the losses that will occur as a result
of changes in market interest rates and the decrease in the fair values of financial assets.
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4. Insurance and Fi ial Risk M (Continued) 4. Insurance and Fi ial Risk M: (C d)
4.2 Financial Risk (Continued) 4.2 Financial Risk (Continued)
lnltcrcst rate sensitivity is the cfflcct ofchang0§ in interest rates at t})c rates aslsumcd bclov&{ on the Liquidity risk table
fair values of fixed income or discounted available-for-sale financial assets in the portfolio as of
30 June 2023 and 31 December 2022. During this analysis, other variables are assumed to be 31 December 2023 Upto Syears
constant. The tax effects of these changes in the calculations are not taken into account. 1 month 1-3month 3 months-1 year 1:-5years andover  No maturity Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2210084391 LISGIT0T3  LI4TOBEN 616328393 195723008 5.326.981,485
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Einncial s vl for rsrsma0 s omssin N I
Sale S 23930, 14,452, 7.558432 306,50 BERRUEYE
Total Effect on profit and profit reserves B el Assets Held for e . 3 41,306,505 1707:247.206
Trading - - - - 719402547 3719402547
. . Held-to-Maturity Financial
Market interest rate increase/(decrease) Assets M2 192281 186209070 456549808 S s8R0
Investments with Risks on
Policy Holders Investments - 2,205,350 - 2,205,350
+1% (30,675,022) (18,449,753) Recoables rom M o
-19 Operations 947,346,928 1.842,197,057 3,798,316,528 24,453,196 194,947,506 6.807,261,215
1% 37'085’1 92 21 '339’528 Due from Related Parties 17,384 - - - 17,384
Other Receivabl - - 7211432 - - 87211432
Financial assets available for sale Effect on profit and profit reserves Prepaid Expensesand . 0
income Accruls s -
Total 3,185,319, 3,392,2¢ 5,38 381,30¢ 4,110, 61
Market interest rate increase/(decrease) TL - - 31.017.047 -
Financial Liabilties 204064199 39043 1352015345 - 1181943239
Payables from Main
1 (30.675,022) (18,443.75%) Ducto Rl T o e : wows aSorins
-1% 37,085,192 21,339,528 " . SRAVIE  LOHETSON TIN5 TSI SEI6 T sGomeste
1 Rescrves < 60316999 - - E 460316999
. Taxes Payable and Simil:
Interest rate risk Lt - - - - . . .
Total 76604087 TAGIIZAN 21247564 SOL0OST00__ SIGI6) 1230917262 9978394083
The Company is exposed to price risk due to its available for sale financial assets. As of the
B . H - - 31 December 2022
reporting date, if data used in the valuation method is increased/decreased by 10% and all ccember Upto Syears
variables remain fixed, the Company’s sensitivity is as follows. The sensitivity of the Company tmonth___1-3month Jmonths-lyear ___1-Syears andover___Nomaturiy Tota
1 1 is a1 1 1 S Cash and Cash
foiitggzpznce risk is arising from the available for sale financial assets as of 31 December 2023 ooy A28 272729906 304856.796 . L GRS6R84S 5209698181
and . Financial Assets
Available for Sale 9,590,265 155,044,251 493,226,213 876,499,247 392,729,688 24,055,744 1,951,145,408
Financial Assets Held for
ecember ecember Trading - - - - S 209376382 209376382
31D ber 2023 31 D ber 2022
+ - o Held-to-Maturity
Total Effect on Financial assets available for sale Financial Asscts < 300634501 314187673 438202160 41,779922 - 1,184,804,256
Investments with Risks on
. . Policy Hol s
Price increase/(decrease) TL Investments - - - 2011395 - - 2011395
Receivables from Main
Operations 535063340 1108988225  1,109.166,803 25550496 - 86901931 2.866570.795
+10% 168,674,027 195,081,896 Due from Related Parties 17,384 - - - - - 17,384
-10% (168.674,027) (195.081.896) repad Brpease nd o : oo
Income Accruals - - 15,555,819 - - - 15,555,819
Credit Risk Total Assets 5.108.783.823  1927.396.683 _2.285.017.589 1342263298 434,509,610 __389.202.902 11.487,173.905
Credl_t n§k is the risk that the de_btor deta_u]t_s on its obhg_at_lons under the terms oft_he transaction. Financial Liabiliies 162908124 176393750 307077506 22338737 . C s
Credit risk is managed by setting out limits and providing guarantees for receivables from a Payables from Main
. P : - Operations 357070347 712805314 17311005 175450027 - 289.806.940  2.052.543.633
specific party. Limits and guarantees are determined based on the assessment of the respective Due to Related Partics 189,642 - 1143 - - - 190.785
party’s financial ability and trading capacity. The Company is exposed to credit risk in Turkey Other Payables - cal o el - - T TS 364004109
because it mainly performs its operations in Turkey. Resnes 484916307  O6O.832614 527728220 524943171 281028852 - 2788449164
) . . . Similar Liabilities - 152,017,037 - - - - 152,017,037
As of 31 December 2023, the Company has presented its receivables from insurance operations Prepaid Expenses and

Income Accruals - -

and guarantees received and provision for doubtful receivables in Note 12.1.

05,184,420 2.346,795.325

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility of non-performance of the Company’s due liabilities. Events that
give rise to funding shortages, such as market deteriorations and decrease in credit ratings, are the
main reasons of liquidity risk. The Company manages its liquidity risk through having adequate
cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil its current and possible liabilities by allocating its
funds.

281,028,852

6,025,922.905
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4. Insurance and Fi ial Risk M t (Continued)
4.2 Financial Risk (Continued)

Categories of Financial Assets

31 2023 1 2022

Current Financial Assets Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Financial Assets Available for Sale 1,707,247,206 1,707,247,206 1,951,145,408 1,951,145,408
Financial Assets Held to Maturity 819.8 786,276,955 1,184,804,256 1,214,041,134
Financial Assets Held for Trading 3,719,402,547 3,719,402,547 209,376,382 209,376,382
Financial Investments with Risks on

Policy Holders 2,205,350 2,205,350 2,011,395 2,011,395
Total Financial Assets 6.248,738,022 6,215,132,058 3,347,337,441 3:376,574,319

Fair value of financial assets

Fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than for a forced sale or liquidation, and is best
determined by their quoted price in an organized market, if any.

The fair value classifications of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Level 1),

. Based on observable data directly (through prices in active markets) or indirectly (derived
from prices in active markets) (Level 2),

. Inputs (unobservable inputs) for assets and liabilities that cannot be determined based on

observable market data (Level 3).

Available-for-sale financial assets in the balance sheet are those that are valued at their fair values.
Classification requires the use of observable market data if available.

In this framework, the fair value classification of financial assets and liabilities measured at their
fair values is as follows:

31 2023 Category 1 Category 2 Category 3
Financial Assets Available for Sale

Corporate Bond 14,195,113 - 14,195,113 -

Eurobond 1,634218,648 1,634,218,648 - -

Stocks 5417412 3,684,686 - 1,732,726

Government Bonds 53.416,033 53.416,033 - -
Financial Assets Held for Trading

Investment Funds 3,719,402,547 3,719,402,547 - -

Derivatives and Option Guarantees - - - -
Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Eurobond 481,866,122 481,866,122 - -

Corporate Bond 615,954 615,954 - -

Government Bonds 337,400,843 136,466,228 200,934,615 -
Financial Investments with Risks on

Policy Holders

Government Bonds 2,205,350 2,205,350 - -
Total 6,248,738,022 6,031,875,568 215,129,728 1,732,726

4.2

- ™
x\FinqncicI Information and Risk Mc:nc:gement/iw

Insurance and Fi ial Risk M t (Conti d)

Financial Risk (Continued)

31 2022 Category 1 Category 2 Category 3
Financial Assets Available for Sale

Eurobond 1,204,984,035 - 1,204,984,035 -

Corporate Bond 377,696,817 - 377,696,817 -

Government Bonds 344,408,811 249,977,293 94,431,518 -

Stocks 24,055,745 22,834,250 - 1,221,495
Financial Assets Held for Trading

Investment Funds 152,529,812 152,529,812 - -

Corporate Bond 5,247,300 - 5,247,300 -

Eurobond 41,690,600 - 41,690,600 -

Government Bonds 9,908,670 - 9,908,670 -
Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Eurobond 758,034,603 - 758,034,603 -

Government Bonds 369,110,975 236,797,447 132,313,528 -

Corporate Bond 57,658,678 - 57,658,678 -
Financial Investments with Risks on

Policy Holders

Government Bonds 2,011,395 2,011,395 - -
Total 3,347,337.441 664,150,197 2,681,965.749 1221495

The Company determines the estimated fair value of its financial instruments by using the current
market information and appropriate valuation methods. Additionally, ability to estimate the
market values through assessing the market information requires interpretation and judgment. As
a result, the estimations presented herein cannot be an indicator of the amounts obtained by the
Company in a current market transaction.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments for which fair value estimates are practicable.

Financial assets

It is anticipated that fair value of the financial assets including cash and cash equivalents and other
financial assets carried at cost will approximate to their book value based on their short-term
nature and having insignificant potential losses.

Market value is taken as a basis in the measurement of fair value of government bonds and equity
shares.

Financial liabilities

It is anticipated that fair value of monetary liabilities will converge to their carrying value based
on their short-term nature.

Segment Information
Operating segments

Information related to the operational reporting made by the Company to the chief operating
decision-maker in the accordance with the ‘TFRS 8 - Operating Segments’ is disclosed in this part.

Numerical limits in ‘TFRS 8 - Operating Segments’ is also considered as well as management
reporting in the determination of operating segments. Premium production and net technical income
of different operating segments are grouped separately.

The Company operates in Turkey. Since the results of operating activities abroad have very low
effect on financial statements, the information about geographical segmentation has not been given
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5. Segment Information (Continued)
5.1 Operating segments (Continued)

Segment results for the period ended at 31 December 2023:

Motor Crafts
Liability
Motor Own (Compulsory
Fire Transportation Damage Traffic)  Other Accident Engineering Agriculture Health Life Undistributed Total
TECHNICAL INCOME 1,439,751,338 186,922,390 4,804,902,695 2,631,604,885 723,827,670 240,303,016 173,040,237 511,816,337 153,360 - 10,712,321,928
1- Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 617,406,117 114,169,861 3,988,887,586 2,114,068,147 382,986,718 84,353,233 171,445,206 203,395,649 - - 7,676,712,517
1.1- Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 1,052,727,782 132,996,969 4,681,342,295 2,840,097,716 589,663,381 150,110,915 174,060,161 281,123,283 - - 9,902,122,502
1.2- Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve (Net of Reinsurers
Shares and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) (435,321,665) (20,037,526) (692,454,709) (357,230,218) (206,677,474) (65,757,682)  (2,614,955) (77,727,634) - (1,857,821,863)
1.3-Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) - 1,210,418 - (368,799,351) 811 - - - - - (367,588,122)
2- Investment Income transferred from
Non-Technical Part 820,883,410 71,867,795 747,813,150 518,537,061 340,432,601 155,727,777 1,595,031 249,388,578 153,360 - 2,906,398,763
3- Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurance Share) - - 31,486,368 - - - - 59,032,110 - - 90,518,478
4- Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 1,461,811 884,734 36,715,591 (1,000,323) 408,351 222,006 - - - - 38,692,170
TECHNICAL EXPENSES (682,238,175) (80,453,006) (3,596,765,725) (4,140,864,363) (329,690,829) (51,288,691) (7,098,263) (200,433,772) (229,659) - (9,089,062,483)
1- Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share) (390,743,977) (60,021,042) (2,412,977,331) (3,563,603,757) (136,178,172) (49,551,964) (3,794,159) (4,734,735) (229,479) - (6,621,834,616)
1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share) (415,956,997) (26,832,340) (2,095,028,047) (3,070,872,892) (133,234,132) (39,515,089) (3,391,298) (5,495,388) (230,953) - (5,790,557,136)
1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Reserve Reinsurer Share and
Reserves Carried Forward (+-) 25,213,020 (33,188,702) (317,949,284) (492,730,865) (2,944,040) (10,036,875) (402,861) 760,653 1,474 - (831,277,480)
2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve (Net of Reinsurer)
(+-) - (2,348) - - (721) - - - - - (3,069)
3- Changes in Other Technical Reserves (Net of Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) and Other Technical
Expenses 54,824,849 10,903,076 7,056,637 - (165,571) (3,017,529) - - - - 69,601,462
4- Operating Expenses (225,459,115) (24,415,979) (982,584,781) (455,813,879) (153,483,472) 15,626,255 (3,085,421) (170,848,210) (180) - (2,000,064,782)
4.1- Production Commissions (-) (567,181,703) (86,285,040) (832,805,889) (376,683,032) (260,873,654) (100,193,719) (2,034,825) (330,721,756) - - (2,556,779,618)
4.2- Reinsurance Commissions (+) 562,454,486 80,999,187 105,980,516 196,840,647 192,742,030 153,985,987 64,549 273,302,911 - - 1,566,370,313
4.3- General Administrative Expenses (220,731,898) (19,130,126) (255,759,408) (275,971,494) (85,351,848) (38,166,013) (1,115,145) (113,429,365) (180) - (1,009,655,477)
4.4- Other Operating Expenses - - - - - - - - - - -
5- Changes in Mathematical Reserves (+/-) - - - - (698,081) - - - - - (698,081)
6- Other Technical Expenses (Net of Reinsurer Share) (120,859.932) (6,916,713) (208,260.250) (121,446,727) (39,164.812) (14,345.,453) (218,683) (24,850.827) - - (536,063.397)
TECHNICAL PROFIT/(LOSS) 757,513,163 106,469,384 1,208,136,970 (1,509,259,478) 394,136,841 189,014,325 165,941,974 311,382,565 (76,299) - 1,623,259,445
Financial income - - - - - - - - - 5,448,349,044 5,448,349,044
Depreciation expense - - - - - - - - - (96,316,248) (96,316,248)
Provisions account, net - - - - - - - - - (58,241,663) (58,241,663)
Tax expenses - - - - - - - - - (56,148,985) (56,148,985)
Financial expenses - - - - - - - - - (5,465,431,074) (5,465,431,074)
Other - - - - - - - - - (244,864,292) (244,864,292)

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 757,513,163 106,469,384 1,208,136,970 (1,509,259,478) 394,136,841 189,014,325 165,941,974 311,382,565 (76,299) (472,653,218) 1,150,606,227




172 Corporate Profile

AKSIGORTA AS.

Sustainability

Activities

Corporate Governance

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

5. Segment Information (Continued)

5.1 Operating segments (Continued)

Segment results for the period ended at 31 December 2022:

- ™
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Motor Crafts
Liability
Motor Own (Compulsory
Fire _ Transportation Damage Traffic)  Other Accident Engineering Agriculture Health Life Undistributed Total
TECHNICAL INCOME 572,565,359 91,342,932 2,571,895,924 2,414,438,955 441,379,427 103,688,105 94,728,335 275,692,968 119,761 - 6,565,851,766
1- Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 287,755,808 57,012,341 2,011,006,830 2,093,163,540 224,852,550 39,920,060 65,550,218 132,599,560 - - 4,911,860,907
1.1- Premiums (Net of Reinsurer Share) 410,648,436 59,786,304 3,360,726,583 2,427,949,018 296,430,562 61,786,885 89,391,876 150,669,599 - - 6,857,389,263
1.2- Change in Unearned Premiums Reserve
(Net of Reinsurers Shares and Reserves Carried Forward)
(+-) (122,892,628) (2,773,963) (1,349,719,753) (274,180,084) (72,290,410) (21,866,825) (23,841,658) (18,070,039) - - (1,885,635,360)
1.3-Changes in Unexpired Risks Reserve
(Net of Reinsurer Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) - - - (60,605,394) 712,398 - - - - - (59,892,996)
2- Investment Income transferred from Non-Technical Part 283,184,546 33,588,494 511,884,331 308,362,734 216,197,542 63,692,917 27,933,084 120,519,131 119,761 - 1,565,482,540
3- Other Technical Income (Net of Reinsurance Share) 5,903 - 14,083,932 - - - 1,245,033 22,574,277 - - 37,909,145
4- Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 1,619,102 742,097 34,920,831 12,912,681 329,335 75,128 - - - - 50,599,174
TECHNICAL EXPENSES (394,245,228) (32,450,049) (2,248,855,228) (3,615,545,241) (172,251,253) (25,642,384) (61,045,291) (94,969,782) (139,830) - (6,645,144,286)
1- Total Claims (Net of Reinsurer Share) (207,880,602) (17,775,222) (1,636,113,821) (3,221,420,585) (97,375,466) (34,089,301) (37,545,675) (9,151,693) (157,462) - (5,261,509,827)
1.1- Claims Paid (Net of Reinsurer Share) (170,937,181) (11,112,890) (1,531,810,156) (2,600,767,386) (56,289,685) (26,884,137) (34,785,198) (8,265,377) (160,066) - (4,441,012,076)
1.2- Changes in Outstanding Claims Reserve Reinsurer Share
and Reserves Carried Forward (+/-) (36,943.,421) (6,662,332) (104,303,665) (620,653,199) (41,085,781) (7,205,164) (2,760,477) (886,316) 2,604 - (820,497,751)
2- Changes in Bonus and Discount Reserve (Net of
Reinsurer) (+/-) - (2,643) - - (2,862) 849 - - - - (4,656)
3- Changes in Other Technical Reserves (Net of Reinsurer
Share and Reserves Carried Forward) (+/-) and Other
Technical Expenses (29,146,763) - (5,118,789) - (1,031,019) (1,893,587) - - - - (37,190,158)
4- Operating Expenses (113,207,028) (12,635,012) (470,061,778) (334,681,406) (49,777,312) 14,645,001 (22,074,882) (75,494,153) - - (1,063,286,570)
4.1- Production Commissions (-) (255,070,764) (39,201,909) (357,640,326) (257,361,165) (147,528,346) (48,119,144) (15,376,463) (154,862,309) - - (1,275,160,426)
4.2- Reinsurance Commissions (+) 228,239,609 33,354,460 1,021,896 58,099,908 134,190,982 77,249,797 (4,463,489) 105,449,341 - - 633,142,504
4.3- General Administrative Expenses (86,375,873) (6,787,563) (113,443,348) (135,420,149) (36,439,948) (14,485,652) (2,234,930) (26,081,185) - (427,268,648)
4.4- Other Operating Expenses - - - - - - - - - - -
5- Changes in Mathematical Reserves (+/-) - - - - - - - - 17,632 - 17,632
6- Other Technical Expenses (Net of Reinsurer Share) (44,010,835) (2,037,172) (137,560,840) (59.,443.,250) (24,064.594) (4,305,346) (1,424,734) (10,323,936) - - (283,170,707)
TECHNICAL PROFIT/(LOSS) 178,320,131 58,892,883 323,040,696 (1,201,106,286) 269,128,174 78,045,721 33,683,044 180,723,186 (20,069) - (79,292,520)
Financial income - - - - - - - - - 2,440,490,473 2,440,490,473
Depreciation expense - - - - - - - - - (61,103,766) (61,103,766)
Provisions account, net - - - - - - - - - (17,641,324) (17,641,324)
Tax expenses - - - - - - - - - 185,277,610 185,277,610
Financial expenses - - - - - - - - - (2,471,941,268) (2,471,941,268)
Other - - - - - - - - - (123,134,507) (123,134,507)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 178,320,131 58,892,883 323,040,696 (1,201,106,286) 269,128,174 78,045,721 33,683,044 180,723,186 (20,069) (48,052,782) (127,345,302)
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6. Tangible Assets

31 December 2023

Furnitures
and Fixtures

Other Tangible

Owner and Leased Assets (Including
Occupied Tangible Leasehold Right of

Cost Value Properties Vehicles Assets __Improvements) Use Assets Total Cost Value
1 January 5,329 8,758,863 45,477,606 24233834 68,313,445 - 146,789,077
Additions - 127970 28,363,988 31,691,147 29,842,842 - 90,025947
Disposals - - (3,572,534) (1,039,925) - - (4,612,459)
31 5,329 8,886,833 70,269,060 54,885,056 98,156,287 - 232,202,565
Accumulated
Depreciation
1 January (4,196) (959.483)  (27,013,645) (16,839,095)  (38,092,581) - (82,909,000)
Additions (108) (2,122,852)  (22,389,933) (5,144,912) (181,266) 29,839,071)
Disposals - - 3.221.136 1,010,162 - 4.231,298
31 (4,304) (3,082,335)  (46,182,442) (20,973,845)  (38,273,847) - (108,516,773)
Net Book Value
as of
31 December 1,025 5,804,498 24,086,618 33,911,211 59,882,440 - 123,685,792

The Company has no impairment loss recognized for tangible fixed assets in the current period
(31 December 2022: None).

31 December 2022

Furnitures  Other Tangible
and Fixtures Assets
Owner and Leased (Including
Occupied Tangible Leasehold  Right of Use
Cost Value Properties Vehicles Assets _Improvements) Assets Total Cost Value
1 January 1,598,569 1.878421 31,263,486 23,807,488 43,374,169 - 101,922,133
Additions - 6,880,442 15,548,334 615,542 25,304,020 - 48,348,338
Disposals (1,593.,240) - (1.334214) (189,196) (364,744) - (3.481,394)
31 5,329 8,758,863 45477.606 24233834 68,313,445 - 146,789,077
Accumulated
Depreciation
1 January (665,162) (4,022)  (22,362,090) (12,935,198)  (26,030,344) - (61,996,816)
Additions (107) (955,461) (5,719,725) (4,074,675)  (12,154,057) (22,904,025)
Disposals 661.073 - 1,068,170 170,778 91,820 - 1,991,841
31 (4,196) (959.483)  (27.013,645)  (16,839,095)  (38,092,581) - (82.909,000)
Net Book Value
as of
31 December 1,133 7,799.380 18,463,961 7,394,739 30.220,864 - 63,880,077

7. Investment Properties

The Company has no investment properties
31 December 2022: None).

as of 31 December 2023. (January 1 -

In the period of 1 January — 31 December 2023, the Company has no obtained rental income from
investment properties (1 January — 31 December 2022: None).

8.

Intangible Assets

31 December 2023

Advances for
Intangible Assets (*)

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

Cost Value

Advances for
Intangible Assets (*)

Cost Value
1 January 43,653,013 304,122,850 347,775,863
Additions 187,935,350 72,002,403 259,937,753
Disposals - - -
Transfers (29,049,310) 29,049,310 -
31 December 202,539,053 405,174,563 607,713,616
Accumulated Amortization
1 January - (179,726,972) (179,726,972)
Charge for the Period - (55,563,542) (55,563.,542)
Disposals - - -
31 December (235,290,514) (235,290,514)
Net book Value as of
31 December 202,539,053 169,884,049 372,423,102
*) Intangible assets advances include the administrative advances for the projects implemented. Since the related
assets do not create economic benefits no amortization is calculated over intangible assets.
31 December 2022
Advances for
Intangible Assets (*) Rights Total
Cost Value
1 January 30,311,685 223,788,042 254,099,727
Additions 53,641,537 40,034,599 93,676,136
Disposals - - -
Transfers (40,300,209) 40,300,209 -
31 December 43,653,013 304,122,850 347,775,863
Accumulated Amortization
1 January - (141,527,231) (141,527,231)
Charge for the Period - (38.199.741) (38,199.741)
Disposals - - -
31 December - (179,726,972) (179,726,972)
Net book Value as of 31
December 43,653,013 124,395,878 168,048,891
™) Intangible assets advances include the administrative advances for the projects implemented. Since the related assets do not

create economic benefits no amortization is calculated over intangible assets.

As of 31 December 2023, the Company has not recognized any impairment loss for its intangible

fixed assets in the current period (31 December 2022: None).

There is no goodwill amount in the financial statements of the Group.

Investments in Affiliates

As of 31 December 2023, the Company has no investments in subsidiaries (31 December 2022:

None).
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10.

11.1

Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are disclosed in Note 17.16.
Financial Assets

Subcategories of Financial Assets

Financial Assets and Financial Investments with
Risks on Policy Holders

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
Financial Assets Held for Trading 3,719,402,547 209,376,382
Financial Assets to be Held Until Maturity 1,707,247,206 1,951,145,408
Financial Assets Available for Sale 819,882,919 1,184,804,256
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders 2,205,350 2,011,395
Total 6,248,738,022 3,347,337,441
Financial Assets Available for Sale
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Cost Value __ Fair Value _ Book Value __ Cost Value __ Fair Value _ Book Value
Eurobond 1,475950,701 1,634218,648 1,634,218,648 1,127,703,380 1,204,984,035 1,204,984,035
Private Sector bonds 13379379 14,195113 14195113 376,171,799  377.696817 377,696,817
Government Bonds 81,145316 53,416,033 53416033 342,101,141 344408811 344408811
Equity Shares
(Listed on the stock
exchange) 5,659,676 3,684,686 3,684,686 18843313 22834250 22,834,250
Equity Shares (Not listed
on the stock Net 1,732,726 - 1,732,726 1,221,495 - 1,221,495
Total 1,577.867.798 _1,705.514.480 _1,707,247.206 _1.866,041,128 _1.949.923.913 _1,951,145,408

Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Cost Value __ Fair Value _ Book Value __ Cost Value __ Fair Value __ Book Value
Eurobond 477,512,845 483,846,200 481,866,122 724234844 730,943,551 758,034,603
Government Bonds 281,766,687  302430,755 337,400,843 291,846,206 426,917,320 369,110,975
Corporate Bonds 615.954 - 615954 56375954 56,180.263  57.658,678
Total 759.895.486 786,276,955 _ 819,882,919 1,072.457,004 _1,214,041,134 _1,184,804,256

Financial Assets Held for Trading
31 2023 31 2022

Cost Value __Fair Value __ Book Value __ Cost Value __ Fair Value __Book Value
Investment Funds 3,007,489,655 3,719,402,547 3,719402,547 143,966,664 152,529,812 152,529,812
Eurobond - - - 34267876 41,690,600 41,690,600
Government Bonds - - - X 9 9,908,670 9,908,670
Corporate Bonds - - - 5,000,000 5,247,300 5,247,300
Derivatives and Option
G - - - - - -
Total 3,007,489.655 3,719.402,547 3,719.402,547 193,312,889 209,376,382 209.376,382

11.
11.1

11.2

11.3

114

115

11.6
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Financial Assets (Continued)
Subcategories of Financial Assets (Continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders

31 December 2023
Fair Value

31 December 2022
Fair Value

Cost Value Book Value Cost Value Book Value

Government

Bonds 1,997,788 2,205,350 2,205,350 1,943,330 2,011,395 2,011,395

The breakdown of the shares classified as available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:
31 December 2023

Participation
Rati

Equity Shares Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
% TRY TRY TRY
Listed on Borsa Istanbul 5,659,676 3,684,686 3,684,686
Tarsim Agricultural Insurance Inc 3.70 1.732.726 - 1.732.726
Not listed on the stock exchange 1,732,726 - 1,732,726
Total 7392402 3,684,686 5417412
31 December 2022
Participation
Equity Shares Rat Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
Yo TRY TRY TRY
Listed on Borsa Istanbul 11,128,881 19,378,623 19,378,623
Foreign Stock Exchange Listed 7714432 3455627 627
Tarsim Agricultural Insurance Inc 4.17 12221495 - 495
Not listed on the stock exchange 1.221.495 - 1221495
Total 20,064,808 22,834,250 24,055,745

As of 31 December 2023, and 31 December 2022, the blockage on financial assets in favor of
Insurance and Private Pensions Regulation and Supervision Agency (“SEDDK”) has been
disclosed in Note 17.1.

Securities other than equity shares issued in the current period:

None (31 December 2022: None).

Securities issued representing the amortized borrowing in the current period:
None (31 December 2022: None).

Fair value of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at cost in the balance
sheet and cost of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at fair value in
the balance sheet

None (31 December 2022: None).

Marketable securi issued by the shareholders, affiliates and
classified under marketable securities and associates and their issuers:

None (31 December 2022: None).

ies of the Company

Increase (Decrease) in value of financial assets in the last three years

Value increases and decreases (net-off deferred tax) reflect the difference between the book value
and cost value of the financial assets at period end.

Type of Financial Asset

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Financial Assets Available for Sale (74,056,429) (2,508,795) (39,142,240)
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11.
11.7

11.8

11.9

12.
12.1

Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial Instruments

i) Information that enables the financial statement users to evaluate the financial position and
performance of the Company is disclosed in Note 4.1.

ii)  Information on the book value of the financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iii)  Comparison of the fair value and book value of financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iii)  Financial assets overdue or impaired are presented in Note 11.1.

Financial Instruments

Information related to hedge accounting has been disclosed in Note 34.5

Effects of Exchange Rate Differences

Exchange rate differences arising from the payments of monetary items or different conversion
rates used in the current period or at initial recognition are recognized in profit or loss.

Receivables and Payables

Details of the Company’s receivables

Receivables from insurance operations
Receivables from agencies

Receivables from reinsurance companies

Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables More
than Three Months

Receivables for salvage and claim recovery - net
(Note 2.1.1)

Other receivables

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

4,773,031,239
401,807,474

1,478,733,244

170,652,465
396,804

2,277,600,251
141,890,343

328,061,372

131,960,295
276,737

Receivables from insurance operations

6,824,621,226

2,879,788,998

Cash deposited for insurance and reinsurance

companies - 30,954
Receivables from insurance and reinsurance

i - 30,954
Claim recovery receivables under legal follow-up 518,334,778 337,289,309
Doubtful receivables from main operations 87,639,321 57,427,499
Total provision amount for doubtful
receivables 605,974,099 394,716,808
Receivables from main operations 7,430,595,325 3,274,536,760

Provision for due from insurance operations (-)
*

Provision for doubtful receivables from main
operations (-) (**)

Provision for net claim recovery receivables under
legal follow-up (-) (**)

Total provision amount for doubtful
receivables

(44,623,073)
(60,376,259)
(518,334,778)

(623,334,110)

(45,967,323)
(24,709,333)
(337,289,309)

(407,965,965)

Receivables from main operations - net

6,807,261,215

2,866,570,795

(*)  Inbalance sheet disclosed under provision for receivables from insurance operations.

(**)  In balance sheet disclosed under provision for receivables from main operations.

12.1

12.2

12.3
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Receivables and Payables (Continued)

Details of the Company’s receivables (Continued)

The movement table of provision for doubtful receivables under legal follow-up is presented
below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

0 - 90 days 2,806,903,995 68,643,658
90+ 3,822,769,725 18,565,965
Not due receivables 194,947,506 2,792,610,329

Total 6,824,621,226 2,879,819,952

The details of guarantees for the Company’s receivables are presented below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Doubtful Doubtful
Type of Guarantees Receivables Receivables Receivables Receivables
Letters of Guarantee 118,978,002 - 176,831,449 -
Cash Guarantees 48,974,023 - 28,257,559 -
Real Estate Pledges 61,758,193 462,100 10,336,755 416,100
Government Bonds and
Equity 43,832,150 22,500 6,107,261 7,500
Total 273,542,368 484,600 221,533,024 423,600

The Company books provision for 100% of doubtful receivables disclosing guarantees. The
movement table of provision for doubtful receivables under legal follow-up is presented below:

Doubtful trade receivable transactions

2023 2022
Opening Balance, 1 January (361,998,642) (229,472,152)
Charge for the period (216,712,395) (184,718,974)
Collections - 52,192,484
Closing Balance, 31 December (578,711,037) (361,998,642)

Receivable - payable relationship with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries of the Company
Due to/from shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries in balance sheet includes dividends which have
paid in previous years but not yet collected by shareholders. As of 31 December 2023, the Company
has liabilities amounting to TRY2,967 to shareholders (31 December 2022: TRY1,143).

Total pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amount

Total amount of pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amounts to
TRY 273,542,368 as of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:TRY221,533,024)
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12. Receivables and Payables (Continued) 12.  Receivables and Payables (Continued)

12.4 Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate
guarantees are presented below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

12.4. Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate
guarantees are presented below (Continued):

Amount in Amount in Foreign
. Foreign Banks (Foreign Currency) Currency _Exchange Rate Amount TRY
Banks (Foreign Currency) Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY
USD 535,456 294382 15,762,861 USD 10,617,609 18,6983 198,531,238
EUR 1,691,676 19,9349 33,723,392
EUR 22,920,612 32,5739 746,613,723
GBP 48,710 22,4892 1,095,449
GBP 71,326 37,4417 2,670,567 CHF 39,683 502019 801,672
CHF 6,651 34,9666 232,563 > > ’
Other 13,285 Total 9.050
Total 765,292,999 234,160,801
Stocks and Bonds
Amount i1 usDh
Stocks and Bonds Foreign Currenc, _Exchange Rate Amount TRY EUR 65,304,412 18,6983 1,221,081,487
UsSD 62,616,261 29,4382 1,843,310,007
EUR - 32,5739 - Total 173,346 19,9349 3,455,635
1,224,537,122
Total 1,843,310,007 Receivables from Insurance Operations
Amount in Foreign
Amount in Currency _ Exchange Rate Amount TRY
Foreign USD
Receivables from Insurance Operations Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY EUR 71,934,591 18,6983 1,345,054,563
usD 117,474,160 29.4382 3,458,227.817 Total 30,378,506 19,9349 605,592,479
EUR 73,006,223 32,5739 2,378,097,407 1.657.236
Other 20,928,749 I
Total 5,857,253,973 O Claims Reserve 1,952,304,278
Amount in Amount in Foreign
Foreign UsSD Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY
Outstanding Claims Reserve Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY EUR
UsD (10,213,303) 294913 (301,203,583) Total (7,760,330) 18,7320 (145,366,502)
EUR (3,882,622) 32,6326 (126,700,051) .
Other (4,040,350) Payables from Insurance Operations (4,302,194) 19,9708 (85,918,256)
(135.639)
Total (431,943,984)
Amount in UsD (231,420,397)
Foreign Amount in Foreign
Payables from Insurance Operations Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY EUR Currency  Exchange Rate Amount TRY
Other
usD (96,857,461) 294913 (2,856,452,440)
EUR (76,275,199) 32,6326 (2,489,058,059) Total (86,101,316) 18,7320 (1,612,849.851)
Other (8,013,506) (19,613,910) 19,9708 (391,705,474)
Payables to Suppliers (2,275,035)
Total (5,353,524,005) (2,006,830,360
. USD
Amp?‘:'r':ié: Amount in Foreign
Payables to Suppliers Currency _ Exchange Rate Amount TRY EUR Currency Exchange Rate Amount TRY
Total
v oz men e Gmzm  wmo o
Other i i e Net Foreign Currency Position (507,694) 19,9708 (10,139,055)
Total (58,616,291) Banks (Foreign Currency) (20,493)
Net Foreign Currency Position 2,621,772,699 555 (34,215,782)
EUR

1,138,535,662




AKSIGORTA AS.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

13.

14.

15.1

Derivative Financial Instruments

During the period between 1 January — 31 December 2023, total income resulting from short-term
swap contracts’ market valuation has been accounted under ‘Income from derivatives’ in the
income statement in amounting to TRY 26,529 (1 January — 31 December 2022:
TRY 64,994,927).

Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Cash at Banks 3,004,000,502 4,994,282,190
Time Deposit 2,808,277,494 4,925,413,345
Demand Deposit 195,723,008 68,868,845

Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables with

Maturities less than three months 2,322,980,983 215,415,991

Total 5,326,981,485 5,209,698,181

Interest Accrual on Cash and Cash Equivalents (382,121,797) (29,221,893)

Blocked Deposits (*) 33,333,333 -

Cash Flow Based Grand Total 4,978,193,021 5,180,476,288

(*)  Details of blocked deposits in the company's treasury in favor of Insurance and Private Pensions
Regulation and Supervision Agency (“SEDDK”)are given in Note 17.1.

The details of interest rates received from time deposits as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as
follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Annual Interest Annual Interest

Rate (%) Rate (%)

TRY 32.00-52.23 10.40 - 45.75
UusD 0.05 - 0.05 0.05 -0,

EUR 0.01-3.93 0.01

As of 31 December 2023, the maturities of TRY deposits are between 2 January 2024 and
11 April 2023; The maturity of foreign currency USD deposits varies between 2 January 2024
and 4 January 2024.

As of 31 December 2022, the reverse repo transaction accounted under the Company's Other
Financial Liabilities account includes none. (31 December 2022: none).

As of 31 December 2023, the Company has accounted TRY282,082 in the valuation of repurchase
agreements. (31 December 2022: TRY723,666) (Note 26).

Share Capital

Transactions between the Company and its shareholders, showing each distribution made
to the shareholders separately

The Company’s shareholders and its shareholders’ equity structure as of 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022 are presented in Note 2.14.

The details of the transactions between the Company and its shareholders and the related balances
as of the end of the period are presented in ‘Related Parties’ note.

According to the provisions of the tax legislation, 50% of the profits arising from the sales of real
estates in the assets of the companies are exempted from the corporation tax, provided that they are
kept in a special fund account for at least five full years. The exempted proficient be transferred to
another account nor be withdrawn unless it is in any other account, except for the addition to the capital
within five years. The Sales Profit to Be Added to The Capital account includes the amounts
transferred from the real estate sales to the equity.

15.

15.2
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Share Capital (Continued)

Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the
beginning and end of the period showing each change separately

Legal Reserve

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves; consists of first and second legal
reserves. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of the statutory profits at the rate of 5% per
annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company's share capital. The second legal
reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% of all distributions in excess of 5% of the Company's
share capital. The first and second legal reserves cannot be distributed unless they exceed 50% of
the total capital; however, they can be used to compensate for losses in case of depletion of reserve
reserves. As of 31 December 2023, the Company has legal reserves amounting to TRY
111,936,210 (31 December 2022: TRY 111,936,210).

Special Funds (reserves) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Actuarial (gain)/loss 10,248,582 23,070,953

Total 10,248,582 23,070,953

Equity Share Premiums

As a result of the increase in its current capital from TRY 612,000,000 to a nominal value of
1,000,000,000 TL with the Board of Directors Decision no. 3 dated 24 June 2022, the Group has
obtained a Share Premium of TRY 3,463,617. (31 December 2022: 3,463,617)

Gains from sale of fixed asset
As of 31 December 2023, company has no Capital Reserve. (31 December 2022: None).
Extraordinary Reserves

On 26 January 2022, the issued capital of the group with a nominal value of TRY 306,000,000
within the registered capital ceiling of TRY 750,000,000, with a total nominal value of
TRY 306,000,000, fully covered from internal resources,TRY 90,989,327 from the Sales Profits
to be Added to the Capital and TRY 215,010,673 from the Extraordinary Reserves account. and
it was decided to be increased by 100% free of charge to TRY 612,000,000. As of
31 December 2023 the Company has Extraordinary Reserves amounting to TRY 200,091,508
(31 December 2022: TRY 200,091,508).

With the temporary article 32 added to the Tax Procedure Law with the Law No. 7338 and the
paragraph (C) added to the 298th article of the Law, the revaluation opportunity for the immovables
and depreciable economic assets (ATIK) in the assets of has been made permanent for the
companies.

The company is subject to revaluation in accordance with the Temporary Article 32 added to the
Tax Procedure Law with the Law No. 7338 pursuant to the General Communiqué on the Tax
Procedure Law with line number 547 published and the paragraph (C) added to the 298th article
of the Law on 14 January 2023. The company follows the fund related to the revaluation of the
immovables in its assets in the Extraordinary Reserves account.
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15.  Share Capital (Continued) 15.
15.3 For each class of share capital 153
15.3.1 The explanation about the number of capital shares

The Company’s issued capital share is composed of 161,200,000,000 shares having a nominal
amount of TRY 0.01 each. These shares are presented by Class 10 shares (31 December 2022:
161,200,000,000 shares with a nominal amount of TRY 0.01 each).

- ™
w:\FinancicI Information and Risk Mcnc:gement/iw

Share Capital (Continued)

For each class of share capital (Continued)

15.3.6 Equity shares held by the Company, its affiliates, or its subsidiaries

None (31 December 2022: None).

15.3.7 Equity shares held for future sale for forward transactions and contracts

15.3.2 The explanation about the number of issued and fully paid shares and issued but not fully
paid shares
None (31 December 2022: None).
154
15.3.3 Nominal value of an equity share or equity shares without having nominal value

Nominal value of equity shares is TRY0.01 per share (31 December 2022: TRY0.01 per share).

15.3.4 Reconciliation of the number of the equity shares at the beginning and ending of the period 155
Number of Shares
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
16.

Beginning of the Period, 1 January 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Issued in the Current Period (*) - 130,600,000,000 16.1

End of the Period, 31 December 161,200,000,000 161,200,000,000

*) According the decision of the Capital Markets Board dated March 17, 2022 and numbered 13/426,
of the issued capital of the Company with a nominal value of TRY 306,000,000 within the registered
capital ceiling of TRY 750,000,000, TRY 90,989,327 will be from the Sales Profits to be Added to
the Capital account and TRY 215,010,673 will be from the Extraordinary Reserves account. The
company has increased its current capital amounting to TRY 612,000,000, with a total nominal value
of TL 306,000,000, fully covered by internal resources, and increased by 100% bonus to TRY
612,000,000, dated 5 July 2022, and no. decided to increase the amount to TRY 1,612,000,000. On
27 October 2022, the Capital Markets Board approved the Company's capital increase application
and the capital increase transactions were registered by the Istanbul Trade Registry on 23 December
2022. 16.2

15.3.5 Rights, privileges and limitations on dividend payments and repayment of share capital

In accordance with Article 61 of the Company’s Articles of Association, corporate tax is deducted

from the net profit which is determined and calculated based on the issued balance sheet. 5% of

statutory reserve is allocated over the remaining amount and subsequent to this allocation, at 16.3
minimum, 1. dividend amount that is determined by the CMB is also allocated over the final

remaining amount.

The Company’s capital does not include any preferred shares. 16.4

Based on the guidelines and principals issued by the Capital Markets Board (the Board) dated
27 January 2010 for the distribution of dividends from the profit generated from operating
activities in 2010, concerning public entities, the shares of which are quoted in public equity
markets, it has been agreed upon not to set a mandatory minimum dividend payment quota.
Furthermore, it has been agreed upon to let public entities perform dividend distributions as stated
within the ‘Communique Concerning Principal Matters on Dividend Advances Distributed by
Public Entities Under the Regulation of the Capital Markets Law’ (Serial: IV, No: 27), as stated
within the principal agreement of the companies and as stated within the policies on dividend
distribution that have been shared with the public.

None (31 December 2022: None).

Share based payments

None (31 December 2022: None).

Subsequent events

Disclosed in Note 46.

Other Provisions and Capital Component of Discretionary Participation

Each income and expense item and their total amounts accrued under shareholders ‘equity
in the current period in accordance with other standards and interpretations

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Available for sale financial assets

valuation difference 74,056,429 2,508,795
Deferred tax effect (22,216,929) (627,199)
Deferred tax effect of VUK inflation differences 79,237,910 -
Total 131,077,410 1,881,596

Net exchange differences classified separately as an equity item and reconciliation of
exchange differences at the beginning and end of the period

None (31 December 2022: None).

Hedging for forecasted transactions and net investment hedging
None (31 December 2022: None).

Hedging against financial risks

Disclosed in note 34.5.
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16.

16.5

16.6

16.8

171

Other Provisions and Capital Component of Discretionary Participation (Continued)

Gains and losses from available for sale financial assets recognized directly in equity for in
the current period and amounts recognized in the current profit or loss taken from
shareholders’ equity

2023 2022

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)

B of the Period, 1 January 1,881,596 (30,139,525)
Increase/decrease in value recognized under the

shareholders’ equity in the current period 129,195,814 32,021,121

End of the Period, 131,077,410 1,881,596

Income and loss related to affiliates recognized directly in equity in the current period
None (31 December 2022: None).

Revaluation increases in tangible fixed assets

None (31 December 2022: None).

Current and deferred tax in relation to debit and credit items directly charged in equity
None (31 December 2022: None).

Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assests

Guarantees to be provided for life and non-life insurance branches and guarantees provided
for life and non-life insurances based on assets

The Company’s guarantees to be provided for life and non-life insurance branches and guarantees
provided for life and non-life insurances based on assets are below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Amount to be Amount to be

Branch Provided  Current Blockage Provided  Current Blockage

Life 2,168,648 2,205,350 1,470,766 2,211,500

Government Bonds 2,205,350 2,211,500

Non-Life (*) 1,065,256,537 1,822,621,919 671,930,181 832,025,834

Government Bonds 340,467,696

Eurobond 1.484.259.573 832,025,834

Total 1,067,422,185 1,824,727,269 673,400,948 834,237,334
(*) 31 December 2023, the required guarantee amount has been calculated based on capital requirements in

31 December 2023.

17.

17.2

17.3

174

17.5
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Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assests (Continued)

Number of life insurance p additions, disp in the current period, and current life

insurances and their mathematical reserves

2023 2022
Mathematical Mathematical
Reserves Reserves
Unit TRY Unit TRY
Beginning of the Period,
1 January 155 1,325,877 TRY 1,343,509
Participations in the
Current Period - - - -
Leavings in the
Current Period - 698,081 2) (17,632)
End of Period,
31 December 155 2,023,958 155 1,325,877

Mathematical reserves amounting to TRY2,023,958 (31 December 2022: TRY1,325,877) and
Reserves for the policies, investment risk of which belongs to life insurance policy holders
amounting TRY 202,396 (31 December 2022: TRY 132,588) and cancelled policy numbers
together with their mathematical reserves are included in the table above.

Financial assets classified as Financial Assets Available For Sale under Financial Investments at
Policyholder’s Risk are valued with current value as explained in note 11; as of
31 December 2023, there is no difference in the value accounted in Life Mathematical Reserve
account discounted with current value (31 December 2022: None).

Insurance guarantees given ton on life insurances based on insurance branches

Branch 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Motor Crafts Liability 83,452,316,316,024 66,361,480,983,801
Disease/Health 2,168,580,790,781  2,094,305,236,668
Fire and Natural Disaster 5,746,715,688,745  3,562,430,488,643
General Losses 1,197,490,771,834 772,976,232,121
Transportation 1,632,088,040,277 956,532,696,798
General Liability 485,697,448,513 266,278,685,542
Financial Losses 676,738,718,010 388,037,488,779
Motor Own Damage 912,103,841,675 511,336,853,734
Air-Crafts Liability 483,716,520,050 316,646,805,750
Accident 74,236,508,834 54,323,879,115
Legal Protection 10,174,524,143 9,581,314,764
Air Crafts 39,570,614,758 15,344,270,144
Suretyship 9,902,544,987 3,508,319,185
Credit 1,981,124,051 2,566,411,902
Water Craft 98,405,718,756 -
Total 96,989,719,171,438 75,315,349,666,946

Pension investment funds established by the Company and their unit prices
None (31 December 2022: None).
Number and amount of participation certification in portfolio and circulation

None (31 December 2022: None).
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assests (Continued)

17.6 Number of portfolio amounts of additions, disposals, reversals, and current individual and
group pension participants

None (31 December 2022: None).

17.7 Valuation methods used in profit share calculation for life insurances with profit shares

17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)
17.15 Explanation of information that describes amounts arose from insurance agreements
None (31 December 2022: None).

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense, and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized when
the insurer is a ceding company:

None (31 December 2022: None). Reinsurance Assets 31D b 31D b
) . ) 2023 2022
17.8 gll;nclll:::et:lftth:reilgdditions and their group or individual gross and net share participations in R?;‘Zt‘;?‘];;zs)hare of Outstanding Claims Reserve 0329965000  3.710.864.552
P Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve
. (Note 20) 9,487,695,045 3,808,591,870
None (31 December 2022: None). Equalization Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 880,501,141 485,464,437
Deposits of Reinsurance Company (Note 12.1) 401,807,474 141,890,343
17.9 Number of additions from the other companies and their group or individual gross and net Ongoing Risks Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 503,140,110 201,429,210
share participations in the current period Bonus and rebates provision Reinsurance Share (Not 20) 245,747 233,659
Deposits of Reinsurance Company (Note 12.1) - 30,954
None (31 December 2022: None).
Total 20,603,354,607  8,348,505,025
17.10 Number of transfers from the Company’s life portfolio to individual pension portfolio and
their group or individual gross and net share participations 31D, b 31D, b
Reinsurance Debts 2023 2022
. Payables to Insurance and Reinsurance Companies
None (31 December 2022: None). (Note 19.1) 5,155,855256  2,052,543,633
Deferred Commissions Income (Note 19.1) 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
17.11 Number of transfers from the Company’s individual pension portfolio to other company or
not and together their personal and corporate allocation and gross and net share Total 6,461,998,950 2,583,781,752
participations
Income/Expense on Reinsurance Agreements
None (31 December 2022: None). 1 January- 1 January-
31 D b 31D b
17.12 Number of additions of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net 2023 2022
th tical .
mathematical reserves Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Clgums Reserve 5,619,100,538 1,061,366,107
None (31 December 2022: None). gg)msurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve (Note 5.679.103.174 1.882.605.963
Reins Sh: f Claims Paid 9,300,885,392 2,221,757,732
17.13 Number of disposals of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net C::::xfsggis R:rcee?ved ?Ti}](;l:e 3321) 1.566.370.313 633.142.504
mathematical reserves Bonus and rebates provision Reinsurance Share (Not 20) 12,088 (534,748)
Ongoing Risks Provision Reinsurer Share (Note 20) 301,710,899 (55,413,857)
All of disposals of life insurances in current period are individual and units and amounts are Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers (-) (17,396,625,668)  (6,706,047,686)
represented in Note 17.2.
Total 5,070,556,736 (963,123,985)

17.14 Profit share distribution rate of life insurances in the current period
In the current period, profit share distribution rate of life insurances are calculated as below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Profit Share Distribution Profit Share Distribution

TRY (Life Insurance) 9.00 9.00
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense, and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized when
the insurer is a ceding company: (Continued)

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Reinsurance
are of e Reinsurance Share  Reinsurance Share
Technical Premiums CededShare of Premiums Ceded of Technical of Technical
Branch Reserves (**) () Reserves (**) *) Reserves (**) Reserves (**)

Fire and Natural Disaster  (5,582,089,836) 5,653,144,919  (2,286,126,904) 796,047,750
Motor Crafts Liability 804,863,944 774,337) 342,443,142
Health 278,162 1,121,069.316  (956,651,196) 565,004,904
General Losses (2.211.462,703) 1.313,428,988 601,274,963 (920,353.816) 35 279,108,185
Financial Losses 1,637,521,316 330,010,780 (424,488,627) 164, 79,189,544
Motor Own Damage 678,392,409 452,374,762 (118,349,579) 81,185,152 3,093,634
General Liability 143,304,005 129,541,361 (620,044,256) 359,518,462 64,338,732
Transportation 301,668,650 72,248,193 (239,836,699) 118,494,796 60,203,975
Water Crafts 100,988,938 48,49 (110,527,224) 72,286,772 10,947,561
Air Crafts Liability 3 2 (187,844,210) 95,059,556 772
Air Crafts 8 68,754,226 (72,985,458) 16,729,989 13,083,575
Accident 52,352, 17,624,034 8,479,613 (28,738,100) 4,805,421 6,615,480
Credit (11,259,.231) 1,741,767 8,938,593 (7,537,764) 1,636,215 66,086
Suretyship (101,336,589) 455,197,380 1,648,285 (26,789,516) (108,068,135) 1,524,392
Legal Protection (2.419) 1.769 9.280 - - -
Total (17,396,625,668)  11,599,926,699  9,300,885392  (6,706,047,686) 2,888,023.465 2,221,757,732
*) As

plained in Note 2.15, Transferred Premiums amounted to TRY434,053,951 (31 December 2022: TRY235,919,245)
transferred to the Social Security Institution as of December 31, 2023

(**)  Technical reserves reinsurer share includes uncarned premium reserve, unexpired risk reserve, outstanding claim reserve,
bonus, and discount reserve.

The company defers commission income that arises from reinsurance agreements which has been
bought ascendant enterprise.

17.17. Comparison of incurred claims with past estimations
Disclosed in Note 4.1.1.3.
17.18. Effects of changes in the ptions used in the measurement of insurance assets and

liabilities, showing the effects of each change that has significant effect on the financial
statements separately

Disclosed in Note 4.1.1.4.

17.19 Reconciliation of insurance payables, reinsurance assets and changes in deferred acquisition
costs, if any

2023
Insurance Payables Reinsurance Assets
Beginning of the Period, 1 January 2,583,781,752 8,348,505,025
Net change of the year 3,878,217,198 12,254,849,582
End of the period — 31 December 6,461,998,950 20,603,354,607
2022
Insurance Payables Reinsurance Assets
Beginning of the Period, 1 January 1,480,465,096 5,171,408,394
Net change of the year 1,103,316,656 3,177,096,631
End of the period — 31 December 2,583,781,752 8,348,505,025

17.
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Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.20 Deferred production commissions and deferred commission income

18.

19.

19.1

19.2

The part of the commissions paid to the intermediaries for the premiums written and the
commissions received from the reinsurers due to the premiums transferred to the reinsurers are
accounted for in the balance sheet under ‘Deferred manufacturing expenses’ and ‘deferred
commission income’ accounts, respectively, and in the Income Statement under the operating
expenses account. Deferred commission expenses and deferred commission income as of
31 December 2023 amounted to TRY 1,708,733,645 (31 December 2022: TRY885,958,057) and
TRY1,306,143,694 (31 December 2022: TRY531,238,119), respectively, deferred production
expenses and deferred tax commission income is included in account items.

Investment Contract Liabilities
Disclosed in Note 17.3.
Trade and Other Payables, Deferred Income

Sub-classifications of presented items in the Company’s operations line with
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Payables from Insurance and

Reassurance Operations (Note 17.16) 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
Payables from Insurance Operations 5,155,855,256 2,052,543,633
Current account of natural catastrophe insurance 103,431,814 78,158,956
Payables to sellers 222,403,859 126,119,670
Negotiated service and debts to institutions 73,293,131 58,594,811
Other - 1,117,874
DASK debts to agencies 2,656,924 2,113,421

401,785,728 266,104,732
Payables to SSI regarding medical expenses 178,631,352 69,641,878
Deferred commission income (Not 17.16) 1,306,143,694 531,238,119
Provision for Cost Expenses (Not 23.4) 274,370,607 96,230,891
Deferred Income and Expense Accruals 1,580,514,301 627,469,010
Total Short-Term Liabilities 7,316,786,637 3,015,759,253

Total Trade and Other Payables,
Deferred Income 7,316,786,637 3,015,759,253

Related Party Disclosures

Details related with related party balances and transactions for the current financial period are
disclosed in Note 45.
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20. Payables 20. Payables (Continued)

Insurance Technical Reserves

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Provision for bonus and discount

Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net (*) 5,755,788,715 3,897,966,852 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Unexpired Risks Reserve - Net (Note 4.1.2.2) 3,619,726,646 2,788,449,164 Gross _Reinsurance Gross ross  Reinsurance
Equalization Provision — Net 85,298,741 154,900,203 Beginning of the Period,
Mathematical Reserves - Net 2,023,958 1,325,877 1 January 243,883 (233,659) 10224 773,975 (768,407) 5,568
Ongoing Risks Provision- Net 520,806,201 153,218,079 Net change 15157 (12.088) 3069 (530.092) 534,748 4,656
Bonus and Discount Provisions - Net 13,293 10,224 End of the Period,

31 December 259,040 (245.747) 13,293 243,883 (233,659) 10,224
Total 9,983,657,554 6,995,870,399

(*)  While calculating the income statement effect of the provisions for unearned premiums,
TRY21,635,410 the deferral effect of the premiums transferred to assistance companies, which is
included in operating expenses, has been netted off (31 December 2022: TRY 10,125,503)

As disclosed in Note 2.15, the reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums includes SSI share as of
31 December 2023 which is TRY102,242,133 (31 December 2022: TRY 16,042,069 the

reinsurers” share of unearned premiums)

The movement of technical reserves are as follows:

. 2023 2022
Unearned Premium Reserve: S
Short-term rent liabilities 40,840,102 27,858,335
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Long-term rent liabilities 41,998,044 30,762,568
Reinsurance Reinsurance i i i
Gross i Net Gross i Net Alternative borrowing rate and discount amount (20,375,770) (12,657,993)
Beginning of the Period,
1 January 7,706,558,722 (3,808,591,870)  3,897,966,852 3,938,317,399 (1,925,985,907) 2,012,331,492 Total rent liabilities 62,462,376 45,962,910
Net change 7.536.925.037 (5.679,103.174) _1.857.821:863 _3.768.241.323 (1:882.605.963) _1.885.635.360
End of the Period, 31D b 31D b
31 December 15243483759 (9.487.695,044) 575,788,715 _7.706.558.722 (3.808,591,870) 3.897,966.852 2023 2022
*) The reinsurance share for unearned premiums also includes the share of SSI amounting to TRY 102,242,133 .. . C .
(31 December 2022: TRY 16,042,069 the reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums), Beginning of the Period, 1 January Lease Liabilities 45,962,910 27,564,034
Rent payments (Real Estates and Motor Vehicles) (40,292,876) (364,744)
. : Interest Payments 17,081,898 (20,648,629)
Unexpired Risk Reserve: ;U8 1L, ,043,!
p New lease agreements 29,842,842 7,227,787
31 2023 31 2022 Change in lease agreements 9,867,602 32,184,462
Gross _Rei Gross Gross_Reinsurance
Beginning of the Period, bt
1 January 354647290 (201429211) 153218079 350,168,151 (256,843,068) 93,325,083 Total rent liabilities 62,462,376 45,962,910
Net change 669299021 (301.710.899)  367.588.122 _ 4:479.139 _ 55413.857  59.892.996
End of the Period.31 December 1,023.946,311 (503,140,110) 520,806,201 354,647,290 (201,429.211) 153,218,079 Payables to Credit Institutions
Equalization Reserve: None. (31 December 2022: 544,473,125 TL)
___31 December 2023 _ . 31 December 2022 21. Deferred Income Tax
Gross Gross _Reinsurance Gross
Beginning of the Period,
1 January 640,364,640 (485.464.437) 154,900,203 415,818,190 (298,108,145) 117,710,045 : b :
Net change 325435042 (395.036.704) (69.601462) 224546450 (187336292)  37.190.158 Tl_le_ Company recognizes _deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences
End of the Period arising between its financial statements as reported for Turkey Accounting Standards (TAS)
e of the Period, 965.799.882 (880,501,141 85298741 640,364,640 (485.464,437) 154,900,203 purposes and its statutory tax financial statements. These differences usually result in the

(*)  The company has offsct the net 61,057 TL paid for Ditzce Earthquake damages occurring in 2022 and the net 154,503,882
TL paid for Kahramanmaras Earthquake damages occurring in 2023 from the balancing provision it has allocated in previous

years. (31 December 2022: TRY3,090,074)

Outstanding claims reserve:

The movement of Outstanding Claims Reserve of 2023 and 2022 are presented in note 4.1.1.3.

Lease Liabilities

The movement table of the total lease obligation and lease obligations that the Company is as

follows:

31 December

31 December

recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for TAS.

The Group's deferred income tax amounts are disclosed in Note 35.
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22.

Retirement and Welfare Liabilities

The funds established for the personnel of banks, insurance and reinsurance companies within the
scope of the SGK Law were decided to be transferred to SG K within three years following the
publication of the Law with the Provisional Article 23 of the Banking Law No. 5411, Council of
Ministers dated 30 November 2006 and numbered 2006/11345. With its decision, the procedures
and principles regarding the transfer have been determined. On the other hand, the relevant law
article regarding the transfer was decided by the Constitutional Court, based on the application made
by the President on 2 November 2005, and published in the Official Gazette dated 30 June 2007 and
numbered 26479, dated 22 March 2007 and numbered E,2005/39, N,2007/33. It was annulled by
the decision of the court and its validity was suspended as of the publication date of the decision.

The Act No: 5754 ‘ Amendments in Social Securities and General Health Insurance Acts Specific
Laws and Related Requirements’ published in the Official Gazette No: 26870 on 8 May 2008,
requires the transfer of participants or beneficiaries of pension funds to SSI as of the effective
date of the Act within 3 years and prescribes the extension period of the transfer as maximum of
two years upon the order of Council of Ministers.

The Act prescribes that, as of the transfer date, present value of fund liabilities should be measured
by considering the fund income and expense based on the insurance branches presented in the
related act using 9,8% of technical interest rate in the actuarial calculation. The Act also specifies
that the uncovered other rights and compensations of participants or beneficiaries of pension funds
should be covered by institutions that made the fund transfers.

Aksigorta A.S. is a member of Akbank T.A.§ Pension Fund (Akbank T.A.$ Tekaiit Sandig1). At
each period-end, the Group pays its insurance premiums calculated for its share to the pension
fund.

Retirement Pay Provisions:

Under the terms of Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination
benefits to each employee who has qualified for such payment.

Employee termination benefits provisions are legally not a subject of funding. The provision has been
calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company arising
from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 (‘Employee Benefits®) requires actuarial valuation methods
to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the
following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total liability:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase
parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after
adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying
financial statements as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022; the provision has been
calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of the employees. As of 31 December 2023; the provisions at the
respective balance sheet dates have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 2.72%
(31 December 2022: 0,5%) The anticipated rate of forfeitures is considered and estimated rate of
the Company’s retirements pay is also taken into account.

Actuarial loss amounting to TRY8,387,575 (Deferred tax effect: TRY30,761,271) in the
calculation of severance pay provision is accounted in the account of private funds under the
equity (Note 15.2).

22. Retirement Pay Provisions (Continued)

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

As the maximum liability is updated semi-annually, as of 31 December 2023, the maximum
amount of TRY 35,058 effective from 1 July,2022 has been taken into consideration in calculation
of provision from employment termination benefits (31 December 2022: TRY 19,983).

Movement of employee termination benefits provisions are presented in the statement below:

2023 2022
Beginning of the period, 1 January 33,744,176 14,112,606
Charge for the period (Note 47) 9,734,023 3,381,887
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 8,387,575 20,113,078
Retirement Payments (-) (34,428,571) (3,863,395)
End of the period, 31 December 17,437,203 33,744,176
23.  Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals
23.1 Provisions related to employee benefits and others
2023 2022

Unused Social Security Unused Social Security
Vacations Premiums Vacations Premiums
Provisions Payable Provisions Payable
Beginning of the period, 1 January 7,694,606 689,939 3,690,561 235,747
Movements in the Current Period 17,051,634 199,581,154 4,736,668 83,980,744
Payments in the Current Period (3.956.510) (199.361.405) (732.623) (83,526.552)
End of the period, 31 December 20,789,730 909,688 7,694,606 689,939

23.2 Total Amount of Non-Liability Commitments

Company’s statement of pledges and commitments as of 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2022 are presented below:

Collaterals, Pledges and Mortgages Given by the Company (CPM)

B. Total amount of CPM’s given in favour of joint ventures
included in full consolidation

C. Total amount of CPM’s given as the guarantee of the third
parties for the maintenance purpose of the ordinary activities

31 December 2023 31 2022
Amount in Amount in
Original Amount Original Amount
Currency TRY __ Currency TRY
A. Total amount of CPM’s given on behalf of the Company legal entity - - - -
- 18,933,842 - 8168243
18,933,842 18933842 8168243 8,168,243

Turkish Lira

D. Total amount of the other CPM’s given
i. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor of the parent company
ii. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor of other group
companies not included in clauses B and C
iii. Total amount of CPM’s given in favor of third parties not
included
Turkish Lira

Total

18,933,842 8,168,243

Other CPM’s given by the Company is zero
(31 December 2022: None).

in proportion to the Company’s equity

183



184

Corporate Profile Sustainability Activities

AKSIGORTA AS.

Corporate Governance

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

23.
233

23.4

Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals (Continued)
Provisions, Contingents Assets and Liabilities
31 December 2023

Contingent Liabilities 31 December 2022

Outstanding Claims under Litigation (*) 3,695,399.914 1,850,339,823
Unused Vacation allowance 20,789,730 7,694,606
Business Cases Provision 2,001,288 1,526,062
Total 3,718,190,932 1,859,560,491

Contingent Assets 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Subrogation Receivable Litigations, Gross 966,382,419 476,415,678
Trade Receivable Litigations and Executions 9,754,253 9,512,014
Total 976,136,672 485,927,692

(*)  Outstanding claims provision consists of net receivables, interest, and expenses & agency fees in
the amount of TRY2,064,213,460, TRY616,633,274 and TRY1,014,553,180 respectively.

As of June 24, 2014, Tax Inspection Board of T.C. Ministry of Finance has launched a limited
tax investigation related to the Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax for the years 2009, 2010,
2011 and 2012 and as a consequence of the tax inspection, tax of TRY 1.8 million and tax penalty
of TRY2.8 million for the year 2009, tax of TRY2 million and tax penalty of
TRY?3 million for the year 2010, tax of TRY3 million and tax penalty of TRY4.6 million for the
year 2011 and tax of TRY4.3 million and tax penalty of TRY 6.4 million for the year 2012 and in
total tax and tax penalty of TRY27.9 million related to Banking Insurance Transaction Tax were
imposed to the Company. The Company has not booked any provision in the financial statements
since it believes that its practice is in compliance with the regulations. On 16 January 2015, the
Company filed a reconciliation request for the year 2009 and on 20 February 2015 filed a
reconciliation request for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 to the Large Taxpayers Office
Commission of Reconciliation. Large taxpayers were interviewed by the Tax Office on
15 February 2018, and on 27 February 2018 a lawsuit was filed against the Grand Taxpayers
Office as no compromise could be reached. In the cases of 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, in tax
litigation related to BITT, Tax Court has decided in favour of the Company in the cases of 2009
and 2010. The cases of 2011 and 2012 continue before the Tax Court. In 2022, the Seventh Court
of the Council of State decided that the appeal request of all the cases belonging to the relevant
years should be rejected and that the decision in accordance with the procedure and the law should
be upheld, and the rejection of the lawsuits was finalized by the Council of State.

Provision for Expense Accruals

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

period.

Commission provision (*) 111,760,501 35,174,020
Expense provision 7,665,855 4,102,832
Guarantee fund provision 40,999,395 26,643,891
Performance premium provision 51,667,360 16,808,930
Business cases provision 2,001,288 1,526,062
Allowance 20,789,730 7,694,608
BSMYV fund provision 36,359,595 3,397,304
Other 3,126,883 883,244
Total 274,370,607 96,230,891
(*)  Commission provision to be distributed to the agency, bank, and institutional channels for the current

24.

25.

- ™
w:\FinqncicI Information and Risk Mc:nc:gement/iw

Net Insurance Premium Revenue

Motor Own Damage
Motor Crafts Liability (*)
Fire and Natural Disaster
Health

1 January- 31 December 2023

Gross

Reinsurance share

Net

5,914,419,949
5,690,988,600
6,619,368,716
2,559,286,166

(1,233,077,654)
(2.850,890,884)
(5,582,089,837)
(2,278,162.883)

4,681,342,295
2,840,097,716
1,037,278,879

281,123,283

General Losses 2,381,552,903 (1,942,663,027) 438,889,876
General Liability 1,301,548,487 (1,195,800,039) 105,748,448
Financial Losses 1,232,682,097 (1,125,830,418) 106,851,679
Transportation 415,300,903 (321,723,816) 93,577,087
Air Crafts Liability 288,837,616 (288,836,525) 1,091
Accident 321,080,453 (52,394,903) 268,685,550
Water Crafts 295,488,568 (256,068,687) 39,419,881
Air Crafts 156,489,043 (156,488,756)
Fidelity Guarantee 104,250,161 (101,336,589) 2,913,572
Credit 11,446,411 (11,259,231) 187,180
Legal Protection 6,008,097 (2,419) 6,005,678
Total - Non-life branches 27,298,748,170 (17,396,625,668) 9,902,122,502
Written premium - Life branch - - -
Total 27,298,748,170 (17,396,625,668) 9,902,122,502
1 January- 31 December 2022
Gross Reinsurance share Net
Motor Crafts Liability (*) 3,133,723,355 (705,774,338) 2,427,949,017
Motor Own Damage 3.479,076,162 (118,349,579) 3.360,726,583
Fire and Natural Disaster 2,696,775,340 (2,286,126,904) 410,648,436
General Loss 981,102,356 (776,732,294) 204,370,062
Health 1,107,320,795 (956.651,196) 150,669,599
Financial Losses 486,883,426 (424,488,627) 62,394,799
Transportation 299,623,003 (239.836,699) 59,786,304
Accident 141,277,206 (28,764,950) 112,512,256
General Liability 808,500,012 (763,638,927) 44,861,085
Water Crafts 128,005,473 (110,527,224) 17,478,249
Legal Protection 4,150,592 3) 4,150,589
Suretyship 28,320,949 (26,789,513) 1,531,436
Credit 7,844,868 (7,537,764) 307,104
Air Crafts Liability 187,846,933 (187,844,210) 2,723
Air Crafts 72.986.479 (72.985.458) 1,021
Total - Non-life branches 13,563,436,949 (6,706,047,686) 6,857,389,263
Written premium - Life branch - - -
Total 13,563,436,949 (6,706,047,686) 6,857,389,263
*) Reinsurance share of land vehicles liability branch amounting to TRY434,053,951

(1 January- 31 December 2022: TRY235,919,245) includes premiums to be ceded to SSI.

Fee Income

None (1 January — 31 December 2022: None.).
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26.

27.

28.

Investment Income/(Expense)

Realized Investment

1 January-
31 December 2023

1 January-
31 December 2022

Income/Expenses
Term Deposit 480,453,023 144,563,831
Eurobond 295,171,496 334,083,624
Investment Fund 138,200,324 173,110,860
Government Bond 148,925,777 76,291,650
Corporate Bonds 30,011,430 87,328,175
Stock 47,306,259 95,057,846
Repo - (1,102,527)
Treasury Bond (4,169,246) -
Derivative Instruments (8,864,491) 63,846,886
Total 1,127,034,572 973,180,345
Unrealized Investment
Income/(Expenses)

Investment Fund 668,048,871 8,022,165
Term Deposit 319,636,016 42,778,351
Government Bond (53,871,299) 65,384,690
Repo 282,082 723,666
Treasury Bond (153,360) (119,761)
Corporate Bonds 3,677,815 (16,463,111)
Stock (1,974,869) -
Derivative Instruments - 1,148,041
Eurobond (31,687,439) 73,771,895
Total 903,957,817 175,245,936
Investment Income/Expense, Net 2,030,992,389 1,148,426,281

Net Accrual Income on Financial Assets
1 January- 1 January-

Financial Assets Available for Sale

Valuation differences recognized
under shareholders' equity

31 December 2023

51,839,500

31 December 2022

1,881,596

Total

51,839,500

1,881,596

Assets Held at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

The net gain which is booked in income statement from the fair value difference reflected to gain
or loss of the financial assets, is amounting to TRY 33,605,964 as of 31 December 2023
(1 January — 31 December 2021 TRY?29,236,878)

29.

30.

31.

32.

Insurance Rights and Demands

Outstanding Claims Reserve Expenses

1 January-
31 December 2023

Aksigorta Annual Report 2023

1 January-
31 December 2022

Motor Crafts Liability 492,730,865 620,653,198
Motor Own Damage 317,949,284 104,303,665
General Losses 20,695,549 11,961,956
Transportation 23,287,687 6,662,332
Financial Losses (6,136,222) 9,600,406
Suretyship 12,237,729 (2,255,507)
Water Crafts 9,901,015 4,478,913
Accident 1,285,260 429,390
Legal Protection 35,674 (232,083)
Credit (59,632) 60,036
Air Crafts Liability 6,170 6,264
Air Crafts 122 604
General Liability (20,804,235) 27,002,652
Health (760,653) 886,316
Fire and Natural Disaster (19,089,659) 36,943,421
Total Non-life 831,278,954 820,500,355
Life (1.474) (2,604)
Total (*) 831,277,480 820,497,751
*) For current previous period comparison please refer to Note 4.1.1.3.
Investment Agreement Types
None. (31 December 2022: None).
Mandatory Other Expenses
Types of expenses are disclosed in Note 32.
Expense Type

1 January- 1 January-

Production Commissions (-)
Employee Wages and Expenses (-) (*)
(Note 33)

Other (-)

31 December 2023
(2,556,779,618)
(634,174,919)

31 December 2022
(1,275,160,426)
(257,683,578)

Information Technology Expenses (-) (123,553,964) (62,484,025)
Lease Expenses (-) (794,622) -
Meeting and Training Expenses (-) (66,262,648) (19,212,651)
Outsourced Benefits and Services (-) (14,078,650) -
Transportation Expenses (-) (17,593,743) (8,490,299)
Social Relief Expenses (-) (Not 33) (46,925,013) (13,859,834)
Advertisement Expenses (-) (22,927,434) (14,064,390)
Maintenance Expenses (-) (488,937) -
Communication Expenses (-) (136,219) -
Reinsurance Commissions (+) 1,566,370,313 633,142,504
(82,719,148) (45.,473.871)

(2,000,064,602) (1,063,286,570)

Total

(*)  The Group pays monthly individual pension contributions, at a minimum of 98 TL and a maximum
gross minimum wage, for personnel who fulfill the conditions, and this amount is shown in

personnel wages and expenses.
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33. Employee Wages and Expenses

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Salary and Bonus Payments (496,496,877) (203,154,858)
Insurance Payments (123,284,029) (49,665,497)
Other Payments (61,319,026) (18,723,057)
Total (Not 32) (681,099,932) (271,543,412)

34  Financing Cost

34.1 Financial Expenses:
The Group has an interest expense of TRY 17,081,898 for the lease contracts accounted for under
TFRS 16 in the period of 1 January — 31 December 2023 (1 January — 31 December 2022:
TRY7,227,787). There is a total interest expense of TRY165,892, 42,782,995 TL based on
financial leasing agreements and TRY 60,030,785 based on the financing received from credit
institutions (1 January — 31 December 2022: 107,008,731.)

34.2 Current period’s financial expenses related to shareholders, affiliates, and subsidiaries:
None. (31 December 2022: None).

34.3 Sales transactions with shareholders, affiliates, and subsidiaries:
Disclosed in Note 45.

34.4 Interest, rent and similar balances with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries:
Disclosed in Note 45

34.5 Hedge accounting principle
Cash Flow hedging principle
None. (31 December 2022: None).
Type risk and principle of the cash flow hedge

None. (31 December 2022: None).

34.6 Exchange differences, other than those arising from financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss.

None. (31 December 2022: None).

Corporate Governance

3s.
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Corporate Tax

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Current Tax Liability:
Corporate Tax Liability Provision on

Period Profit 148,228,750 -
Prepaid Taxes and Other Liabilities on

Period Profit (-) (31,748,380) -
Withholdings paid in advance through deduction (4,531,989) (3,664.432)
Total 111,948,381 (3,664,432)

Tax (Expense)/Income is Formed by the Items Below:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Current Tax Income/(Expense) (148,228,750) -
Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) due to

Temporary Differences 92,079,765 185,277,610
Total Tax Income/(Expense) (56,148,985) 185,277,610

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences
arising between its financial statements as reported for TFRS purposes and its statutory tax
financial statements. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses
in different reporting periods for TFRS and tax purposes and they are given below.

In the financial statements as of 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
calculated by considering the time intervals in which the deferred tax assets consisting of
deductible temporary differences will be realized by generating taxable profit in the future, it is
calculated with 30% for realizable in 2022, and 23% for the following years
(31 December 2022: 20%).

The deferred tax asset/liability movement is as follows:

Deferred Tax 2023 2022

Recognized in the Shareholders' Equity:

Valuation of Financial Assets Available for Sale (22,216,929) (627,199)
Actuarial Gain/Loss Effect 4,392,250 7,690,318
Deferred tax effect of VUK inflation differences 79,237,910 -
Total 61,413,231 7,063,119
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35.  Corporate Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax items are as follows:

Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Temporary Temporary Assets/ Assets/

i i (Liabilities) (Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Ongoing Risks 520,806,200 153,218,079 156,241,860
Expense reserves (Not 23.4) 156,442,989 59,422,047 46.932:897
Tangible and intangible assets 162,244,525 196.938.531 48398078
Provision for doubtful receivables 451108415 46,452,664 13.532,525
Performance premium provision (Note 23.4) 45367360 16,808,930 13,610,208
Balancing Equivalent 26870236 14,972,733 8.061.071

Provision for employment termination benefits

(Note 22) 17242714 33,744,176 5,172,814 8,436,044

Unused vacation allowance (Note 23:4) 20789731 7,694,606 6236919 1.923,652

aks: - - - -

7,736,633 (5,740,238 2,320,990 (1,435,061)

10,125.409 587,130 3037.623 1321.783

13:293 .22 3,988 2,556

- (1,148,041 - (287.010)

56,970,767 373,259,896 17,091,230 93314974

(82.903.690) 7.445.920 (104.109.016) 1.861.480

1,093,506,123 915,793,980 375,007,006 228,577,129

Reconciliation of period tax expense with net income for the period is as below:

31D ber 2023

31D ber 2022

Profit before tax 1,258,686,675 (304,940,761)
Calculated tax revenue: 30% (2022: 25%) (377,606,003) 6,235,190
Effect of additions (183,540,805) (64,389,559)
Effect of discounts, net 504,997,823 265,261,438
Tax impact of tax loss - (93,314,974)
Total Tax Expense (56,148,985) 183,792,145

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Profit before tax 1,258,686,675 (304,940,761)
Calculated corporate tax provision (377,606,003) 76,235,190
Legally unacceptable and other expenses (21,456,724) (9,480,597)
Income subject to tax exemption (*) 342,913,742 117,037,552
Total tax expense/i in the i tat t (56,148,985) 183,792,145

(*)  The company's tax exemption items consist of items such as economic assets subject to depreciation,
VUK 12-month valuation increase depreciation, and investment fund exemption.

36. Net Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss

1 January-
31 December 2023

Recognized in Profit/Loss:

1 January-
31 December 2022

Foreign Exchange Income 3,265,713,483 1,207,382,169
Foreign Exchange Expense (2,347,511,714) (764,778,207)
Total 918,201,769 442,603,962

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,
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Earnings per Share

2023 2022
Number of Equity Shares Outstanding 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Beginning Period, 1 January 161,200,000,000 30,600,000,000
Bonus issued stock - 30,600,000,000
Stocks issued with cash - 100,000,000,000
Number of Equity Shares Outstanding 161,200,000,000 161,200,000,000
End of Period, 31 December 161,200,000,000 161,200,000,000
Weighted Average Number of Outstanding
Shares (Unit of 1; TRY 0.01) 161,200,000,000 161,200,000,000
Net Profit for the Period/(Loss) (TRY) 1,150,606,227 (127,345,302)
Earnings/(Loss) per Share (TRY) 7.138 (0,079)

Dividends per share

Based on the decision taken at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on 31 March 2023,
the Group did not distribute profit to the shareholders, as there was no profit in the financial
statements containing the operating results for 2022. (31 December 2022: None).

Cash Generated from the Operations

Cash Generated from Operations is presented in the Cash Flow Statement.
Equity Share Convertible Bonds

None (31 December 2022: None).

Cash Convertible Privileged Equity Shares

None (31 December 2022: None).

Risks

The Company’s contingent asset and liabilities are presented in Note 23.3.

Commitments

Total amount of off-balance sheet commitments are presented in Note 23.2.

Business Combinations

None (31 December 2022: None).

187



188 Corporate Profile

AKSIGORTA AS.

Sustainability

Activities

Corporate Governance

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period 1 January — 31 December 2023

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

45. Related Parties

Related Party Receivables/(Payables)

The details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below.

Bank Deposit 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 126,178,370 805,864,759
Total 126,178,370 805,864,759
Private Sector Bonds 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies - 78,353,737
Total - 78,353,737
Investment Funds 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 3,719,402,606 152,529,871
Total 3,719,402,606 152,529,871
Related Party Receivables/(Payables) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 486,080,604 56,249,402
Receivables from shareholders 159,023 315,066
Payables to shareholders 2,967 (1,157,309)
Total 486,242,594 55,406,959
1 January- 1 January-

Premium production 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 1,416,693,662 424,479,919
Shareholders 24,150,885 10,829,352
Total 1,440,844,547 435,309,271
1 January- 1 January -

Claims Paid 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 1,015,327,846 23,689,175
Shareholders 98,724 6,243
Total 1,015,426,570 23,695,419
1 January — 1 January-

Interest Income Received from Related Part

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Group Companies 45,954,768 29,506,396
Total 45,954,768 29,506,396

1 January- 1 January-
Commission Expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Group Companies 413,257,199 221,474,450
Total 413,257,199 221,474,450

46.

47.

- ™
w:\FinancicI Information and Risk Mcnc:gement/iw

Subsequent Events
None.

Other

Details of ‘Other’ items in the balance sheet which exceed 20% of its respective account group

or 5% of total assets:

Other Receivables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Receivables from Tarim Sigortalar1 A.S. 58,508,939 29,869,201
Receivables from Agencies due to DASK Premiums 10,096,361 9,671,229
Other Receivables 17,236,020 7,234,743
Total 85,841,320 46,775,173
Other Short-Term Payables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool Payables to

agencies 103,431,814 78,158,956
Payables to suppliers 222,403,859 126,119,670
Payables to contracted enterprises 73,293,131 58,594,811
Other - 1,117,874
Payables to Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool 2,656,924 2,113,421
Total 401,785,728 266,104,732
Other Prepaid Expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Prepaid Expenses 69,334,340 14,407,778
Total 69,334,340 14,407,778

Other Prepaid Expenses (Long Term)
Prepaid Expenses

Total

31 December 2023
830,165

830,165

31 December 2022
110,304

110,304

Assistance services under other technical expenses in the income statement, amounting to
TRY536,063,397 (31 December 2022: TRY283,170,707), consist of deferral of these amounts

and technical expenses of these services.
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘'TRY’) unless otherwise indicated.)

47.  Other (Continued)

Income and Profit/Expenses and Losses from

Other and Extraordinary Activities

Provisions Account (+/-)

1 January-

31 December 2023

(58,241,663)

1 January-
31 December 2022

(17,641,324)

Provisions for doubtful receivable (4,322,894) (5,952,779)
Donation expenses - -
Portfolio Management (2,457,727) (2,114,710)
Retirement pay provision (Note 22 (34,047,545) (3,381,887)
Unused vacation provision (Note 23.1) (17,051,634) (4,736,668)
Provision for other expenses (361,863) (1,455,280)

Specialized Insurance Account (+/-) 12,996,481 6,798,025

Deferred tax asset account (+/-) (Note 35) 92,079,765 185,277,610

Other expenses and losses (-) 17,780,403 9,956,934

Other income and profits (275,641,175) (139,889,466)
Bank expenses (230,562,255) (114,105,950)
Disallowable expenses (11,254,888) (6,677,608)
Donation expenses (9,144,036) -
Other (24,679,996) (19,105,908)

Total (211,026,189) 44,501,779

Fees for services acquired from independent auditor/independent audit firm:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Independent audit fee for the reporting period * 5,537,050 547,175
Fees for other assurance services * - 133,282
Total 5,537,050 680,457

(*)  Fees are excluding VAT.
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Contact

GENERAL DIRECTORATE

Fatih Sultan Mehmet Mah. Poligon
Cad. Buyaka 2 Sitesi 1 Blok No: 8A, ig
Kapi No: 2 Umraniye/Istanbul/Turkiye
Tel: +90 216 280 88 88

Fax: +90 216 280 88 00

E-mail: bilgi@aksigorta.com.tr

REGIONAL DIRECTORATES

Cukurova and Central Anatolia
Cinarlt Mah. Turhan Cemil Beriker
Bulvari No: 45 Emin Kara is Merkezi
Kat: 6 D: 8 Seyhan/Adana/Turkiye
Tel: +90 322 355 78 00 (5 lines-pbx)
Fax: +90 322 363 09 38

Mediterranean and South Aegean
Yenigun Mah. 1047 Sok. Midtown

is Merkezi A Blok Kat: 3 D: 13- 14
Muratpaga/Antalya/Turkiye

Tel: +90 242 245 59 00 (pbx)

Ankara Regional Directorate
Bestepe Mah. Dumlupinar Bulvari
No: 6 Armada is Merkezi A Blok Kat:
13 No: 19 06520 Yenimahalle/Ankara/
Turkiye

Tel: +90 312 582 50 00

Fax: +90 312 231 28 21

Marmara and Western Black Sea
Odunluk Mah. Akpinar Cad. No:

5 Green White Plaza Kat: 4 No: 11
Nilufer/Bursa/Turkiye

Tel: +90 224 275 30 47

Fax: +90 224 22415 82

Izmir and Northern Aegean
Akdeniz Mah. Akdeniz Cad. No: 14
701/702 Turk EGitim Vakfi Binas
Sadullah Hamit Birsel is Merkezi
Konak/izmir/Turkiye

Tel: +90 232 455 85 00

Fax: +90 232 402 37 00

Istanbul/Europe

izzetpasa Mahallesi Yeniyol Caddesi
Nurol Tower Kapi No: 3 Kat: 25 Sigli/
Istanbul/Turkiye

Tel: +90 212 393 43 03

Fax: +90 212 211 28 38

Istanbul/Thrace

izzetpasa Mahallesi Yeniyol Caddesi
Nurol Tower Kapi No: 3 Kat: 25 Sisli/
Istanbul/Turkiye

Tel: +90 212 463 68 00

Fax: +90 212 465 78 99

Istanbul/Anatolian

Kozyatagi Mah. Degirmen Sokak
Nida Kule No: 18 Kat: 6 Daire: 15/ A
Kozyatagi/Kadikdy/Istanbul/Turkiye
Tel: +90 216 665 75 14

Fax: +90 216 463 14 82

Istanbul Corporate Sales Group
Directorate

Poligon Cad. Buyaka 2 Sitesi No:
8 Kule: 1, Kat: 0-6 34771 Umraniye/
Istanbul/Turkiye

Tel: +90 216 280 88 88

Fax: +90 216 280 88 00

Eastern Anatolia and Eastern Black
Sea

Kiligdede Mah. Ulkem Sok. No:8-B D: 11
55060 ilkadim/Samsun/Turkiye

Tel: +90 362 280 91 00

Fax: +90 362 280 9111

Southeastern and Central Anatolia
ibrahimli Mahallesi 35131 Sokak

Bina No: 23A Daire No: 1 Sehitkamil/
Gaziantep/Turkiye

Tel: +90 342 28012 40

Fax: +90 342 215 21 37
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